
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting ofNovember 1, 2022.

D. Hearings - 2023 Proposed Budget.

E. Organizational Business.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. An Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budgets for the General, Civic

Celebrations, St. Martin's Fair, Donations, Grants, Solid Waste Collection, Sanitary
Sewer, Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Street Improvement, Capital
Improvement, Debt Service, Development, Utility Development, TID 3, TID 4, TID
5, TID 6, TID 7, TID 8, American Recovery Act, Opioid Settlement Fund, and
Internal Service Funds and Establishing the Tax Levy and Other Revenue for the
City of Franklin and Establishing the Solid Waste Fee.

2. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a 2 Lot And 1 Outlot Certified Survey Map,
Being all that Part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin (Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, Applicants) (at 7832 West
Drexel Avenue).

3. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a 1 Lot and 1 Outlot Certified Survey Map,
Being all that Part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin (Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, Applicants) (at 7726 West
Drexel Avenue).

4. Request from the Fire Department to Replace the Motor in its Fourth (Back-up)
Ambulance Using Existing Grant Funding, at an Expected Cost of $13, 018.55.

5. Status Update on the Unified Development Ordinance Rewrite.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
November 15, 2022
Page 2

6. Council Update and Staff Direction to Hold a Neighborhood Meeting on the 35th
Street Root River, East Branch Project Related to Properties at Approximately the
7300 Block of S. 35th Street.

7. 2023 Professional Services Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Racine
County for Services to Verify a Certified Soil Tester's Soil and Site Evaluation.

8. Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wraybum Consulting, LLC for
General Planning Services.

9. Approval of a Professional Services Agreement with Dust-Free Cleaning Service,
Inc. for Night Time Cleaning ofCity Hall.

10. Tax Incremental District No. 8 Potential Development Agreement Between the City
of Franklin and Saputo Cheese USA Inc., Commercial/Manufacturing Buildings
Mixed Use Development (Public and Private Property Improvements) at 2895 W.
Oakwood Road bearing Tax Key No. 951-9994-003. The Common Council may enter
closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for competitive and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8
Potential Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Saputo Cheese
USA Inc., Commercial/Manufacturing Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public
and Private Property Improvements), and the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including the
terms and provisions of the potential development agreement for the development of
property located at 2895 W. Oakwood Road, consisting of approximately 34.388
acres, and to re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

11. Common Council Consideration of Code of Conduct Complaints. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(f) considering
financial, medical, social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific
persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the
investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which,
if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such
problems or investigations, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to
act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits.
1. Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting ofNovember 15, 2022.
2. An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Update the Specified Duties of the

License Committee as set forth in § 19-4A.(3) License Committee.
3. License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures Amendments.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
November 15, 2022
Page 3

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available mn the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklmnw1.gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrvduals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

November 17
November 24-25
December 6
December 8
December 20
December 22
December 23-26
December 30 and
January 2

Plan Commission Meeting
Closed for Thanksgiving
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Closed for Christmas

Closed for New Years

7:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
OCTOBER 18, 2022

CANCEL HOLDING
TANK AGREEMENT
7407 S. 27TH ST.

CANCEL HOLDING
TANK AGREEMENT
9801 S. 27TH ST.

CLOSED SESSION
COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING

A.

B.

C.

G.3.

G.4.

G.l.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

NOVEMBER 1, 2022
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on
November 1, 2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve
Olson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann,
Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman,
Alderman Mike Barber and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in
attendance were Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, Dir. of Finance
& Treasurer Denise Gilbert, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:30 p.m. and closed at
6:45 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of October 18, 2022, as amended and
presented at this meeting. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to cancel the Holding Tank Agreement
dated May 11, 1993 for the property located at 7407 S. 27th Street
and to authorize the execution and recording with the Office of the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds of the Certification of Service
by Municipal Sewer and cancellation of City of Franklin Holding
Tank Agreement in the form and content as included in the Council
packet for this meeting, with any changes as approved by the Director
of Inspection Services and the City Attorney. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to cancel the Holding Tank Agreement
dated February 13, 1997 for the property located at 9801 South 27th
Street and to authorize the execution and recording with the Office of
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds of the Certification of
Service by Municipal Sewer and cancellation of City of Franklin
Holding Tank Agreement in the form and content as included in the
Council packet for this meeting, with any changes as approved by the
Director of Inspection Services and the City Attorney. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session at 6:45 p.m. pursuant
to Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(c) and (e), to discuss collective bargaining
strategy in regard to negotiations with the Franklin Police Officers



Common Council Meeting
November 1, 2022
Page 2

STRATEGY
FRANKLIN POLICE
OFFICERS
ASSOCIATION

FIRE DEPT. GRANT G.2.
AND PURCHASE OF
ICE/WATER RESCUE
SUITS

RES. 2022-7920 G.5.
TAX ASSESSMENT
AGREEMENT TID 6
RISE FRANKLIN WI,
LLC

DENY POLICE SGTS. G.6.
COMPENSATORY TIME
REQUEST

2023 BUDGET G.7.

WISDOT G.8.
S. 27TH ST. PROJECT

RES. 2022-7921 G.9.
AUTHORIZE FENCE

Association, for competitive and bargaining reasons, and to reenter
open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as the Common Council deems appropriate.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Upon reentering open session at 8:23 p.m., Alderman Barber moved
to direct staff to proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Fire Department to apply for
and accept the Kelmann Cares grant funding in the amount of $1,000
with an appropriation of $356; and to purchase two First Watch
ice/water rescue suits, at a total cost not to exceed $1,356. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7920, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A TAX ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AS PART OF
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 6 WITH RISE
FRANKLIN WI, LLC, with the negotiated changes by the City
Attorney. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to refer to the Police and Fire Commission
for review and recommendation, the request to raise the maximum
accrual level for compensatory time for the Police Sergeants from 110
hours to 200 hours to mirror the Police Union accrual level.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, Alderman Barber,
Alderwoman Hanneman, and Alderman Holpfer voted Aye;
Alderman Nelson, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderwoman
Eichmann voted No. Mayor Olson broke the tie by voting in the
Affirmative. Motion carried.

No action was taken at this time regarding the 2023 Proposed Budget
(Public Hearing to be held on November 15, 2022).

No action was taken at this time on the inclusion of sidewalks,
lighting, and other design elements in the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation project for S. 27th Street (STH 241) from W. Elm
Road to W. Villa Drive as outlined on the Common Council action
sheet for this meeting and detailed by the City Engineer.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7921,
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A



Common Council Meeting
November 1, 2022
Page 3

WITHIN EASEMENT
9307 S. 35TH ST.

RES. 2022-7922
WE ENERGIES WORK
ORDER

G.10.

FENCE WITHIN THE 5-FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT UPON
LOT 1 IN BLOCK 15 OF SOUTHWOOD EAST (9307 S. 35TH
STREET) (TAX KEY NO. 879-0220-000) (KEVIN AND LINDA
WANDTKE, APPLICANTS). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7922, A
RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO WE ENERGIES FOR
WORK ORDER FOR LIGHTING AT W. SUNNYBROOK ROAD
AND W. FOREST HOME AVENUE. Seconded by Alderman
Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

ORD. 2022-2521
AMEND MUNICIPAL
CODE
LAND DISTURBING
CONSTRUCTION

WAL-MART REAL
ESTATE BUS. TRUST
SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT

G.11. Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table to the February 6, 2023
Committee of the Whole Ordinance No. 2022-2521, An Ordinance to
Repeal Chapter 165 of The Municipal Code and to Repeal and
Recreate Chapter 129 of The Municipal Code and to Rename
Chapter 129 from "Filling and Grading" to "Land Disturbing
Construction Activities". All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.12. Alderman Holpfer moved to approve and execute the proposed
Settlement Agreement between Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust
and the City of Franklin for Parcel No. 714-0003-002 for the City to
issue to Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust a partial refund of
property taxes in the amount of $3,706.92, based on an assessed value
of $10,461,000 for the tax year 2021, and authorize a reduction in the
assessed value of the property, for the 2022 tax year, decreasing it
from $11,511,000 to $10,461,000; and direct staff to process payment
of the 2021 tax refund within 30 days of the date the Agreement is
signed by both parties, adjust the 2022 tax bill as authorized, and
process the chargeback per the statutory process in 2023 after the
Board of Review amends the value. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

SAM'S REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST
SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT

G.13. Alderman Holpfer moved to approve and execute the proposed
Settlement Agreement between Sam's Real Estate Business Trust and
the City of Franklin for Parcel No. 714-0004-001 for the City to issue
to Sam's Real Estate Business Trust a partial refund of property taxes
in the amount of$4,928.70, based on an assessed value of $6,645,700
for the tax year 2021, and authorize a reduction in the assessed value
for the property, for the 2022 tax year, decreasing it from $7,541,900
to $7,281,300; and direct staff to process payment of the 2021 tax
refund within 30 days of the date the Agreement is signed by both
parties, adjust the 2022 tax bill as authorized, and process the
chargeback per the statutory process in 2023 after the Board of
Review amends the value. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All



Common Council Meeting
November 1, 2022
Page 4

FF&E, LLC
SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

CLOSED SESSION
CODE OF CONDUCT
COMPLAINTS

G.14.

H.

G.15.

voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve and execute the proposed
Settlement Agreement between FF&E, LLC, and the City of Franklin
for Parcel No. 744-1001-000 for the City to issue to FF&E, LLC, a
partial refund ofproperty taxes in the amount of $16,609.30, based on
an assessed value of $7,550,000 for the tax year 2020, and authorize
the reduction in the assessed value for the property, for the 2022 tax
year, decreasing it from $8,400,000 to $7,650,000; and direct staff to
process payment of the 2020 tax refund within 30 days of the date the
Agreement is signed by both parties, adjust the 2022 tax bill as
authorized, and process the chargeback per the statutory process in
2023 after the Board of Review amends the value. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Shari Hanneman moved to approve the following:

Hold 2022-2023 Reserve Class B Combination License Until Next
Meeting to: Ryan Fuel LLC, DBA Andy's On Ryan Rd, Agent
Kavita Khullar, 5120 W Ryan Rd;
Grant New 2022-2023 Operator License with Letter to Eric
Zoromskis;
Grant New 2022-2023 Operator License to Kaitlyn Smith;
Grant the PUBLIC (People Uniting for the Betterment of Life and
Investment in the Community) to: Franklin Civic Celebration
Committee for Independence Celebration, Operator's Licenses,
Temporary Class "B" Beer & Wine License, Temporary
Entertainment & Amusement License, Soda License, and Park
Permits; 6/30/2023-7/2/23, Franklin City Hall, Lions Legend Park I &
II; and
Schedule Date for Meeting to Review Fireworks Process on 11/10/22
at4:00 p.m.

Seconded by Michelle Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Code of Conduct Complaints. Alderman Holpfer moved to enter
closed session at 9:55 p.m. pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1 )(f)
considering financial, medical, social, or personal histories or
disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of
specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against
specific persons except where par. (b) applies, which, if discussed in
public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or
involved in such problems or investigations, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed



Common Council Meeting
November 1, 2022
Page 5

ADJOURNMENT J.

therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On
roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 10:34 p.m.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:34 p.m.
Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



JVAL

PUBLIC HEARING

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Public Hearing - 2023 Proposed Budget

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER
N,

As is requured by Wisconsm State Statutes, the Common Council scheduled a Public Hearing on the 2023
Proposed Budget for Tuesday, November 15, 2022. The Public Heanng was duly noticed m accordance with
the law, and the complete proposed budget has been available for pubhc inspection at the Office of the City
Clerk, the Franklin Public Library, and on the City's website since October 5, 2022. Attached is a copy of the
heanng notice that comprises the Summary of the 2023 Proposed Budget.

To recap, the following has occurred in conjunction with the Caty's 2023 Budget Process:

Mayor Olson released his '2023 Mayor's Recommended Annual Budget' on October 4, 2022, after
months of internal preparation, comp1laton, and rev1ew;

The 2023 Mayor's Recommended Annual Budget was presented to the Common Council and the
citizens by the Director of Admmnustration at the Common Council Meeting on October 4, 2022;

The Common Council referred the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Annual Budget to the Fmance
Committee for an in-depth review and to make recommendations regarding updates/changes to the
Common Counel upon completon of the rev1ew;

The Finance Committee held three meetings on the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget, where each
section of the draft budget was reviewed in detail, m consultation with the Director of
Admmustraton, the Director of Finance, and all Department Heads, and recommended its changes to
the Common Council on October 18, 2022; and

The Common Council, on October 18, 2022, made the followmg motions pertammng to the 2023
Mayor's Recommended Budget, which now stands as the 2023 Proposed Budget bemg considered by
the Common Councl;

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjust the 2023 Proposed Budget to allocate $50,000 of the $1,500,000
budgeted for the Local Road Program to be specifically used for Curb and Gutter Repair, and carry
over any unspent Curb and Gutter Repair funds from the 2022 Budget, if that work does not get
done this year, to be used with the $50,000 for Curb and Gutter Repair m 2023. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion earned." (See attached Exhibit A-Revised and
Exhibit A-Original.)

"Alderman Barber then moved to amend the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget for revenues
and expenditures as detailed herem and on the attached schedules, to be included mn the 2023
Proposed Budget for the Public Heanng scheduled for November 15, 2022. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion earned." (See attached Exhibit B.)

Also, mcluded mn thus Action Sheet, at the request by Alderman Nelson, are the deta1ls on the Landfill Siting
Fees. Please see attached Exhibit C which shows the Landfill Sitmg Fee Revenues and details on how they
are bemg proposed to be spent mn the 2023 Proposed Budget.



Also, 1n regard to the Sohd Waste Fees, staff 1s not recommendmg a change in the user fee at this time;
therefore, recommendmg 1t remain at $139.60 per household, per year, for 2023. There was an mcrease m this
fee m 2022, gomg from $134.60 to $139.60, per year, per household, which 1s sufficient to cover the 2022
change in prcmng. There was also a credit provided by the service provider due to erroneous CPI factors
bemg used by the City m 2020, and 2021. While staff 1s m negotiations with the City's current service
provider on rates for 2023, and rates will be increasing for 2023, there are additional items to cons1der with
the renewal, and there is sufficient fund balance mn the Sohd Waste Fund to cover the expected increase for
2023. Staff wll be discussmng thus matter wth the Finance Commuttee at their meeting later thus month, and
bnng a recommendation forward to Council at the December 6, 2022 Council Meetung to sold1fy the
agreement for 2023.

The Director of Admm1strahon will be available at the Public Hearmg to provide a few bref comments
regarding the budget process and recap the highlights of the 2023 Proposed Budget.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

This item 1s to hold a Pubhc Hearing on the 2023 Proposed Budget.

DOA-PS



• • • •

4Y I WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2022 I SOUTH NOW

CITY OF FRANKLIN,WISCONSIN
N011C E OF PUBLI C HEARI NG - 2023 PROPOSED BUDGET
Fnmld in CityHafl,9229 W Loomis Road, Fnmldin, WI 53132

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, in accordancewill>Section 65.90(3), Wisconsin State Statutes, that a PubUc Hearin g win be held on
Tuesday ,November 15, 2022, at 6:30PM, or shortly.thereafte r, at9229W Loomis Road, Franklin , WI 53132, on the City at Franklin
2023 Proposed Budget. Anyresi dent or taxpayer shall have the opportun ity tobeheard lhemon. A sununary of the Proposed Budget
herewithanda copy of the comp lete Proposed Budget is avai lable for public inspectionat the Frankdin City Hall andthe Franklin Public

Library dwing nonnal businesshours, The ProposedBudget is also avai lable online at www.frankfinwi. gov

PROPOSED 2023BUDGET"

··«+"GENERAL FUND 21121 2022 2022 21123 %
ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATED PROPOSED CHANGE

FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 $9,199,013 $9,876,030 $9,876,030 $10,571,632
REVENUES

PROPERTYTAXES $19,176,109 $19,931,500 $19,931,500 $20,455,400 2.6%
OTHEATAXES $730,494 $62s;900 $537,900 $568,900 -9.3%
INTE RGOVERNMENTAL $1,708,654 $1,758,500 $1,793,700 $1,902,200 8.2%
LICENSES & PERMITS $1,241,005 $1,202,275 $1,269,600 $1,270,100 5 6%
FINES, FORFBTU RES & PENALTIES $4111,889 $450,000 $415,000 $415,000 7.8%
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVI CES $2,790,818 $2,503,750 $2,536,600 $2,556,000 2.1%
INTE RGOVER NMENTAL CHARGES $204,681 $261,200 $260,000 $330,900 26.7%
INTEREST & INVESTM ENT INCOME . $36,044 $196,138 $238,500 $221,575 13.0%
MISCELLAN EOUS $306,992 $219,866 $163,500 $150,500 -31.5%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $1.017.790. $1.,063.600 $1,060,500 $1,060.500 -0.3%

TOTALREVENUES $27 632 476 $28,213,729 $28206.800 $28931.075 2.5%
EXP ENDl11JRES

GENERAL GOVER NMENT PUBLIC $2,945,813 $3,130,979 $2.906,537 $3,454,803 10.3%

SAFElY $17,870,375 $18,966,374 $18,816,850 $19,298,556 1.8%

PUBLIC WORKS $4,199,025 $4,270,593 $4,224,040 $4,374,891 2.4%

HEALTH-& HUMAN SERVICES $705,988 $751,686 $691,063 $730,136 -2.9%

CULTURE & RECREATION $328,871 $475,849 $318,021 $401,428 -15.6%

CONSEm/A110N & DEVEL OPMENT $531,387 $618,248 $554,687 $671,261 8.8%

OTHER FINANCING USES $374,000 $0 $0 $0 0.0%

TOTAL EXP ENDITU RES $26,955,459 $28,213,729 $27,511,198 $28,931,075 2.5%

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $9876030 $9,876 030 $10571 632 $10,571.632
SUMMARY OF ALL GOVER NMENTALAND PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DEBT
GENERAL SERVICE CAPITAL TIF

Estimated Fund Balance, January 1 $10,571,632 $501,124 $12,941,617 $8,808,103
Tax LevyffiF Increment $20,455,400 $1,100,000 $0 $3,526,036
OtherRevenues $8,475,675 $5,000 $13,327,592 $7811,036
Total Revenue $28,931,075 $1,105,000 $13,327,592 $4,314,072

Expendilures $28,931,075. $1,157,338 $13,479,465 $6,185,345

Revenues Ove r/(Under) Expenditures $0 ($52,338} ($151,873) $1,871,273)

Fund Balance , December 31 $10 571.632 4489.735. $12,789.744 $6936830
INlERNAl Al.LOTHER SUMMARY

ENTERP RISE SERVICE GOV FUNDS ALLFUNOS

EstimatedFund Balance, January 1 $123,319,539 $3,010,833 $1,908,338 $161,061,186
Tax LevyffiF lnc,ement $0 $0 $1,374,000 $26,455,436
Oth er Reve nues $12,755,796 $3,045,900 $3,458,086 $41,856,085

Total Reven ue $12,755,796 ·$3,045,900 $4,832,086 $68,311_,521

Expenses/Expen ditu res $14,006,093 $3,479,200 $2,969,335 $70,207,851

Revenues Over/(L.Jnder) Expend itures ($1,250,297) ($433,300) $1,862,751 ($1,896,330)
Fund Balance,Decemb er 31 $122.069 242 $2 577 533 $3 771 089 $159.164.856

2023FEVENUES AND EXP ENDITUBES FOR EACH IMPACI FEEIMPOSED BY THE CITYOE FRANKLIN

REVEN UES EXP ENDl11JRES

Impact Fee Parks $170,000 $582,600

Impact Fee - Sewer $170,000 $0
Impact Fae - Administrati ve $10,000 $0

Impact fee Waler $385,000 $107,800

Impact Fae -Trans portation $155,000 $137,375

Impact Fae Fire $105,000 $141,550

ImpactFee LawEnforcem ent $120,000 $0
Impact Fee - Library $30,000 $0

Thereareno significant proposed increases or decreases to the cunerrt year budgetdue to new or disconti nued activities or
functions pursuant to 65.90 (3) bm),WisconsinStatutes.

OUTSTANDING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

12/31/2019 12/31/2020
$71,870,341 $67,560 069

12/31/2021
$72,298,400

Dated at Franklin, Wisconsin,
ths 26th Day of October, 2022

PUBLISH: Wednesd ay October 26, 2022

Sandra Weso lowski, City Clerk
Denise Gilbert, Finan ce Directo r/T reasurer

CLASS 1 NOTICE



Cl
0

><
N

E-
n
o

u
n
0

o
0

0
r-

r-
r
-o

.1-l
0

H
0
\

rl
N

ri
Ill

\D
\D

Ill
\0

a>
0

0
\

(/')
N

r:'.i
a

0
0

0
\

0
\

rl
ri

0
\
ri

r-
N

0
\

......
o

-
>

E-
a>

0
r-

0
0

0
O

DO
0

u
\D

Ill
N

I')
I')

N
<'l

0
\

0
0

L
,

,
a>

,.,
~

ri
r

N
ri

Ill
\0

0:::
-

r
ri

ri
wrlr

<¢............0a
r4

><
N

E
0
o

o
n
o

a>
0

111
Ill

a>
u
)

0
1")

0
H

\D
CX)

.,
..,

..,
r-

r-
..,

r-
r-

0
\

\D
.1-l

N
r:'.i

Ill
N

OI
<'l

..,
~

~
..,

N
ri

0
\
ri

Et
..,

rl
r-

r-
"'

0
\

0
\

\D
0
\
r-

N
O

?
r-

4
0
\

Ill
Ill

0
\
u
)

O
a

0
....,

I')
0

0
<"10

<"1
\D

0
\

rl
r-1

rd
r

ri
r-1

N

~
E-

N
rz:i

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
..,..,

0
(!J

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
\D

\D
N

H
9

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
rd

(.!)
H

III
Ill

Ill
1/l

N
0

r-
O

..,
p

@
(r

0
1")

0
Ill

a>
0

..,
a>

0
0
\

0
\

a>
0
\

0
\

..,,.,
0

':.
N

ri
Ill

r4
(r

..,_
u
)

g
0
\
0

r-1
rl

ri
::!.

rl
ri

r-1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

\D
\D

0
0

r-1
r-1

0
0

0
0

0
0

a>
a>

Ill
111

,.,,.,
I')

,.,

<'l
r-1

N
<"l

a>
,.,

111
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
\

0
\

111
111

r-1
rl

0
000111I')

,.,0rl

Ill
N 0

0
0

0
0

0

111DO

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
,.,

..,

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0000\D0r-1

0
0

0
0

111
111

ON

I')
Na>"

262

..,..,
\D

\D
rl

rl

<'10
00

0
0

ri

rl
rl

..,"'
D
O

rl
a>

I')
r

a>
0

0
\0

r-1

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

r
-o

r
<.o

0
\
r

o
u

rl
r-1

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

r-
a>

rl
\0

Ill
0
\

O
n

"'
ri

<'l
rl

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

t
)

,.,
0
\

..,
\D

..,
rl

r-1
rl

0
0

0
0

0
O

0

0
0

0
\

0
\

Ill
Ill

rl
rl

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

(I)
a>

Ill
Ill

I')
I')

I')
,.,

0
0

0
0
0

0
o
o

O

O
a

«a
0

0
\

0
\

ri
<"l

..,

rl

z
E

H
rzl

%d
E-

,
Cll

£sO
o

H
<'l

•
:,:

\D
,.,

I
rl

N
N

a>
rl

Ill
Ill

<'l
I

I
I')

rl
rl

0
1'1

I')
"
'

r
O

-IJ
O

0
1

I
E

&5
5

%

rDODOrlr"'"'r-1

0
r

..,
I')

rt
DOr-1

u
)

L
O
I
-

ill
0

rt
LO

r-1

O
a

O
r

0
\

0
\
0

r-1
N

r-1LO
l&1

r-
ill

0
rt

)

ri0
0
0
0
0

0
0

o
o

o
o

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

1
/lO

IO
0

0

z
«
)
«

)
e

I
..,

Ill
0
\

r-1
ri

<'l
rt

«l
@
f
r

0
0..,..,..,..,..,..,
0

I
I

I
I

I
I

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
u

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

-IJo
o
o
o
o

o
0.

I
I

I
I

I
I

E
(l)r

-
r
-
r
-
r
-
r
-
r
-

r,:i
A

..,
..,

..,
..,

..,
..,

Z
8 z0HE"' Hc,uC
l)
lA



M
O

lO
M

O
lO

0
O

l
r
lN

.-i
Ill

m
c
o

m
0
\

0
><

N
E-t

O
H

N
~E-<2

oo
o

r-
ID

lO
0

o
"'NNrl

o
r--

r--
1.0

\0
ri

rl

0
0)

ri
ri

rl
,-j

0
I"'--

ff'l
r--

0
u

00
O

O
O

'I
ri

t--
N

O
'I

ID
O

\D
ID

N
N

C
"lO

l
0
0

N
r
i

lll\0

ri
ri

r
rl

ri

ri
><

N
E-t

O
HRE-t

%

O
lO

O
<
!'lO

O
00

ID
(X

)
<I'

'<l'
s;jl

ll1
N

O
\M

SI'

<I'
rl

....
t

p
4

orl

O
l/1

lO
r--

r-
N

N-
0
\°'

ll)
ll)

0
0

<XlllJ
M

O
M

I
p

0
\\0

SI'
N

ri
0
\
ri

\DO
it--

N
O

0
u9

o
O

M
O

C"1
ID

0
\

N35
-

N
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
c
o

o
""""

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
c
o

o
\D

\D
N
9

o
o
o

o
0

0
0
0

0
c
o

o
r

rl
H-

[2
lO

lO
Ill

N
0

....
O

s;jl
""

p
(

O
M

8
Ill

00
0

""
(X

)
0

0
\

0
\

(X
)
0
\

0
\

n
rl

(
'I

ri
lO

r
d

ua
@

0
\
0

ri
rl

rl
:::!

rl
rl

rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
\

"'
llJ

Ill

ri
r-f

0
0

0
0

0
0

00
CD

ll1
lO

r
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

"'"'
0
0

rl
rl

M
.-i

N
M

0lO
o

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
lO

u
u
)

M
\0

N
O

M
.-i

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ill
o"'

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0000\D0rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
ll1

"'N

""""
\D

\D
,-t

,-t

M
O

(X
)
\0

0
.-t

ri
ri

D
O

ID
C"1

rl
(X

)

I
00
0

0
\0

rl """"
\D

\D
rl

,-t

O
C

"l
0

0
O,-t

c
o

o
c
o

o
c
o

o
t--

SI'
M

)
O

@
\D

S
I'
ri

rl
rl

c
o

o
c
o

o
c
o

o
r--o

r-
\0

0
\

r-
\0

Ill

ri
rl

c
o

o
c
o

o
c
o

o
r--

(X
)
ri

ID
Ill

01
ID
M

\0

rl
M

,-t

0
0

0
0
0

0
O

(X
)

(X
)

Ill
llJo

on)

a
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

O
+

g
0

0
\

0
\

rl
M

SI'

c
o

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
\

0
\

Ill
lO

,-j
rl

0HEt
f/1

u
ax;isu

::i:
E-t---

±ID
I>::

0
r--

~
t

il
E-t---

f/1
Bsll<

r.1
H

z
?

H
r.1

H
9%

%
rz1

g
,,
0

~

£s
?

(.')
ID

f/1

~
M

-t<IIDMI
ri

N
N

00
ri

lO
lO

M
I

I
M
r
i

rl

8
83

3
%

.µ
0

0
P
,

I
I

E1
QJr--

r--
fzl

(Q
@

#
'

r-O\Dri

r-\0"'ri

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

c
o

0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
c
o

0
0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
O

lO
O

l/1
0

0-
0

<I'
lO

r--
0

t--
O

l
O

l
O

<
I'M

ri
N

ri
\0

rl
r

lO
!llr--

lll
0

rt
LO

rl ll1
lllt--

l/1
0

ri
lO

rig
4
)
-

o
)«

I
'<

flt')O
\r
i
r
i
M

ri
rl

'<l'r--
r--

(X
)

O
N

#
#

@
@

«qt
0

I
I

I
I

I
I

o
o
o
o
o
o

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
0
0
0
0
0

0
+
lo
o
o
o
o

o
P
,

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-<
QJt--r--

r--r--
r--r--

M
r

@
@

[z
8 I 5HE-<P,Ht'jl/)

[:l

M
E-t

E-<
N

CJl
r,J

o
p
a

8
9f;j
P'.l

E-t
P
,

Pi!
Q



PPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Finance Committee Recommended Changes
to the 2028 Mayor's Recommended Budget

Exhibit B

BACKGROUND

Following introduction of the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget to the Common Council on October
4, 2022, the Common Council approved a motion forwarding the budget to the Finance Committee for its
review and submission of any recommended changes to the Common Council.

The Finance Committee met and reviewed the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget at three meetings on
October 5th, October 6th, and October 11th. The first two meetings included: presentations from each
Department Head to provide details on the budget requests and respond to inquiries regarding
departmental operating and related capital items and the functions and operations of each department;
an overview of the entire budget document; and a plan to review the entire budget over the course of
three meetings. During the third meeting, the Committee accepted updated budget information from
staff regarding specific funds outside of the general fund which will be detailed below; reviewed the
details, including funding, of the Capital Funds-Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Development, Development Fund; reviewed the historical,
current and projected status, including funding, of the Tax Incremental Financing Districts; reviewed the
historical, current and projected status, including funding of the Debt Service; reviewed the Self
Insurance Fund; and reviewed the City's valuation, total tax levy and tax rates in detail.

ANALYSIS

Included in the updated information provided to the Finance Committee were additional information
and updates to the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget, including the amount of changes, as follows:

• Fund 61- Sanitary Sewer Fund - attached pages 35-37 / 211-213, with changes clearly identified -
this budget was in process at the time of the October 4th budget release and subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee on October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $1,578,796
o Increase in Expenses - $5,501,886

• Fund 25-Health Department Grant Fund - attached pages 224-225, with changes clearly identified
this budget was complete at the time of the October 4th budget release, however, the revenues and
some of the expenditures were not carried forward from the Department Request column to the
Mayor's Recommended column; this was corrected and provided to the Finance Committee on
October 11th:

o Increase in Revenues- $723,683
o Increase in Expenditures - $317,293



• Fund 22Utility Improvement Fund - attached page 276, with changes clearly identified - this
budget was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently completed and
provided to the Finance Committee onOctober 11th:

o Increase in Revenues- $109,500
o Increase in Expenditures - $700,000

• Fund 27-Development Fund - attached pages 277-280, with changes clearly identified - all of the
project spending for this fundwas originally included in the Capital Improvement Budget on page
256, however thisbudget was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee onOctober 11th:

o Increase in Revenues- $1,190,000
o Increase in Expenditures - $969,325
o Note that there is one update compared to what was provided to the Finance Committee - on page

279, $88,800 was inadvertently placed in the Police Department account instead of the Fire
Department account; that has now been updated.

• Fund 51- Special Assessment Fund - attached page 299, with changes dearly identified -- this budget
was held for staff review after the budget release, and was subsequently completed and provided
to the Finance Committee onOctober 11th:

o Increase in Revenues 

o Increase in Expenditures 

$3,100
$0

• Fund 75 Self-Insurance Fund - attached pages 323-325, which are new additions to the budget 
this budget was in process at the time of the October 4th budget release and subsequently
completed and provided to the Finance Committee onOctober 11th:

o Increase in Revenues - $3,045,900
o Increase in Expenses - $3,479,200

Please note that if these changes are authorized by Council, the Budget will go from being identified as
the '2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget' to the 'Proposed Budget'. The Proposed Budget will then be
utilized for the Public Hearing Notice which will be published on October 26, 2022, for the November
15, 2022, Public Hearing on the same.

RECOMMENDATION

At their October 11, 2022 meeting, the Finance Committee unanimously approved a motion to
recommend to the Common Council to amend the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget per the above
changes and as detailed in the attached schedules.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to amend the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget for revenues and expenditures as detailed
herein and on the attached schedules, to be included in the 2023 Proposed Budget for the Public
Hearing scheduled for November 15, 2022.

DOA- PS I Finance - DG



0
G

N
E-<

0
0

o
y
o

mn
a
t

0
\

ID
0
\
0

Ill
0

Ill
rl

ID
0

rl
rl

ll'lO
M

ID
N

O
ll'l

rl
N
O
\O

lr
i
O
'\<

"
lC

D
t..0

uOr
r-

0
O

0
H

h
O
r

O
0
\

0
0

rl
.,..,.

CD
Ill

Ill
N

<:l'O
ll'lt

-
0
\

0
\

t-
O

N
O

\D
ll'lC

D
C

D
0

r
o

o
u
)

N
~

O
\t
-
N

C
D
\O

\D
r
l

N
ll'lN

r--
0
\

0
\

0
0

rl
r
lM

O
O

N
0
\

r
lr
l
N
r
l
\O

C
D
r
l
N

ID
@
r
t

u
)

O
----- --

-- -- -
- -- - --

...........
E-<

rt
O

O
r

O
N

0
\

CD
r-

.,. .,.
CD

CD
r-

C
D
r
l
r
l
M

M
n
)

o
p

u
)«

4
O

N
DO

@
mn

4
u

\D
O
t
-
\D
r
l

<:1'
r--

r--
CD

r)
n

O
ID

0
\

N
N

Ill
N

O
\r
l
t
-

N
\D

ri
Ill

'
r
l\O

<
:l'r

i
Ill

0
\

.,.
.,.

0
0

CD
CD

N
M

N
y

r
rl

rl
Ill

Ill

(
rl yE-<

0
0

O
I

O
D

O
O

r--
r

0
11)0

\0
.,.

<:1'0
.,.

0
0

CD
O

M
t-

t-
Ill

t
O

+
y
o

O
0

0
\

ll'lr
l
O

\M
O

0

~
r
iN

r
i
M

\D
r
i
N

0
\

Lu
(n)

@
n

.,.
M

0
\

r-
II)

II)
CD

O
\N

N
O

\t-
0
\

C
D
<
:l't
-
\D

N
r
l

0
r--

0
0

r-
IO

y
C

DN
<:l'N

N
ri

0
0

0
\r--

rl
CD

@
n

0
r--

r--
O

N
O

N
q
or-,- .,.

0
0
\0

C
D
0

<:1'
II)

@
+«l

DO
O
f-

- ------
-----

---- --
E-<

ri
N

M
<:I'

CD
<:I'

0
\

r
N

<:I'
r--

0
\

N
CD

0
.,.

.,.
r--

CD
N

rl
CD

t-
II)

m
y
o

y
C"'IIO

t
-
\D

u
0
\r-

uO
0
\

0
\

CD
CD

(
II)

CD
CD

DO
ri

N
N

""'
rl

r-
rl

0
M

rl
.,.

~
M

\D
.,.

rl
II)

N
M

M
0
\

0
\

rl
rl

n
.,.

±
y

.,.

N

~
E-<

N
d

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
<:1'0

.,.
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

\N
O

O
<
:l'C

"'lt-
Ill

C
D
ll'lO

t
-
N

C
D
O

O
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

(!)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
\D

ID
0

0
0

rl
0

r-
.,.

rl
II)

<:1'0
\\D

N
ll'lC

D
r-

0
II)

0
0

IO
N

H
9

0
0

O
M

O
\O

O
O

M
N

0
rl

rl
0

0
N

rl
0

rl
D
O

CD
rn)

m
p

«a+
0

0
\

O
r
l
l/l

lO
IO

t!)
---

-- --
--- -- -

- -- - -
H

n
0

0
N

IO
O

O
IC

D
t
-

<:1'
O

IO
N

r-
II)

II)
0

O
rl

rl
CD

N
r

y
rl

IO
IO

<
:l'M

r
l

0
0
\

0
\

CD
Ill

O
t-

M
\0

N
II)

II)
N

N
II)

rl
N

N
N

()
(

r-
rl

\0
\D

rl
Ill

0
rl

rl
.,.

\D
II)

rl
Ill .,.

(
rn

.,..,.
(n

.,.
±

N
.,.

rl
rl

0
0
0
0

0
<1'1110

0
0

CD
<:I'

ll'l
O

0

<:I'
rl

t-
0

N
r--

r-i
\0

0
0
0
0

0
<1'1110

0
0

CXJ<
l'll'lO

O

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

Lt)
0

rlr-rl

r-i
rrl

rlCXJ
rl

v
O
l
0
4

O
)

@
I

<
l'M

<:1'0
.-
it
-
0

0
0
\

r-iN
<
l'll1

C
XJN

M
0

O
a

m
l

DO
O

N
ID

rl
CX,N

O
\

r)
@

T
-

<
l'M

<
l'O

r
l
t
-
0

0
0
\

r-iN
<
l'll'lO

O
N

M
C

D
\O

<
l'M

r
-
ilD

0

N
\0

.-
ill'lN

N
n
)

DO
rt

@
on

d
O
«
t
o

rt
r-i

N
<I'

ID
CXJ

qo
t-

CXJ
O

t
00

rl

rl
N

CXJ
CXJ

y
.,.

r
t

00
00

N
N

N.,.

r
lN

O
O

ex,
N

N
N.,.

a:,a
:,o

Ill
rl

n
)

M
N

O
O

O
O
O

l/1
ex,

<
l'r
l
O

\O
t
-

<
I'

M
0
+
lo

O
r

O

(X)(X
)Q

Ill
rl

) M
N

O
O

C
X

,0
1/1

ex,
<:l'r

l
O

\O
t
-
<
I'

M
O

lr
l
O

o
a

r--
0
\

CD
ex,

0
Ill

rl
rn M
N

O
O

O
O
O

l/1
ex,

<
l'r
l
O

\D
t
-

<
I'

M
O

lr
l
O

o
a

r--
01

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

N
N

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

N
N

.,..,.
rl

ri

MN()

rn)
Nn

II)
(X)
rl)

O
ID

O
ID

0
0
\

0
\

0
r-

r--

II)
(X)
rlM

O
ID
O

ID
0

0
\

0
\

0
r--

r-

O
<
l'O

<:I'
0
\0
0

ID
O
r
l
O

rl

ll'lN
ll'l

N
Ill

rl
r-

n
(n

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

N
ll'lllllO

O
N

N
rl

(X)\D
r
l
ll'lN

N
\D

O
a
rt

DO
)

N

N
IO

l/lll1
0

N
N

rl
(X)\D

r
l
ll'lN

N
\D

<:1'\D
<
l'r
l

\D
M

N

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

N
O

O
O

C
D
l/1

0
Ill

IO
l/l

ll'lt
-
N

\D
rl

a
0

a
«

u
)
(

N

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
\

0
\

rl
ri

%3

3HEP,H~enaAi8

en:::>
rl

rl
0

3%I
I

I
0
0

0

i8
88

8
u
o
o

o
en

I
I

I
E-<

4
a
3

$

en
en

%5HHE
E

::>
:::>

n2a5u
u

en%H2H%£2engi

en8£r.l
en

enr.l
uHk
,
o
r
c
t

n
[l

rt
rt

rt
rt
(

(n
n

«
tr

rl
rt

rl
rt

rl
Ill

Ill
Ill

Ill
Ill

Ill
Ill

~

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
l

rl
rl

re
rl

mn
m

mn
m

(
mo)

[u
0

r-
r--

r--r--
r--r--

r--
0

eno
o
o
o
o
o

o
Pl

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
E-<

#G
G

G
4

G
a

s

enEH[u~
r-i

N
M

<
l'U

'l
\0

N
0

r.lll'lll'lll'lll'lll'lll'l\D
CXJ

D
v
l

rl
rt

rl
rt

rt
rl

r
ll'l

ll'l
ll'l

ll'l
111

ll'l
ll'l

ll'l
r.l

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

r.lr
-
ir
l
r
l
r
l
r
i
r
l
r
l
r-i

2
%

8
...:10

0
0
0
0
0
0

0

Zi
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
E-<

r-ir
-
ir
-
ir
-
ir
-
ir
l
r
l
r
l

r,,l
\0
\0

\0
\0

\0
\0

ID
\O

Z

r.l
Een$



0
><

N
E-<

r--
\0

V
a

O
a
a
v

O
+vi

N
O

\<
l'r<

lO
O

\<
D
O

\O
O

r
i

(T)
ri

ri
N

O
\<

D
\O
r
i
O

O
r--

(T)
0
0

0
.,. .,.

ri
ri

0
H

.,.
(T)

O
r
-

O
\0

0
\

N
<D

N
(D

N
O

o
r
-

r<l
N

0
\

<D
N

r--
ri

ri
N
\0

0
\\0

ll"lO
ll"lr<

l"'
r--

r--
(D

(D
N

i:'.i
"'

ll")
O

r---
r---

<
l'r
i
\O

(T
)(T

)
\0

o
h

a
+
tr

mn
«

O
r
-

.,.
0

0
r

Lu)
+-l

r<l
ll"l

ll")
(T)

ri
ri

"'
"'

E-<
0

ll")
0

<
l'r<l

\0
0
\N

r
i

"'
O

t
DO

ri
0

"'
(T)

(T)cc
ri

ll")
O

O
()

-l
ll")

\0
\0

(T)
(T)

?
N

ll")
ri

y
e0

\0
(T)

N
(D

ri
O

N
(T)

0
0

N
y

ri
ll")

\0
ri

ri
(T)

.,. .,.
0

0

N
N

y
N

(

ri
p

N
E-<

N
0

O
<
D
<
l'O

\N
<
D
r
i
ll"lr<

lN
N

q
a
:,r--

O
r--<D

<D
O

ll"l
ll"l

N
(D

(D
<D

<D
0
\
0

\0
ll"l

O
<D

.,.
<
l'O

.,.
0

0
r--

r--
0

H
r--

(D
<D

\O
r
i
<
l'O

<
D
ll"l<

l'r
i
\O

r--
(T)

0
\0

ri
N

ri
"'

ri
(D

\0
\0

\0
N

ri
ll")

(T)
(D

\0
ll")

(D
(D

(T)
(T)

.,..,.
N

i:'.i
N

ri
t-

\O
<
D

<
D
r
i
r<

lr
i
0
\\0

0
\

N
O
r
i

ri
ri

(T)
(T)

0O
r
-

O
(D

(D
00
t
r
-

o
r
-

r<l
r<l

ll")
DO

O
r--

r--
r--

r--

E-<
0

.,.
0

.,.
(T)

0
<D

\0
0

r--
O

ll"l<
l'

"1
0

ri
ri

O
y

N
r--

\0
(D

(T)
"
'"
'

ll")
r--

r--
.,..,.

(T)
(T)

?
N

N
ri

ri
N

ri
r--

(T)
(T)

ri
(D

"'
ri

O
ri

ll")
"'

"'
(D

(D
(T)

(T)
ri

\0
\0

ri
ri

(T)
(T)

(T)
0

0
y

N
N

N

N

~
E-<

y
[ii

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
.,.

.,.
0

0
0

D
0

0
0

0
0

ll"l
0

ll"l
0
0

0
0

O
O

ll"lO
ll"lO

ll"lO
O

ll"l
0

0
0

O
O

O
O

O
O
r
i
O

ri
0

0
ri

ri
0

0
y

H
9

"'
\0

u
v
0

0
N

N
ll"l

O
0

(T)
0
0

0
0

a>
o
r
-

N
<D

N
"'

ri
ri

O
O
t
-
"1
0

0
\'<

l'O
(T)

.,..,.
"' "'

0
0

D
-- -- -

- ---- -
-

H
~

(D
"'

ri
N

'<l'
r<l

r
i'<

l'O
\O

<
l'

ri
O

ll"lt
-
r
i
t
-
\0

ri
ri

"'
"'

(T)
(T)

ll")
ri

ll")
(D

ll")
(T)

ll") .,.
.,..,.

ll")
ll")

c:r;
ri

ll")
ri

r
iN

r<
lr
i

ri
0

N
ll")

r--
ri

N
N

ll")
(D

a>
.,..,.

0
ri

ri
r--

r--
N

ri
.,.

.,..,.
0

0
y

N
y•0

0
0
0

0
0

ll")
ll")

ll")
U"1

0
0

V
y

0
0

0
0

0
0

ll")
ll")

ll")
U"1

0
0

v
y

0
0

0
0

0
0

ll")
U"1

.,..,.
0

0

N
N

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

o
)

u
)

a
r
ir
i
'<

l'N
0

ri
ll")

0
0
\

M
ll"l

<l'
r
ir
i
<
l'N

0
ri

ll")

O
t
-
M

ll"l
t-

ri
r
iN

N
ll"l

ri
.,.

0
ri

ll"l
0rn 0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

<
D
ll"lO

r<l
o
o

r--
o
o

r--o
ll"l

0
ri

ll"l
0(T)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

o
o

o
o
0
n

o
o

o
o

r--
o
o

r--o
ll"l

ll")
ri

ll")
r--
N 0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O
O
r
i
O

ri
o
r

a
r-

0
0

0
0

ri
ri

(T)
(T)

0
0

0
0

ri
ri

(T)
,..,

0
0

0
0

ri
ri

(T)
(T)

r
ir
i
N

O
ri

Nr--N

r
ir
i
N

0
ri

Nr--y

a>
ll")
,..,

a>
ll")
(T)

0
ll")

\0
ll")
\0y 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

O
ll"lO

O
O

ll"l
O
N

ll"l
O
r
i
a
>
ll"lll"lO

\0

0
ll")

\0
ll")
\0N 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O
O

ll"lO
O

O
ll"l

O
N

ll"l
O
r
i
<
D
ll"lll"lO

\0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O
O

ll"lO
O

O
ll"l

O
O

ll"l
ll"lO

t
-
N

\0
0

ll"l

Q
ll")(T

)
0\0N

"1
0
0

"1
r<l

r
ir
i
r<

lr
i

(D

r
i\0

0
\0

ll")
r-

r
iN

r<
lr
i

riri

ri
\0

0
0

ll"l
r-

ri
r<l

r<l
ri

riri

r<
lN

ll"l<
l'

ri

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

O
O

O
O

ll"lO
O

O
O

O
ll"l

O
ll"lO

O
N

N
'<

l'll"lO
ll"l

r<l

n
y

Lu)
'<l'

ri

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

O
O

O
O

ll"lO
O

O
O

O
ll"l

O
ll"lO

O
N

N
<
l'O

O
ll"l

<D

O
r
i
'<

l'r
i

ri

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

O
ll"l<

D
O

ll"lO
O

O
O

a>

0
0

O
O

0
r--

0
ll")

N
r--
ri

0
0

O
O

0
r--

0
ll")

N
r--
ri

0
0

0
0

0
ll")

ll")
0

ri
Nrl

(T)
E-<

E-<
v

[ii
o

r.1
Cl

·3
8°E-<Pl[ii

a

~H£3u

rjOU"1
E-<1
r
l

2
%

l
o

E-<
I

E-<
±
:

e

8H~%%

E-<U
l0u8a

a
::,

ri
n(1)0
H

N

r.,i
ri

ri
0
o

O
H

O
DO

;:,
ll")

ll")
P:,

I
I

r,i
ri

ri

p
r

8
E-<0

0
~

I
I

E-<
4

4
B

U
l

?
.ii
:x:z

C/l
u

E-<
H

ox?
ii

U
...:l

H

±is?
E-<

[ii
[ii

Z
I

U
l

H
E-<

I

a$
8

3
i

,1!
U

C>P
o
U

H
H

!
Z

::>H
U

c:r;
H

U
l

c:r;
r,i

c:r;
E-<

c:r;
A

E-<
l

U
f&1

..:1><
U

Po
E-<

[ii
;3:

H
E-<

ri1
rilf'l!...:lril,l!D

H
...:l

a
a
n
z

m
0
a

3HE-<

U
l[ii

DOj,
4
c
o

+
:i!.,.

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
\0

r-
u

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
U"1

U"1
U"1

U"l
ll"l

ll")
U"l

ll"l
ll")

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

d
rd
l
l

rf
rl

rt
rf

rl

%
H
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
U

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-<

G
6

4
6

G
6
a

%

Ul3H;Hc:r;~?#"$
a

o
o

o
o
s

I
r
ir
i
r
i
r
l
N

N
r<

lr<
lr<

lO
\

}
q

@
+

R
«d

@
@

«d
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
Ul

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

]
w

l
rl
l

r
lr

rt
l

«
l
rl

g
s

>
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
E-<

1)1
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
E-<

[l
[d
r
l
r

+
lr
t
r
i

r
i

g4
rt

rt
rt

[l
Z

Ul
\0

\0
\0

\0
\0

"0'8
\D

\D
\D

Z

U
l[ii

H
U

l
H

U
lC/l

U
li:ill'.ll

ri1
[ii

[ii
H

Po
H

H
H

H
::>

Ul
...:l..:IU

lE-<...:ll'.ll
Ul

a
E

eA
e

...:l
::,::,

PoO
U

l
Po

Ul
Ul

Po
Ul

H
D

DO
b

z
n

z
Ul

Cl
Ul

O
zgg

z
H

3+3
4

49gg
R
8

0a
2

BgB
H
±

!
8%
g

s
8

r
iN

r<
l\O

<
D
O

\r
i
N

r<
l\O

r
ir
i
r
i
N

N
N

r<
lr<

lr<
lr<l

(T)
(T)

(T)
(T)

(T)
(T)

(T)
(T)

(T)
(T)

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

ll")
ll")

U
l

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

[l
rel

rl
rt

rl
r
r

rl
r

rf
y

H
r<lr<

lr<
lr<

l
r<lr<l

r<lr<l
r<lr<

l
..:Ir--

r--
r--

r--r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r-

Po
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
P,

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

D
r
4
r
l

p
l

y
l

+
fl

rl
rl

rl
l

U
l

\0
\0

\0
\0

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

H~[iiU
l

i 6HE-<PlH6Ule



N
O

C
D
O

O
O
O

'S
l'O

\D
N

<
"')ll)

00
r---

~
\.0

0
0

\0"\M
o

a
:,

00
N

O
'SI'

O
O
r
l
l'-

<
"'10

01
L
il

M
o

O
\r
l
'S

!'o
q
o

'SI'
rl

<"'l
a,

<"'l<"'l
0
\

rl
rl

N
r
l

\D
\D
O

N
rl

rl
<"'l

rl
rl

N

rl
0
\

0
a,

a:,
r--

0'\
rl

rl

'SI'
'SI'

0
\

\D
\D

QIHrorlrlro

0
If)

0
rl

0
a:,

N
'<l'
Ill\D

# zE-<
0

0
E-<

E-<

rl
rl

qo
<"'l

a,
r--

If)
0

E-<g
E-<p.,

0
rzl

u
Q

tJ..: 0
0

0
If)

0
O

'\

r--
rl

rl
If)
y

000N

+I48rorlg.H

0
0

1-l
><

..,
0

·.-i
c

'H
.,

QIa
0

QI
QI

0
CJ

CJ
ro

ro
0

rl
rl

0
0
,

0
,

0

%
QI

rl
i:i:

<Ir

0

'O%QIQI
z

00
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

If)
0

0
0

0
0

0
\

a«G
rl

rl
a:,

N
rl

rl
rl

If)
ro

N
..c::,.,
..,·.-iCJ
c»

rlqoa:,
Ill

IHDQ
I

rzl

i:i:rzl
E-<ItJ

.,+ICJ
·r
,QI0k,:r0rl'HCH'OCroC0·.-i+Irotirl·.-i

'HCH~H
rl

QI
<"'lg.
'

H
~

p.,
\D

QI
..,ro>·.-ikp.,

o
H

2&,.;½'!
N

:>,
N

.QdgQI
·.-i>QIH

%»qo
HO

rl
0.

N
QI

v
HrlQICJ><rzlHQI

.
0,

enE-<
0

g0
qo

%$<Ii
%0

+Ia0::l
l:

83
%>
i0

3g"C
'O

ro
QI

..c:
.,

O
::l

'C!)
·.-i

8%

0
\

ya:,
If)

E-<±tJtJ..: 000If)
Nrlrla:,
If)

00If)

Ill 00If)

If)

rlrla:,
If)

+IQI0
,

0::l.QNN0N#a0H'H.,QI
·.-iC0aQICJCroHgCJ

0
;g
:S•.-i3QI
rlCJ
·.-i
..c:

o
o

o
P>

n
v0yroH044QI.,ro

o
..C

:o
0

CJ
":.~
u
,QI

:SQI
+IQI
rl%..
0

•.
CJ)

CJ
CJ)

E-<
E-<

33£.e.E-<
E-<

O
..;

0

z
z

0
+I8

&4,
E-<z

QI

2
.Q'O

H
rl

p
::l

Q
I

0
rzl

:r
0

.,
E-<

·.-i
:;!

..c:E-<

00If)

r--

Illy-:.37 000a:,:rQIHCJQI

:SH0
o

4
g

+I

8
HH::lCJC0·.-i+IroCJ

..
::l

en
-o

E-<
QI

&0
C

en
°

p.,
.,

H
rzl

QI
:I:

E-<
CJ

en
0

C
ill

z
QI

rzl
E-<

·.-i
g

0
CJ

0
-.-i

g
r..

rl0,
~

QIii)
en

.><!
rzltJ

0
z

+I
[;!

'O
~

QI
'O

%
QIQI

tJ
z

rl\D 0
\

O
r
i
O

n
-

O
N

N
0
\

If)
0

'SI'
qo

l'-
N

\D
rl

If)

O
'\

a,
\D

\D

If)
N

O
l'-

<"'l
O

'\
If)

l'-
O

'\
N

'SI'
'SI'

0
0

N
N

r--
If)

a,

a,
r--

\D
\D

'SI'
N

O
00

<"'l
O

'\
If)

<"'l
0
\

\D

a,
'<l'

\DO
uO

y

<"'l
a,

If)
\D

\D

CJ)
E-<

en
en

rzlZ
3

3M
H

H

#
E-<

CJ)
tJ

~~!;e
i:i:

i:i:
11<

p.,

%
g

p.,
p.,

2
2+3ti

'
'

~
rl

CJ)
en

g
i

~
~

C!)
<"'l

#4°
~

~
%

9
[;!

[;!
l

z
r..

r..
#

0
0

3
E-<

E-<
%

%
rzl
a

y

ll)N
M

N
1/)M

\D
O

N
<
"'l<"'l

O
'I

N
r
l\D

l'-
N

<"'ll'-
\D

('f')
\D

-
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

1
1
)0

0
0

If)
0
0
0

0
O
O

O
r
l
O

O
O

rl
0

1
/)0

0
O
r
l
ll)

M
O

O
O

qo

ll)N
M

N
If)

N
rl

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

1/)0
0

0
If)

o
u
o

o
o

N
O

O
O

l'-

O
<"'l'S

l'r
l
q
o
q
o

0
O

'\
'SI'

N
N

l'-
rl

rl
rl

l'-
0
0

0
0
0

<
"'l<

"'l<
"'l0

0
<"')

<"'l
O

'I
O

l'-O
<
"'lO

'S
l'l'-

l'-
0
\

L
il

O
O
r
l
a
:>

<
"')11)

N

><
..

..
..

j
r
l
<
"'l'S

l'll)
O

'IN
\D

l'-
0
\r
l
<
"'lO

'I
E-<r

i
r
i
r
l
r
l
r
l
N

N
N

N
'S

l''<
l'O

'I
p

a
:,a

,a
:,a

:,a
:,a

:,a
,o

o
a
:,a

,a
:,a

,
Q

ll)
If)

IO
ll)

ll)
IO

ll)
ll)

ll)
IO

ll)
ll)

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

..:l
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
td,

m
<"'l

<"'l
<"'l

<"'l
<"'l

<"'l
<"'l

<"'l
<"'l

<"'l
<"'l

E-<
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r-
H
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
ll,

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

.i:
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
tJ

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

3HE-<p.,HotJCJ)
[ii
a

N
O

><
N

r.:i
E-<

0
E-<

H
v
g

¢
B0

tJ
g;..:

i:i:
<"'l

E-<
E-<

r..
~

y
CJ)

[ii
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

r--
00

0
rl

0
0

g
0
0

0
0

If)
1/)0

ll)
O

If)
qo

If)
rl

[ii
y

1
/)11)

0
11)

0
"2'0

0
0

0
If)

\D
rl

><
en

&sB
o

E-<
g

"
u

o
y

y
r
lO

O
\D

ll)
rl

\D
If)

E
rl

+
l

rt
If)

<"'l
O

'\
\D

\
y

8
rl

Q
)

N__
'SI'

E-<
p.,

p.,
If)

'<l'
0

H
[ii

\D
\D

r..
~

0
E-<

en
5

rl
p.,

\D

[;!
<"'lgt
N

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

r--
00

O
r
i

U
03

0
0
0

0
If)

u
o
u

o
If)

'SI'
If)

rl
E-<2

y
1/)11)

0
11)

0
'<l'O

O
0

0
0

\D
\D

i>1
--- -

-
C!)

o
1.11

N
C"'lN

y
rl

r--
\D

If)
If)

0
\D

\D
§

tJ
rl

V
rt

rt
If)

<"'l
O

'\
\D

2
y

±
2

a:,
y

'<l'
n

-
If)

'SI'
i:i:

\D
\D

0><$

zit



0
>-<

G
N

E-<
0

0
O

N
0

<
'1

<1'
t-

<'1
0
\

ID
O

'IO
Ill

0
Ill

rl
ID

0
rl

rl
u

o
<'1

ID
N

O
Ill

rl
N

0
\00

r
l0

\<
'1

00
ID

u
+
it

D0
O

0
H

0
\<

'1
<
'1

1
D
t
-
lD

<
I'

0
\

0
0

rl
..,...,.

00
Ill

Ill
N

<
l'O

"
l
t
-
0
\

"'
t-
O

N
O

ID
IO

O
O

O
O

0
t

m
oo

o
u

y
i:'.;

o
r

0
0

0
O
r

y
lilN

r:-
0
\

0
\

0
0

rl
rl

<')
0

0
N

"'
r
lr
l
N
r
l
lD

O
O
r
l
N

ID
<I'

rl
Ill

<'1
o

------ -
---- -

-- ----
...............

E-<
r
lN

ID
O

ID
t
-

lD
y

0
\

00
r:-

..,...,.
00

00
r:-

00
rl

rl
,.,

,., ,.,
<
l'O

\t
-
"
l
r
l
lD

y
ID

<I'
<'1

<Tl
N

rl
u

ID
O
t
-
lD
r
l
<
I'

r:-
r:-

00
,.,,.,

ID
ID

0
\

N
N

Ill
N

O
\r
i
t-

N
ID

rl
Ill

1;
r
llD

<
l'r
l

Ill
0
\

..,.
..,.

0
0

00
00

N
,.,

N
y

,.,
rl

rl
'°

Ill

rl
>-<

Ill
0
\
0

G
e
+

0
o

N
E-<

0
0

O
<
l't
-
0
\ID

N
O

\
r:-

t
o

0
..,.

<
l'O

..,.
O
O

0
0
O

<
'1
<
-
r:-

Ill
0

0
\

Ill
rl

0
\

<'1
o

0#
r
lN

r
l
<
'1

1
D
r
l
N

"'
Ill

<'1
<I'

M
..,.

,.,
0
\

r:-
Ill

Ill
00

O
\N

N
O

'lt-
"'

OO
<
l't
-
lD

N
r
l

0
r
o
o
t

N
O

O
N

<
l'N

N
r
lO

0
0
\

r:-
rl

00
N

<
l'<'1

0
r:-

r:-
ID

N
O

N
<I'

r:-...
0

0
\0

00
0

<I'
Ill

<
l'r
l
lD

O
'lt-

-------
--- --

-- -- --
E-<

r
lN

<
T
l<

l'O
O
<
l'O

\
<Tl

«q
r:-

O
\N

00
0

....
..,.

r:-
O

O
N
r
l

O
O
t"-

Ill
O

O
O

<Tl
N

N
M

N
u
O

t
-

DO
2

h
t
-

u
)a
l

O
0
\

00
00

,.,
Ill

00
00

ID
r
lN

N
,.,

rl
r:-

rl
0

fTI
rl

...
M

ID
<I'

rl
Ill

y
fTI

,.,
0
\

"'
rl

rl
,.,

....
>

y
....

N3
E-<

N
[ii

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
<I'

0...
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
\

N
O

O
<I'

M
r:-

Ill
po
u
r
-

O
O

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

t.!)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
ID

ID
0

0
0

rl
0

r:-
....

rl
Ill

<
l'O

\ID
N

U
'lOO

r:-
0

"1
O

O
Ill

y
H

9
0

0
O
M

O
ID

O
O

<')
y

0
rl

rl
0

0
N

rl
0

rl
r:-

ID
00

<'1<
'1
t
-
<
l'r
l
00

0
\

O
r
l
lillll"

l
(!J

----- --
---- --

- --- -
H

1'.11
0

0
N
lilO

O
\O

O
t
-

<1'
ID

u
)

r:-
Ill

111
<'1

00
0

rl
rl

00
N

V
t

r
y

y
(n

rl
Ill

ID
<I'

<'1
rl

o
"'

0
\

00
111

O
t
-

<
'1

1D
N

LO
111

y
N

LO
rl

V
y

N
,.,,.,

r:-
rl

ID
ID

rl
LO

0
rl

rl
<I'

ID
Ill

rl
LO

....
,.,

fTI
..,.....

(
....

rl
N

....
rl

rl

0
0
0
0

0
a

u
o

O
O

0
L
u
o

O

0
0
0
0

0
..,.

1110
0

O
OO

<
l'L

O
O

O

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
O
O

O
L
O
O

LO
111

r:-
r:-

rl
N

rl
LO

rlr:rl rlCX)
rl

N
ID
r
i

CX>N
O

\
,.,

<I'
r:-

N
ID

.-
ill1

N
N

r)
00

rl

<1'<
'1
<
l'O

r
l
<
-
o

o
0
\

rl
N

<I'
111

CXl
N

<'1
0

O
a
m

+4
0

O

<
l'fT

l<
l'O

r
l
t"-0

0
0
\

rl
N

<I'
111

CXl
N

M
<XllD

<
l'M

r
l
lD

0rlr:M

<
l'M

<
l'ID

r
l
fT

IO
O

rl
.-i

N
<I'

ID
CXl

<I'
r:-

CXl
ID

<I'
N

rl
CXl

rl

rl
N

CXl
CXl

N
N

N....

rl
N

CXl
CXl

v
....

rl
N

CXl
CXl

V
....

C
X

)C
X
)
0

111
rl

rn 00
0
0
0

111
rl

fTI

00
00

0
lil

rl
,.,

~
M

N
O

0
0
0
0

111
CXl

<
l'r
l
O

\D
t
-

<
I'

M
01

.-t
o

o
o

r
-

01

<'1N
O
0

CX>O
U

'l
CXl

<
l'r
l
O

ID
t"-<

I'
<'1

0
-
4

O
r
-

O

<'1N
O

O
O

O
O

LO
00

<
l'r
l
O

ID
t"-<

I'
fTI

0
\.-t

o
o
o

r
-

01

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

N
N

0
0

0

0
0
0

O
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
N

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

o
o

o
0

0
0

0
0

111
111

N
N

........
rl

rl

fTI
NfTI

(nNfTI

LO
00rl
fTI

o
O
o

'O
o

O
O

0
r:-

r-

111
00rlfTI

O
\D

O
\D

O
O

O
0

r-
r:-

0
<
1
'0

<I'
O

ID
O

ID
O
r
l
O

rl

Ill
N

LO
N

LO
rl

r:
<'1

,.,

.... ....

y N

v
u

u
u
o

«
OO

ID
.-tL

O
N

N
ID

<I'
ID

<I'
rl

ID
M

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

y

N
ll1

1
illl1

O
N

N
rl

00
0
+

u
)4

O
a

O
+«l

O
(

N
O

O
O

0
0

111O
111

LO
U

'l111t
-
N

ID
rl

<I'
ID

<I'
rl

LO
fTI

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

"'"'
rl

rl

,.,
E-t

E-<
n

[ii

g
£~

1'.11

E-<P<rzl
A

[ii

I84
$

¥
~

<.J
O

H

234
E-t

Isl
1>1

A
2,

E
H

iz
r!

1

$2
2:i!
E-<

E-t
E-<

rn
rn

t.!>Z
I

O(J
O

4
o

E
i:x:

:::~
rz.[i"![i"!

::,
O

IO
E-t

E-t
{3<

n
o

o
(J£iiirn

<'1N
<
-
t
-

a
>

>-1
r-i

<I'
lil

CXl
CXl

!'l:N
N

N
N

N
P

LO
111

111
LO

111
E-t

I
I

I
I

I
<.J.-

ir
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

,
m

m
mn

(n
r

i:x:
r:-

r:-
r:-

r:-
r:

E-to
o

o
o

o
Z

I
I

I
I

I
0
.-
ir
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

rnE-tHu
4
c
+

n
o
c
o

l"ilL
O

L
O
ll1

1111
illil\D

CXl
l'.llr

l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r-i

L0
LO

L
O

L
O

L
O
lilll1

LO
[ii

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

rilr
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
.-i

n
mn(n

o
r
n

m
0

r:-
r:-

r:-
r:-

r:-
r:-

r:-
r:-

0
1
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
Pt

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-t
2

E!
!
r

±1
£!

r1r!r!
i

rnrlH%[ii
U

l

rn[ii
(J!:;pr

+«tu
t

po
rn

a
u

rilr
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
fT

I<
')<

')
rn

.-t
rl

,-;
.-t

rl
.-t

.-t
111

LO
111

111
111

LO
111

H
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

<
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

3
2

2
%

rn
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
i,;

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
E-<

G
6
3
3
6
4

¢

rn
U

l

SS
rn

tn:s
::,

::,
H

1'.111'.Q
E-t

H
H

~
e£

a
zz99

g
(J

(J
P<zrnI

rn3H~P<%2U
l

....a
±;

I
I

I
P:

0
0

0
l
o
o

o
[ii

0
0

0
0

(JO
0
0

rn
I

I
I

E-t

3
6
2

14

H
s

Z

4.t
eu#

}
gg

g
ea

2
2Et}

8
o
5

z
E-<E

-<H
H

D
<
.J
l:

E-<E
-<E-<

£:l
gz

9
g«

3
z&

.
?

g2gaga±
$

$
#
a

3
#
a

3
nz#$

2
8
4

@
i

o
$#

a
a

D
I

I
I
i

T
5

a
s

f
g

+32#at
=ie

>
,

H
E-<0

O
H

g
g

g
g

g
5,

n
@

j

g
g#g#

g
gs°

$
9

4
£

0
E-<

E-<
E-t

E-t
E-t

O
z

0
#
$

9e
s

?
l"il

P
<
rn

P<

g
2g

?
g

ij
z

U
lfT

lr
l
N

<
'1

LO
\D

oo
~

iilr
l
N

t-
~~

P
:r
l
lD

ID
ID

ID
ID

ID
i:,t

r
lr
l
r
l

0
....

..,.
..,.

:>[;1
E-t

r:-
r:-

r:-
rz...,.......,.

<I'
<I'

<I'
z

<I'..,.
<I'

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
£:l

I
I

I
n
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
g
o

o

832
8
8
8
8
8
8
8

8
$

8
~
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
~
o
o

o
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-<
I

I
I

E-t
.-tr

l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

l'-l
r
lr
l
r
l

M
0

o
o
o
o
o
o

'z
i
o
o

o
'z

t4t.!)

3HE-<0H('.jrnl:lI



0
p

N
E-

r--
\D

N
O

O
'<

l'r
i
O

'<
l'<

l'N
\D

r
i

N
O

\o
q

lff"I
O

0
\0
)

O
'\
0
0

ri
rn

rl
rl

N
O

IO
O
\D
r
i
o
o

r--
rn

0
0

0
......

rl
rl

0
H

...
rn

N
C

l
r--

0
\D

0
\

N
0
0

a,
v
o

O
t
-

0
\

0
0

r--
rl

rl
N

\D
O

\\D
ll)

O
ll)

M
"'

r--
r--

a,
a,

N
~

"'
II)

O
r--

r--
SI'

rl
\D

M
M

\D
0

0
\'<

l'r
i
l"-

M
r
l

0
I

...
0

0
N

l"-
IO

N
r
l
M

IO
IO

(
rl

rl
"'

"'
-----

E
0

II)
0

'<I'M
\D

O
\N

r
i

"'
"'

...
\D

rl
0

"'
rn

n
n

rl
II)

\D
\D

M
r
l

II)
\D

\D
M

r
?

N
II)

rl
N

II)
\D

r
N

a,
rl

O
N

rr
0

0
y

N
rl

II)
\D

rl
rl

(r
...

±
0

0
N

N
N

N

rl
><

N
E

N
0

0
0
0

'<1'0
\N

O
O
r
i
lO

M
N

N
'<1'0

0
1
"-0

l"-
O

O
O

O
O

IO
IO

N
a,

a,
00

0
0
0
\0

\D
IO

O
O

O...
...

0
...

0
0

r--
r--

0
H

r--
a,

00
\D
r
i
S
l'O

O
O
IO

S
l'r
i
\D

r--
M

O
\D

rl
N

rl
0

+l
a,

\D
\D

\O
N

rl
II)

M
a,

\D
II)

a,
a,

r
M

......
N

~
N

.,_
C

"-\D
O

O
O

O
r
i
M
r
l
O

\\D
O

\
N

O
r
i

rl
r
lM

M
a,

r--
\D

a,
a,

a,
...

r--
0

r--
M

M
II)

\D
\D

r--
r--

r--
r--

-
-- ---

E
l

0
...

0
'<l'M

0
00

\D
0

r--
0

II)
...

M
O

rl
rl

\D
N

y
r--

\D
0
0

O
O

II)
r--

r--
......

rn
rn

%
N

N
rl

rl
N

rl
r--

M
r

rl
a,

"'
rl

O
rl

II)
"'

"'
a,

a,
r

r
rl

\D
\D

rl
rl

r
rn

rn
0

0
N

g
N•

N3
E-

N
l'.il

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
......

0
0

0
t,

0
0

0
0

0
IO

0
1
1
)0

0
0

0
0
0

II)
0

1
1
)0

11)
0
0

II)
0

0
0

O
O

O
O

O
O
r
l
O

rl
0

0
rl

rl
0

0
N

H
9

"'
\D

U"JN
C

D
O

O
N
N

IO
O

O
M

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

r--
N

O
O
N

"'
rl

rl
0
0

1
"-M

O
O

\S
l'O

rr
......

"'
"'

0
0

(!)
------

---- --
----

t
n

(D
"'

rl
N

'<I'M
r
l'<

l'O
\O

S
I'

rl
O

IO
r--r

l
r--\D

rl
rl

"'
"'

n
r

II)
rl

II)
OO

IO
M

IO
...

......
II)

II)
rl

II)
rl

rl
N

M
r
l

rl
0

N
II)

r--
rl

N
N

II)
a,

a,
......

0
rl

rl
r--

r--
N

rl
...

......
0

0
N

N
N

N

0
0

0
0

0
0

IO
IO

II)
II)

0
0

N
N

0
0

0
0

0
0

IO
lfl

U'l
IO

0
0

N
~

0
0

0
0

0
0

IO
IO

......
0
0

N
N

\D
\D

"'
"'

rn
)r

CD
CDr

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
C

l
M

IO
'<I'

r
lr
l
'<

l'N
0

rl
10~

0
C

l
M

IO
'<I'

r
lr
l
'<

l'N
0

rl
IO

0
1
"-/Y

lll)
r-

r
lr
l

N
N

IO
rl

...

0
rl

IO
0r 0

..-tU"J
0) IO

rl
IO

r--
N0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
o

a
o
u

o
o
o

r--
o
o

r--o
ltl

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

O
O
IO

O
M

o
o

r--
o
o

r--o
10

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
o
o

....
o

M
o
a

r--
O
O

S
l'O

rl

0
0

0
0

rel
rl

)
()

0
O

0
0

........()

0
0

0
0

rl
r

r)
(n

r
lr
l
N

o
rl

Nr--

g

r
lr
l
N

0
rl

Nr--

~

r
lr
l
O

\D
rl

IO\Dg

O
IO

\D
OO

IO
IO

M
\DN 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

1
1
)0

0
0

ltl
O
N

IO
O
r
i
<
D
IO

IO
O

\D

O
IO

\D
<D

IO
IO

M
\DN 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O
O

IO
O

O
O

II)
O
N

IO
O
r
l
<
D
IO

IO
O

\D

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
O

0
0

0
O
O

U
"JO

O
O

IO
0
0

11)
IO
O

C
"-N

\D
O

IO

0
IO

M
r--

r-
o\DN

M
O

O
/T

l
M

r
lr
l
/Y

lr
l

(D

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

1
1
)0

0
0
0

0
U"J

O
IO

O
O

N
N

S
l'IO

O
U

")
M

M
N

IO
'<I'

r
l\0

0
\0

11)
r--

rl
r
lN

M
r
l

rlrl

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

11)0
0
0
0

0
IO

O
IO

O
O

N
N

'<
l'O

O
IO

00

M
N

IO
'<I'

r
l\D

O
O

U"J
r--

rl
r
lM

M
r
l

rlrl

O
r
i
S

l'r
l

rl 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
1
1
)0

0
0

11)0
0
0

0
00

0
0

O
O

0
r--

0
II)

N
r--rl

0
0

O
O

0
r--

0
II)

N
r--
rl

0
0

0
0

0
II)

U")
0

rl
Nrl

ECJl0t)

5
3a

#
D

rl
C

/lN
I

C
/lO

H1),1
C/l

~
8

1),1
Hy

z
a

S

##Pt

4?0
C/l

a,If;l

r.l
rl

rl
U

O
C

l
1-i

\D
\D

;>
IO

U'l
l)!j

I
I

"1
rl

rl
n

u
r--

r--
0

E
O

0
,

I
1

E
l'.il

rl
r-t

M
o
o

z

3H%C/l

6i
,

,4
c
o

+
a
c

~
...

II)
II)

II)
II)

II)
\D

r-
u

U'l
U'l

U'l
U'l

lfl
Ill

Ill
10

lfl
II)

lfl
II)

II)
II)

II)
II)

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

8
..-tr-tr-tr

l
r
l
r
i
r
l
r
l

H
mn

n
m

(n
m

n
)

{u
H

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

o
H
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
t)

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

8
.i:r-tr-tr-tr

l
r
l
r-t..-tr-t

1),1
"
""

'
"
'

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

z

C/l

en
+l

C/l
tll

n
a

b
3

CJl
H

..:ICJlE
-iH

P
t

CJl
i:,,i

P
tlll8

i:xill!P
t

A
e

g
e

#
"

..:I
D
P

P
tP

Cll
Ill

C/l
tll

Pt
tll

C/l
Pt

H
P

t!JZ
P

Z
t!li:xiCJl8

Z
0

Cllt!JC
llO

Z
g
j

Z
H

H
8,

E
g

g
;

$9586$
%

a
Clllit4H

H
D

1>1~
:I:P

H
Pt

g
g

z
g

g
i
i

g
P

tO
P

tD
1>10

;>1>18
::!?4C/l

~s
o
s
,
a


r,l
r
lr
l
r
i
r
l
N

N
M

M
M

O
\

;>
""

...
1),1

IO
IO

U
'llO

IO
IO

L
lllO

IO
IO

i:xi
CJl

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

""1r
l
r
i
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

lit,
U
M

"1
"1

"1
"1

"1
M

M
M

M
lit,

0
H

r--
r--

r--
r--r--

r--r--r--
r--

r--
0

>
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
E

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E

%
G

3
3
4
4
1

3
¢

$
%?

rt
y
o

0
0
0

+
r
y
o

0
rl

rl
rt

r
(

n
(

r
(
r

n
rn
r

n
U")

II)
II)

II)
II)

II)
II)

II)
II)

II)
C/l

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

1),1
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
H
M

M
M

M
M

M
"1

M
"1

"1
H

r--
r--r--

r--r--r--
r--r--

r--
r-

Pt
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

o
Pt

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

D
rl

M
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
r
lr
l

C/l
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

\D

H~l'.ilC/l

~%
C/l

C/l
l'.ilt)!1),1
C/l"'
2z~

'?
t)

rl

$2
8

Et
O

Z
I

E-<
0

rl
r,,:i

t)
\D

z

z0HElPt3C/l

#I



0
><

N
E-t

v
o

a
o
o
a
o
o
o
o

u
a,

ID
\0

0
N

0
H

r--
""'

\0
0

0
\0

\r
i
O

a,
rl

rl
"1

y
~

a,
N_

0
q
-

a,
rl

r--
"1

0
rl

rl
y

-- --
-

E-t
0
\

L/')
"1

0
0
\
r

O
q

rl
0
\

0
?

d
rl

(n
a,

"1
"1

0\
a,

a,
r--

rl
rl

•
±

0\
':.

rl
q

q
0
\

\0
ID

rl
a:-

y
E-t

r--o
O

O
O

O
M

"1
"1
0
0

"1
"1

O
r
i
o

0
H

0
\

0
t
o

o1
O

f
-

r--
"1

"1
-

0
\

N
£

0
\
n

O
O
r
l
a
J
l"
lll')

N_
N

N_
0\

--- ---
E-t

@
\D

0
«

4
@
q

0
It)

0
«@

u
N

0
\

«+
N

N
r--

@
r--

N
rt

rl
±

±
ID

':.
It)

0
\

a,
ID

ID

y
it

-
y

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

It)
O

r--
0

z
t!J

0
0
0

0
0

ll'lO
O

0
It)

"1
0
\

It)
y

tH
l

O
ll')O

O
0

N
O

O
O

r-:_
r--

0
\

y
--

--
-

H
iXI

ll'lN
M

N
It)

O
N

l"
lr<

l
0
\

q
q

0
i:,:

y
rl

0
\

"1
r--

0
\

0
y

y
0

q
±

r--
It)

a,
a,

r--
ID

ID

v
>

N
r,i

E-t
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

ll'lo
o

o
It)

q
N

O
a,

O
E

-IH
0
0
0

0
O

O
O
r
l
O

O
O

rl
"1

0
\

It)
g

0
ll'lO

O
O
n

ll'l
M

O
O

0
q
-

':.
0
\

ID
----- --

~
E-t

ll'lN
M

N
ll'lM

ID
O

N
l"
lr<

l
0
\

a,
q

ID
g¥

N
r
llD

r--N
"1

r--
ID

N
N

0\
"1

ID
0

y
It)

N
z

P<
N

"1
"1

a,
It)

H
\0

ID

• Ii:,:
"1

E-t
E-t

""
fil

n
fil

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

r--
a
io

rl
0

eg
g

0
0
0

0
It)

ll')O
ll')O

It)
@

It)
rl

fil
""a

ll'lll'lO
ll')

0
q
o
o
o

0
"!.

10
.-I

)i
Ill

---- -
E-t

~
iXI

ll'lN
M

N
y

r
la

J
l0

ll')
10

rl
10

It)
H

rl
N
r
l

rl
N

It)
"1

0
\

10

-'
N

rl
.-I

a,
N

q
a

E-1P<
It)

q
0i

r.i
10

10
""

Q
E-t

Ill
i:,:
0

rl
P<

10

f;l
"gN

fil
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

r--
a,

0
rl

'"Cl
0I

t!J
0
0
0

0
It)

ll')O
ll')O

It)
@

Ill
rl

E-t2
g

1
/lll'lO

IO
0

o
o
O

0
0

10
10

fil
----

-
.;

t!J
0

iX1
IO
N

M
N

N
rl

r--
10

ll'l
It)

0
10

§
u

rl
N
r
l
r
l

N
It)

"1
0
\

10
2

N
rl

rl
a,

N
d

iXI
Ill

«@
i:,:

10
10

g3

QJ1-1C1I

rlrlC1I

"1Ill
.jJ

.j.J
0

QJ
....,

tll
QJ

'"Cl
0

::I
1-1

.Q
,

y
):

N
0

0
rl

N
11--4:

QJ
H

ii
'"Cl

a
g

01-1
a

11--4
0·rl

Ill
.j.J

QJ
C1I

•rl
$

;
.j.J

8
rl·rl11--4

QJ
a

0
H

aC1I
>,

1-1
.j.J

·fg
0

It)
1-1

0
0

0
0

0
0

It)
0

rl
QJ

0
0

rl
0

o
0

"1g.
e

0
a

£;
-

1-1
-

«2
U")

g
6

N
N

q
N

It)
ii

10
QJ

10
.j.J

·rl
C1I

):
>·rl

QJ
1-1

rl
P<

0:a
o

o
0

0
1-1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

>
0

It)
0

0
0

0
0

0
It)

"!_r<1
It)

q
>,

0
0

0
0

0
0
\

U
")N

It)
.%

e
rl

rl
a,

N
0

N
>,

rl
rl

rl
It)

N
N

.Q
C1I

N
..c:

C1I
'"Cl

>
1-1

g
0

·rl
11--4

QJ
0

·rl
QJ

>
C

l!/
OI

QJ
C1I

1-1
rl

o
..C

:o
0

0
o

QJo
0

0
0

0
0

o
O

0
It)

.j.J
o

C
o

0
0

It)
It)

1-1
It)

q
1-1

o
d
o

0
0

0
\

-
::I

O
-

P.
-

.j.J
o
,

It)
rl

P.
t

N
rl

.j.J
C

r--
rl

N
QJ

rl
rl

QJ
rl

It)
QJ

N
1-1

0
;

£i
N

ii
¥

QJ
QJ

rl
.j.J

a
a

0
QJ

;
QJ

,
C1I

QJ
0

0
QJ

·rl
rl

.j.J
><

0
1

%
%

QJ
fil

0
rl

'"Cl
OI

QJ
1-1

g
1-1

g
QJ

,
..

0
"

~
%

•·
••

•
G

••
#

~
en

o
en

enu
cn

ro
C

ll-i-lC
ll-1-lC

ll
E-t

E-t
E-to

E-t
t-l

E-t
E-t

E-t
E-t

&
0

3¢
3egg3g

g
0

0
E-t

E-<
E-t

8£
0

rl'

448%2
3

3
rl

Zs
rl

rl
§

rl
<Jr

Ill
a

""
"1

fil
11--4

fil
C

l)
fil

g
tgeie

a,
r--

E-t
E-t

It)
E-t

0
U")

0
0

rl
0

0
.j.J

0
k

O
O

-1-lO
'"O

O
z

C1I
~

3
&9

g
?

iii
E-t

·rl
E-t

E-t
.j.J

rl
E-t--'<

Pt
E-<

E-t
88

?J
84

%
E-t

g
g

62
g

g
E

E-t
kB

gJ
z

0
n1O

0
QJ

QJ
ll,

0
[u

d

£
u
i
u

@
u
f

0
fil

,
u

>
a

C1I
0

u
A

E-t
u

i:,:
0

QJ
QJ

11--4
G

u
z

QJ
<

g
U

H
'"Cl

>,
0

.i:
£

.Q

"
::,

C1I
¥

fil
Q

I
H

><
.jJ

0
'"Cl

en
5¥

fil
tll

·rl
;

11--4
H

rl
,

Ill
QJ

::,
::I

)i
..C:

Ill
i:,:

::I
ID

0
Q

I
0

3
U

k
fil

QJ
0

fil
):

::I
E-t

'"Cl
0

0
'

::,
QJ

C1I
C1I

0
0

Ill
H

%
'"Cl

rl
rl

0
E-t

·rl
%

t!J
•rl

QJ
%

±
0

?
..c:

A
QJ

QJ
rl

E-t
C

l)
A

k
u

z
i:,:

<I)-

rlPa,It)

"'Na,U")

rlrlC
l)

U")

00It)

r--

U")
N~

213

000a,
):QJk0QJ

iik0
0

'H
0o

-lJ
-a

a,
~k::I0a0·rl.jJC1I0

..
::I

en
'"Cl

E-t
QJ

?J
'"Cl

Ill
8°

Pt
Ill

H
fil

QJ
:I:

E-t
0

Ill
9$

i:,:fil
E-t

·rl
g

89
~

""
rl

"'
g,QJ

Ill
--'<

8
0

z
.jJ

gJ
'"Cl

i
QJ

'"ClQJQJ
u

z

3E-t% rl10

en3H~i:,:Pt%Pt2,
><

..
..

..
'
,
e

+
n

o
o
r-o

,+
n

o
Et

«
4
+

l
«
t+

r
t
4

4
O

::,
a,

a,
0:)

a,
a,

a,
a,

a,
a,

a,
a,

C
l)

0
ll'l

ll'l
Ll')

ll'l
Ill

U"l
It)

U"l
ll'l

ll'l
U"l

ll'l
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
>-1

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

2
2
i
i

8
H
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
Pt

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-t
,(

rl
rl

r
lr
l

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

r.:i
U
l0

1
0
1
0

1
0
1
0

1
D
l0

1
D
\O

ID
1
0

10
Z

t-lt!J

3HE-tPtH6Illf:lI



o
o
o
o
o
m
o
~
m
o
o
o
o

r--o
o
o
o
m
m
o
o
N
o
o
o
o
o
o
M
m

o
y
o
n
o
a
u

0
0
O
a
r

o
O
O
O
O
u
O

I
0
o
a

u
a
r

r
r
l
u
o
n

n
u

u
@

r
t
a

on
1"-I

D
M
O
O
t--M

•
O

t--N
O
O
O
O
•
O
N
O
O
O
O
O
O
o
o
o

~
r
i
M
•
~

r--o
o
o
o

r--
N
O

i"-
O
O
r
i

\0
O
O
r
i
N

r
i
\
O
N
~
N
M

I"-
o
oo
m

M
N

ri

0
>-<

N
E-<

0
H

N
~E-<?

4
o

L
u
r

rt
+r-

00
N

M

00
N
r
i

00
ri

O
M

u
L

u
00

\0
a,

0ri

Nri

O
O
O
M
M
.
0
0
0
0
\
0
0
0

1"-0
0
0
0
M
\
O
O
\
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
N

o
r
u
t

o
o
o
a
r

+«lo
0
o

a
t
u

O
N
N
O
O
M

M
~
\
O
r
i
~
M
M
m
\
O
\
O
r
i

I"-
r
iM

0

~
\
O
M
M
m

\
O
•
M
O
\
O
O
O
o
o
o
o
•
o
o
\
O
o
o
o
o
m
•

O
+
V
O
0
O
O
O

V
O

O
<at

1"-0
0
M
M
O
O
M
~
N
r
i
N

•
r
i

N
N

rt
Lu)

I
y

@
,4

@
ri

M
\0

rl
y

4
4

@
n

u
Nri

r--

O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O

r
i
l"-0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

O
O
~
O
O
M
N

\
0
0
0
0

\0
\
Ol"-0

0
•
~
\
O
N
•

t--M
t--\

0
0
~

M

o
m
1
0
r--r--~

•
N
•
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

•
~
~

o
o
m
M
O
M
M
O
O
O
O
O

I"-
0

O
O

u
+«-
v
u

n
o
@
0
0
t
o
o

O
et

u

u
N
M
o
•
o
o

1"-l"-0
0
\
0
N

•
ri

•u
)

Mri

ri
\0
~
M

\
Om
O

•
r
d

ri

1"-N

1"-N

ri

N

r--

r--

r--

\
O•
M
m
r
i
m
M
\
O
N
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
~
O
C

~
o
o
o

r--0
0
0
0
0

0
0

o
o
o

V
O

O
+
y
o

O
O

M
M
N
N

r
i
\
O
M

r--•
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
~
o
c

o
o
u
p
u
r
O

a
o
a

O
O
N
M

l"-N
r
i
N
M

\
O

o
m

M
M
N
N

r
i
\
O
N

l"-0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

\
Om
~

00
~

ri
N
N

00
O
O
N
M

l"-N
M
O
O
M

r
i

o
•

Nri t
NM

r
iO
O
t--r

i
m

r
iM

r
iO
O
l"-M

O
I

ri
M

O
N
O

M
r--

00
r--(n

O
N
O

r--
00

C


M

0
0
0
0
\
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
r
i
\
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
M

o
o
o

o
o
o
o
u
v
n

o
o

00
\
0
\
0
0

•
~
m
N
N
O
O
M
m

O
r
i

\0

0
0
0
0
\
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
M
I
D
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
M

0
0
0

~
O
O
O
O
~
N
~

0
0

00
\
0
\
0
0

•
~
~
N
N
O
O
M
m

O
r
i

\0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

N
Cl

><
N

rx1
E-<

0
E-1

H
vg

£Bere~

m
o
r
i
M
m

r--o
o
•

r--o
o
o

r--m
o
o

o
om
m
o
,
m
m
M
M
M
M
N
M

O
O
m

r
i

m
m

O'I
O'lm

O'IO
O

o
o
o
o
m
m

o
\0

\0
\0

\0
\0

\0
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
\0

\0
r--

rl
t:>

U
l:~

.>(
nl

C/l
·.-l

O
rl

U
u

a
u

ns
o

:a
j~

r.:i8l
;ii'

QIC
/lO

C
!;9

v
s

&?
5

t!l
H

fz1
1

1
,,i

·.-l
i::l>

:9
ill

(.!).c:
~

6
#
&

°
$

,i:
C/l

I
ill

A
rl

g
p::

t!l
1

1
ns

p:i
e-.,-:it:>

C
/lC

/lC
/lC

Q
H

H
<

P
I
P

:P
!:P

:H
U

P-1
..:1C

/lC
/lC

/lC
/lE-<Z

A
O

O
O

QI
I

I
0

fz1fz1fz1fz1U
O

E-<E-<E-<~
C

llC
/lC

/lC/l
P!:U

U
U

U
,cllH

1
S

jU
U

J
l!H

fz1fz1fz1

a£
BB

&
33%%/3

illil:P
:P

:P
::O

fz1fz1E-<E-<E-<:i:lt:
illillill

fz1fz1fz1fz1U
~

cn
z
z
z

~
Q

le
!
e
!
ill

o
cncncncn

o
o
o
o

_..cn..,..,t:>
r.:i

m
p
:
r,.u

u
u

1
1
cncncn

!2
2
3
3

°
2

8
8

a
a
s

U
U

U
U

U
S

P
IP

-iil:P
IP

:~
f'1lU

U
U

9
p

i
g

9
g
t

£
..:ir.:1r.:1r.:1r.:1o

e-.e-.S
S

S
o
o

r-.~0
~0

~
ll

ll
ll

ll
U

O
O

C
/lC

/lU
JillP-10

E-<(/)
0u

00M0r--

(.!)
0reillill::>(/)

00
00

M
M
0
0

r--
r--

•
o

•
0

0
o

O
I

O
t

r-
@

L
u
+«-l
o

t
L
u
0
0

r
t
v
lr
t
r

rt
h
o
0
O
o

r
t
+rt

V
lr
i
M
M
~
~
~
~
~
~
m

r
i
r
i
r
i
r
l
r
i
r
i
r
i
O'IO'lm

r
i
r
l
r
l
r
l
M

M
r
l
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
l
r
i
r
l
r
i
r
i
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
M
M
M
M
M

r-tu
u
u

u
n
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
i
u
u
u

u
n

rl
I

I
1

1
1

1
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

1
I

I
I

I
I

I
1

1
I

•
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
M
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
l
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
l

O
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
l
r
i
r
i

••
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

~
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P.,
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

d
n
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
n
u

u
n
u
u
u
u
u
o
u
u
n
u
u
u
u
u

u
n

Q
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

uH~
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
O
r
i
m
m
m
m

o
,

,
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
~
o
o
m
m

o
,
m
m

M
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
r
i
M
r
i
r
i
l"-l"-l"-l"-1"-l"-

O••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
0

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

1
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
~

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

~
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P.,
I

I
I

I
1

1
1

1
1

1
I

1
1

I
1

1
I

I
I

1
I

1
1

1
1

I
1

1
E-<

a
3

3
3

23
35

33
3
3

%
t3 ~HE-<illH&(/)

fz1Q



0
><

N
E-<

~
O
O
O
I
D
~
N
O
O
O
O
I
D
(Ilr

l
O
\
O
~
r
l
O
O
N
r
l
O
O
N
O
I
O
O
O
I
O
O
I
O
N
O
O
M
~
N
O
O
O
O

O
O
N

rl
O
lr
l

00
u)
(

0
H

o
O
N
N

....
O
r
l
r
l
~

"'"'
~

........
N
0
0
\
0
0
0
0

....
N

~
~

....
r
l
O
I
N
I
D
I
D
N

t
L

u)
N

00
N

i:;
0
0
\

rl
(I)

rl
0

Lu)
O

O
\\D

r
lN

O
O
~
o
o
o

........
ID

rn
rl

rl
N

ID
m

O
r

\
DM

---- -
E-<

rl
rl

rl
u

on
m

t-
N
N

rl
~

....
r
lO
O
N

I
D

uO
u

M
4

(n
{

rl
"'

u
....

N
O
IN

\
D

T
(

-:i:
M

M
M

r
l
N

~
M
W
O
O
O
O
I
M
O
O
O
~
~
N
M
~
O
~
O
I
O
~
N
M
O

....
M
N
O
I
O
I
D
(I)O

\
D
O
O
O
O
I
D
~
0
\
0
0
0

L
u
)

LO
N
I
D
r
l
M

....
o

00
O
u
)
u
o
a
0
+
l
o
(

a
t
r

y
r
t

0
0

t
u
)
o
n

O
O
N

r
l
O
\
r
l
r
l
O
I
N
O
N

............
OI

I
D
O
i
~

rl
....
0
0
0
\
D
r
l
r
l

r
l
N

r
lM
M
r
l
~
N
~
N

I
D

r
rl

rl
M

....
N

....
N

N
O

u
0

u)
O

(
DO
\

0
o
o
m

M
M

rl
N

rl
00

0
\
0

....
ID

....
~

M
I
D

uO
n

L
u)«

-l
N

O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
r
l
~
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O

0
0

0
0
~

O
M
N
I
D
O

0
0

0
0
0

0\
o

u
o

O
I

t
o

«
@

O
0
0

uprl

rl
ID

rl
N

(I)
(Il(I)O

0
0

ID
\D

ID
0

"'"'
"'

M
O
\

...,
mn

p

n
....
M

0
0

u
u

Lu
ID

ID
rl

rl
rl

rl
rl

rl

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

....

"'"'rl(I)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
\
D
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
~
r
l
O
O
~
O
I
I
D
~
O
N
O
O
O
O
O

<IlO
O
O
O
O
O
M
I
D
O
O
O

0
0
\
0
0

O
M
~
O

~
....

r
l
\
D

M
O
O

0
\
0

M
m

ID
o

u
o

o
u
O
r
-
m
o

r
tb

r
t

+
O
u

O
r

DO

a
....

m
o

D
O

0
rl

ID
N

0
........

"'"'
"'"'
rl

rl
(I)

(I)

~
ID

mn
O
t

....
M

"'
(I)"

'
(I)

0
0
0

"'
ID

OI
ID

ID
0

rl
M

r
lr
l

r
lO

"'
N

OI
M

N
rl

....,
r

(n
(

(
o
r

....
....,

....
m

....~
N

(I)
v

Lu
o

u
rl

ID
rt

L
)

ID
OI

(I)
mn

a
u

rl
M

O
N

O
IN

N
O

n
t

(n
(

(
r

rl
N

rlN

r
lN

rlN

N
r
lr
l

rl

N
r
lr
l

rl

L
u)

d
o

r
lN
Orl

~
....o

rl
N

0rl

rl

rl

O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
I
D
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
~
r
l
O
O
~
O
I
I
D
~
O
N
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
M
I
D
O
O
O

O
O
I
D
O

O
M
~
O

~
....

r
l
l
D

M
O
O

0
\
0

M
O
I
I
D

u
o

o
u
o
t

mo
r
t0

r
t

)
l
a

O
u

O
r

O

M
E-<

e-,
N

CJll'al
0

g
N

o
El

f;1
l:II

E-<P<l"'l
Cl

M
9

N053
N

0
1:11

u2gji

3a
£

0
E-<

H
N

CJ
~

~
e-,

O
U

g;
,i:5He-,P<H6CJl

~d

uHi-=IsP<

uH
....
W
r
l
O

<"'l~
(I)O

\
O
r
l
M
~
I
D
~
m

....
o

....
o
o
m
o

....
M

....
~

(Ilm
........

o
o
o
o
r
l
r
l
O
O
M

....
(I)O

\
(I)O

\
H

<"'IM
O
I
N
M
M
M

O
O
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
\
O
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
N
N
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
N
M

O
I
O
\
O
r
l
N
M
M
M
M
M

O
I

l:QO
O

O
I
O
O
O
O
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
I
O
I
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O

O
I

D
t
f

O
r
-
t
t
t

DO0
0
0
0
0
0
0
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
t

t-
t

r-
O
D
t
t
t
t
t
t
t
f

O
P,

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

N
N
M
M
M
M
M
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
I
O
~
N

....
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
N

r
l

lr
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
r
l
r
l
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
M

....
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
M

(Il
rt

u
u
u

u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u

u
u
u

u
u
u
u

u
rl

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

....
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
i
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

O
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
i
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
~

........................................................................................................................................................................
0

~
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

P
,

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

e-,
d
u

u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u

u
u
u
u

u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u
u

u
pa

Q
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
~
~
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Z

uON



0
><

y
E--1

N
O

LO
O

r--
O

IN
<
"l

O
I
0

,.,
0
0

0
r--

r--
0

H
O
N

O
y

0
\D

'<
J'<

"l
Ill

00
00

O
I

y
~

'<I'
00

"
'

rl
r--

\D
\D

N
N

,.,
,.,

r--
rl

E--1
Ill

U
'l

ro,
Ill

r--
'<I'r

D
0

,.,
,.,

'<I'
00

?
\D

r--
Ill

'<I'
rl

"'
"'

0
0o

rl
rl

rl
rl

,.,

V
v

rl
><

y
E-<

0
O

o
O

,.,
rl

O
Ill

N
0

00
rl

O
rl

r--
00

0

~
'<I'

,...q
....

'<I'
"1

N
t--

rl
,.,

0
0

t--
ll)

N
y

y
aO

,.,
N

r--oo
'<I'

y
Ill

Ill
rl

r--
e-i

r--
N

ro,
,.,

ID
O

O
N

\D
'<I'

r--
r--

00
Ill

u
'<I'

Ill
N

rl
Ill

0
0

0
O

-i:
rl

rl
,.,

'<I'

V
V

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

C
>
lll

Ill
0

Lil
t
-

'<I'
N

O
N

....4\D
N

rl
'I'

,.,
0
0

rl
:::!.

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

00
0
0

0
0
0

'<I'
-

0
0

0
O
llllll

00
'<I'

\D

\D
\D

"'
r--

'<I'
\D

Ill
'<I'

00
00

lllO
r--

rl

Ill
\D

O'<l'O

276

00
00

Ill
Ill

rrl
rl

rl
N

'<I'
00

rl 0
0

Ill
Ill

r--r--

ll)
rl

0
«-4

'<I'
'<I'

N
rl

00
00

Ill
Ill

rrl
rl

rl
N

'<I'
00

rl

y<'I

0
0

0
0
0

0
llllllo

r--
rl

'<I'
o

O
0

rl
rl

0

rl
rl

0
0

0
0
0

0
llJ
O

U
,

O
'I
O
0

0
0

O
I

rl
r--

Ill

o
o

o
0
0

0
lllO

lll

O
I
0
0

0
0

O
'I

rl
t--

Ill

r--
'<I'

r--
\D

O
'<I'

C
'l<

"l
O

N
Ill

'<I'

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

OO
O

IO
lllO

N

r--
'<I'

r--
\D

O
'<I'

v
OIll

'<I'

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

00
0

1
l)ll)

00Illr--

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

OO
O
lllllJ

O
N

r
l<

"lr
l
N

O
O

I
O

IO
lr
i
r
l
O

I
0
0

t--t--ll)
\D

'<I'
'<I'

'<I'
'<I'

Ill
Ill

I
I

I
I

I
t--\D

\D
\D

\D
\D

eg
g
2

2
%

40
o

O
O
O
0

A.
I

I
I

I
I

E-i
88

8
8
3
8

%

~H%H% 0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
o

O
r

o
o

U
'll"

-
r
l
O

\D
N

O
\D

N
:::!,

0
0

C
>
O

O
0

0
C

>
O

O
O
r

o
o

L
tlt--

r
l
O

\D
N

O
\D

N
rl

0
0

C
>
O

0
O

O
C

>
O

O
O
O
t
-
l
l
lo

o

Ill
Ill

,-4
rl

O
I

N
O

I
Ill

rl
rl

r
lr
l
N

OO
I

O
lr
i
r
i
O

I
O

t--
t--lll

Ill
'<I'

'SI'
'I'

Ill
Ill

I
I

I
I

t--U
,U

,ll)
ll)

·
2

2
2

%8
,IJ

O
O
0
0

A
,

I
I

I
I

E-i

83
8

<
8

%
8 %He-i"' H1ZuC
l)

i:.iQI



DEVELOPMENT FUND 27
IMPACT FEES

The Development Fund helps provide for the financing of public facilities such as roads, water
systems, sanitary sewer, public safety, and recreation for land not yet developed. The City of Franklin
has considerable undeveloped area and was one of the most rapidly growing communities in
Southeastern Wisconsin until it was interrupted by the 2008 Recession. City Officials recognized the
need to recover the costs of providing public facilities and infrastructure needed to serve new
development through the imposition of impact fees. The Impact Fee changes over time as
development takes place and growth rates change. A revised Impact Fee study was adopted April
6, 2020. The 2022 fee on a single-family residence is $6,961, related to Parks/Recreation, Water
systems, Transportation Facilities, Public Safety, Library Services, and Administrative. The fee is
collected when building pennits are issued. In 2013, the Common Council adopted Ordinance 2013
2105 establishing the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Service Area and created a Sewer Impact Fee to
support sanitary sewer infrastructure in that District. The 2022 Sanitary Sewer Impact fee is $3,501.

The Library built in 2002 included space for future growth anticipated with development. Library
Impact fees are dedicated to Debt Service on that portion, originally $1,722,000. Current Impact Fee
receipts are not sufficient to meet the Debt Service on this debt. Those deferred amounts will be
recovered once growth resumes.

Law Enforcement Impact Fees are dedicated to a portion of the 2001 Law Enforcement building
project ($2,530,380). Current Impact Fee receipts are not sufficient to meet the Debt Service. The
deferred amounts will be recovered once growth resumes.

The Fire Department anticipates expansion of fire station space to serve the southwestern portion
of the City as it develops. Current Fire Impact fees will aid in the construction of that additional Fire
Protection infrastructure.

Transportation Impact Fees have been dedicated to Debt funding the Drexel Ave reconstruction from
Loomis Road to Highway 100 ($1,086,715). Current Impact Fee receipts are not sufficient to meet
the Debt Service. The deferred amounts will be recovered once growth resumes.

Water Impact fees are aiding specific additions to the water infrastructure including over sizing
needs. Future water infrastructure needs will utilize Impact Fees as collected. The Water Impact Fee
study is currently under review. The Utility plans to construct additional elevated storage in
2022/23/24 near Hwy 100 and St. Martin's Road. It is anticipated that Impact fees will assist with a
significant portion of those project costs.

Park/Recreation Impact Fees support the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan ("CORP")
initially adopted in 1994 and updated several times, most recently in April, 2020. The Impact Fee will
contribute to projected needs for additional recreational facilities.

In 2013, the Common Council created a Southwest Sanitary Sewer District served by the Ryan
Creek Sanitary Sewer Interceptor. In conjunction with the District a Sanitary Sewer Impact Fee was
created to provide resources for sanitary sewer mains in the District.

277



City of Franklin, WI
2023 Budget - Development Fund

The Common Council recently directed and authorized the purchase of land in the southwest area
of the City, in the amount of $1,500,000. The City will be closing on this property in the very near
future. This purchase is utilizing $542,754.45 of existing Impact Fee Revenues for this purchase.

Staff is currently revising the Impact Fee Spending Plan to ensure that the appropriate amount of
fee revenue will be spent by the statutorily required dates.

Capital Projects:

Fire Station Design
Water Tower Park Design
Frisbee / Disc Golf Course
116/ Street Trail w/Ryan Road
St. Martin of Tours Trail
Cascade Trail Design
STH 100 LL, Land Purchase
Forest Home Trail
Water Connection

Totals

Project Cost
$355,000
$100,000
$20,000
$1,110,000
$224,135
$103,000
$178,500
$65,000
$718,425

$2,874,060

270

Impact Fee Use
$88,750
$47,000
$9,400
$172,360
$138,964
$63,860
$110,670
$40,300
$107,764

$779,068



0
«

y
E--t

t
a

(n
o

Luo
+
ta
t

O
r--

"'"'
O

(YJ
(YJ

o
r--

r--
0

0
,

"'
O

N
N

\D
Ill

rl
0
0

0
0

0
0

r--
rl

\D
0

H
IO
O

.-
f(Y

JO
,

....
\D

O
,Q

\D
N

0
\D

\D
CD

CD
(YJ

(YJ
rl

rl
CD

CD
rl

CD
0

0
\D

\D
0

IO
10

y
£

r
t

+
l
a
0

o
)

+-
a

\D
r--

r--
0

0
"'

"'
Ill

Ill
"'

"'
O

N
(YJ

0
r--

r--
\D

(YJ
N

---------
E--t

O
on
o

O
l

O
O
a

0O
r

r--
r--

r--
Ill

Ill
4

y
n

n
(YJ

(YJ
\D

Ill
rl

\D
CD

....
t--

o,
CD

u
IO

rl
t--\D

ID
C

D
\D

O
,r
i
N

\D
y

y
0

0
........

r--
r--

0
\

"'
CD

N
rl

y
N

Ill
o
o

u
d

-l
Ill

(YJ
y

4
y

cc
Ill

Ill
(YJ

<"l
....

rl
rl

rl
b«

-
y

E--t
r

a
0
o

u
r
-
a
t

O
0

rl
rl

o
r--

r--
0

0
\

0
\

o
o

0
0

0
\

0
\

ID
0

\D
rl

O
0

rl
........

O
t--

(Y
J

0
H

(YJ\D
N

C
D
r
l
r
l
lO

........
t--r

l
j

4
N

rl
....

........
0
\

0
\

n
n

"'
"'

Ill
Ill

N
\D

10
y

E
(YJ

CD
I.C

O
O

C
D

C
D
t--
0

\D
C

D
Ill

\D
\D

Ill
Ill

Ill
Ill

(YJ
n

0
0

"'
"'

........
U1

Ill
o,

--- -- ----- -
E--t

IO
r
i
'=

l'N
r
l
r
l
t--

(Y
JIO

t--0
\D

\D
\D

Ill
Ill

n
n

....
....

....
....

y
y

rl
....

\D
CD

t--
u

n
0

O
O
z

@
)
)

rl
0

0
........

r--
r--

n
n

"'
"'

rl
....

ri
\D

....
d

........
y

CD
y

N
........

CD
u

u
o
o
r

a
o
o
o
o

o
r

C
D
r
l
':!'N

\D
....

O
,N

Q
O

0
,

O
O

O
o

+
@

O
4

o
o

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
rl

O
0
\

"'"'"'
VID

(YJ
t-

O
n

Ill
Ill

0
\

v
)

0
0

O
IO

O
IO

V
V

n
(n

0
0

0
""'

....
0

0....0"'
Ill
0cc

Ill
0rn

0
IO

U1
o

r--
r-

O
<
'l

C"l

Ill
t--

N
r--

<'l
rl

rl
(r

0
0

0
0

Ill
IO

o
r--

r--
lO

N
t-

t--
u
)

....
Illr-ri

Illr-rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

V
\D\DIlly

0\D
0

0
+
-
lin
t

a
0

O
r

O
r
t

Lu)O
f

(YJ
(YJ

t--(Y
JN

N

O
O

O
IO

IO
IO

O
O

IO
r
t

«
ta
)
O

n
)

«a
r
l.-i

(YJ.-
ir
l
r
l

0
0

O
IO

IO
O

N
t--

0
(YJ

\D

0
0
\
0

0
\
0

rl
0
\

N

rl

0
0

O
IO

IO
0

N
t--

0
C

"l
ID

0
0
\
0

0
\

ID
N

rl
0
\

N

rl

0
0

0
0
0

0
IO

IO
........

0

"
'"
'

0
0

O
a

Ill
r--

rl

u
)o

r--0rl r--0rl

r--0rl r--0rl

O
IO
O

IO
V<'l

(YJ

0
0

0
0

0
0

CD
CD

0
0

0
0

0
0

CD
CD

yCDIll

NCDIll

NCDIll

0
0

0
0

0
\D

\D

NCDIll 0
0

0
0

0
\D

\D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ill
0n

Ill0(YJ

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
10

IO
r--

r-
n
)
)

r--
r-

<'l
<'l

rl
rl

0
Ill

Ill
r--

r-(o

r--
r-

(YJ
(YJ

rl
....

0
Ill

Ill
o

r--
r-

O
<
'l

<'l

IO
t--

N
r--

<'l
ri

rl
rl

(YJ

-
0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

CD
t--

Ill

CD
N

rl
CD

Ill
""'
rl

0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

CD
t--

Ill

CD
N

rl
CD

Ill
""'
rl

0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

o
r--

r--
'°

N
r-

r--
Ill

N....

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ill
Ill

rl
rl

0
(YJ

0
\

\D
\DIll

¢

0
h
o

«
-in
t

a
O
o

r
O
t
t

Lu)O
I-

)
t
n
q

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

O
O

O
IO

IO
IO

O
O

IO
t
r

«
a
n
o
n

«ea
r
ir
l

(Y)r
i
.-
ir
l

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
IO
O

O
\D

IO
O

IO
O

O
O

(Y
J

""°

r-y

Ill3H2H~p.,gp.,

zIlli% %(.)
Illrz1

~
(.)

~
5arz1Ill

~grz1Ill"'
I

rly
ID

10
IO

I
t--

ID
0

Ill
Ix,

r--
0

.µ
0

p.
I

E-t
%

%

iIllH,-:i
0

(n
I

CD
0
,

Ill
Ill

rl
IO

IO
rl

I
I

U1
rl

rl
0

rl
rl

Ill
U1

.µ
0
0

,
I

I
QIr--

r-
(
)

O
\(YJ

CD
o,

Ill
Ill

rl
IO

Ill
<'l

I
I

(YJ
rl

rl
O

<
'l(YJ

Ix,
o

O
.µ

0
0

0
,

I
I

E-t

8
%

rl
E-t

)
rz1a

O
(n

CD
0
\

Ill
IO

rl
10

Ill
N
I

I
N

rl
rl

Ix,
O

[
O

O
.µ

0
0

E-t
0.

I
I

E-t

%2#$.R5
%.

p.,
rl

rz1
o

rz1(.)
H,-:i0p

0
(n

I
CD

0
,

Ill
Ill

rl
Ill

IO
rl

I
I

N
.-i

.-i
0

rl
rl

v
_µ
0
0

I
I

QIr--r--
0
N
N

U
l

3H• zIll•
r
t
n

u
)p
t

0
y
o

0
O

I
O

O
O
O

O
d

O
O

+
-lr
l
r
l

O
N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

t--t--t--
t--

0
""°

""'
0

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
Ix,

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

+Jo
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
0.

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-t
3R

5
5

5
5

i 3HE-<p.,
HCl'◄(.)
U

l

~



p
t

N
E

-l
o
,
Ill

O
H

Ill
rl

,
<I'r--

E-l
(Y

)
rl

%
O

(X
)

(X
)

(X
)

(X
)

rl
~

N
E

-l
l
l
)(X

)
O
H

rl
\0

N
i:'.i

r--
\0

E-l
rl

0
\

~
o(X

)
rl

(X
)
0
\

0
rl

r--
r-

\0
<I'

O
'IN

(Y
)

(X
)

rl
rl

"'
\0

N
A

><
N

P<1
E-1

0
0

O
E
-lH

t--N
N

o
\0

\0

~
E-1

0
\

0
\

2¥
(Y

)
0
\

~I
rl

0
\

p,
0
\
Ill

harx,
E-1

(Y
)

E-i
E-1

rx,
u

N
C/l

l'z1
O
lll

0$
0

f:1
c.,

N
O
i

><
""a

8
\ON

E-1
H

gi
1%1

0
\0

H
'-

OIN
u

E-1
O\N

p,; z
E-i

¥
A

l
Ill

\0
0

l>l
rx,

A
0

E-1
,-:i

p,;
~

0P,
l'z1

3
A

(Y
)

~
E-1

N
l'z1

0
lll

r--
0I

c.,
O

E-1
N

g
\0
N

l'z1t!l
0

1%1
0
\
0

§
'O

u
OIN

1%1g
gJ

OIN

%8
lll

\0

~

3
fz1u

H

;
tJ

E-1P,
Hp,;? u{/]
fz19

eaH§
§g

H

ix:
%e1%11>1

[ii

I,-:i
c.,

280



0
><

N
E

t
M

IO
1.0

'<I'
0

0
N

a,
O

N
0

a,
0

H
IO

'<I'"
"
'

10
0

0
O

I0
0

M
N

N
R

00
M
r

IO
'<I'

o
10

ID
rl

---- -
o

E
l

r-°',........,.
0

C"l
0

ID
r-

rl
u

rl
0

ID
M

O
ID

ID
0

,(
ID

0
ID

IO
r-

N

rl
><

N
E

l
M
0
\O

0
0

0
a,

N
0

a,
Q

)Q
0

H
rl

0
0

0
r-

N
O

r-
N

IO
N

E
"
'..,

1.0
N

y
0
\

N
N

rl
a,

E-
IO

r
l

M
-

IO
r-

M
IO

rl
10

u
y

±
N

rl
0

a,
,(

N
rl

N35
N

0
0

O
0
0

ID
\D

0
ID

ID
0

'<1'
0

0
0

t.O
r-

y
IO

r-
N

u
y

N
9

0
IO

r-
..,

y
N

'<
l'N

a,
ID

H
'J'.l

N
N

rl
ID

IO
rl

ID
IO

a
,

%5
M

~
M

N
a,

IO
rl

rl

N
Q

><
N

""18
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
8

H
IO

o
r
l

0
<I'

ID
0

<1'
IO

rl
y

u
i:;

N
O

n
N_

N
IO

N
a,

ID
~

...
rl

rl
0

rl
rl

0
IO

IO
O

U
)

~
M

M
a,

IO
g

<
rl

rl
zH

~

±.r..
z

r..
~

C"l
E

t
E

N
en

ril
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
(/l

0
g

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

(/l
N

0
0

r
l

':..
rl

rl
ID

r-
><

ril
a8

~
(/l

~
'Il

N
rl

C"l
C"l

n
IO

a,
·a

IO
IO

rl
rl

2
E-<

b
p.,
""1

r..
H

Q
u

E
ril

P:
P<

0
(/l

p.,[;l
rl

(n9
IO

y
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

093
o
o

o
0

0
0

rl
rl

E-
y

0
0

r
l

rl
rl

rl
\0

r-
ril

'ti

2
0

'Il
N

rl
C"l

C"l
M

IO
a,

u
IO

IO
3

rl
rl

'Il

c:x.03
rl(n

?
E

ti
(/l

H
f;J

u
ril

Z
C/l

8
C

/l
C/l

ril
r

e#g#°
z

C/l
u

rl
P<!

I
C/l

H
IO

I
C

/lQ
:,.

8
8

H
P::

0

I
Z

C
/lZ
'-

P
:ril

0

gg
ggg"

00
C/l

C
/lH

8
8

g
o

'Il
ril

ril
ril

z
C

/lZ
C/J

0
0

C/l
(/l

ril
0

og£
6

z
u

H
tt

z
P:

0

<4$
E

H
P<

±ta##
E

H
$

P:u
9

%gz
P:

(/l
ril

8
t-1

en
p.,

ril
P<Z

P
<

P:
0

IIreI
a

~
C

/lH
C

/lH
!:-<8

P:P<~
(/l

~
I

~
'-

~
I
'-

~
C

/)
C/l

H
ril

#
%3g

33
D

r
lr
l
N

M
O

IC
"l

f;l
gg

I
O

\r
i
.-tr

l
O

O
O

\
$

o
r
-
r
-
r
-
1
0

10
Et

l
P:

0
<
l'<

l''<
l''<

l'IO
IO

[;l
s

~f;l
'Il

P<1
ril

0
1

I
I

I
I

I

I
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
E

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
8

~

p.,r..
0
0
0
0
0

0
g°

+J
o
o
o
o
o

o
p.

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-
8

Pl
8

8
(l)r

l
r
l
n
r
l
r
l
r
l

%
33

e
299

A
IO

IO
IO

IO
IO

IO



0QJu
e

CQJ
QJ

,._
..0

QJ
E

E-
QJ

6
En,
....0...,5C

C:
:i:

V
,

QJ·-
-

QJ
.......,,

>-
t

.
00..

c
EQJ

E
IIV1f ...,Cn,C

.
o·.;:;,._n,
C

L
..

00rlutrl<
fl.

(
(
r

N
N

O
0

N
N

0
0

0
o

m
0

ai
3N

ID
..,,.m<fl.

0
0

0
0

....
0

,....-
,...

t
O

<
I;

<
I;

00

e
%$

<
I;

N....<
I;

0
0

0
0

oo
'

,...
3

,
6

0
0

s
8

co
•

-
0

t
ad

r--
N

....
.

<ll-
m11).

O
O

0
5

8
8

%
,
6

°
ID

en
I.II

I.II
N

.-4

%
/
¢

.....Cn,C
.

8
·u

0

E
r--

r--
ii

0
0

0
0

0
0

m
....,

lD
0g

0

0
0

0
n,

lD

0
0

0
a,

0
o

t
a

0
r--

r--
.....

.;
0

<fl.
C

L
,....-

,....-
<fl.

0
\D

co
R

m
L

t)
,....-

m
'

co
<

I;
l/l

ID
,._

rl
r
l

\D
<t

co
.....

l/l
m

:?i
<

/).
<fl.

r---
l/l

<
I;

<
I;

<
I;

<:f"
l/l

.....
.

<fl.
<

/).
<fl.o

73
.....V10u

0
0

0
0

0
\

l/l
coo

oi
<.O

l/l
<:t-

m
-(./).

<fl.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

,-.
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
r

0
0

,-.
0

0
0

"'
m

0
....
t

0
.;

,-.
0

0
r
i

<Ji
0

n
,..:

o
,....-o

,..:
-.;I:_

,..._-
m

o
ID

N
a,

l/l
N

....
l/l

N
t

,-....
N

t
.-4

O
....

,-.....
o

t
<fl.

0
........

<fl.
-(J).

-(J).
11).

r
l....

co
i

-(J).
m

-(J).
-(J).

r
u%

-
-(J).

11).
r

<fl.
11).

-(J).
11).

og
?'
N

N
-st

N
.-<

-(./).
<fl.

~l
l
,
[
5
le
i&

5g1?'
z

-+,-I
Q

)
t).()
o::J
coQ

)
uCro1.-
::JV
')
C£-+,-I

roQ
)

:crnN0N""OQ
J

&Q
J

.---.0I.-
a.. V
')

Q
)

Q
)

1.-
·--+,-IQ

)
a:::
-0CroV
')

Q
)

>-+,-I
u<
(



0
><

N
E-i

<1
1
'-0

rl
0

0
0

0
O

\O
...

l"IN
I0

\0
\0

\0
l"l

...
O

\\O
t'-

rl
0

M
r
t

...
m

O
\m

o
rl

O
o
o

O
.,

o
o

o
0

0
H

00
M

N
0

o
0
o
+
n
o
0

0
+

o
Lu)

m
rt

N
...

t'-
o
o

00
rl

\0
0

N
00

U1
N

E
rl

N
.,

lllN
m

\O
t'-

l"
lt'-

\O
M

IO
M

O
\o

N
II)

0
\,..

Ill
m

0
\
...

4
)

0
O

r--
00

rl
............-

...........................
'

E-i
n

I-
0

0
\0

1
"!0

\O
...

r
tO

<
'IIO

O
\N

r
t

rt
N

IO
~

II)
...

O
r
l
\O

M
rl

'<I'
N

?
.,

II)
,..

m
,n

r--
O
N

C
J\N

N
-

..-tO
\

m
t'-

rt
00

<
1
\0

ll')
"'

'<I'
rl

O
v

t'-
rt

('I
rt

<
'\N

r
l'<

I'
N

U1
rt

rt

rl
p

N
E-i

U
1U

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
\0

l"l
lO

M
o

\0
\0

0
\
0
\\0

o
t'-<

'\
rt...

\O
N
t'-N

Ill
«

@
o

u
)O

Lu)O
O
r

O
t-

\0
"
'"
'

0
r--

0
H

(D
.
,

\0
0

0
IO
N
r
t
O

O
\r
tt'-0

\t-
N

IO
r
t
0
\

O
o

o
rt

t'---r
l
O

N
r--r--~

'<
I'"
'

'<I'
N

U1
00

r--
N

£
DO

q
t

r--
rl

rt
0
\1"!

...
l"l

lllr
t
...
N

\O
Ill

<
'\

P
l'°

r
O

«+
3

0
\

m
\O

m
\O

r--O
O

M
\0
.,

'<I'"'
r--

.,
N

'
'

h
h
'

'
'
'
'
'
'
'

E-i
00

"
'

r--
t'-

N
...

m
l"
l

t'-M
lllm

lll
..

O
r
t

rt
'°

rt
g

rt
II)

II)
U1

rl
(D

rl
r
r
l

rn
)

rl
rl

?
'<I'

'<I'
......

N
O
....

...
O
\m
N
t-

A
g

(Y
\

g
(

I
O

U
10'1

1"'1
t'-N

...
rt

rt
...

N
rl

O
'I

rl
M

r
e

--l

rt

N

~
E-<

N
l"z1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

@
0
0
O

O
0
0

O
O
+

o
o
o

O
0
\

0
0
0

0
0

IO
O

\o
o

\O
o

o
N
r
t
o
o

U1
o
o

o
0

0
C

l
0

0
0

0
0
\
...

0
N

l"ll"l
...

00
4

U1
N

rl
rl

00
N

H
§

0
0

'"!
rt

l"lO
...

t'-
II)

(Y
I

v
m
m

N
00

\0
\0

'<I'
c.!IH

l:Q
00

(D
r--

t'-
00
4

(Y
\

m
0
\
rt

...
'°...

N
N

O
U

1
"'

p',
......

t'-
0
\

N
0

t'-
0
\

rt
rt

t'-
U1

00
U1

U1
'<I'

0
'°

rt
rt

t'-
rt

\O
N

rl
'<I'

'<I'
N

rt
rl

H:r:

0
0

0
O

0
0

0
O

rl
rl

0
0

0
0

O
O
0

U1
0

U1

N
,--i

rl

Al"z1A 0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

rl
rl

LO
M

N
\0

rl

U1
\0uO

rl
rl

U
1

\0
v

u
rl

rl

yU1rn
)

0r-
t0r-
)

IO
IO

<D
...

O
O

O
N

N
\O
N

U
1U

10'IO
IO
N

...-iO
'lr
t
r
l

rt

O
IO

ID
'<

l'O
O

O
N

0
0
\M

U
l'<

l'O
'IO

\O
N

r
lr
l
r
l
r
l

rt
rl

O
IO

O
O
'<

!'O
O

O
N

0
0
\M

L
O

'<
l'O

'IO
\O
N

r
tr
t
r
l
r
l

r
t

rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

o
o
o

,n
o
o

o
o

o
U1

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
O

O
L
O
O

O
O

O
O

U1

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

U
1
0
0

0
0

0
U1

H:r:l}
.3

.3
,

%
3

{},
«
o

j8
.

a
«e

g
.%

a
$

M
V
l

H
i

U
U
O

9
Ba

n
H

N

~

(!I
E-<

C
l

P
l~

tllP
'.

rl
M

~
tll:?

,U
p

:,C:p
t/lP

I
o

H
l"z10

1
p
',

l"zlH
O

I
U1

/o
v

a
w
e

a
«tz

l
o

¢
~

E-<:i:r,iu
l...:lo

3
ii.o

,-:i
..-,.:jl,i

P',
:Z:

U
H

tll
E-<U

A
3

E
l"z1

tll
tll

ass+
gsrs++g

:i:
:i:j:,.,

p',
;i::HI

6BB
8

8
o
a

H
O

O
e
tU

M
.t!tllO

U
"gg€;34

sa
g

~
(!I

H
P
l
U

~
tll

H

HA!i!
r
t'<

ll'-
N
r
l
N

l"'l'<
l'U

l\0
0'1

1
0
0
0

\0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
t'-t'-

r--
rl

LO
U1

U
1

U1
U1

LO
U1

N
...

'<
l''<

l'I.O
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
rl

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
O
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

lllr
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l
r
l

[<,
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

""
II)

II)
U

1
U1

U1
U1

U1
U1

U1
U1

U1
'1,

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
E-i

G
IIO

U
1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
U

1
M

A
r--t--

r--r--
r--r--r--r--r--r--r--

Z

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

l"l
P

l

0
0
0

0
0

t'-
0
\

~
P'i

w
e

g
E

z
,

n44·s#{
s

o
i,!

M
::,

U
U

M
P

'iA

A :i:u

~

E-<~
~

:::
t
a

o
o

j;3
IIIE-<Z

lll
P

l:C
r-tP

IH
U

H
I

I

~
Ill

P'i
ll:

U
J

P
M

U
E

iU
I

z
o

::im
j
z

g
gs
g

g
G

H
a

H
H
I

I
I

I
l'.!j

s
3£444

g
o

o
o
o

g
13,

1
U

U
U

U
Ill

?s
2

I m
8

;i
+
a

z
1
0

0
0

0
t'-

II)
II)

II)
rt

...
11)11)11)

rt
I

I
I

I
O
r
tr
tr
tr
t

lllr
tr
tr
tr
t

lr4
o
o
o
o

O
-"llllll,0

11)
ll,

I
I

I
I

E
l

a
2

M
z

C:
H

r
tO0rt

r
to

r
t

m
0

'°
rt

N

r
tO

r
t

m
0

'°
r

o
o
¢

o
O

IO
m

l"l
Ill

II)
rt

rt

o
o

,n
,..o

O
a
3
a
3
0
3

'°
rt

rt

0
\0

m
m

\O
r
t

O
O

O
l"l

,n
a
,,n

,..
\O
r
t

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
O

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
o
o

o
0

N
O

<
'\

0
0
0
0

0
l"lO

r
t

0
\

m
o

m
m

\O
r
t

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
c
o

o
0

0
0
0

1"1
0
0
0
0

0
l"lO

O
\

0
\

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

a
o

o
O

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
C

J
N

O
l"l

0
0
0
0

0
l"lO

r
t

0
\

s
#

}
?

.
k

sa
.%

s'
er¥

8
3%

E
o

5
E

H
,C

E
i

,C
;:s

E
il.!

I
U

M
u
u

,<
M
!:f

u
-i:

m
1
u
.i::s

I
H

Iii
:,,,:l

,ii:
~

H
Z

3g
Zoe
'
4

C!l::S
M

G
I

r'.j
U
l

ta
P

',O

~
~
1

~
m
t
g

E
i~H

i:
>

:re
H

8
ia
:i:

lllrz1
::1P

'iU
lslH

O
M

I
,C

IO
oo

0
a

4
p
g

g4
,#

2
a

%
E<E<Po>:m

aso
§

Poo
,o

..:iea
M
a

H
P,:

P
or
t

H
U

I
E

iN
U

H
u

,cm
H

U
E<

M
U

IU
lr
t

m
a

n
o

o
o5

"
g

zg
°
8
6

-
.

%
g
.

%us
o

oo
v
s4

okoog
"&6
!

5s6464%
,

3HA!i!
r
t,..\O

t'-
...
r
tN

l"
l...

lO
\O
t'-0

\o
1
0
0
0
0

N
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

m
r--r--r--r--...

,n
,n
,n
,o
,n
,n
,n
,n

,n
o
,..,..,..,..,n

,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n

,n
rt

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

"3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3

3
8

-"
IO

IO
IO

IO
IO
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n
,n

,n
ll,

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

E-i
GI

IO
IO

IO
IO

IO
IO

IO
IO

'!I.~
,n

IO
IO

Isl
A

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

r--
r--

~
r

<
r

r--
r--

r--
Z

rtII)
rt0 au3H...

0
0
0
0

t-
t'-

(
'IN

0
0

0
0

t'-
t'-

N
N

0
0

0
0

t'-
t'-

N
N

rt
I

0
\

...
r
tlll

,n
I

rt
rt

O
lll

Ir,
rt

0
4

o
'1,

I
E-i

GI
,n

P1
A

t'-
Z

0
0

0
0

rt
rt

t'-
t'

......

o
o

0
0

r
t
r
t

t'-
t'

......

o
o

0
0

rt
rt

t'-
t'

......$E-<mHz

E-<Im0
I

u
t'-

4zg°
I

i.\'l
m

A
~

M
H

43
3

~o
Pl

p,;
H

Pl
.a%
U

l
Ill

~
~

H
-..,_
0»

•·; r--lO...
I

rt
t'-

o
...

lr4
rt

0
o

ll,
I

E-i
GI

pa
A
t-

Z

LOrl

U1rl

U1rl

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

U1rl 0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0

o
o

o
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

II)
...,

00
N

N

8 3HE-<P
lH6C/1l"z1A

E-<P
l

l"z1A
~

~l"z1
E-i

ti)

fg
U

1
P
l

r--

2ti3



0
>t

N
E-<

.-1
N

I.C
l

00
\0

rl
('I)

O
C
D
O
O

CD
O

C
'IIO

('I)
0

0
"
'"
'
0

.-1
.-1

0
H

\0
0
\0

,.-1
0
\'<1'

a,
CD

CD
N

Ill
r-

t
-

r-
N

C'II
N

~
n
)
v

m
3

00
CD

r
l

rl
r-

rl
CD

ID
Ill

r1
II)

ID
- ---- .

E-<
0
\

N
r-

IIl
'<1'

l"l
II)

II)
II)

..,
a,

II)
CD

('I)
CJ

rl
I.Cl

N
.-1

.-1
N

r-
r
l

II)
0

.i:
rl

rl
('I

II)
r-

"'"'
C'II

N
N

C'II

rl
p-

N
E-<

N
N

I.C
lO
r
l
N

..,
ID

ID
0

.-1
rl

CD
II)

CD
rl

a,
"'

l-
f-

-
4

0
H

00
0
\1.CJ["-\O

\O
ID

O
\r
l

0
N

"'"'"'
l

('I)
('I)

..,
..,

a,
('I)

('I)
N ,

<
D
lO

'Q
lc;f111::3'M

r
l

rl
...

ID
CD

N
r
l
r
l

II)
v
l

ID
CD

<JI
ID

ID
-------

E-<
00
4

¢
d

e
t
)

ID
...

...
r-

r-
<JI

II)
II)

('I)
....

CJ
.-1

I.Cl
II)

ri
.-1

"'..,...
..,

a,
.i:

rl
rl

0
0
0

v
l

v
('I)

('I)

N3
E-<

N
e8

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

ID
N

ID
('I)

r-
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
II)

<JI
('I)

('I)
<JI

N
H

9
O

lO
O

O
O

O
II)

11)('11
r-

.-I
ID

Ill
ID

O
t!)

-- - -- -
H

Pl
)

4
L
u

LO
r

O
\0

..,
..,

ID
r
l

U
l

l"'-N
p

.-1
I.Cl

\0
.-1

rl
r
l

\0
\0
a
,

O
IO

0
rl

rl
O

C
'IIN

rl
<JI

---
""""

<"IN

0
0
0
0

0

""""
..,..,
C
D
U
l

o
r

v-
p

0
IO

""""
q
r

CD
II)

o
r

.-1
r-

0
U
lt

""""
""""
ID

C
D

r-o
O

lr
l

.-1
0r

m
l

0
0

0
0
0

0n
II)

(J\
"
"

I
-

n
O
g

«@

---

0
0

0
0
0

0
oII)

<JI
('I)

...
r-

('I)
Q
g---

0
0

0
0
0

0
CD

ID
CD

rt
CD

ID
<"Ir1

CD
<JI

r
l
r
l

•
h
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

o
o
o

O
0
0

0
0

r1
r1

.II)
II)

II)

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
r
l..,

II)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

""'O
O

O
lO

O
<JI

N
(T

JO
O

a
>

O
\

r-
N

\0
'<1'

N
.-1

.-1

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

""°O
O

O
lO

O
<JI

N
l"
lO

O
CX>O

\
r-

N
\0

'<1'
N

rl
.-1

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
1
1
)0

Ill

N
l"
ll.C

lin
r
-
01

CD
0

I.C
ll"l

rl
.-1

II)
r-

E»f;'!f:l
IflJ

I

s<3suu

%H~rere
?

•
E

flJ
z

4M...
i,11

I
0
0

0
>

11)1
1
)11)

3
2

%
%

O
IO

IO
U

l
r,,.

IO
N

N
N

0
0
0

0
,1.11

1
)1

1
)11)

E
,

I
I

g
a2

?

5H3re%Pt
I

?aUJ
Pl8...

I
I
0
0
0

0
t--1

1
)1

1
)11)

r
i..,

II)
II)

II)
N
I

I
I

I
0

r
l
rl

r
l

.-1
r,,.

IO
N

N
N

N
0

0
0
0

0
,I.Ill)

II)
11)11)

E
i

ll,1
I

I
I

g
a2

?

#zr,i
n

rl
(TJ

""'r
l

(TJ
O

'I
1
0
0
0
0
0

0
r--

r-
r--

in
II)

II)
o

a
a
t

u
Lu

Lu
N
I

I
I

I
I

I
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
in
N

N
N

N
N

N
0
0
0
0
0

0
-1-l

in
I.Cl

in
IIl

lO
in

I
I

I
I

I
I

Q)
II)

I.Cl
in

II)
in

II)
Q

r--r
-
r--r

-
r--r

-

3HE-<P
,

5U
l

a



o
O
t

O
t

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

.
o

£
r

\0
0

0
C'l1

0
.-I

lil
r
l

00

O
O

C
'110

C
'l1

0
0

._,-
0

._,-
0

0
00

0
00

,...._-
0

-
C'l1-

C'l1-
C'l1..

\0
0

C'l1
C'l1

C'l1
ry

u
r
l

Q
'\

0
0

00
0

00
O
O

lf
l
O

\O
0

0
r---

0
r
i,

o
o

o
._,.

0
r-,..

C'l1
\0

.-IN
r
t'lr

l
C

'I

r
L

u
I

r--
....

00
N
O
N

I.O..o
r--

"1
N

00
"
'
"
'
r

v
O

rl
O
O
O

M
l

m
o

._
,-,-....0

0
0
0
0

._,-
0

.-I
I.I)

.-IN
1.0

i
o
o
o

i
..

lfl..
O

r
o0
t
t

rv
«

._,-
0
0
0
0

rt'llf),..;

O
v

t
0

0
N

r--.
0

0
0

1
.0
N

0
0

N
o

o
r
l

O
N

._
,-

O
'\

C'l1
lfl

N
M

l
lfl

.-I..
N

..

$
8
8

8
8

3
._,-O

N
O
r
l
r
t'lC

'l1
,...._..ci

._,.-
r
i,-

00
._,.-

,...._..
0
0
r
l
0
0
N

ll)
r-,..m

C'l1
,.....

lf)
t

0....-

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
t

n
O

o
¢

R
o..

t
rv

O
lfl

r-,..
0

M
l

C
f\\O

r
lr
li

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

o
o

u
ci

1
.0
N

N
.
-
tr---0

0
._,-

Cf\
DO

r
,..;

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

ci
ci

lf)..
l/)..

u-i'
u-i'ci

Do
ry

r
t

««
N

._,-
Cf\

I.O
N

C'l1
N
'

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
cio

n..
U")

U")ci
Do

y
rv

«
t

N
O

._,-
Cf\

\0
N

C'l1
,..;

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

c
ic

iO
c

i
po

r
O
t

<t
I'-

N

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
l/)..

u-i'c
i

I'-
0

0

"'"'"'i

M
l

.-1
r-,..

N
._,.

lf)
lf)

I.O
ry

ry
ty
t

(lJ
Q

J
OJ

OJ
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
ro

ro
ro

ro
a.

a.
a..

a..

-0C
:

,z
-0C

:
"O

e£

...J
.....J

...J
...J

...J
...J

...J
...J

...J
...J

...J
u
.u

.L
L

U
:::U

::U:::
C

l
O

C
l

C
l

C
l

C
l

z
z

z
z

z
z

:5
3

3$3
3

3



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budgets for the
General, Civic Celebrations, St. Martin's Fair,

Donations, Grants, Solid Waste Collection, Sanitary
Sewer, Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement,
Street Improvement, Capital Improvement, Debt
Service, Development, Utility Development, TID 3,

TID 4, TID 5, TID 6, TID 7, TID 8, American Recovery
Act, Opioid Settlement Fund, and Internal Service
Funds and Establishing the Tax Levy and Other

Revenue for the City ofFranklin and Establishing the
Solid Waste Fee

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

Background: The Mayor's 2023 Recommended Budget was presented to the Common
Council on October 4, 2022 where Council moved to forward the Mayor's 2023 Recommended
Budget to the Finance Committee for its review. The Finance Committee held three meetings
to review the Recommended Budget and submitted its recommended changes to the
Common Council at their meeting of October 18, 2022 where Council moved to amend the
2023 Mayor's Recommended Budget for resources and expenditures by Fund and
appropriation unit as detailed in the attachments provided for the Public Hearing scheduled
for November 15, 2022.

The Public Hearing Notice for the 2023 Proposed Budget was communicated to Franklin
residents in the October 26, 2022 issue of the South Now. Additionally, the most recent City
Newsletter, which included an article on the recommended budget, was mailed to properties
in the City on September 29, 2022. A Public Hearing is being held on Tuesday, November 15,
2022, to receive feedback from residents. The Common Council is also scheduled to consider
adoption of the City of Franklin 2023 Annual Budget and related property tax levy on
November 15, 2022, in accordance with the Public Hearing Notice.

Discussion on the attached ordinance: The ordinance generally follows the same form as
approved in 2021 for the 2022 budget. All previously approved amendments to the Proposed
2023 Budget are included in the attached draft of the Ordinance.

If additional modifications are proposed, staff recommends that they occur in the following
format:



"Move to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-An Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budgets for the General, Civic Celebrations, St. Martin's Fair, Donations,
Grants, Solid Waste Collection, Sanitary Sewer, Capital Outlay, Equipment
Replacement, Street Improvement, Capital Improvement, Debt Service,
Development, Utility Development, TID 3, TID 4, TIO 5, TID 6, TID 7, TID 8,
American Recovery Act, Opioid SettlementFund, and Internal Service Funds and
Establishing the Tax Levy and Other Revenue for the City of Franklin and
establishing the Solid Waste Fee" with the corrections as presented and with the
following adjustments: [list the item(s) and amount(s) here], which adjustments
shall be incorporated into a final form of the ordinance and the Official Budget
Appropriation Units document, as determined by the Director of
Administration."

Please note that a similar format was recommended in recent years which allows the Finance
and Administration Directors to include any adjustments into a final, clean ordinance prior
to signatures.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-,"An Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the General, Civic Celebrations, St. Martin's Fair, Donations, Grants, Solid Waste
Collection, Sanitary Sewer, Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Street Improvement,
Capital Improvement, Debt Service, Development, Utility Development, TID 3, TID 4, TID 5,
TID 6, TID 7, TID 8, American Recovery Act, Opioid Settlement Fund, and Internal Service
Funds and Establishing the Tax Levy and Other Revenue for the City of Franklin and
Establishing the Solid Waste Fee," including and accepting the approved amendments and
technical corrections needed to update the proposed ordinance.

DOA-PS



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022----

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL,
CIVIC CELEBRATIONS, ST MARTIN'S FAIR, DONATIONS, GRANTS, SOLID WASTE

COLLECTION, SANITARY SEWER, CAPITAL OUTLAY, EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT,
STREET IMPROVEMENT, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT, DEBT SERVICE, DEVELOPMENT,

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT, TIO 3, TID 4, TID 5, TIO 6, TIO 7, TIO 8, AMERICAN RECOVERY
ACT, OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND, AND INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS AND

ESTABLISHING THE TAX LEVY AND OTHER REVENUE FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
AND ESTABLISHING THE SOLID WASTE FEE

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed and recommended changes accepted by the
Common Council on October 18, 2022, where desired, the 2023 Mayor's Recommended Budgets for
the General, Debt Service, TIO 3, TIO 4, TIO 5, TIO 6, TIO 7, TID 8, American Recovery Act, Opioid
Settlement Fund, Solid Waste Collection, Fire Grants, Police Grants, St Martin's Fair, Health Grants,
Donations, Civic Celebrations, Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Street Improvement, Capital
Improvement, Development, Utility Development, Sanitary Sewer, and Internal Service Funds for the
City of Franklin; and

WHEREAS, debt incurred and anticipated has 2023 required repayments for the Debt Service
Fund, TIO 3, TIO 5, TID 6, TID 7, TIO 8 and the Sanitary Sewer Funds; and

WHEREAS, the 2023 Proposed Budget includes property taxes of$22,929,400 that are levied
to support the 2023 Annual Budget with a resulting City tax rate of approximately $4.38 with the
Common Council concurring in the need and with the final rate being the mathematical result of
statutory property tax billing process, including, but not limited to, inclusion of the required state
adjustment for equalization; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes, in part, of accounting detail, transparency of governmental
actions and intent, efficiency of operations, and enhanced record keeping, the 2023 Proposed Budget
document and format provides greater detail and categorization of anticipated expenditures than
required by Wisconsin Statutes §65.90, which provides that "all proposed appropriations for each
department, activity and reserve account" shall be listed in the budget; and, therefore, expenditure
appropriation unit amounts are itemized and, entitled "Official Budget Appropriation Units," while the
remaining pages of the document provide supplemental information for informational purposes as
earlier noted; and

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing Notice of the 2023 Proposed Budget appeared in the official
City Newspaper, South Now, on October 26, 2022; and

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held by the Common Council on November 15, 2022,
regarding the 2023 Proposed Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:



Ord 2022
Page 2

Section 1 That the 2023 Expenditure Budgets, summarized herein, for the General Fund as
$31,431,075, for Debt Service $1,157,338, for TIO 3 $395,920, for TIO 4 $8,770,
forTID 5 $1,428,986, forTID 6 $568,273, forTID 7 $899,526, forTID 8 $2,883,870,
for American Recovery Fund $5,600, for Opioid Settlement Fund $0, for Solid Waste
$2,113,748, for Fire Grants $59,300, for Police Grants $120,360, for St Martin's Fair
$59,552, for Health Grants $391,996, for Donations $97,622, for Civic Celebrations
$121,157, for Capital Outlay $925,080, for Equipment Replacement $286,000, for
Street Improvement $1,590,000, for Capital Improvement $9,009,060, for
Development $969,325, for Utility Development $700,000, for Sanitary Sewer
$6,714,843 and for Internal Service $3,479,200 totaling $65,416,601 with
expenditure appropriation unit amounts as set forth on the tables entitled "Official
Budget Appropriation Units" (which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference) and as set forth by department, activity, and reserve account (all as
maintained by the City in a multiple-fund accounting structure) are adopted as the
annual expenditure budgets for the City of Franklin for fiscal year 2023.

Section 2 The Sanitary Sewer Fund includes 2023 capitalized assets of $125,000 and debt
service of$1,855,198, with revenues of$5,884,796 and expenditures of $6,714,843.

Section 3 Debt Service payments of $1,157,338 in the Debt Service Fund, $395,920 in TID 3,
$1,420,476 in TIO 5, $544,803 in TIO 6, $127,056 in TIO 7, $76,100 in TIO 8, and
$1,855,198 in the Sanitary Sewer fund, totaling $5,576,891, are adopted as annual
required payments for those respective funds for fiscal year 2023.

Section 4 That the 2023 property taxes used to support the General Fund of $20,455,400, the
Library Fund of $1,374,000, the Capital Outlay Fund of $0, and the Debt Service
Fund of $1,100,000 for City purposes, totaling $22,929,400, are levied and adopted
as the annual property tax levies for fiscal year 2023 with a resulting City tax rate of
approximately $4.39 per thousand assessed value with the final rate being the
mathematical result of statutory property tax billing process, including, but not
limited to, inclusion of the required state adjustment for equalization.

Section 5 That the 2023 Revenue Budgets, other than non-TIO property taxes and debt
proceeds, for the General Fund of $8,475,675, for Debt Service $8,100, for TID 3
$0, for TID 4 $1,306,700, for TID 5 $1,432,600, for TID 6 $426,636, for TIO 7
$846,580, for TID 8 $225,456, for Opioid Settlement Fund $266,843, for American
Recovery Fund $17,500, for Solid Waste $2,084,600, for Fire Grants $59,300, for
Police Grants $120,360, for St. Martin's Fair $34,500, for Health Grants $723,683,
for Donations $18,000, for Civic Celebrations $133,300, for Capital Outlay
$953,363, for Equipment Replacement $286,000, for Street Improvement
$1,667,000, for Capital Improvement $1,214,500, for Utility Development $109,500,
for Development $1,190,000, for Sanitary Sewer $5,884,796, and for Internal Service
$3,045,900, totaling $30,530,892, are adopted as the annual revenue budgets for
other than property taxes for the City of Franklin for fiscal year 2023.

Section 6 That additional revenue of $6,300,000 in the form of new debt is required in 2023,
plus any debt not issued but budgeted in 2022.



Ord 2022
Page 3

Section 7 That transfers into the St. Martin's Fair Fund of$11,000, the Civic Celebrations Fund
of $13,000, the Capital Improvement Fund of $1,607,229, for a total of $1,631,229,
are adopted as the annual transfers in as contained in the budget for the City of
Franklin for fiscal year 2023.

Section 8 That transfers out of the General Fund totaling $24,000, of the American Rescue Plan
Fund totaling $0, of the Donations Fund totaling $0, of the Utility Development Fund
totaling $700,000, of the Development Fund totaling $969,325, for a total of
$1,693,325 for fiscal year 2023.

Section 9 That the 2023 Solid Waste Collection Fund fee is $139.60 for each property eligible
to receive the solid waste collection service.

Section 10 That the Capital Improvement Fund expenditure appropriation, excluding the
Contingency allocation, shall be administered as if adopted on a "per project" basis,
and unless otherwise requiring a statutorily-executed budget modification, a
modification of the appropriation's administrative allocation between or to projects
is subject to authorization by at least a two-thirds majority of the Common Council
in the form of a budget modification, which, as an internal administrative process,
does not initiate publication requirements.

Section 11 That the single expenditure appropriation for "Contingency" within the General Fund
shall be administered for City purposes as if adopted as distinct appropriations for
$2,500,000 "Restricted" and $125,000 "Unrestricted" contingency budgets as shown
within the "Unclassified, Contingency, and Anticipated Under Spending" budget
detail, with "Restricted" contingency appropriations not authorized for direct
expenditure and requiring a budget modification approved by two-thirds of the
Common Council, interpreted consistent with statutes, moving the appropriation to
"Unrestricted" contingency or another valid appropriation unit prior to or in
conjunction with any spending authorization.

Section 12 That the Capital Outlay Fund expenditure appropriation shall be administered as if
adopted on the department/division basis, (except the Information Services
Department shall also include all planned computer and computer-related
expenditures distributed and assigned, in whole or in part and for accounting
purposes, to various other departments), and unless otherwise requiring a statutorily
executed budget modification, a modification of the appropriation's administrative
allocation between departments and changes, valued in excess of $5,000, in the
departmental list of capital items or quantity of items to be purchased are subject to
authorization by the Common Council.

Section 13 That the Grant Funds appropriation units shall be segregated into Health (Health
Department) and Other (all other Departments), with each having a single
appropriation unit comprising their respective Personnel Services; Other Services,
Supplies, etc.; and Capital Outlay expenditures.

Section 14 That the Finance Department and Director of Administration shall cause to be
published and made available a "City of Franklin 2023 Annual Budget" document



Ord 2022-
Page 4

that 1) incorporates the proposed budget as presented in the public hearing notice,
including any additional changes as provided for herein, 2) incorporates the
necessary and corresponding changes to the budget document text and tables as
initially set forth in the Mayor's Recommended Budget document, 3) removes
supplemental pages from the preliminary document that were incorporated for
review, and 4) incorporates the 2023 Annual Budgets of the Library Fund, the
Auxiliary Library Fund, the Tourism Commission Fund, and the Water Utility Fund
as adopted by their respective boards.

Section 15 The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of law
to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full
force and effect.

Introduced at a meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 15th day of
November, 2022 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 15th day
of November, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



C:0il.,6'
a:NN0N-0£-0a.
::)i".:'
"'EE::,

C
f)

-0C:.,EE0lil0::

cf!.cf.cf.
;f!.

O
lN

r-,...t
T"""

T"""
T"""

co
r-

'r-

0
0
0

,-.....0

3
8
8

%
8

O
O
O
N

0

8
8
3

8

a
o
0

;;;:'0
0

N
O

O
0

V
...r
M

<O
CO

<
O
M

N
(")

D
:s

<D
<O

M
<D
M
N

O
co

.,,£
en

a
co

N
C

O
lO

t-,..
m

co
O
t

<0-
......-

t
-

0
0

0
)

ffilO
O

O
N

<O
V

<
O

lO
N

O
l

c.om
m
N

r-,..
<0

9
3
8

8
±

,......
,....

co
<O

a
m

M
(X

)
N
M3

LO
m

0»[
r

lO
<

.O
N

O
M

O
0
0

T
"""0

V
N

O
r

O
O

m
M
o

,-...o
lO

L
O

O
>

C
'\IT"""

LO
"11:tM

O
C

O
N.i

o
0

o
c
t
-
1
-

m
c
o

r-,..."11:too
,-...

L
O

O
O

I.O
C

O
N

t-,.
r-,...<

0
N

lO
N

,-
t---,....

co
(0

L
OC

O
N
O
M

CO
0
0

T
"""0

V
N

O
r

e
o

m
M
O

t-,.0
lO

lO
O

)C
'\IT"""

t-,.
-.::tM

O
C

O
......i

o
u:i

N
,q-

<O
M

,...._-
r--,

m
w

,-...v
c
o

N
1.0

0
0

L
O

CO
N

r-,...t---
<O

M
LO

N
T"""

N
.+

-
Do

o

"'-t'O
l

T"""U
')O

l
o

o
o

N
O

T"""O
O

cocov
m

1.0
0

<
0
0

V
M

r-,...C
O
N

m
C

OO
V

O
v
N

,-.....,...:co
o

N
O

-.;;t..;t
M

f
f
i
M

C
,,1.0

O
l

N
O

O"q"
ffiC

\IO
lC

O
O

N
C

.O
N

t.
o

,...._~

m
M

IJ)
(!)

(X
)

co
<D

m
M
N

?fl.cf.'#.
'if.

'if.
cf!.

1.0V
V

U
')N

m
D

N
g

O

0
0

lO
O

t
lO

l
O
t
n
O
O

l
O
O
V

m
O
l
O
C
0
0
0

"r"0
M
N
m
O
l
O
C
O
O
V

,-.....
O
N
m
U
>
O
C
O
C
O
N
l
O
C
O
<
O
V
l
O
l
O
N
m

N
«
i
M

co
co

'r"
C'>v

N
o

...,.-'r"
co

N
,-...-1.0-

"r"
N
N
N

'r"
0
o

t
¢
3
4
N

M
O
>

N
...-"r"

N
M

"r""r"
I.OM
.,..:M

O
O
l
O
O
O
C
O
l
O
l
O
l
O
l
O
O
O
l
O
O

CIOM
O
l
O
C
O
O
O
M
O
M
N
m
O
l
O
C
O
O
<
D
O

O
N
m
U
>
O

"r"<
O
N
l
O
C
O
U
>
V
l
O
l
O
l
O
M

o
e

co
co
o
o

@
y
o
¢

o
j

co
r
l

y
y
r

o
9
t

¢
4

M
)

)
r-

g
)
r

r-
fr-
j

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

r-,...
O
l
O
O
O
O
O
O
l
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
M

r-,...r-,...m
c
o
m

"r"l
O
M
M
C
O
M
C
O
M
l
O
O

l
O

m
m
m
N

"'l:t"l;f"C
O
m

r-,...'r"'r"m
,-...N
m

r-,...
N

"r"
N

"r"
m
~

""II"
M
N

CO
N
N

N
V

N
-r-"r"

N
M

"r""r"
I.O

N
r

O
l
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
l
O
O
O
O
M

0
"11:tO
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
M
O
O
O
O
M

O
V
N
l
O

r-,...o
~

r-,...o
o

C
O
M
O
O
l
O
m

N
.

o
c
o

o
f

co
coi

i
co

o
o
¢

co
"r"C\l"r"N

"r""'l:tC
O
N
M
N
M
M
l
O

r-,...□
"r"

M
~

"r"
N
M

"r""r"
r,...r-,...
.,..:M

82
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
3
8
8
g

3
o

_"'l:t_N
lO

,-...
a

_~
_,-...

o
a

co
o
o

o
o

egg
3

2
8

%38
8
8
g

g
M
~

'r"
N
M

'r"
'r"

CO
<O

r
)

o
t0i

nO
O

cou,l
Oi'.oi'.o0

1.01.0□
cov

m
m
o
o

m
m

M
N

O
>
O

O
O

'l"""O
M

N
..-,-....T"""M

T"""N
l
O
l
O
C
O
O
C
O

...rl
O
M

C
O

r-
¢
"
u
r

u
uo

¢
co

M
o
p

co
e
r

g
e

e
e

0
po

tu
)
)

re
{
]

"#-#
--;f!.#

-"#.cf!.'#
"#-#

-"#-#
-'#-#

-#
-"#-'if!.

O
<
O
O
>
M

'
V
r
-
0
>

'1'"""<
0
0
0
<
D
l
O
'
V
0

'1'"""0
>

o·
g
?
g
t
3
r
g
9

O
g
g

°
I

I
I

t-,.
N

'¢
M

O
lO

\,
r

-.:-M
O

<
O
O

'llO
o
,,
-
Q

N
f'-,,r

-
lO

<
O

<
O
N

<
'>

'V
'V

U
)
"
¢

..-
M

O
O

C
O

N
M

t-,..
a
j

....,_
r-,...<

0
lO

O
N

0
>

M
t-,..0

0
...-

'V
O

>
'V

f'--
lO

O
,O

N
O

>
lO

T
"""(

"
)

<r-C
\l'V

T
""T

"""(X
)

V
M

O
>

O
>
..-

-
r
-
M

O
<D

O
llO

O
>
r
-
O

N
l
'-

T
""lO

<D
<O

N
M

V
'V

C
.O
'V
r

M
m

co
N

M
r,...

m
r-:r--:m

lD
o

N
ID

M
r-,:-«>

..-
V

O
l'V

t
-
lO

O
>
O

N
O

>
lO

T"""M
T""C

\l'V
r-..-co

N
C

lOU
>
M

M
t-,..<

D
lO

m
m

r-,...
O

>N
Q

JT"""M
'V

lO
r-...

r-,..C
\IM

V
V

N
<

O
r

...-r,,...T"""
r
-M

lO
a
jt-,..-O

O
O

O
O

O
><

D
«
i

O
N

O
>

T"""'V
O

>U
>lO

'V
O

V
T
"""C

\I
T
""

r
-
M

,-
M

M
T""..-r-,...

(O
T
"""T

"""T
"""O

>
r,...o

m
N
O

M
CX>O

>
'V

N
M

O
-c

-
T

""
'V

O
lO

V
M

N
N

V
<
D
V

M
N
O

M
co

N
-

eiN
.u

«
o

coo
f

..-
V

O
'V

M
V

M
<O

N
O

r
-

N
M

N
M

V
T"""C

'\1
0oi

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

lO
O

U
)

$8
8
8
9
8
8
8
5

8
+

o
co

o
i

o
o

o
o
,

?
li>

tD
U

>
O

r--.T
"""lO

M
N

lO
T

'"
V

lO
O

O
>
N

.q
-
U

lM
N

..-
CW

,
O

-
N

G
>

N
rDN

o
O

O
o

lO
S

o
o

,-....<0
0
0
0
0
N
O

lO
O
M

<O
0

O
r

M
3

O
f

0
0

C"')(O
M

r'f
M

lO
N

O
>
u
i
"'¢

N
lO
-

'V
<O

M
lO

<O
N

U>
l
l
)
-

T"""
-

-

"#-'#-cf.cf!.#
-"#-#

-"#-#
-"#

cf.
cf!.#

#
-cf!.#

"#-cf!.'#.
cf!.#

-#-
<O

M
M

N
N

a
>

'l"""
......

0
T"""

lO
O

O
M

C
:O

O
>
N

'V
<D

0
"
¢
N

V
0

O
0
0
M

0
3

O
0

O
M
t
t

r-
¢

v
r
-

r-

,.N
CO

N
U

oN
0u.C

1-
uu

N
z

(!)
o

u
0

"
a
°

<
Ill

(.Jw
,

a
N

0::
o

O
N

>-£

.I!!i::::iC.21ii·;::C
.

gC
.

C
.

<
(Q)C
l

't:J:lcciii·.:;:E0

N
r-,...N

m
O
U
>
U
>
O
C
O
O
(
O
<
O
"r"U

>
V

"r"M
o

r,...v
c
o
M
m
m
c
o
m

c
o
m
M

'r"M
C
O
N
N

0
0
0
r

0
r-

u
r-

Lu
O

0
9

0
4

S
M

-l
o»o

N
.¢

u
»

cou
n
t.o

co
¢

co
lO

C\l"r"N
"r"fflN

M
M
N
O

l
O

r-,...N
t

r-
4

r-
r

t
0

~
N

8&
3
5
!

3
N

O
>

L
OC

O
LO

V
<D

m
L

Or
-
:m

m
I.O

,q-
a

N
M

m
'q'°T"""

L
Or-,...C

O
0

,-.....
T"""

<0
LO

r-,...,......
(0

0
lO

r
-
r
-
0

M
T"""

O
<O

T"""
0

,...._-r
m

co..-
,..

N
~

T"""
M

T"""
m

N
N

M
M

N
N

N
N

0
0
0

0

a.a.a.0.
Q)

Q)
Q)

Q)
'O

'O
U

-C

.E
.E

9
g

(I)
U

)
U

)
U

)
(/)

f-- ~
~
~
~

~
f--f--

f--
f--

::.Q
.NMMNN0N0~~



C:
05.,o"
0::NN0N"O.,ro"OQ

.
::J>"'EE::,
(/)
"OC:.,EE0u.,0::e0>

,

"'::.MN0N"O.,"' ·s;.,0::'63en
"O::,
0MN0~CJ0::J0-.;uC:"' C:u::~_
J

0>M0co511.

o
o
o

o
o

o
o

o
o

...,.
o

o
_

1'd'
~

t!
g

en..
'<

tM
N

~
T

""
......-

~
--

N

o
o

S
o

0
0
0
0

0
m_coC">

1'd'
M

CO
("')

-
N

N
U

1
,.._

u
)

st

ss
£
$
¢

v
g

e
s

';-

a
o

M
M

0
0

ggo
g

"'
r--

0
,

C
:

z8

0
CO

M
N

0
(0

(0
(0

t
0

co
~

0
N

.

O
N
M
M

0
(0

O
r

r--
,._

co
"'

en
a

N
N

"'"'
'°·

(0
r

~
r--

r-
lO

O
o

co

'#.0a0

0
0

0
\

0
o

o
o

0
0

.....
O

~
~

ri"
0

..
N

..-
0

N
,-..

LOs

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
3yN

..-
...-

~
!:i

o
a

0
0

'
0

0
...

..,
N

MN<'i

00
'
Or!i

0
0

0
0

0
0

$
«
-

0
0
0
0

0
0

}
r-

0
0

0
0
0
0

}
r

0
0

0
0

0
0
)
r

O
lO

L
O

M
O

M
Q

l
lO

N
r-,..r-,..o

r-,..-v
C

O
N

O
<

O
lO

T
""C

\I
o

G
o
o

coco
r-,..O

C
X

JQ
llO

("')
T

""
y
r

r
DO

0
lO

lO
'V

O
'V

m
lO

C
\lr-,..Q

)
Q

Q
)
lO

Q
)
C

\1
0

l
0
l
0
0

T
""

o»
o
o

N
o
t
f

t---O
«
>

C
O

U
)
-.:tC

\I
("')

T""
'V

T""
<O

t0
r-

r-,..o
o
o

r-,..
-.:t

O>
<"'>

0
lO

lO
Q

)
o

o
o
m

..-
m

r-,..m
ci'N

N
r
i

CD
......

~
Q

)
r-,..ll)

(O
("')

O
lO

M
'V

T
""lO

o
m
m
o
o
o
m

a
,r,..U

>
O

lO
lO

O
«
>

t,...V
-
r
-
O

>
O

U
>

ao
co

N
.e

iN
r
-

co
0

O>
0

0
lO

<O
<O

lO
<O

..-
..-

r-,..

5;@
?

@
°

s
e

g
s

;
se

a
s?....

'$."#.'$."#-"#-"#-#.
cf!.#.

r
M

r,...C
O

T"""M
<O

0
0

V
N

O
t-

-CX>T
""a>

0
0

,-
I

T
"'"

I

0
0
0

0>
0
0
0

"'1:f
0
0
0

CO
j

y
¢

r-
0

4
«-r

'<
t

("
)O

P
')N

C"">O
M

C
O

<">
0

M
T"'"

.,.:
N

O
>

....,:-
0
)
N

T
""

lO
~...-

0
0

0
-r

O
O
O
N

'I'""
0

T"'"
0

O
lm

m
co

,..._
T"'"

m
....M

0
0
0

0>
0
0

O
"C

t
N
O

N
-.:t

C">N
I.O

v
0

N
N

CO
r

¢
a

m
m

......
co

co
r--

r-
M
M

M
M

7m
m

_
N
N

N
N

m
m

.......
N

N
0»o»
..,"'
N

N

'$."#-
"$"##

.'$.
m

m
,-...o

U
>LO

-
r

o
i

o
'

·+
,

0
CO

co
!
j

o
o

:;:;
'°"N

("')0
0
0

(")
..-U

)Q
U

>
U

)
<
D
O

>
U

>
V

O
-

.,..:,..._
m

..-
0

t
0

0>
..,

<D

c:oo
o
o

co
O

lO
O

lO
lO

N
m

\C
l

"l;f-
U

)
U

)
,...._

,..._
lO

T
""

T
"'"

CO
V

T"'"
M

<D
r

t--

O
o
o
o

O
lO

O
O

lO
O

U
)

lO
lO

N
r!

0
0

lO
C'"'l

O
t0

r--..m
N

O
lO

lO
,..:,-...M

o
C

l()
"
'r--

e
0

0


T"""o
T"""m

a
,

lO
T"'"

N
<r-O

N
N

i
N

.f
r

0
M

U
l

'<
t

O>
M

r
'<

t

0
lO

O
0

0
lO

00
t

0
0

lO
0

\I)
V

CO
V

t--
M

N
M

t--
N

...:...-

O
O

O
lO

0
lO

O
<O

N
O

O
l'q"

,..:
,..:

<O
<O

N
CX>

CD
'<

t
r

t--
i

¢

U
)Q
N
O

<D
r-

r
N.

O
U

l
cor-

U
lO
N
O

40
O

...:ro
O

U
l

eoo

0
0

O
U

l
M

M
....

C
l()

"
'

O>
eoeo

..,..,
N

'<
t

<
O
M

r


O
N

eo
t

lO
O

0
0

1
.0

C
O

N
lO

a
r-,..m

lO
"lif

O
O

>
N

g
r
z

cf!."#.'#
-#

.'#.'#.
'cf!."$.'#

"#-#.
T
"'"(O

M
O

C
X

l"'it
lO

t-,..0
"
¢

0>
uoo

o
i

9
o
o

o

C
O
O

CO
N

O
>
r

M
.
y

O
¢
i

N.
O

«-
(0

CX)
....

-
i

o:>
N

0
N
M

<O
0

........

"'"'..,
(0

0
(0

"'
O>

....
«-

u

(0
r--

"'
o

u
O

a
no

u
5
f

o
0

r--
r-

<D
O>

"
'

7
ct

0
M
M

ro
'<

t
N

N
O
M

v
i

..,..,

cf."#
~

a
m

N
C
N
N

r--
<D

0
"
'

"'"'
N

ro
...."'
N
N

N
O

>g

....C/)
N

ftl
N

CJ
o

g
N

011.

uw
M

Q
:

N
Q

:
o

O
N

>-<:.

~

0w
M

Q
:

V
~

t
N

0..
wC

J!!·c:::,C0~·;:C
.

gC
.

C
.

<
(aiC
l

"O:::l
Illcu·;:;ii=0

5
-

"O
C:

C
-=

:::l
L

.
C:
-

f!
f?

u..
Q

)

-
C

0
Q

)

95

....
<D

L
O
N

LO
r

"'
,.,;

N
<D

0
(0

£
.

t--
U

l
N

(0
C

l()
"
'

(X
)

....
M

o
o»
o

0
O>

0
<D

CD
M

CJzffi>-
95-;r:
CJ

CJ
Z


W
;r:

-.::tO
O

>
O

M
lO

o
M

.
¢

M
l

tD
U

>
ll>

C
O

U
>
O

9
M
IN

.$
a

t---r-
m

m
m

<">
T"""

M
C

D
T

"'"

·
,

t

<D
<

D
<

O
N

CXJ
0

0
...,._

(X
)

CO
lO

N
N

'V
a>

o
o

o
t

o
t
o

O
0

r-
p

a>m
co

co
..,..,
i.......
N

N

r-,...
lO

N
T

""
O>

C
0

(X
J

,..._
r

0O
r

u
o

co
CXl

C
O
NM

-.:tlO
O

>
C

\l<
O

C
D

r-,..
<O

V
O

(O
T

""r-,..Q
l

lO
<

O
C

\I
C

\I
O

>
T

""M
03

u
t

u
r-

M
«

lO
O

>
lO

'V
<"'>

,-._
<"'>

M
'<

t
U

l

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
o

«
o
t

..-
T""

lO
r-,...

M
M

"C

o
o

-
o
o

%
N

N
O

("')
·c

o
o

o
o

{

$
£

2
Et

,
°
s

g
N

U)w0:::
::,I-CzwD..
><ULenwu0:::
:::i
0enw0:::
1-wz

8
8
8
g

......
N

r--..□
-0

2
53
8
6

T
""

M
N

T
""

0
m

......
......-en_....N

::.a.NMMNN03



0
3

3
2

8
es

2ggs
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
w

'1'"""0
0

("
)
0
,

m
(")

("')
N

'l'"""N
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
..,

0::
M

c
o
v
v

c
i

lO
t

s@
o
o

G
uou

»
G
o
o

0
a
,
O

,c--t-,...N
V

r,,...r,,...-
c
o

lO
O

N
P

'>
V

0
O

-
'I'"""

M
M

V
O
!
_
c
o

co¢
r
r

(")
'l'"""'l'"""'I'"""

r

"'>-
~
-

,q-
'I'"""

lO
l")
t
o
r

o
t
o
o

<:;;

U
1
0

N
0

("
)
0

N
O

lC
O

lO
lO

V
O

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

~

0
t---

0
r---

O
U

>
0

r,..t-,..('"')""'"
t-,..lO

O
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

'1'"""0
0

C
"'l0>

O
>
O

l("
)

C
"')('"')(O

N
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
w

o
t
t

u
O

r--<
O

r,,...i.n
..;f

lO
m

o
O
o

m
lllu

io
O

m
..,

ct
+
S


)
M

.
4

('"')
N

lO
«>

t-,..
lO

t-,..
t-,..r-,..'l'"""C

O
lO

O
N

("')
V

O
l

'I'"""
M

C"'>
V

0
y
r

00
9

r
r

M
-
-
-

·.
"'

0.
c
o
¢

r
ui

e
j

v
r
o
t

o
e

w
N

..,
r

0

o
o

..-cocoo
r-,..C

O
(O

(X
)t-,..M

O
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

t,
O

<
O

C
D

O
O

«
>

O
m

m
lO

<
O
N

M
O

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
C

O
N

M
O

O
O

>
«
>

"Q'"'l'"""lO
CW

'>N
M

<O
lO

O
O

U
>
l
0
0

l
0
0

'1'"""

"'"'
C.O

C
O

'Q
"

C
O
O

-r-
i

r-o
to

o
o

U
)

C
D

M
-r=

u
i

r,,...
V

O
>

<O

"'
u

0
0

'1'"""(
0

0
)

("')
-r--

r
-
-
r
-
U

>
N

lO
-r-

T
""U

>
r-,..o

r-,..lO
m

V
M

0
e

N
T

""'Q
"
O

lO
ID

O
lO

T"""U
>
'V

r--.T
""

..,..,
t-,..(V

)N
N

'<t

"'
0

co
,...:

C"')
U

)
1D

l'i"
S

N
.«

-
¢

co
eo

"'
LL.

N
~

r
N

r

C%Q)e'Cl.
NN0N'Oe-g_::Ji".:'"'EE:,(f)
'OCQ)EE£a:::!!!0fii'::.30N'OQ)
.!!l>£"' 'O:,OJI")
N~D00::J5C"' Cu::::;0>"' 0(X

)
r::t:LL.

lO
O

O
M

N
V

«>
O>

-r
a>

r-
l

O
O

N
m

-.;t
CD

O
CD

M
V

V
N

N
c
o
m

M
-r=

lO
r,,...-
v

O
>

c
o

T
""(O

r-,..0
,-....lO

O
>
V

M
M

M
r,...("')

N
N

VN

lO
O

O
M

N
V

«
>

O
>

'I'"""
«
>
T

-
V

N
<

O
V

O
>
N

O
>

V
U
>
O
U
>
M
V
V
N
N

<O
fD

M
-r=

1
0

r-,..
V

a
>

U
>

'l'"""(O
r-,..O

t-,..1
0
0
)

-.;;J'("')
M

M
r,...M

N
N

VN

"#-'#
"#

'#
'#

"#-"#.'#-'#
M

O
>
M

T
"',-....N

M
r

O
<O

M
<

O
lO

a
>

O
>

O
>

O
>

M
'Y

'9
"i'1''9

9
9

?
'9

O
O

>
V

P
'>

-.;tt-,..N
O

N
V

O
<"'>

C
O

O
>

0
t-,..

M
(")

(")
t-,..

<O
t-

e
N.

o
coo

«
r

U>
P'>

T""
r-,..

<O
t9

M
r
)

00
%

m
o

.,..:.
-
u
,a

:,l")
..,

r

"#"#
'#-'#."#-"#

M
O

>
V

("
)
V

lO
N

O
U

'>
C

O
<

O
C

'?
I

'1
";-

'?

r
t

r
-

a
¢

4
0
t

l
0

0
□
-

fl'>
t
-
O

N
U

)
r-:

C
"')r-:co

«>
«>

._
V

O
>

u
>
V

O
>
lO

U
>

lO
O

J
-
r
-
(X

)a'.>
-.;tM

G
o
-
-
u
o
e

M
r

r

cf!.cf!.#
-*

"cf!."$.
U

1
M

<
D
m

l
0

r,..
N
o
m
o

co
o

"?
C?";-

I

J!!"i:=>r::.5?~C.gC
.

C
.

<
(iii0
)

"C:::sIlliii·c:;:E0

-r
V

"V
v
o
e

'V
C

J>-
r
<

O
N

ID
C

O
M

N
r-,..v

m
O»

co
t

e
S
¢

a
o
a

,-...(")
r-,..

CD
'I'""",-....

N
«>

N
M

.-
o

bu
e

N
~

..-
O

M
C

O
-
r
-
C

O
O

>
-.;tN

U
>

<
O

lO
O

r-,..
r-,..c

o
m

N
r---

C
O

lO
G
o

o
0

M
.

r-
0

0
r

O
O

>
U

>
O

t-,..<
O

lO
N.o
-
o

"'

V
-.;tM

O
>lO

m
...-a

>
M

L
O
O

-
r
-
M

O
>
V

C
0

0
>

'1'"""
4

3
M

.
l

¢
-

¢
0

9
O

lM
<

O
O

C
D

-r=
c
»
c
i
o

lO
'I'"""

t-,..<
O

C
O

<
O

<
O

C"'l
N

'I'"""
LO

N

§
•

"C
r::

r::
:::

:::s
ue

Es
u.

a,
-

r::
0

a,
2

0
<3



ti!-'$.
0
0

0
0

o
in

o
0
0

0
0

U
)"
'

<00::,

0
0
0

0
~

~
v
i

s
°g¢

g
~

M
M

~

#0,:
#00g

88
~

~
0
0

0
0

age
•

0
0

0
8

g
"'

;;,.00

0
<O

0
U

)
0

U
)

~~CJ>
-

O
0o

0
<'>

0
<'>

U
)
...

<'>Nr
-

0
0
0

0
8
8

%
&

s
4

8
8
9

g
O
N

O
N

g
co!

0
0

f
}
r

•><o
U

)
U

)

~~

0
0
0

~
w;:

.;

lil..._

0
0

0
0

U
)

U
)

O
N

N
v

coo
i

0
0

0
U

)
~

.
.

v
o

g

0
0

0
8
9

g
r
i

000!
0g8 gg

g
0

0
0

g
\{)

:g°

88
g

0
0

0

s
£

0g£
0
0

0
0

U
)

U
)

O
N

N
N

C">
in°

0~"'

0
<
')

<
')

8
8

8
0
(D

CO
g2

G

0
<'>

8
8

0
<O

<O
<
')

..,._

uw0::
::i

0::
O

Q
N

>-<(::;;

BC.!!!,il
8

"1J
~

~
C

m
C

~
<D

m
LL

-o"ffi
.£

C
a
l

±:±
zL

)
C

C

s
±%

~03



2>..E§U
)

];!" EE8""'

e00g60

8°
0

0
ci

d
0

0
"" gci0

O
r-

0
0

0
CO

40
O

gs

"" 0ciNN

"" a

0
0
O
N

0
O>

o
u

O>"'

0
"
'"
'

"
'

O>
N

a
,
"'

"'
...

a
,
...

O>
0

0
N_

<O
0)

0
"
'"
'

"'
a
,

N
a
,
"'

""
...

a
,
...

0>
0

0
N_

co
(J)

o
a

...
"'

...
O>

<X>
...
O>"
(

0O>...ae

000"' 000"'g"'N
g...3 g..."'"'

05l..;;;;_ 000"'~ 000,,;%

g
g
g

0
r
-
8

"
'

...
0

~
ri

o
aGS

IO
II>

O>
O

>
"'

!'.!.

O>
O>

0
...

O>

3
5

0
u

o
v

O
u

0
D0

00
y

mO
r

8
3

IO
«i

a
)N

O> 0
0
O
N

0
O>

O
u

O>"'

0...v

i;ico,.;"' Ni00...-;f,"'y

0wO
N

:Z
8g..:l

se0(!)N
QC0

0
0

0
5l

gg
v

"'

00...-;f,"'y

0...y
O

r


O
N

O
u

u9
¢
0

a>
N

m

g
g

0
r

O

8
"'

...o
~

ri

g..."'"'

g"' y

U
)

U
)

0
II)

L
O
N

o
m

r,...
N

O
.,.._

i
o

lO
ID

IO
<O

U
>

0
O

>

N
O
D

"'"'"'
0

00
O

0
«i

<O
~

lO
a:>

3co

.li..
C

J)
O
c5

0
C

+
l

cu
..

C
g

u:
.D

~
0

a,
.c

@
56

.,_¥±
y83

uw
,

a
t

0

89$



C0u"eQ
_

N8N"" 1ij-g_::::,

88
8

N
«>

<O

·g

;J!
-;J!

-;J!
-;J!

«>
(0

(0
U
)

u
i
i

o
¢O

CO
N

aSN
r
-~

-;J!0
0

-;J!-;J!-;J!;J!-,J!
-;J!

-;J!
0
0

("
)T

""0
0

~
o
o

..--f'io
N

o
g
9
'g

#
-;ft.

0
0

0
0

0
ci

ggo
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

U
J

U
J

<O
co

NN02l

1lffi~
"iii

C
C!lJ!l
-g~
~

-g
C

>
~

C
U

.
·c

rn
C

C
·rnu
a,

C
a,w

~
fg~

co
~

...
..-

0i
p-)

±
Se

§
§

~
8
8

5
<O

CO
N

g
g

:e
0

0
U

J
o
o

U
JU

J
"
'

CO
<0_

N

;;:<OgN

O
M

0
0

0
CD

o
.f

CJ>
U

J
N

N

O
<'J

0
0

O
CD

o
t

a,
U

J
N

N

8
8
8
3
8

0
0
0
0
0

t
o

S
e

u
O
U
)U

),-...
u
r

(
g

0
O

O
C

'>O
O

O
O

U
>
O

0
0
0
0
0

t
u

io
C'>

U
l

"
<

O
.
,

...
o
r

y

o
t

0
0

U
J
N

N
..,.-

~
coN

0000:g;;;

g
12

"'.,
0

~
.;8

0
"'

lo
0

~
.;i

g.,N

N
O

r
O

CJ>O
j
r-

¢
0»

U
J

CD
U

J

w:::;0u;?;en
>

::::,
z
o

--
I

"'z
ti:5
W

---'
ocW
w
U

>--en
z

5

0
<O

o
9

~
U

J
«
ic
i

U
J
...
"'

0
<O

O
<'J

~
U

J

$e"'

0
0

0
0

U
J

CD
M

.
y

"'I;;

;!:
~
~

u
,

<O
N

i
u

oi
;;

:
3
e

u
,

<O
N

M
~

U
l
oi

;
:;;:

6
0

N
"

.,
«>m
0

.,

"--
0

<O
0

o
r-

O
O

N
.,_

o
a
i

r
00

....,

0
0

0
8
8

5
ri

...
;!:;j:

w:::;00;?;en
>

D
9°"zti:5
W

---'
o
:W
w
U

>--en
?;

~

gg
g

e9
O

0
m
D
N

a,
a,

~

0
0
0

0
0
0

a,
0

a,
N
O
N

go
+

0
0
0

0
0
0

m
o

a,
N
O
N

~
O

l'"""

8
8
8

"'0
a,

a
iO

N
0

0
r
-

Cw
N
C

N
z

8g<

-±v>0-• .«3N-8g0

J!l·c::,C0:;::,..·;:a.ea.a.<tC
l

'tl::,
III.;-;:;ii:0



C0s"eQ
_

gj0N"Cgga.
:::,i:'..E£enzzE8d»0
:

r
-

3
3

a
,

N
0
)

<O
4
r

(
')(

')

l'lc
a

g
o

<UC
00

..
"C

'iii
C

00
::,

"C
U

.
C

C
l

::,
C

U
.o

C
C

OlU
a,

C
00

UJ

0
0

(')
(D

0
r

.,'"
'"..,
N

st
(
')(

')

~C.."iiiIQ"CC::,
u.,!:d0C

l
C...cu± 0(
')

No"'

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

(D
<O

o
o

O
0
0
0

r
-

O
0

<O
O

("}
r--

0
N

0
0
)

(D
~

;i;8
;i;

00
O

03
<O

O
(D

O
o

"'"'
N
N

000
0
0
0

u
O

N
O0

600g!'.!.

8
e
8
g
g

..,-
<

00
0

0
CJ)

..--u
io

o
O
J

.--
'q

"
t'"

)U
)

...."'

0
Q

)U
)Q

q
)

g
3
8

m
O>

L
O
O

,..._-
00

V
00

C"'>U
l

N
r--u
,

:g
g

g
g
g

V
l'--

O
0
0

U'>
..--

U
)
0
0

N
("}

V
(")

0
N

~
r-,.
N

8
8

g
g

'V
l'-0

0
0

U
)

..--
It)

0
0

g
o
«
o
gN

0000N

00..,m"'8..,m.,

ffil co..,mfil..uC..GIQOC::,
IL.5..D

I
C.:!!uljz

11'-11'-
;F.

8
!

ci
,....;N

@
s

@gzg

3
3

g
a>

T
""

N
m

(D
..,

"
'

~
;;;~

88
8

3
..--

N
..,-

00

3
3
g

"'"'ei

80e000"'le 000"'le80.,.... 0000.,....

000g 11'-"' m0'I'"'8ei;;; g0;;; 800..,

08.,g
..J

N
~
N
-

&
0 Clw

N
e,

N
z

8g<



C0G..sn.~0Nu....g::,2>roE§en2..EE8.."'

;!';J!.r
-

0
0

o
<ri
o
m
,·

m
0

0
>

M
.
r

00
g

r
)

fl>
CD

(!)

3
8
9

N
.,,,._

9
0

e
0
r

O
m

~
~

m
<0

CO
..,

"
'0

,._
0

<Xl
ri

l()
ai

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

"'"'
<O

<O
.....:

§i8
8
§
§
gii

a
i<
0cn
o
o
v

U
)U

}O
,Q

(
"
)("

)
p
.
t
t
r

N
,...:T"""

O
O

O
O

O
U

>
O

8
8
8
8

%
8

a:,w
u
fo

o
v

(O
U
)
O
,Q

("
)
("

)
......

l'-,.,q
-..-

}
r

0
0
0

0
0
0

"""...
N

N
U

)
"'"'...
"'"'"'
v CO

CO
0

<
')

<
')0

0
U

)
CO

(0
0

«i
N

CD
CO

'°
v

<
')

0w
N

0
N

z
8g<

(

5NU·£

J!l·c:::,C:0.,..'§.eC
.

C
.

<
($"' "C::,

m.;;·u!i:0

«±N-8g0

0
0
0

0
0
0

"'"'""
"'"'"'
"'"'""
"'"'"'
..;

88
8

0
0

0

#;s
ID

8
838%%

"lit
d
l
V
O

U
)o

iU
>

,..._
U
)

'II"'"
U
)
U
)
0

,...._
(D

(',,IC
l).

-
..-

...:.--T"""

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

"'"'
<O

<O
.......

S;
~
~

0
r

00
"
'

00
r

~
:gSf

"'.,,,._

'°'°
N

00
+

a
,v

M
<Om

m·
r

g
t

...
~

co
<

')



e000";"

'if.
0o0";"

';ft
-;F.

~
........

"'
$$

3

C0"fiOJ
e(l_aN"Cl
OJ
1ii"Cl
0
.

::,c:-mEE::,
(J)

"Cl
COJEE%0::I!!0>

,
m::;;(')

8N~>OJ

~en"Cl::,
IX

)
(')

8ewC
)

0::,#CroCu:

Q
<
l)

r--N
<D

N
a,

a,
M

r--

a,
<D

0
0

r--N
<D

<D
a,

a,
(')

a,
r

0

a,
"'

Q
<
l)

V
0

<D
N

a,
0

a,
N

a,
N

"
'

<D

0
<

{)
N

O
>

<D
N

m
o

0a,
N

"
'

<D

8sgro
C

m
m

-c,ro
c
m

~
-g

en
::,

C
LL

c
en

C
C

s
@
g

z
row

N
<

l)
O

"'
~

r-
CJ>

r--
<D

i5z"'
a,

a
a

lO
a

8
8
5
8

8

88
8

8883
o

#
8
9
2
8

U
)

.-
C
'")..--.-

M
<O

N
<'l

sco 8"' N 000"' N

mNillN 0000m.;;N$N 00....m8N

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

a
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

a
\O

O
O

ID
lllO

U
lO

C
")

G
a

eo«-
M
f
0

yo
e

..--m
r
-
o

t----lO
C
J)V

M
C
')

cr>M
,..._C

">C
\IN

VN

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

a
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

a
d
o

O
U

)lO
IIJ

O
O

lO
U

l
,..__,-....-

a)
lO

O
N

C")V
V

,.....,.....
(")..--..--..---

,.....

IX
)IX

)

"'"'
M

.

IX
)

IX
)

U
>O

....~
noo
O
>
N

V
Or

.,uC..
g

2
sa

C
ffl

C
"

m
m

LL
"U

aJ
,5

C
a
l

•
?

C
l

O
J

:,

i
£

0
C
C

s
?

z
m

w

0 0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

,0
a

o
o

0
0

CJ>
t::.t::.

!!?..

-'<
N
Z
N


O
C

)
N

jx0 Cw
N
C

N
z

&gd

N
lQ

N
U

~
t!!0u.

.-±t>N
~

t)w
M

0::
v

0
g
o~:i:



O
o

o
O

O
0

0
D

3
£

6DDD(')

:!.

O
o

O
o

O
D
O

O
D
D

lt)
-

U
)

,-..
"'

2
--

#.
'#

'#
0
0

<'>
-
d

00
'9

C\Iill

0
0

"#-08
"#-08

#.'#.
a

ro
a

,-..
Q

(
')

";"'

';f.';f.
';f.

'$.
"$.

O
V

M
O

O
o

m
v

c
ilJ1

g
Y
9
8

en
co,-....

~
(')~

ro
0
0

ai
m
a

"
'

0
)

(')
<'>

N
i

oi

S
±
g

~
..

C\I
,-....

e
8:z

»
f
]
r

}

..uC.,
g

$
e

r
G

c
::,

m
"'

u..
'"CJro

.!:
C

CO
..

::,u
DI

LL
C

C
a
,

::,
"'

C
U

.
.c

C
O
l

0
C

C

?g
z

m
w

a
o

6
g

g
g

gs
£

C\I
N
~

g
g
8

"'
"'"'

5
+

8
N

N
U

l
C\I

N
!:,.

35o::O
::,_,
±-czn.
w

<(
n.u
6

a8$N 8aisNDDDw;:.:l'.lO
>

O
D
O

O
D
O

O
D
O

"
'

0
)

(')
rw O
D
O

O
D
O

O
D
O

o
w
o

..,
..,

N O
D
O

O
D
O

O
D
O

o
fO

o
c'!i

..,

O
D
O

0
0
0

0
0
0

2
0

g
wO
D
O

O
D
D

O
D
O

"'"'
w

~
O

>
w

"'"'
O>

D
,___..,
..,a;
D
O

o
,-..

M
W

O
>

CO
N

D
N

N
U

l
«r

a
00

N
C

OD
m
o

g
'C

l'IIfl
C

ffl
C

::,
m

.,
za,
~

-g
C

l
C

l::,

±
£

%
0

C
C

s
gg

z
m

w

g8
s

<O
D

5
33

0
(')

a
O

>
r

0
0

"'"' w
80
)

gDD0
)

..,,!;

D
D

a>
D

D
a>

O
<O

N
i

0
oi

~
(')

M
O
O
D

<D
O

O
0

M
O
O
D

a:io
l{)

a
r

O
(')

N
,-..

(")0
0
0

ID
o
o

a
1

(")
0
0

0
CO

O
lO

0
r

O
)

N
,-..

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

M
O

O
lO

O
C"')(")

lO
C\I

0
n

o
gg

"

8I")

30
0
0
0
0

+8
8
8
8
8

C"'>M
f.O
N
O

lO
N
~

V

ti
y

7
N

U
~

f:!0LLCw
N
C

N
z

G
<(_,

sz0C
)

N
0::0



"$.'if!,"#.
<

D
O
0

00
ci

ci
O..,.~

<Oo
o
<O

C'l
O

C
'l

CD
O

CD
C

l)
0

C
l)

3
8
8

g
o
g

o
O
o
o
o

0
0
0

0
0
0

lO
O

lO
a
,
0

-
(')

§0~

#-0g

C0%i5'
a:N8N~5Q

.
::,c'.'mEE:,
Cl)
uC.,EE§0::I!!0>

,
m5"'8Nu:Ji;;.,0::'alO

l
u:,al(')

8ewCJ0::,al$C"'.sLL:::;0>(')
0co

;1;;1;
0
ri

"'"'
a
,
0

;1;;1;
O

C
'l

"'"'
O

>O

O g
iiif
r

00

<O m
&Jb
O

!!!,

g
;1;;1;

0,-..
(
')0

,-..
C

l)
<O

o
r
-

g
g

g
0

0
0

s
g
s~

5l;1;
a
,

~
t--

N
O

O
t

o
O

a
,

o
a

0
g

8
8

23
%3

en
»

e
j

o
r-

35a:
0

::,
-I

+-czQ
.

uuQ.u1,j

0005 000,-.:g §,-.:g° ill"'

a
,
0

a
,

(D
C

l)
a
,

"'"'"'
«
r

t--N
O

C
'l

0
0
0

gg
g

0
U

l
N

r
O

"!_N

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

g
g

N
N

0
0
0

0
0
0

9
o

uO
..,..,,,__
coo
"!_N

..uC..3
ss
8

C
m

C
;::,

al
m

u..
um

.!:
c

m
•

?
g

D
I

D
I

::,

is:
U

C
C

gg
z

a
lW

ti
~
~

co
,-.

..,.
£

avgol«
~

N
M

0
a
,

"'
0

N
CO

0
N

CO

g
b

gf
"'

a
,

"'
m

...._
N

0
0
)

a,
('11

,r
-

O
N

CD
<">0

a
C\I

co
T""oo

8
5

g
¥

(
f
)
O
)
-

(
D
O
)

CD
,-.

r
D

0
"'..,.
0
0M

.
0

oO

:g
lg'

"'
a

o
8

a?
8

8
CD

O
U

l

"'
"'

8
;1;

0
0

o
i

.,,..,.
~..,.<D

0
0

0
<O

o
o

•
0

a
,

"''°
r

00aS

N
O

..,
u

O
¢

C
l)
0

a
,

¢
o
«

0..,..,,
N

a
,

a
,

~

C
'lO

M
r-

O
a
,

N
O

l'--
0
0

«
..,..,.~
~

cor--N

§lz 00"'"N 00"' ..,.N0g!

t---
O

M
0

M
O
O
O
>
N

r-
O

O
N

M
g

"' 0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

a
l.O

M
g 0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
lO

C"f

9 0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
l()

M
CO

ffi
r-,..

C\I
co

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

U
>

N
"
'

l'-
M

t--
00

0

8
8
8

0
0

U
>

N
"'

l'-
M

t--
00

O

-I

5N


O
Cl

N
0:0 5NU&e0LLCw

N
C

N
z

8gt uw
M

II:
N

II:
8g:::



c:-roEE:,
(J)
,:,sEE8Q

)
0::e0>

,
ro:;;(')

8N,:,ill·;;Q
)

%C
l

,:,:,
m"'82w(.')
0::,m$CroCu::::;§;3a
)

::tlL:;;Q
._

ooN~25

M
N

.,,..,.
,._o
$
.

(
D
"
'

m
m

"'co

3sgmemmo
@

c
c

41
~
~

C
l

C
l

:,

±
£:

0
C

C
·o,u
a,

C
m
w

m
i"

I&i
fD

,._
.,;

(D
"
'

m
a,

V
~

'#.
'#.

'#.
"
'M

0
U)<O

U
}

CX?"'i"
N

o
m
a
)

(D
(')

o

g3°
o

..
lO

M
£!1;8!!!.

O
N

0
ID

O
M

"'co
N

MMgg

0
0

("')0
0
0

0
<V'J

g
9
8
8
8

8
..-t.O

O
C">-0

0
C"'lO

N
m

r-,..
C\I

N
N

0
r

j
«-

u

O
O

C
"'lO

O
O

O
<V'J

8
8
8
8
8

8
..-LO

o
C'"'io

C"')
0

N
(J)

r-,..
N

N
a:>

828888°
£

35
2
8
5
$

>
t.00

0
0
0
..-..--

V
N

..-,....
co

83
8

±
2
°

8
0

1.0
M

..-
V

N
r-,..

%$g
$

3
r

4
t9

...J<
N
Z
N
-

O
(.')

N
j20 Cw

N
C

N
z

8g< 1ii
N

<U
N

0
~
fif



$ci
5

£¢
?
g

"i

wuZ
w

5u.,z
m'.5
O

<
t

z
m

=>o
u.

z

"'" zu."" zz6
6

w
z
m
w

o
m
m

m
m
N
N

£$

o
m
m

m
m
N
N

m
m

q

"ii'
"""0

"ii'
0

0
0
0

3
333

wuZ
w

'.So.,z2z
m

=>o
"-z
e
,::,
z

u.

""' zz(90
w
z
m
w

O
O

O
IO

O
C
O
N

N
O

O
T""

gs¢"

o
o
.
-m

o
o

r,..N
N
o
a
m

pi8s

wuZ
w

$
0

«
z

a
$

0
,(

z
m

=>o
"-z

"'" zu.""' z
z

6
0

w
z
m
w

0
0
0
0

m
m

u
i

ltl
i

;l
..,a:

~
$

N
0:

8
g"

i
"

::,
;l

3
C

~

0
0

w
i

3
"'"'

ill
"
'~

I-
N

0.
Q

.
w

e
C

Q
.

Q
.

<
(

0

~
'.;

0

en
si

g
~

ga,
£

GIE0
N

~
!u

N
Z

(0

33
gs&l!im

.-?"



fil
s

C
Z
w

~
1o

tL
;:j~

d
g3=>o
-

2
e,::,
z
a

zozzC>O
w
z

m
w

0
0
0

0
0
0

00
u9

r9

xa5

§
g

..,;
on

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
t
0

oia,ai
"'"'~

0
0

0
0

M
M

mm 0
0

0
0

M
M

mm0
0

g
g

ui
r,q

0
0

0
0

0
0
i

v
i

.,

G
N
O
N

zawu3¥m
:'j

O
<

z
m

=>o
-

2
(!)::,
z
a

z
e,

z
z

(90
a6

m
6!5

•
i

"s
°

N
N
N

5
$

±
$£

£
q
..-f_j

..-
l"iN

r.i

888
oiv
ic
i

u,g
.....

oi

'sag
a,"'llic

i
wg

..-
oi

wuZ
w

:'ju
.,z
m

:'j
o

.,:
z
m

=>o
-
2

(!)::,
z
a

zz
z

(90
a

mm;

gM
_

gM
_

0gm§_m

'E
"O

2±#
>

..
"O«

<O
"O

5±?e
0w

M
0:

rv
t

~~"
-~

,.
C:,C

~

0
0

w
~

M
0:

....~~
·c

....
a.

w
£

C

a." ~
~~

""-gID
~~

;;;~
ffi,-.

v
o
I

"'z
"'

8y
3.,..

~~~
~~~

«&0,-."
'0"



$±ON

I
3%inui

ifl"0:
w

::,t:
u

"
Z

w
i;i

'.5u.,z
..

m'.5
ti1

a
«

z
m

w
=>o

'5
::,

u.
z

0
z

C
l::>

i
~

z
u.

w
z

CJ
0:

z
z

I-
6
5

e
w

%
I-

z

O g
g%e

i30:e%
.

Z
'.50

"
s3

l
~~=>o
"-z
CJ::>
z

u.
zozz(96
w
z
m
w

v
o
e

3z

g
«g

0
0

m
m

v
v

0
0

m
m

i3&
s

C
Z

w

¥
~

-
~~

-
z
m

=>o
"-z
CJ::>
z

u.
2
o

z
z

(96
w
z

m
w



a
m

m
m

0
,...

O
N

0
.

D
lf'l

..,.·N
a
,..-·

N
t

Rmi

O
U

>
ID

O
O

lO
O

a,
O
O

N
O

O
N

O
lr"I

n
r
n
o

e
t--N

N
l"l

<
O
a
lO

t-
33
g

g
c
o

g
.-

Pi
N

wu3¥0O<ZC
II

=>o
"-z
CJ:>
z

u.
zozz(!)Q
w
z
m
w

0
g

g
gM

m
m

I::,

aa0.
!!l;1
tC

Z
II.

w
ses...O

W
....

z

§§
8

§E

555
±

~g
o

.....
~'9

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

M
O

q-
0

~
~

~
-

o
O

o
gg

g£i:f

5.2.
t~-8~
of

<(

"'
..,

C
"

0

;'l1=
of

<(irl
M

0:
N

0:
O

Q
N

►<(

-~
,.

C:::,C

~

CJ
0

w
·;

M
0:

,q
'fh

--
'C

N
0.

<l.
w

e
0

<l.
<l.
<s

-:;;
"' 'C

!H
3

·£
a,I!!E0

.ssag2s



c;:--c
,_

:::>
0

I
•-

-
,_

>
0.

raLL

"C.l!lC
.

0"C<(

°°
5
>

3°
C">

I'-
..-

lO
..-

O
..-

""<t
t-

..-
I

c
t)

O
J

I
I

3e0,...._
0

I

';I!.0IO....I

e
3°e

,...._
0

,...._
(0
0
0
0

.....
0

.....
I

..-
I

I

0
0
0

0
0
0

"<t
IO

0
)

-
o

oi .....

6IONo~

0
c:o

IO
0

N
,...._

i
cooIO....

o
o

6
0
0
0

9
N
l

..:-.i<D
€2

co

co0IO.....-........

C05(I)

€a_NN0N"O(I)

ro"O0..
:::i>C1l
EE:J(f)

"OC(I)EE0O(I)
0::e0>(1)

::::1:
(")
N0N"O(I)(J)
·s:(I)
0:::;:::(I)
O

l
"O:::J
co(")
N0ew('.)
0:::i
co6OCC1l
CU::

(")
,...._

0
)
0

CO
0

N-.oi
en

o
.....

0
)

M
N

(")
(")

(")
(")

C:O
lO

0
,...._

....
,...._

0
lO

co
oi

(")
,...._

(")
0
)

(0
0

N.
cot

0
)
0

.....
0
)

cocv

("
)("

)
(")

(")
C:O

lO
o

N-
....

,...._
0

lO
M
N

(")
(")

(")
(")

(0
c:o

r-..:-o
0
)

....
.....

0
coco

60CX)

<DCX)

:s 00MoM::!- 60MM
•

M::!-

Na,CD....CDMM Na,
(0

00(0co........3 00Nc,;......,.«3

0
........

..-N
M

..,...
IO

(0
,...._-,...._--.i
co

0
)

0
0
0

0
0
0

M
-

N
.

o
f

co
00

0
)

0
0
0

0
0
0

o
,-...,...._

o5
f

co
co

0
)

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
........

N-o
oi

lC
)

(0

0
0

0
0

IO
I

IO
,...._-

,...._-
lO

IO

0
0

0
0

lO_
I

IO
,...._

,...._
IO

IO

IO
M

]<ONo<'>IO.....
,...._oi

IO
o

&
·&

%
,...._-

N
,...._-

,...._
IO

<D
.....

.........

10
0

N

&
·%

N.
coiN

.
,...._

IO
(0

.....
.........

0
0
0

0
0
0

l
u
)
N

G
f


C:O
IO

N
..-(

')
co

0
0
0

0
0
0

1
0

I
O
I
O

o
f
o

C:O
IO

IO
.....

0
)

ci

0
0
0

0
0
0

I
N

_
I

IO
,...._

O
f

«
-

00
IO

N
-

co3

o
coco

G
o

IO
N

N
C

D
0
0

M
.

c0
co
t

«
i

G
o

o»o
i

N
0
0
M

C
D

,...._
0

u
)

..... N N
IO

:g_
I'3;o"<t
(0

oi N
IO

~
I'3;o..,.(0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

,...._-,...._-N
N

C:00
0

..-
IO

N 0
0
0

0
0
0

o_o_o_
..,.,...._o
"<t

C:O
IO

M
..-

IO
N 0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

-.i,...._-ci
'<I'

C:O
IO

C">
..-

IO
oi

......,.coc,;encoN° CDIO....GCD03 CDIt)
....uiCD0$ 00co 00en,.,,....,.0co 00en,.,,....,.0$

N
,...._

0
)

C:O
t
l

c:o
O

0
)

co
N-S

..-
IO

,...._
.....

....

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
IO

IO
N

-
oi

..-
IO

,...._

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
IO

IO
o

N
-o

i
..-

IO
,...._

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

oicoo
0

IO
CO

0
0
0

0
0
0

"<tO
"<t

oicoo
N

<D
C:O

0
0
0

0
0
0

"<tO
"<t

oicoo
N

<D
00

,...._
,...._

"<t
O

c:o
N

C
')

..-
(0

..-
00

0
)
0
)

I'-
0
)

f
o

o
i

co
CO

"<t
O

..-v
..-

,...._
& 0

M
-o

O
O

,...._
,...._

0
0

IO
N
O
>
"<tO

<
O

o
o

c
coleo

0
)

O
l

0
N

"<t..-
00

oi
oi

0
)

......
0
0

(
0

,...._
,...._

0
0

IO
V

O
»
t

O
O

i
o

cocoleo
O
)
<
O
N

O>
N

"<t
..-

C:O
ov

oi

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

o
o
o

o
l

,...._
"<tN
N

,...._
-

}
oi

oi

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

N
O

C
">
O

IO
CJ)IO

..:
IO

0
00

M
.

cO
O

t
00

N
N

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

C
N
O

C
">
O

IO
o

o
o

o
lo

t
cot-co-

o
> Q

)
N

"<t
00

i

-I<(z
8
6z0 Clw

N
C2

o
u

N
:iE<(

- 1/)N
raO

0
Cl)

5LL 0w
o

Dt
S


v
a.wCl

£C:
::::JC

:0:.:;co·;:a.0...a.a.
<(- Q

)
0
)

'O:::sm.!!!(.)

E0

....._
J
0>(")
0c:o.....:s:LL::::1:
a_'<I'
lONNN0£::!0.....- .....

85
8C1l
C

co
C1l

-oro
C

CO
?gO

l
:::J

C
LLo

C
C

5
5

(I)
C

co
w

II)Cl)::ICCl)>Cl)
a:::- Cl)z -;;;g::I
:!:
"CCCl)
C
.

Xw-
.l!lII)0(.)iii.e"CCl)
:iEEs0I-

ro
ro

=Q
)

Q
)

0
0

0
1-

II)

<((I).!!,!
:c

II)

s8
Cl)
:JCeCl)

a:::Es0I-

ro
<ii

=E
s

Q
)

(I)
0

0
0

1
-

(I)
(I)
>0C
.ev

ou
:::Je

E
E

:J
:::Ja.

EE
-o

._
._

C
a.

a_
(I)
0

(I)
Q

)
>-0

>-C
.

e
E

o
w

IO,...._az:::>u.wu3:::>enzLL-Iwen

"C
s:

§
•

LL
C

:
Q

)
32

(.)
eS

o
LL

C/J
....0

COC
:

~
...

·-
Q)

(..)
'E



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A 2 LOT AND 1 OUTLOT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF

THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A.

PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)
(AT 7832 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

MEETING
DATE

11/15/22

ITEM NUMBER

At the November 3, 2022 regular meeting, the Plan Commission adopted a motion to
recommend approval of this resolution conditionally approving a two lot and one outlot
certified survey map, being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin, more specifically, ofthe property located at 7832 West
Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9995-001.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- a resolution conditionally approving a two
lot and one outlot certified survey map, being all that part of the Southeast l /4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at
7832 WestDrexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9995-001,. (RICK J. PRZYBYLA
AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)

Department ofCrty Development MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 10-25-22]

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT AND 1 OUTLOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)
(AT 7832 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 7832
West Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9995-001, Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla, applicants; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick J. Przybyla
and Mary A. Przybyla, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicants, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to $15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFranklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 2

and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4. Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, successors and assigns, and any developer of
the Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla 2 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla and the 2 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map project for the property
located at 7832 West Drexel Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

6. Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements
for those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15- 4.0103.B.l.d, §15-
7.0201.H, etc.).

7. Accessory structures on Outlot 1 must be removed. §UDO-15-3.0801E prohibits
accessory structures on a lot without a primary structure.

8. The applicant must resolve all technical issues identified by Milwaukee County. Upon
receipt of the comments from the County, the City comments below may be revised
to reflect changes required by the County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners,
Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, be and the same is hereby rejected without final
approval and without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than
one of the above conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of
adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022---
Page 3

obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners, Rick J. Przybyla and
Mary A. Przybyla, with the Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day Of? 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item D.3.

Few CITY OF FRANKLIN mat
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of November 3, 2022
Certified Survey Map

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward this
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as
attached.
Property Owner: Rick Przybyla
Applicant: Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes LLC.
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 7832 W. Drexel Ave. I 792 9995 001
Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

District 2
Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes LLC.
R-6 Suburban Single Family Residence District
West: Residential zoned R-6 and FW Floodway
South: Residential zoned R-6
North: Residential zoned R-6 and FW Floodway
East: Residential zoned R-6
To permit a division ofthe existing parcel into two lots for
single family homes, and an outlot for future development.
Marion Eeks, AICP

APPLICANT'S REQUEST
The applicant requests approval ofa Certified Survey Map (CSM) to divide the existing parcel into
two lots for single family homes, and an outlot for future development.

The applicant has also requested a similar division of the neighboring lot located at 7726 W. Drexel
Ave. I 792 9997 000 which is being presented under separate cover (Item D.2). The outlots produced
by these divisions are intended to become part ofa future subdivision plat yet to be submitted for
rev1ew.

CHARACTER OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA
The subject property is a single-family lot with an existing home. The surrounding properties share the
same zoning and development characteristics. Due to the developed nature of this property, the UDO
does not require that the applicant produce a full Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) (§ l 5-
3 .0501.C). However, they must verify the presence or absence of any natural resources within the lot
produced. The applicant has provided a "letter ofno resource" to this effect for the proposed Lot 1.
Future development ofOutlot l will require a full NRPP and conservation easements for those natural
resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15- 4.0103.B.l.d, §15-7.0201.H, etc.). The applicant is
aware that disturbances to or removal ofwetlands or wetland buffer, impacts to floodplain, or to other
natural resources protected under this ordinance require a Natural Resource Special Exception (Table
15-4.0100). None are proposed for this land division.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION
The applicant requests approval ofa Certified Survey Map (CSM) to divide the existing parcel into
two lots fronting Drexel Ave., and an outlot to be set aside for future development.



The proposed CSM would produce two lots consistent with the requirements of the R-6 zoning. Lot 1
will be 15,284 square feet and Lot 2 will be 16,597 square feet. The proposed outlot will be 90,664
square feet. The outlot designation is necessary due to a number of factors: future division or
development will require street appropriate street frontage, as well as connection to public utilities.

The CSM also includes 13,351 square feet of area to be dedicated to the City of Franklin as right of
way. The front lot line and right of way will align with neighboring parcels as a result.

PROJECT ANALYSIS
Staff provided the applicant with staffcomments on October 4, 2022, which are attached. Items that
are not resolved or must be noted will be reflected in the Conditions of Approval in the Common
Council Resolution. Outstanding Planning review comments include:

1. Future development of Outlot I will require a full NRPP and conservation easements for those
natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15-4.0103.B.1.d, §15-7.0201.H, etc.).

2. Accessory structures on Outlot I must be removed. §UDO-15-3.0801E prohibits accessory
structures on a lot without a primary structure.

Other Department review comments are included in the memo. Outstanding review comments are as
follows:

Engineering Department
1. Must resolve all technical issues identified by Milwaukee County. Upon receipt of the comments

from the County, the City comments below may be revised to reflect changes required by the
County.

The CSM was reviewed by Engineering; staff recommends that a condition requiring any necessary
technical corrections be included.

Additional Department Comments - Police, Fire, Inspection

None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward this application
to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.

The resolution reflects the above proposed conditions of approval.

2



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 10-25-22}

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2LOT AND 1 OUTLOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN

THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)

(AT 7832 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 7832
West Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9995-001, Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla, applicants; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick J. Przybyla
and Mary A. Przybyla, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicants, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFranklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
Page 2

and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4. Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, successors and assigns, and any developer of
the Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla 2 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla and the 2 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map project for the property
located at 7832 West Drexel Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

6. Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements
for those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d, §15-
7.0201.H, etc.).

7. Accessory structures on Outlot 1 must be removed. §UDO-15-3.0801E prohibits
accessory structures on a lot without a primary structure.

8. The applicant must resolve all technical issues identified by Milwaukee County. Upon
receipt of the comments from the County, the City comments below may be revised
to reflect changes required by the County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners,
Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, be and the same is hereby rejected without final
approval and without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than
one of the above conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of
adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA - CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
Page 3

obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners, Rick J. Przybyla and
Mary A. Przybyla, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



7832 W. Drexel Ave.
TKN 792 9995 001

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feel A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor.
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and mayno/ be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



7832 W. Drexel Ave.
TKN 792 9995 001

5

T3aaa]

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date: October 5, 2022

To: Rick Przybyla

From: City Development Staff

RE: Staff Comments - Przybyla CSM- 7832 W. Drexel Ave.

Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the above application. Department
comments are as follows for the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick Przybyla and
date stamped by the City ofFranklin on September 2, 2022.

Department ofCity Development

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Requirements
The lot is zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District (UDO Section 15-
3.0207).

L. The proposed lots meet the minimum lot area, depth, and width requirements of
the zoning district.

2. Please depict the front yard setback from the proposed new front lot line, as well
as other setbacks (side and rear yard) for the proposed Parcel 1. The minimum
front yard is 30' - please refer to table 15-3 .0207 (attached) for other setback
information. 5 {au/ - see.e-

3. Include the length ofthe lot line between Parcels 1 and 2; it is not legible on the
draft provided.

Certified Survey Map (CSM)
Division 15-7 .0700: Certified Survey Map describes the required elements of a CSM:
,4. Please be aware that §15-7.0701: General Standards forCSMs, requires that the

standards ofPart 8: Improvements and Construction be met for all development
resulting from this CSM.

,5. Is any part of the property within the 75' shoreline buffer of Legend Creek? If
yes, $15-7.0702.B requires the buffer to be depicted on the CSM.

6. Note that the map date and date of any subsequent revisions must be shown on the
CSM (§15-7.0702.H)

7. Include the current zoning and zoning boundary lines of all parcels, lots or out/o°,)
proposed to be created by the Certified Survey Map ($15-7.0702.M). +s Haw»

8. Note that additional information may required by the City Planner, Plan
Commission, City Engineer, or Common Council, in accordance with $1 5-
7. 0702.R.

.,,,---- 9. Please include the area of the proposed Right of Way dedication in square feet.



Design Standards forLand Divisions

UDO Division 15-5.0100: Design Standards forLand Divisions governs the arrangement
ofand access to roads, right-of-way and other infrastructure, and the dimensions of lots
and easements.

10. Parcel 3 should be labeled as an Outlot. If this is not desired, the following
applies:

a. A full NRPP is needed (see Natural Resource Protection Plan, below).
b. Land Division Variance for street frontage: $15-5.0105.B.1 and $15v 5.0106.C require a minimum of60 feet frontage along a public street.

Parcel 3 does not meet this requirement; the outlot designation is required
for this reason. Future development of this lot will be required to meet
street frontage standards ofthe UDO.

11. Note that for Certified Survey Maps requiring the installation ofpublic
✓ improvements, the Subdividershall enter into a written contract ("Subdivider's

Agreement") prior to approval ofthe Certified Survey Map ($15-9.0309.F).

Natural Resource Protection Plan
Division 15-4.0100 governs the preservation ofnatural resources. All development in the
City ofFranklin shall comply with the natural resource protection standards set forth in
Table 15-4.0100, and be described by a Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) as
defined by Division 15-7.0200.

12. In the case that no protected resources exist on the proposed developable Parcels
V I and 2 with existing house to be razed, verification with a "letter ofno resource"

from an assured delineator is acceptable. Staffnotes than the applicant has
submitted a letter for this CSM and the related CSM at 7726 W. Drexel.

• 13. Development ofParcel 3 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements for
those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP($15-4.0103.B.1.d, $15
7.0201.H, etc.)

14. Per the requirements ofTable 15-4.0100, disturbances to or removal ofwetlands
v' or wetland buffer, impacts to floodplain, or to other natural resources protected

underthis ordinance require a Natural Resource Special Exception.so, /el /pees
e.ripe.

General Planning Comments

15. Accessory structures on parcel 3 must be removed. §UDO-15-3.0801Eprohibits
accessory structures on a lot without a primary structure.

16. The applicant may request, in writing, a delay ofthe review by Plan Commission
and Common Council to allow for a resolution to the design requirements and
other comments. o

2



Engineering Comments

✓ • Must resolve all techrncal issues identified by Milwaukee County. Upon receipt of
the comments from the County, the Crty comments below may be revised to
reflect changes reqmred by the County.

Milwaukee Countv

Milwaukee CountyRegister ofDeeds Comment Letter 1s attached.

3



REGISTER OF DEEDS

Milwaukee County
ISRAEL RAMON · Register of Deeds

September 16, 2022

City of Franklin
Attn: Marion Eeks,
Department of City Development
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

$75.00 Review Fee Paid

RE: Preliminary Review of Certified Survey Map {
Being a Part of SE¼, of SE¼ of Sec 5 -T9-R21, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wiscontn

Owners(s}: Creative Homes Inc.
Parcel No: 792-9995-001 -7832 W. Drexel Drive

I

Comment: All preliminary reviews require the CSM to be to scale and the correct size'. The current'jmap has overstrikes,
and the text is to small or not legible. The scale graphic is not 1-100 as noted. {

Comment: Verify all distances and bearings against the legal description on page3. Verify the N linis of parcel 3.
Distances of 205.40 stated in the legal does not match 204.39 on the diagram on page 1. Verify the total acreage of each
lot. The current Information is not legible.

Disclaimer: Milwaukee County is reviewing the Preliminary Plat for closure issues and to verify ownership/ Please refer to
Wisconsin State Stats 236 and the local municipalities ordinances for further questions. '

Sincerely,

Rosita Ross

Rosita Ross
Real Property Supervisor
Rosita.ross@milwaukeecountywi.gov
414-278-4047

\,

-\ CC: James Beaty/Horizon Land Development Services LLC

C 3 J R 7 O U 3 E , FOM' 1 0 3 · 2 0 1 NJRTH 9 T H STREET • +ILA3KEE WISC3'A 53232 • {4141272.4121· F A X ( 1 4 4 223-1257



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO - ------
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

Creative Homes, Inc.
9244 W. Grandview Ct.
Franklin, WI 53132

OWNER/SUBDIVIDER:

GRAPHIC SCALE
" = 100'

Outlot 1 to become part
of future development.

BEARING REFERENCE:

N

·k
BEARINGS REFERENCED TO WISCONSIN T
STATE PLANE COORD. SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE (NAD2T).g
WITHIN WHICH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SE 1/4 OF
SECTION 9, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IS ASSUMED
TO BEAR N88°35'23"W (PER SEWRPC CSSD. REVISED JAN 2016)

0 50 100 200

6""'

785.00'

CONG. MONU.
WI BRASS CAP
SECOR. SE 114
SEC. 9-5-21
N. 334,967.07
E. 2,533,309.51

R-6
OUTLOTA
CSM3410

o
t-

65ft. TO BE DEDICATED
FOR PUBLIC STREET

PURPOSES
AREA = 13,351s.f.

R-6

OUTLOT 1
AREA:
90,664s.f.

S88°35'

-,
.9+e$-]

7i $#) i
col LOT6 8~ Q__'zo
' nr ,wdmg, snol!$l. 8 4ht
Ql2, Lorz 1

-" 
---- ~ af" R-6ARCEL st:

.Q.SM,A542 "' PARCEL 1

I 7 AREA:
EXIST I 15,284s.f.
HSE L-----

{ ros.oo

J.E.QENll.
0 - INDICATES IRON PIPE 1" ¥ 18', 113 LBS./UN.FT. SET (1.3150.4.)

- 1" IRON PIPE FOUND (UNLESS NOTED)
Ii"'!- CONC. MONU. W/BRASS CAP FOUND
(R) - RECORDED AS

I
I
I

I

note: existing structures
on parcel 1, 2 & 3 to be razed 5' SAN. SEWER ESMT.

I DOC. #4834966
rear - 30ft CREATIVE HOMES INC. UNPLATTED LANDS
side - 10ft ----- "-" - 5' - - - - - -

other ordinances may 9ply see code !g] _N88"37'30"F_205."9_ s.=-=
/ - tr 'is [

OUTLOT2 fnil -- t- - --- - - T
- /" 25' SAN.

100 YR FLOOD SEWER ESMT.
ELEV: 747.00 DOC. #4835541

/ 2'ABV.100YR
/ FLOOD ELEV:

749.00

Existing Zoning R-6
Setbacks as shown
front -30ft

I

CONC.MONU. I
W/BRASSCAP __ _j_

swon.sEe or / {5
SEC. 9-5-21 W. DREXEL AVE. I I'°
N. 334,901.71 (R.0.W. VARIES) '--_;.i/~"':'...--------
E. 2,530,654.84 1870.65'- S88°35'23"W
!t s.LIE sEorR.sEc.9-5-21bumhowssurfs}

NBB035'23"E 2655.65'

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 1 OF 5



CONC. MONU.
W/BRASSCAP
SE COR. SE 1/4
SEC. 9-5-21
N. 334.967.07
E. 2,533,309.51

J

6,
762
'63

eo

CEL2
EA:
97s.f.

iu.i
(f)
::c
PARCEL1
CSM3410

_..:_-:-:. __ ,:...{
S88"35'23"W 785.00'

5' SAN, SEWER ESMT.
DOC. #4834966

UNPLATIEDLANDS

65ft. TO BE DEDICATED
FOR PUBLIC STREET

PURPOSES
AREA= 13,351s.f.

CREATIVE HOMES,J_NC.
- is373£ 205.39,2 r- '•

TOPOGRAPHIC DETAIL

200

j

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO -
------

\ -=,--'L,\Ee-
.!)

100 YR FLOO ;,:;<IN-JP.-- -------- ...
ELEV: 747.00 ~

%
8l 72•c>s"

>s..;,

sese. '

100

-

/
/

/
/

GRAPHIC SCALE
1· = 100'

BEARING REFERENCE:

ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

N

·k
BEARINGS REFERENCED TO WISCONSIN T
STATE PLANE COORD. SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE (NAD27).g
WITHIN WHICH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SE 1/4 OF
SECTION 9, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IS ASSUMED
TO BEAR N88"35'23"W (PER SEWRPC CSSD. REVISED JAN 2016)

0 50.-

/

other ordinances may7'Y see code

Outlet 1 to become part
of future development.

Existing Zoning R-6
Setbacks as shown
front -30ft
rear - 30ft
side - 10ft

CONC. MONU. __j_
W/BRASSCAP __
SW"COR. SE QTR.
SEC. 9-5-21 W. DREXEL AVE. .
N. 334,901.71 (R.O.W. VARIES) / - -
E. 2,§.30,654.84 1870.6.5' _

~ S. LINE SE QTR. SEC. 9-5-2:~1-~~~~~~::::........:...:..:.....f- _
N88°35'23"E 2655.65'

J..Eroi[)_
0 - INDICATES IRON PIPE 1" x 18", 1.13 LBS./LIN.FT . SET (1.3150.d,)
e - 1" IRON PIPE FOUND {UNLESS NOTED)
iia- CONC. MONU. W/BRASS CAP FOUND

(R) - RECORDED AS

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 2 OF 5

7 -



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO - _
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:
I hereby certify that by the direction of the Owner, I have surveyed, divided, and mapped the land shown and described

hereon, being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in
the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin , described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9; thence South 88°35'23" West along the south
line of said southeast 1/4 of Section 9, a distance of 785.00 feet to the point of beginning of the lands hereinfter described;
thence South 88°35'23" West, along the north line of West Drexel Ave., a distance of 205.40 feet to a point on the south line
of aforesaid southeast 1/4 section; thence North 00°15'02" West, a distance of 661.83 feet along the east line of CSM 4542,
and the east line of Tuckaway Brook, a subdivision plat recorded in the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office on Reel
No. 1763, Image No. 954, to a point; thence North 88°37'30" East, a distance of 205.39 feet to a found 1" iron pipe being the
northwest corner of Outlot A of CSM 3410; thence South 00°15'02" East along the west line of said CSM 3410, a distance of
661.70 feet to the place of beginning. Said Lands containing 135,897 s.f. (3.1198 AC.), more or less of land. Excepting
therefrom the South 65 feet which is dedicated for public street purposes. Area Dedicated is

I further certify that I have fully complied with the provisions of section 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City of
Franklin Ordinances in surveying, dividing, and mapping and that this Certified Survey Map is a true and correct
representation of all exterior boundaries and the division of said land.

Dated this 24th day of January, 2022.
REVISED:October 14, 2022

{I ¢
mi! is.l.

James R. Beaty, RLS 1834

PREPARED BY/ SURVEYOR:
HORIZON LAND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, LLC
W313 S2562 PENNY LANE
WALES, WISCONSIN 53183
1-262-349-1575
jamieb@horizonlanddevelopmentservices.com

Floodplain limits shown per FEMA NFIP FIRM Map No. 55079C0144E,
with an effective date of Sept 26, 2008.

VICINITY MAP
(n.t.s.)

s I

I-·'ilL_ t:J
S/E 1/4 SECTION 9

T. 5N., R. 21E.

I
1THIS

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 3 OF 5



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO------
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

CORPORATE OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
Creative Homes, Inc., a limited liability company duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State
of Wisconsin, as owner, does hereby certify that said corporation caused the land described on this plat to be surveyed,
divided, mapped and dedicated as represented on this plat. Creative Homes, Inc., does further certify that this map is
required to be submitted to the following for approval or objection:

City of Franklin

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Creative Homes, Inc., has caused these presents to be signed by Rick Przybyla, its
Managing Member, at Franklin Wisconsin, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed

on this'day of2022.

In the presence of:
Creative Homes, Inc.

Rick Przybyla, President name, Title

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me this day of 2022, Rick Przybyla, of the above named
Creative Homes, Inc., to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument, and to me known to be
such President of said corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as
the deed of said corporation, by its authority.

(Notary Seal)
Notary Public, , Wisconsin

My commission expires _

CONSENT OF CORPORATE MORTGAGEE
Tri City National Bank, a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

Wisconsin, mortgagee of the above described land, does hereby consent to the surveying, dividing, mapping and dedication
of the land described on this map, and does hereby consent to the above certificate of Creative Homes Inc., owner.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Tri City National Bank, has caused these presents to be signed by Bruce C. Elliot, its
Executive Vice President, at Hales Comers, Wisconsin, on this dayof 2022.
In the presence of:

Tri City National Bank
Corporate Name

Bruce C. Elliot, Executive Vice President Date

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
MILWAUKEE COUNTY) SS
Personally came before me this day of,2022, Bruce C. Elliot, Executive vice President

of the above named corporation, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing Instrument, and to me known to
be such Executive Vice President of said corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as such
officer, as the deed of said corporation, by its authority.

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission expires _
SEAL

I

'
,i A {

-@gM4 io4
---: ~--------~--
J a m e s R. B e a t y , R L S 1 8 3 4

DATED January 24, 2022
REVISED: October 14, 2022

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY

----------------------,--

SHEET 4 OF 5



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO  -----
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL CERTIFCATE

Approved and dedication accepted by the Common Council of the City of Franklin by
Resolution NO. Signed this day of20.

Approved _

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

Adopted _

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

w )
tut! I...",,

----- --------~--
James R. Beaty, RLS 1834
DATED January 24, 2022
REVISED: October 14, 2022

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 5 OF 5



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A 1 LOT AND 1 OUTLOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A.

PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)
(AT 7726 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

MEETING
DATE

11/15/22

ITEM NUMBER

At the November 3, 2022 regular meeting, the Plan Commission adopted a motion to
recommend approval of this resolution conditionally approving a 1 lot and one outlot
certified survey map, being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 7726 West
Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9997-000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- a resolution conditionally approving a 1
lot and one outlot certified survey map, being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at
7726 West Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9997-000. (RICK J. PRZYBYLA
AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)

Department of City Development: MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 10-25-22]

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 1 LOT AND 1 OUTLOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)
(AT 7726 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 7726
West Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9997-000, Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla, applicants; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick J. Przybyla
and Mary A. Przybyla, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicants, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to $15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFranklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022---
Page 2

and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4. Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, successors and assigns, and any developer of
the Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla 1 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla and the 1 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map project for the property
located at 7726 West Drexel Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

6. Technical issues and conditions or comments from the City of Franklin Engineering
Department and Milwaukee County must be resolved before recording.

7. Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements
for those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d, §15-
7 .020 l .H, etc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners,
Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, be and the same is hereby rejected without final
approval and without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than
one of the above conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of
adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners, Rick J. Przybyla and
Mary A. Przybyla, with the Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 3

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of_,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Item D.2.

Few CITY OF FRANKLIN hat
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of November 3, 2022
Certified Survey Map

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward this
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as
attached.
Property Owner: Rick Przybyla
Applicant: Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes LLC.
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 7726 W. Drexel Ave. I 792 9997 000
Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

District 2
Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes LLC.
R-6 Suburban Single Family Residence District
West: Residential zoned R-6 and FW Floodway
South: Residential zoned R-6
North: Residential zoned R-6 and FW Floodway
East: Residential zoned R-6
To permit a division of the existing parcel into a lot for one
home, and an outlot for future development.
Marion Eeks, AICP

APPLICANT'S REQUEST
The applicant requests approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to divide the existing parcel into a
lot for one home, and an outlot for future development.

The applicant has also requested a similar division of the neighboring lot located at 7832 W. Drexel
Ave. I 792 9995 001 which is being presented under separate cover (Item D.3). The outlots produced
by these divisions are intended to become part of a future subdivision plat yet to be submitted for
reV1ew.

CHARACTER OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA
The subject property is a single-family lot with an existing home. The surrounding properties share the
same zoning and development characteristics. Due to the developed nature of this property, the UDO
does not require that the applicant produce a full Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) (§15-
3.0501.C). However, they must verify the presence or absence of any natural resources within the lot
produced. The applicant has provided a "letter of no resource" to this effect for the proposed Lot 1.
Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements for those natural
resources to be protected under the NRPP (15- 4.0103.B.1.d, $15-7.0201.H, etc.). The applicant is
aware that disturbances to or removal of wetlands or wetland buffer, impacts to floodplain, or to other
natural resources protected under this ordinance require a Natural Resource Special Exception (Table
15-4.0100). None are proposed for this land division.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION
The applicant requests approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to divide the existing parcel into a
lot for one home, and an outlot to be set aside for future development.



The proposed CSM would produce one residential lot consistent with the requirements of the R-6
zoning. Lot 1 will be 28,869 square feet and Outlot 1 will be 69,543 square feet. The proposed outlot is
appropriately designated due to a number of factors including the fact that the parcel does not have
street access of any kind. Future division or development will require street frontage, as well as
connection to public utilities.

PROJECT ANALYSIS
Staff provided the applicant with staff comments on October 4, 2022, which are attached. Items that
are not resolved or must be noted will be reflected in the Conditions of Approval in the Common
Council Resolution. Outstanding Planning review comments include:

1. Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements for those
natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15-4.0103.B.1.d, §15-7.0201.H, etc.)

Other Department review comments are included in the memo. Outstanding review comments are as
follows:

Engineering Department
1. No objection to this proposal. However, technical issues and conditions/comments from

Engineering and Milwaukee County must be resolved before recommending its approval.

The CSM was reviewed by Engineering; staff recommends that a condition requiring any necessary
technical corrections be included.

Additional Department Comments - Police, Fire, Inspection

None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward this application
to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.

The resolution reflects the above proposed conditions of approval.

2



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 10-25-22]

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 1 LOT AND 1 OUTLOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

(RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA, APPLICANTS)
(AT 7726 WEST DREXEL AVENUE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 7726
West Drexel Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 792-9997-000, Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla, applicants; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick J. Przybyla
and Mary A. Przybyla, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicants, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to § 15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFranklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022
Page 2

and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4. Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, successors and assigns, and any developer of
the Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla 1 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
$15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A.
Przybyla and the 1 lot and 1 outlot certified survey map project for the property
located at 7726 West Drexel Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

6. Technical issues and conditions or comments from the City of Franklin Engineering
Department and Milwaukee County must be resolved before recording.

7. Future development of Outlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation easements
for those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d, §15-
7.0201.H, etc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners,
Rick J. Przybyla and Mary A. Przybyla, be and the same is hereby rejected without final
approval and without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than
one of the above conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of
adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owners, Rick J. Przybyla and
Mary A. Przybyla, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.



RICK J. PRZYBYLA AND MARY A. PRZYBYLA - CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
Page 3

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



7726 W. Drexel Ave.
TKN 792 9997 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informationalpurposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



7726 W. Drexel Ave.
TKN 792 9997 000

LE3tlb [SE"l

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may no/ be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

October 4, 2022

To: Rick Przybyla

From: City Development Staff

RE: Staff Comments - Przybyla CSM - 7726 W. Drexel Ave.

Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the above application. Department
comments are as follows for the Certified Survey Map submitted by Rick Przybyla and
date stamped by the City ofFranklin on September 2, 2022.

Department ofCity Development

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Requirements
The lot is zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District (UDO Section 15
3.0207).
✓ 1. The proposed lots meet the minimum lot area, depth, and width requirements of

the zoning district.
,,,,,. 2. Please depict the front yard setback from the proposed new front lot line, as well

as other setbacks (side and rear yard) for the proposed Parcel 1. The minimum
front yard is 30'-please refer to table 15-3.0207 (attached) for other setback
information.

Certified Survey Map (CSM)
Division 15-7.0700: Certified Survey Map describes the required elements of a CSM:
-3. Please be aware that §15-7.0701: General Standards for CSMs, requires that the

standards ofPart 8: Improvements and Construction be met for all development
resulting from this CSM.

4. Is any part ofthe property within the 75' shoreline buffer ofLegend Creek? If
yes, $15-7 .0702.B requires the buffer to be depicted on the CSM. N 6

5. Note that the map date and date of any subsequent revisions must be shown on the
CSM (§15-7.0702.H)

- 6. Include the current zoning and zoning boundary lines of all parcels, lots or outlo8)
proposed to be created by the Certified Survey Map ($15-7.0702.M).s sh

✓ 7. Note that additional information may required by the City Planner, Plan
Commission, City Engineer, or Common Council, in accordance with § 15
7 .0702.R.

8 Please depict the dimensions and include the area of the proposed Right ofWay
dedication in square feet.



Design Standards for Land Divisions

UDO Division 15-5.0100: Design Standards for Land Divisions governs the arrangement
ofand access to roads, right-of-way and other infrastrncture, and the dimensions oflots
and easements.
9. $15-5.0105.B.1 and §15-5.0106.C require a minimum of60 feet frontage along a

public street. Outlot 1 does not meet this requirement; the outlot designation is
appropriatefor this reason. Future development ofthis lot will be required to
meet streetfrontage standards ofthe UDO.

10. Note that for Certified Survey Maps requiring the installation ofpublic
v improvements, the Subdivider shall enter into a written contract ("Subdivider's

Agreement") prior to approval ofthe Certified Survey Map ($15-9.0309.F).

Natural Resource Protection Plan
Division 15-4.0100 governs the preservation ofnatural resources. All development in the
City ofFranklin shall comply with the natural resource protection standards set forth in
Table 15-4.0100, and be described by a Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) as
defined by Division 15-7.0200.

11. In the case that no protected resources exist on the proposed developable Parcel l
L with existing house to be razed, verification with a "letter ofno resource" from an

assured delineator is acceptable. Staffnotes than the applicant has submitted a
letter for this CSM and the related CSM at 7832 W. Drexel.

12. Future development ofOutlot 1 will require a full NRPP and conservation
easements for those natural resources to be protected under the NRPP (§ 15-
4.0103.B. l.d, §15-7.0201.H, etc.)

, 13. Per the requirements ofTable 15-4.0100, disturbances to or removal ofwetlands
or wetland buffer, impacts to floodplain, or to other natural resources protected
under this ordinance require a Natural Resource Special Exception. €+, MN , TAG¢ '3

po cw<+o w/
General Planning Comments

14. The applicant may request, in writing, a delay ofthe review by Plan Commission
and Common Council to allow for a resolution to the design requirements and
other comments. Mo

Engineering Comments

Le e

•
•

e

No objection to this proposal. However, technical issues and
conditions/comments from Engineering and Milwaukee County must be resolved
before recommending its approval.
On page 2of5, under the legend, remove strnctures to be razed.
On page 3 of5, on the second paragraph ofthe surveyor's certificate insert, "and
the City ofFranklin Unified Development Ordinance Division- 15 in
surveying.. ".
On page 5 of5, replace the Common Council Approval Certificate with:

2



✓- • "Approved and dedication accepted by the Common Council of the City of
Franklm by Resolution No.Signed thusday of _
20 II

• Correct the Mayor's name to Stephen
• Remove the Certificate of County Treasurer, City Treasurer, and the City Clerk.

Milwaukee County

/ Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Comment Letter 1s attached

3



REGJSTER OF DEEDS

Milwaukee County
ISRAEL RAMON · Register of Deeds

September 16, 2022

City of Franklin
Attn: Marion Eeks,
Department of City Development
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

$75,00 Review Fee Paid

RE: Preliminary Review of Certified Survey Map
Being a Part of SE, of SEof Sec 5-T9-R21, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin

Owners(s): Rick Przybyla & Mary Przybyla
Parcel No: 792-9997 -7726 W. Drexel Ave

Comment: Outlet 1 creating a land lock parcel. Will outlet 1 need access to a road?
diagram. The legend information at the bottom of page 1 has strike overs

'

I
Page 2 is missing Parcel 1 on the

l
!

Comment: All preliminary reviews require the CSM to be to scale and the correct size.

Disclaimer: Milwaukee County is reviewing the Preliminary Plat for closure issues and to verify ownership. Please refer to
Wisconsin State Stats 236 and the local municipalities ordinances for further questions. \

'
Sincerely,

Rosita Ross

Rosita Ross
Real Property Supervisor
Rosita.ross@milwaukeecountywi.gov
414-278-4047

CC: James Beaty/Horizon Land Development Services LLC

CUT+QJSE. OM 13 • 9U1 NORTH STH STREET - MENIALUKLEE SC0AG3 57221 • 44144272 4021 + A(%1}222-1257



L

\

\
z
Cf)
Cl'.
0z,
w
-'-'wz
<(-,
oil

3 w
Cl

3 enz
Cl'.% :::,
Ill

l=I &i3 u! 2z :cs, 50 -,

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

5ftTO BE
DEDICATED FOR I
PUBLIC STREET

PURPOSES
AREA=B06s.f.

8
(0
co
w
1--,
0
in~>0
Cf)

[
c::

¥

R-6

OUTLOT 1
AREA :

69,543s.f .

PARCEL 1
CSM 3416

-...._

N88"35'23"E 165.00 '1"ip
Ind

___ PARCEL 1__
7i AREA:

I 28,869s.f .
I R-6

c!
% $%#J

OUTLOTAcs 34i@

R-6

OWNER/SUBDIVIDER: , ·,

g1. t;HORIZON LAND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, LLC \i .·,·;..,,, ~
W313 S2562 PENNY LANE \ ·''\ :··,. / -~~··_:'.:.
WALES, WISCONSIN s3183 %, ·
1-262-349-1575 6'¢,
J'amieb@horizonlanddevelopmentservices.com o:--,, D ' ' \.J' ~{''-l-··

",, of "Hu«nu+av"
e-_A'. io1,is R. ediy, RLS f834

DATED, Jo.nuo.ry 24\ 2022
REVISED: October 14, 2022

- l- -- --. 2SNIT@RY SEWER=ksesra@isg,'EsiWi"bi6iijis

± le@
2ft above '- BOUNDAIY
100yr B.F.E.
(elevation varies)

\

I'w
Cf)
:c

PARCEL1
CSM 3410

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO - _

200

- jlI}!bf
5W. DREXEL AVE, ;; .,;

.,; ~ S88"35'23"W« _«soox-a
CONC. MONU.
W/BRASSCAP
SECOR. SE 1/4
SEC, 9-5-21
N. 334,967.07
E. 2,533,309.51

s
10050

ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

N

#

J.E.rujQ
0 - INDICATES IRON PIPE 1" x 18", 1.13 LBS./LIN.FT . SET (1.3150.d.)
e - 1• IRON PIPE FOUND (UNLE SS NOTED)

lii"'J- CONC. MONU. W/BRASS CAP FOUND
(R) - RECORDED AS

NOTE:
Floodplain limits shown per FEMA
NFIP FIRM Map No. 55079C0144E,
with an effective date of Sept 26 , 2008 .

Outlo t 1 to become part
of future development.

Existing Zoning R-6
Setbacks as shown
front -3011
rear - 30ft
side - 10ft
other ordinances may apply see code

GRAPHIC SCALE
1" 100'

BEARING REFERENCE:
BEARINGS REFERENCED TO WISCONSIN
STATE PLANE COORD. SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE (NAD27).
WITHIN WHICH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SE 1/4 OF
SECTION 9, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IS
ASSUMED TO BEAR N88°35'23"W (PER SEWRPC CSSD.
REVISED JAN 2016)

0-

CONC, MONU.
W/BRASSCAP
SW COR. SE 1/4
SEC, 9-5-21
N. 334,901,71 (R.0.W. VARIES)
E. 2,530,654.84 49

70
.
65

'

s.us•sec.sa
N88'35'23"E 2655.65' -

TH IS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 1 OF 5



200

i
TOPOGRAPHIC DETAIL

s
100

GRAPHIC SCALE,. = 100'

0 50

6

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO - _
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
N

#

j_
(.w

CJ)
:r:

PARCEL 1
CSM 3410

%l!_}}!",±##k
w. DREXEL AVE
Govoe@dE!el=atjis-9 sosszsw

_, _495.00'A-
CONG, MONU .
W/BRASSCAP
SE COR. SE 1/4
SEC. 9-5-21
N. 334,967.07
E. 2,533,309.51

lli.E!'!Q
0 - INDICATES IRON PIPE 1" x 18", 1.13 LBS./UN.FT. SET (1.3150.d.)
e - 1• IRON PIPE FOUND (UNLE SS NOTED)
~ - CONC. MONU. W/BRASS CAP FOUND

(R) - RECORDED AS

CONG, MONU.
W/BRASS CAP
SW COR. SE 1/4
SEC, 9-5-21
N. 334,901.71
E, 2,530,654.84

rear - 30ft
side - 10ft
other ordinances may apply see code

,.' ,,., .;
.1/lo! lo.'or

- '~--------3',\ -----
PARCEL 1 James R. Beaty, RLS 1834
CSM3416 DATED, Jnnunry 24\ 2022

.Q_REATIVE.!::!__ MES IN!d._j_._ - - --s._ REVISED:October 14, 2022

_J,JNPLATT- s --~LIARY SEWER
· "'- I sMr. DOG.4g35587

/

100YRB,h.
fl above BOUNDAiY
0yr B.F,E.'n ilevation

> "' "\ varies) \

1"> Ps
\ z4] g \<l» M ?i4 $,la,, ? s I
,%, ],or r 2 '
~ <" A A ::, 0 I.s-......___ . $see ".es $

NOTE: '-----7s >s,;, iil Ig=ergs..a ,
with an effective date of Sept 26, 2008. ~> ~I ~
Outlot 1 to become part ~I ~ I
of future development. so

-
I c::: §I ii'.~ I

n.l ~ ~
z, 5

~ 7 =>I O-, I
bldg

setback I
note sht1)

5ftTO BEJ DEDICATED FOR I
PUBLIC STREET

PURPOSES
AREA = 806s.f.

Existing Zoning R-6
Setbacks as shown
front -30ft

1870.65+
.i;~i.;•4,.; sTiNESE QTR. SEC. 9-5-21

N88"35'23"E 2655.65'-

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 2 OF 5



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO-----
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:
I hereby certify that by the direction of the Owner, I have surveyed, divided, and mapped the land shown and described

hereon, being all that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in
the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin , described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9; thence South 88°35'23" West along the south
line of said southeast 1/4 of Section 9, a distance of 495.00 feet to the point of beginning of the lands hereinfter described;
thence continuing South 88°35'23" West, a distance of 165.00 feet to a point on the south line of aforesaid southeast 1/4 OF
section 9; thence North 0015'02" West, a distance of 661.62 feet along the east line of CSM 3410, to a point; thence North
88°37'30" East, a distance of 165.00 feet to a point; thence South 00°15'02" East, a distance of 661.52 feet to the place of
beginning. Said Lands containing 109,138 s.f. (2.5055 AC:), more or less of land. Excepting therefrom the North 5 feet of the
South 65 feet of lands which is dedicated to the city of Franklin for public street purposes. Area Dedicated containing 806 s.f.,
of land.

I further certify that I have fully complied with the provisions of section 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance Division- 15 in surveying, dividing, and mapping and that this Certified Survey Map
is a true and correct representation of all exterior boundaries and the division of said land.

Dated this 24th day of January, 2022.
REVISED: October 14, 2022

0ntf6.t±,
{

VICINITY MAP

NE 1/4

(n.t.s.)

I
I

-«.1
T

C.S.M.

I\ SE 1/4

_____L - LJ
S/E 1/4 SECTION 9

T. 5N., R. 21 E.

SW 1/4

NW 1/4

L

t

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY SHEET 3 OF 5

-- ---------------------~



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO -----
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE:
As owner(s), we hereby certify that we have caused the land shown and described on this Certified Survey Map to be

surveyed, divided, and mapped as shown hereon.
We also certify that this map is required by section s236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes to

be submitted to the following for approval or objection:

Rick Przybyla, Owner

State of Wisconsin)
ss

Milwaukee County)

Mary Przybyla, Owner

Personally came before me this day of-' 2022, the above named
Rick Przybyla & Mary Przybyla, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged the same.

_________(SEAL}
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission expires
My commission is permanent.

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE

I, Tri City National Bank, mortgagee of the above described land, do hereby consent to the surveying, dividing, mapping and
dedication of the land described on this plat, and I do hereby consent to the above certificate of Rick & Mary Przybyla,
owners.
WITNESS the hand of Tri City National Bank, mortgagee, this day of'2022.

In the presence of:

Tri City National Bank
Mortgagee

Bruce C. Elliot, Executive Vice President

STATE OF WISCONSIN}
MILWAUKEE COUNTY) SS

Personally came before me this day of,2022, the above named Bruce C. Elliot, Executive
Vice President of the above named corporation and to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission expires _
(Notary Seal)

f ° 4raft.±
JomeR. Bea, Rsis4
DATED: January 24, 2022
REVISED: October 14, 2022

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEA TY SHEET 4 OF 5



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO
ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,

RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL CERTIFCATE

Approved and dedication accepted by the Common Council of the City of Franklin by
Resolution NO. Signed this_ day of,2O.

Approved _

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

Adopted _

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

..st
DATED January 24, 202e
REVISED: October 14, 2022

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JAMES R. BEATY

po

SHEET 5 OF 5



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

The fire department is seeking permission to
replace the motor in its fourth (back-up)

ambulance using existing grant funding, at an
expected cost of $13, 018.55.

MEETING
DATE

ITEM NUMBER

Background:
The department was recently operating out of the back-up ambulance due to a mechanical issue with
one of the three current front-line ambulances, when the back-up experienced a catastrophic engine
failure on the way to an emergency call. The ambulance was towed to Hiller Ford, which diagnosed
as non-repairable internal failure of engine components, and recommended replacing the long-block
(consisting engine block, crank, connecting rods, pistons and cylinder heads) at a cost of
approximately $17,000. The Department sought additional options, and eventually received a quote
from Huckstorf Diesel in the Franklin Business Park of $13,018.55 for the same long-block
replacement (attached).

The department has existing funding in its annual Department of Health Services (DHS) Funding
Assistance Program (FAP), which also received supplemental funding from the American Recovery
Plan (ARPA) this year. Unanticipated repairs to ambulances and other EMS vehicles is a specific pre
approved category for use of this funding.

Availability of reliable back-up and reserve apparatus are a critically important aspect of maintaining
response readiness in both fire and EMS service, and also in the department's efforts to provide
standby staffing to special events in the community. The ambulance in question is a 2012 F-450
MedTec, and despite its age (and the fact that it has a blown motor) has relatively low miles, and is in
reasonably good shape, and could conceivable serve in a back-up/reserve capacity for several more
years.

The department is also requesting a budget appropriation of existing supplemental DHS FAP grant
funds (budget lines 20-0000-5811-7094 and 20-0221-5329-7085) in the amount of $15,500 as a
contingency in case any of the parts transferred from the damaged block are not useable. It is also
likely that the damaged motor would be eligible for a core charge, which would result in a rebate of
approximately $3,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request Common Council approval to move forward with the replacement of the motor in
its forth (back-up) ambulance with an appropriation of existing grant funds in the amount

of $15,500.

Fire:AJR



E S T I M A T E

BILL TO: 0014781
FRANKLIN FIRE DEPT.
USE CUSTOMER # 11940
FRANKLIN, WI 53132-0000

Huckstorf Diesel
Pump & Injector Service Inc.

9745 South 58th Street
Frankdin,WI 53132

(414) 421-7222/ (800) 776-7102
www.HDlesel.com

11/4/2022

SHIP TO:

FRANKLIN FIRE DEPT.
USE CUSTOMER # 11940
FRANKLIN, WI 53132-0000

1

0003749

PHONE: 414-425-1420 CUST PO#:

VIN#: 1FDUF4GT9CEC46491

YEAR: 2012

MAKE: FORD

MODEL: F-450 SUPER DUTY

ENGINE: 6.7L [T] T

MILEAGE: 46,491

Replace engine with Jasper complete.

PART
NUMBER
/DRIVE-IN
/DRIVE-IN
/DRIVE-IN
/INJ SHOP
JAS1091012
JASPSP
MISVAL15W40
FORFL2051S
FORFD4615

PART
DESCRIPTION
R&R Engine
Oil Change
Change Fuel Filters
Test Injectors
Jasper Ford 6.7 Long Block
Premium Service Plan
PREMIUM BLUE 15W40 BULK/QUARTS
6.7 FORD OIL FILTER
FUEL FILTER KIT 2011-2016 6.71

QUANTITY
26.00
0.50
1.50
4.00
1.00
1.00

13.00
1.00
1.00

LIST
PRICE
0.00
0.00
o.oo

UNIT
PRICE

120.00
120.00
120.00

TOTAL
AMOUNT

3,120.00
60.00

180.00
480.00

8,547.00
394.00
72.93
22.71

105.91

0.00 120.00
8,547.00 8,547.00

394.00 394.00
6.76 5.61

24.38 22. 71
113.73 105.91

LABOR
PART SALES

SHOP SUPPLIES
HAZARDOUS WASTE

SALES TAX

$3,840.00
$9,142.55

$18.00
$18.00

$716.02

E S T I M A T E T O T A L $13,734.57

$

$13,734.57
LESS DEPOSIT

NET AMOUNT DUE

ACCEPTED BY: x

One year workmanship guarantee on all repairs. Thank you.
All past due accounts are charged a 1.5% late fee per month.

$(3I3.5o Tx



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Status update on the
Unified Development Ordinance rewrite

MEETING DATE
11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER
1,5

Status update on the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) rewrite being developed by the
Department of City Development, with assistance from planning firms Houseal Lavigne Associates,
LLC and Birchline Planning, LLC. The Common Council authorized a professional agreement with
these consultants in June 2021.

The UDO is being revised and updated as recommended by the local comprehensive plan: "Based
upon the number of potential zoning, land division, and design related changes identified in the City
of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, it is herein recommended that the City undertake an
update of the Unified Development Ordinance as soon as practical" (Land Use chapter, page 85).

STATUS

This UDO rewrite project consists of 6 steps:
1. Project Kick Off. Staff and the consultants conducted a project kick-off meeting and organized an UDO

Rewrite Task Force, including the Plan Commission, 1 member of the Economic Development
Commission, and 2 members of the Environmental Commission.

2. Public Engagement. Staff and the consultants held informational sess10ns with the public at City Hall and
at the St. Marts Fair; had discussions with the Plan Commission and the Common Council on
expectations of this process; and conducted stakeholder interviews.

3. Current UDO Diagnosis and Preliminary Recommendations. Presentation to the Task Review Force on
February 3, 2022 and status update to the Common Council on February 15.

4. Draft UDO Sections and Review Meetings (in progress):
• 1Workshop, September 8 and 21, 2022.

Articles: 1. Establishments of Districts, 2. Base District Specific Standards, 3. Overlay District Specific
Standards and 4. Use Specific Standards.
Articles 1-4with revisions following the workshop and draft zoning map are included in this packet.

• 2d Workshop, preliminary session on November 3 and full sesson on November 17, 2022.
Articles: 5. Development Standards and 6. Sign Standards.

• 3d Workshop, date TBD.
Articles: 7. Planned Development Standards, 8. Subdivision Standards, 9. Administration and
Enforcement Standards, 10. Nonconformities and 11. Definitions.

5. Draft and Final UDO. (2023, 1semester)
6. Adoption and Implementation. (2023, 2d semester)

FISCAL NOTE

No impact, agreement already in place. This is a status update only.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
This item is a status update on this project. No action is required at this time.

City Development-RMM



City of Franklin

Proposed Zoning

IMes
1

N

A
0 0.25 0.5

■ LI - Limited Industrial
■ P - Park and Open Space

POL - Planned Development Legacy
GFP - General Floodplain
FF - FIoodfringe
FW- Floodway
L- Land Fill

■ B-G - General Business
El B-R - Regional Business

tif B-MU - South 27th Street Mixed-Use
■ B-P - Business Park

■ B-SM - Saint Martin's Road Historic Business
11 R-C - Conservation Residence
■ I - Insitutional

Proposed Zoning

El A- Agricultural

A-P - Prime Agricultural

R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence
■ R-SR - Suburban Residence

RM - Multiple-Unit Residence
■ R-V - Village Residence

B-N - Neighborhood Business



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 1. General Provisions

15-1-01 Title

15-1-02 Purpose

15-1-03 Intent

15-1-04 Interpretation

15-1-05 Jursdcton

15-1-06 Vested Rights

15-1-01. Title

2

2

2

A This Ordinance shall be known as, referred to, or cited as, "Unified Development Ordinance, City of Franklin, Wisconsin" or
the "UDO"

15-1-02. Purpose

A The purpose of this UDO is to promote the health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics, and general welfare and to regulate
and control the dvsion of land wthin the lmits of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin

15-1-03. Intent
lt Is the general intent of this UDO to regulate the drvson of land and restrict the use of all structures, lands, and waters to
achieve the following objectives

A Regulate and control development densities and formats to prevent overcrowding and to provide adequate sunlight, air,
sanitation, and drainage

B Regulate population density and distribution to avrnd inefficient land use and development patterns, to further the orderly
layout and appropriate use of land, and to facilitate the provision of adequate public service and utilities

C Regulate parking, loading, and access to lessen congestion and promote the safety and efficiency of streets and highways

D Ensure safety from fire, flooding, pollution, contamination, panic, and other dangers

E Stabilize and protect existing and future property values

F Encourage compat1b1hty between different land uses and protect from the encroachment of incompatible development

G Further the wise use and conservation of natural resources including soils, topography water, floodplains, shorelands,
dramnageways, wetlands and shoreland wetlands, woodlands and forests, scenic resources, and wildlife resources

H Prevent flood damage to persons and property to m1nim1ze expenditures for flood relief and flood control proiects

Provde for and protect a vanety of suitable commercial and Industrial sites

J Protect the traffic-carrying and pedestrian capacity of existing and proposed arterial streets, highways, and collector streets

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 1 of 3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

K Facilitate adequate prov1sIons for housing, transportation, pedestrian access, water supply, stormwater, wastewater,
schools, parks, playgrounds, and other public facilities and services

L Restrict building sites in areas covered by poor soils or in other areas poorly surted for development due to natural resource
features or other characterstcs

M Facilitate the appropnate drvson of larger tracts into smaller parcels of land

N Ensure adequate legal descnpbons and proper survey monumentat1on of subd1v1ded land

0 Implement the municipal, County, watershed, or regional plans or their components adopted by the City and facilitate the
enforcement of those development standards

P Provide for the adm1nistrat1on and enforcement of this UDO

15-.1-04. Interpretation

A Minimum Standards Established. The provIs1ons of this UDO shall be interpreted as minimum requirements, unless
otherwise stated, and shall not be deemed a hm1tat1on or repeal of any other power granted by the Wisconsin Statutes

B Severability. lf any part, division, section, provson, or portion of thus Ordinance rs adjudged unconstitutional, or Invalid by a
court of competent junsd1cbon, the remainder of this UDO shall not thereby be affected but shall remain in full force and
effect If an application of this UDO to a particular structure, land, or water Is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court
of competent 1unsd1cbon, such Judgement shall not be applicable to any other structure, land, or water not specifically
Included In sad judgement

15-1-05. Jurisdiction

A The jurisdiction of thus Ordinance shall apply to all structures, lands, water, and ar wthin the corporate limits of the City of
Franklin

15-1-06. Vested Rights

A Construction and Uses Approved Prior to UDO Effective Date. All bu1ld1ngs, structures, and uses authorized by permit
pnor to the effective date of this UDO or any amendment thereto shall be subject to the applicable provIsIons of the UDO at
the time of approval

B Applicability to Pending Applications. When a complete apphcabon for a zoning action 1s submitted but pending action
by the City on the effective date of this UDO, the prov1s1ons in effect when the application was filed shall govern the review
and approval Upon the refiling of any pending application after the effective date of this UDO, the refiled application shall
such application shall be subject to the appcable provisions of ths UDO at the time of submittal

C Construction Allowed pursuant to Approved Plans. Nothing in this UDO shall require a change mn the plans for any
structure or use 1f a building permit or certificate of occupancy for such structure was lawfully issued pnor to the effective
date of this UDO or any such amendment thereto, and such building or certificate of occupancy had not by its own terms
expired pnor to the effective date of this UDO, and construction pursuant to such permit 1s commenced pnor to the
expiration date of such permit.

D Building Permit. Where a building permit for a budding or structure has been Issued pnor to the effective date of this UDO
and construction is commenced within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this UDO, the building or structure may be
completed In accordance with the approved plans for which the building permit has been issued

E Final Subdivision Plat Any preliminary subdvrson plat filed pnor to the effective date of this UDO shall vest such approval
nghts upon the approval of the preliminary subd1v1s1on plat Any subsequent final subd1v1s1on plat may be subsequently filed
In accordance with the approved prehminary plat.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 2 of 3



City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 3 of 3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 2. Establishment of Districts

15-2-01 Districts Established

15-2-02 Purpose and Intent of D1stncts

15-2-03 Official Zoning Map

15-2-01. Districts Established

A Base Districts.

Residential Districts.

a R-C - Conservation Residence D1stnct

b R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence District

c R-SR - Suburban Residence District

d R-M - Multiple-Unit Residence District

e R-V - Village Residence District

2 Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts.

a B-N- Neighborhood Business DIstnct

b B-G - General Business District

c B-R- Regional Business DIstnct

d B-MU - South 27th Street Mixed-Use District

e B-SM- Saint Martin's Road Histonc Business DIstnct

3 Industrial and Agricultural Districts.

a B-P - Business Park Drstnct

b LI- Limited Industnal DIstnct

c A- Agricultural Distnct

d A-P - Agricultural Prime D1stnct

4 Miscellaneous Districts.

a P - Park and Open Space District

b I- Institutional Distnct

c L - Landfill District

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

2

4

Article 2 Establishment of Districts
Page 1 of 4



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

d PDL - Planned Development Legacy District

5 Floodplain Districts.

a FW- Floodway Dustnct

b GFP- General Floodplain DIstnct

c FF - FIoodfnnge Dstnct

15-2-02. Purpose and Intent of Districts

A Residential Districts

1 R-C- Conservation Residence District. The R-C Conservation Residence District Is intended to allocate land for
smgle-fam1ly residential uses on large lots and m low-density settings The D1stnct Is further intended to preserve open
space, sensItIve natural features, and mamtam the community's rural residential setting and scenic v1ewsheds where
these assets exist m the southern areas of the City

2 R-SE - Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District. The R-SE Suburban/Estate Smgle-Fam1ly Residence
District Is intended to provde land for single-family residental housing in moderately-low densities and that is suburban
or sem-rural in character The DIstnct is further intended to preserve and protect the City's natural resources, mcludmg
woodlands and open spaces

3 R-SR - Suburban Single-Family Residence District. The R-SR Suburban Single-Family Residence District Is
Intended to provde land for sIngle-family suburban resdental housing at moderately low densities The DIstr1ct Is
designed to preserve the community's suburban and semi-rural character and its open space and natural resources
The district 1s intended to allow infill in locations where moderately low-density neighborhoods exist and to allow new
residential growth as the community determines Is appropriate

4 R-M- Multiple-Family Residence District. The R-M Multiple-Family Residence District Is intended to establish and
preserve land for both multifamily and smgle-fam1ly attached res1dent1al development such as duplexes, townhomes,
and rowhomes to accommodate a variety of households with different lifestyles, age ranges, and incomes The DIstrct
Is Intended to allow a flexible mix of scales, densities and formats throughout the community while ensuring that the
single-family attached and multifamily residential uses enhance the character of Franklin's res1dent1al setting,
contribute to the community's visual appeal, and ensure the adequate provIsIon of open space

5 R-V- Village Residence District. The R-V Village Residence DIstnct Is intended to preserve the single-family
residential character and architectural qualities of the Samnt Martin's Hustonc Village Area The Distnct is intended to
allow new s1ngle-fam1ly res1dent1al infill on vacant or underused sites in the Village area, provided that such
development ts consistent wth the hustonic vsual character and preserves tts moderate resident1al density

B Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts

B-N - Neighborhood Business District. The B-N Neighborhood Business District Is intended to provide for the day
to-day retail, commercial service, and employment needs of Franklin residents, particularly the needs of the
neighborhoods adjacent to properties In the District The DIstnct is further intended to promote a mutually supportive
mix of small-scale retail establishments and to ensure safe and convenient pedestrian and vehicular circulation on-site
and between adJacent sites as redevelopment of existing sites occurs

2 B-G- General Business District. The B-G General Business District Is intended to promote a variety of commercial
service and retail uses along the City's major roadways The DIstnct is Intended to allow moderately large-scale
development that serves the general population of Franklin It Is further intended to promote commercial development
1n visually appealing plaza formats that promote safe and convenient pedestrian travel on sites and between adjacent
sites and neighborhoods

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of Districts
Page 2 of 4



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

3 B-R- Regional Business District. The B-R Regional Business District 1s intended to promote a variety of commercial
service and retail uses along the City's maJor roadways to serve the needs of Franklin residents as well as a regional
consumer market beyond the City's borders Moderately large-scale development should be configured with groups of
large-lot commercial structures with outlot commercial buildings surrounding shared parking areas and should provide
safe and convenient pedestrian travel on-site, and when practicable, between other sites and neighborhoods

4 B-MU - South 27Street Mixed-Use District. The B-MU South 27th Street Mixed-Use District 1s intended to provide
land for a mutually-supportive combination of retail, commercial, office, and compact residential uses in buildings'
upper floors along South 27% Street. Development is configured mn multr-building plaza formats and on relatively large
sites The DIstnct Is Intended to facilitate greater densities of retail, commercial, office, and resdental uses than mn the
B-1 through B-3 Districts, given South 27 Street's direct access to bus transit The development should further be
arranged In cohesive plaza developments that facilitate convenient vehicle and pedestrian travel and enhance the
corridor's appearance

5 B-SM- Village Business District The B-SM Village Business DIstnct rs intended to promote a mix of commercial
retail, service, and upper-floor residential uses in the hrstonc Saint Martin's Village area whle mantanng the area's
traditional character and built form The District Is designed to preserve hrstonc structures while allowng Infill
development on underused sites that Is consistent with the area's built characteristics and architectural qualItIes
Development should continue to be formatted in small lots and buildings should be placed relatively near front lot Imes
to preserve the area's pedestrian-oriented character

C Industrial and Agricultural Districts.

B-P. Business Park District. The B-P Business Park District Is intended to promote a flexible mix of light 1ndustnal,
research, and office uses in a campus like setting Uses are conducted primarily indoors and do not have the potential
to generate nuisances to adorning properties Circulation systems should be integrated mnto the site mn a cohesive
manner to ensure convenient pedestrian and vehicular travel

2 LI - Limited Industrial District. The Ll Limited Industnal District Is intended to provide land for manufacturing,
Industrial, warehousing, and similar uses of a limited scale and intensity The district rs intended to support employment
opportunItIes in the City while maintaining the community's natural resources and neighborhood character

3 A - Agricultural District. The AAgricultural District 1s intended to preserve land in the City historically used for small
farming operations engaged in crop production, the raising of livestock, the cult1vat1on of orchards, and other small
scale agricultural activities The distnct also accommodates limited single-family housing The DIstnct is intended to
preserve the large contiguous parcels of land that are characteristic of the community's rural areas

4 A-P- Prime Agricultural District. The A-P Pnme Agricultural District Is intended to preserve and protect land in the
City hustoncally designated as pnme agricultural land mn the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Plan The District is
intended to preserve the natural integrity, agricultural productivity, and scenic quaht1es of these lands while allowing
limited single-family residential development

D Miscellaneous Districts

P - Park and Open Space District. The P Park and Open Space District Is intended to provide land for parks and
recreational fac11it1es that meet the needs of the Franklin community while also preserving the City's natural resources,
including nvers, woodlands, and open space

2 I - Institutional District. The I lnst1tut1onal District Is intended to allocate land for public or semi-public uses, municipal
fac1l1t1es, ut11it1es, and noncommercial places of assembly as defined in this UDO The district serves to accommodate
existing and future public and semi-public uses and to allocate land separately from commercial and res1dent1al uses

3 L - Landfill District. The L Landfill District Is intended to contain and regulate ex1stIng and former landfill uses in the
City while mitigating their adverse impacts such as odor, noise, and traffic on the community's commerc1al and
residential areas

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of D1stncts
Page 3 of 4



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4 PDL - Planned Development Legacy District. The POL Planned Development Legacy Drstrict includes properties
that have been previously zoned as a "planned development district" and are governed by a unique set of regulations
as set forth in the related planned development ordinance Properties zoned in the Legacy Planned Development
District will continue to operate under therr specific planned unit development ordinance No property may be rezoned
into the Legacy Planned Development District after the date of the adoption of thrs chapter

E Floodplain Districts.

FW - Floodway District. The FW Floodway District, rs the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the
floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regional floodwaters, wthin AE Zones as shown on the FIRM, or
wthin A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according to s 5 1(5)

2 GFP - General Floodplain District. The GFP General Floodplain Drstrrct rs those riverine areas that may be covered
by floodwater during the regional flood in whrch a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also
includes shallow flooding areas rdentrfied as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

3 FF - Floodfringe District. The GFP General Floodplain District rs those riverine areas that may be covered by
floodwater during the regional flood in whrch a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also
includes shallow flooding areas identified as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

15-2-03. Official Zoning Map

A Official Zoning Map Established. The location and boundaries of the drstncts established by this UDO shall be established
in the Zoning Map as amended, whrch rs incorporated herein and hereby made a part of thus Ordnance

B District Boundary Description and Interpretation.

Zoning Boundary Determination. The district boundaries shall be streets, alleys, railroads, lot lines, streams,
floodplain boundaries, and wetland boundaries unless otherwise shown on the Zoning Map

2 Zoning Boundary Determination for Approximate Boundaries. Where the desrgnatron of the Official Zoning Map
Indicates that vanous zoning dustncts are approximately bounded by a street, alley, lot line, stream, floodplain
boundary, or wetland boundary, such lot line or the centerline of such street, alley, or railroad right-of-way, or centerline
of the main channel of such stream, the floodplain boundaries, or wetland boundaries as delineated on maps prepared
by the City or under the Root Rver Watershed study, or as determined through the use of on-stte wetland delineation,
flood profiles and accompanying hydrologc and hydraulic engineenng data, shall be construed to be the zoning dstnct
boundary line

3 Split Zoning of New Lots Prohibited. The split zoning of any newly created lot or parcel into more than one zoning
district shall not be allowed except for parcels split between a dstnct and the AO, GFP, FW, and FF DIstncts

4 Zoning of Annexed Land Any addrtrons to the incorporated area of the Crty of Franklin shall be classified 1n the A
Agncultural Drstnct until otherwise classified by amendment

a Annexations or Consolidations Containing Shorelands. Annexations containing shorelands shall comply with
§ 62 231 of the Wisconsin Statutes

b Annexations or Consolidations Containing Floodplains. Annexations or consolidations containing floodplains
shall be placed in the following drstncts as applicable

All floodways and unnumbered A Zones on the FEMA map shall be placed in the FW Floodway DIstnct

All other floodplains shall be placed in the GFP General Floodplain Drstrrct

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of DIstncts
Page 4 of 4



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 3. District Specific Standards

15-3-01 Bulk and D1mens1onal Standards

15-3-02 Calculating Dimensional Standards

15-3-03 Exceptions to Bulk and Dimensional Standards

15-3-04 Permitted, Limited, Conditional, and Temporary Uses

15-3-05 B-SM - Sant Martin's Road Hustonc Business Distnct Specific Standards

15-3-06 FF Floodfnnge D1stnct and GFP General Floodplain D1stnct.

15-3-01. Bulk and Dimensional Standards

A Residential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards. Table 15-3 0100(A) establishes the bulk and d1mens1onal
requirements for development or the use of a lot in each residential district.

----- -- - ----- -- ---- - - --- -

Table15-3-01(A): ResidentialDistrict Bulk and Dimensional Standards
Standard R-C R-SE R-SR R-M R-V

'Lot Standards (Minimum) - - - - - - -J

1

2
3

4

8

9

Lot Area (sqft)
Lot Area/ DU (sqft){2)

10,000 18,000 10,000 12,000(1)
4,500

7,200

Lot Width {ft) 60 90 80 100 60
I ~-- - ------~--- -~-- - ------- ------ - -~----- _]
Yard Setbacks (Minimum)I. ----~~-- -- ------- -- ------ ---- ------- ---

Front (ft)
Street Side (ft)
I ntenor Side (ft)
Rear (ft)

25
15

45
35

30
20

15
10

(1) A lot area of 6,000 square feet shall be allowed for duplex structures with a part wall
(2) Lot area per dwelling urnt requirements shall apply m addition to the baseline lot area requirement for each add1t1onal
dwelling urnt on a lot over one
(3) M 1mm um setback of 10 feet shall be allowed for garages

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 1 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

B Nonresidential and Mixed-Use District Bulk and Dimensional Standards. Table 15-3 0100 (B) establishes the bulk and
dimenstonal requirements for development or uses of a parcel in each nonresident1al or med-use dstr1ct.

Table 15-3-01(B): Mixed-Use and Nonresidential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards
Standard B-N B-G B-R B-MU B-SM B-P LI A A-P I P---- ----------- --- -- - - --- - -- - - -- --- --- -- -~

Lot Standards (Minimum)

Front (ft)
Street Sde (ft)
Intenor Sde (ft)
Rear (ft)

25
25
10
20

25
25
10
20

40 30(1) 10
40 30(1) 15
10 10(1) 5
20 30(1) 20

50
50
20
40

30
30
20
15

50
50
25
50

50
50
25
50

30
20
10
30

50
50
20
50

(1) 40% of the required setback may be reduced when at least 15% of dwelling units on site are deed restricted to be affordable
relative to 80% of the Milwaukee County Area Medan Household Income A mnmum of 1 total dwelling unuts shall be provided on
site to qualify
(2) An addtt1onal ten (10) feet of budding height shall be allowed when at least 15% of dwelling units on site are deed restncted to be
affordable relative to 80% the Milwaukee County Area Median Household Income A minimum of 1 total dwelling unit shall be
provided on stte to qualify,

15-3-02. Calculating Dimensional Standards

A Lot Width. Lot width shall be measured as the distance between the side lot Imes of a lot at nght angles to its depth along a
straight lme parallel to the front lot line

B Lot Widths for Lots that Abut a Cul-de-Sac. The lot width of all lots which abut a cul-de-sac may be reduced by a
maximum of twenty (20) percent of the required lot wdth for the distnct in which it is located, as measured from the front lot
line

C Yard Setbacks.

A required yard setback shall be measured as the horizontal distance from the center pomt of the applicable lot line
into the mtenor of the lot for the minimum distance specified mn Table 15-3 0100(A) or Table 15-3 0100(B)

2 The span of a yard setback shall be measured as follows

a Front Yard. From the mtenor side lot hne to the other interior side lot hne or street side lot line as applicable

b Street Side Yard From the front yard setback lne to the rear lot hne

c Interior Side Yard From the front yard setback hne to the rear yard setback hne

d RearYard

From the mtenor side lot hne to the other Interior side lot line, or

II From the mntenor side lot line to the street side yard setback line

D Height. Building height shall be the vertical distance measured from the mean elevation of the finished lot grade along the
bulding frontage to the highest elevation of the roof

Height Building (ft)
Impervious Surface Coverage(%)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 2 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-3-03. Exceptions to Bulk and Dimensional Standards

A Height Exceptions. The following structures may exceed the height limitations established in Table ##t-###t and ##-### as
follows

Architectural Projections. Architectural projections such as antennae, spires, steeples, belfries, parapet walls,
cupolas, domes, flues, and chimneys may exceed the height limit for the distnct to provide for projections usual and
customary to the proposed use

2 Special Structures. Structures such as elevator penthouses, mechanical penthouses, gas tanks, gram elevators,
observation towers, and scenery lofts, manufacturing eqwpment and necessary appurtenances, cooling towers, fire
towers, substations, and smoke stacks are exempt from the height limitations of this UDO provided the structures are
an integral part of and do not detract from the design of the principal structure as approved by the Plan Comm1ss1on
and/or Architectural Board

3 Essential Services, Utilities, Water Towers, and Electric Power and Communication Transmission Lines.
Essential services, utilities, water towers, and electric power and communication transmission lines are exempt from
the height limitations of thus Ordinance Building-mounted earth station dish antennas shall not exceed the maximum
height regulation of the distnct in which they are located

4 Agricultural Structures. Agricultural structures, such as barns, silos, w1ndm1lls, shall not exceed In height twice their
distance from the nearest lot lme

5 Public or Semipublic Facilities. Public or semipublic facilities, such as schools, churches, hospitals, monuments,
sanatoriums, hbranes, and governmental offices and stations, may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet, provided all
required yard setbacks are increased not less than one (1} foot for each foot the structure exceeds the d1stnct's
maximum height requirement

6 Modification of Other Ordinances and Regulations Not Permitted Under this Division. Modifications permitted
under this Division of thus Ordinance do not modify any requirements of federal, State, or local building codes relating
to the elements addressed mn thus Drson of thus Ordnance

B Yard Setback Exceptions. Obstructions mto the yard setback requirements specified mn Secton ###-###### and ##f#### may
be permitted as follows

Uncovered Stairs, Landings, and Fire Escapes. Uncovered stairs, landings, and fire escapes may project a
maximum of six (6) feet into a required yard setback and shall not be closer than three (3} feet to any lot line

2 Architectural Projections. Architectural projections mcludmg chimneys, flues, sills, eaves, belt courses, and
ornamental features, may project a maximum of two (2) feet into a required yard setback Bay windows may project a
maximum of three (3} feet mto a required yard setback

3 Accessibility Structures. ADA accessible wheelchair ramps and other features designed to promote universal access
on the subject site may project mto a required yard setback but shall be located at least three (3) feet from any lot line

4 Utility and Electric Power and Communication Transmission Lines. Utility and electric power and communIcatIon
transmIssIon Imes are exempt from the yard setback and distance requirements of this Ordinance

5 Terraces, Patios, Uncovered Decks. Terraces, patios, uncovered decks, and ornamental features which do not
extend more than three (3} feet above or below the adjacent grade may project a maximum of ten (10) feet into any
required yard setback, however any such structure shall be setback at least five (5} feet from any property hne

6 Lampposts and Flagpoles Lampposts with a maximum height of ten (10) feet and flag poles with a maximum height
of thirty five (35} feet may project mto required yard setbacks, however any such structure shall be set back at least
five (5) feet from any property line

City of Franklm
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 3 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

7 Air Conditioning Units Air conditioning units may project up to five (5) feet into a required side or rear yard setback
but shall not be closer than five (5) feet from any property line

8 Rainwater Harvesting Structures Rainwater harvesting structures with two-hundred (200) gallons or less of storage
may project into a required side or rear yard setback but shall not be closer than five (5) feet from any property lme
Rainwater harvesting structures with over two-hundred (200) gallons of capacity meet the location standards for
accessory structures in Section ##-#-##

9 Below-Ground Stairways and Windows Stairways and windows that are constructed entirely below the site's
finished grade may project Into any required yard setback

10 Fences Fences may be located in required yard setbacks as specified in Secton 15-5##

15-3-04. Permitted, Limited, Conditional, and Temporary Uses.

A The following key shall be used in the interpretation of Table 15-3 0400(8) and (C)

Permitted Uses Uses which are marked as "P" m the table shall be allowed subject to all applicable regulations of this
UDO

2 Conditional Uses Uses which are marked as "C" mn the table shall be allowed upon the approval of a Cond1t1onal Use
Permit as detailed in Secton ###t-ft-###

3 Temporary Uses Uses which are marked "T" in the tables shall be allowed upon the approval of a Temporary Use
Permit as detailed in Section #t-ft#i

4 Prohibited Uses A blank space in the tables indicates that a use type is not allowed in the respective zonng district
unless It Is otherwise expressly allowed by other regulations of this UDO

5 Uses Not Listed If a proposed use Is not listed in the tables, the Zoning Administrator shall determine If the use Is
substantially s1m1lar to a use listed on the tables per Section#t#-### If it is, they shall treat the use in the same
manner as the substantially similar use If not, the use shall be regarded as proh1b1ted

6 Additional Regulation If a use has use specific standards they are highlighted in green Use specific standards shall
apply to permitted, cond1t1onal, and temporary uses

B Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Residential Districts.
--- -- --- - -- - -- -- - --- ---- - -- --

Table 15-3-04(A): Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Residential Districts
Use R.C R.SE R-SR R-MF R-.V,-- ---- - ---- - ----- - ------ --- - --- -- ----1 ~

kgResidential_R- R-SE R-SR_, R-MF ,R
Community Lvtng, 1-15 Persons p p p p p

Community Luvng, 16 + Persons C C C C C
Single-Family p p p p

Mobile/Manufactured Home Park, Existing Pnor to this UDO p

Duplex C p

Townhome p

Multifamily Building p

Multifamily Complex p

Senor Housing, Assisted Livng C C C C C
Senior Housina, Nursing Care C C C C C
Senior Housing, Total Life Care C

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 4 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Cro. Production
Indoor A rculture
Telecommunications Tower

C
C C C C C

Accessor Dwelhn , Detached/Attached C C C C C
Accessor Dwellin , Internal p p p p p

Accessor Structure p p p p p

Artisan Worksho p p p p p

Home Based Business p p p p p

Solar En m, p p p p p
p p p

C Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Districts.

Governmental Uses
Health Care Faclit

Indoor Commercial Place of Assembly,
###### sqft or less

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

p p p p p
C
C

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 5 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Indoor Commercal Place of Assembly,
more than ########## saft C p p p C C C C p
Outdoor Commercial Place of Assembly C C C C C C C C p
Noncommercial Place of Assembly,
###### sqft or less C C C p
Noncommercial Place of Assembly, more
th ###### ft C C C p

Campground C C p
Lodging House p p
Hotel C C C C
Motel C
Recreation Area p
Short-Term Rental C p p

Adult Establishment C
General Retail, ####t####t saft or less p p p p p
General Retail, more than #####if#t saft s p p p C
Multitenant Shopping Center C C C C
Wholesale Establishment C

Animal Boarding Facility/Kennel and/or
Veterinary Ser1ce C C C C
General Service, ####ill## saft or less p p p p p
General Servce, more than ##ii#ft#tit saft s p p p C p
Financral Institution p p p p p
Funeral Home C C
Office, above ground floor only p p
Office, ########i saft or less p p p p p p

Office, more than #lt##lt# sqft p p p p p

Offi C I x/B p k p

Bar/Tavern p p p p p
Brewery/Winery/Distillery C
Brewery/Winery/Distillery Tasting Room p p p p p
Food Truck Court C C C C C C
Micro Brewery/Winery/Distillery p p p p
Restaurant p p p p p

Auto Sales/Rental and Servce
Carwash
Major Automotive Repar

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

C
C

C
C
C

p
p
p

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 6 of 33



Minor Automotive Re ar
Vehicle Fuel Sales

I Agricultural
Communut Garden

DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111
IIIIIIIR llllllllilllllllllllllllllll
•i• j T !'

B-N G BR MU SM BP LI ; A AP Pj}I_k LFW
llllllllllllllllllllllillilllllllllllll

Cro Production
Animal Husbandr
Indoor A nculture
Nurser Retail
N Wh I

p p p
p

p
p
p
p

p
p
p
p

Artisan Manufactunna p p p p p
Brewery/Winery/Distillery p C C
Composting Facltty C C C
DIstnbuton Facility C
Equipment Rental, Sales, and Servce p p p p
Extractive Industry C C
Heavv Industry C p
Home lmorovement Center/ Lumberyard p p p p
Landfill C
Light Industry C
Recycling Facility C C
Salvaqe Yard
Self-Service Storage Facility C C
Sold Waste Facility C C
Storaae Yard C
Warehouse C

C
C C C C C

Loading Areas, Parking Areas, and
Landin St al Use p
Railroad Use C
Sanitary Sewer or Water Supply Lines C
Solar Farm C C
Telecommunications Tower C C C C C C C C C C C C
Wastewater Treatment Ponds and
Facilities p
Waterborne Trans ortaton Uses p
Wind Farm C C

City of Franklmn
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 7 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Artisan Workshop p p

Drive Through C C C C
Donation Drop Box C C C C C
Outdoor Actvty/ Operation/Storage C
Outdoor Dmnng p p p p p

Outdoor Display/ Sale of Merchandise p p p p p

Solar Enerqy Collection System, canopy p p p p p p p p p p p p

Solar Energy Collection System, ground
mounted C C C C C C C C C C C C
Solar Energy Collection System, roof
mounted p p p p p p p p p p p p

,-e, s e ,CR#Tl
• Temporary. ,B-N G BR MU SM ,BP LI } A #A-P, P j} I NL]FW ]

Construction Related
Farmers Market
Food Truck
Seasonal Sales

T
T
T
T

T
T
T
T

T
T
T
T

T
T
T
T

T
T
T
T

T

T

T T
T
T
p

T
T
T
p

T T T

15-3-05. B-SM- Saint Martin's Road Historic Business District Specific Standards.

A. Canopies and Awnings.

Building canopies, awnings, or similar weather protecton devces are encouraged on the first floor of all buildings

2 If provded, the devce shall project a minimum of three (3) feet and a maximum of five (5) feet from the facade to which
tt is affixed

B Building Frontage The primary fa<;:ade of all nonresidential and mixed-use development shall meet the standards of one
( 1) of the frontage types detailed in subsection one through four below The use of the resulting front yards or porches for
outdoor dining or other activity generating uses that support the subject lot's principal use is encouraged

Projecting Porch The pnmary fa<;:ade of the building shall be sufficiently set back from the property line to
accommodate the projecting porch wthin the front yard setback The resulting front yard may or may not be defined by
a fence or hedge to spatally maintain the edge of the street The projecting porch shall be open on three (3) sides and
have a roof form that shall be separate from the principal structure A projecting porch may encroach into a required
front yard setback to a maximum extent of ten (10) feet The followng minimum standards shall apply to projecting
porches

a Width Ten (10) feet

b Depth Eight (8) feet

c Height Eight (8) feet

2 Storefront. The primary facade of the buldng shall adjoin the required minimum front setback Accordion-style
windows and doors or other operable windows are encouraged The following standards shall apply to shopfronts

a Window Area Sixteen (16) square feet

b Window Width. Three (3) feet

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 8 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c Window Height. Four (4) feet

d Sill Height. Three (3) feet

C Entrance Orientation Mam entrances to buildings shall be oriented toward the pnmary street adjoining the subject
property Secondary entrances are encouraged along secondary streets or along building frontages not ad1om1ng a street.

D Parking Location Off-street parking spaces and lots shall be located to the rear or mtenor side of the principal bu1ld1ng

15-3-06. FF Floodfringe District and GFP General Floodplain District.

A Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, Title, and General Provisions

This ordinance 1s adopted pursuant to the authonzat1on in Wisconsin Statutes Annotated s 61 35 and 62 23and the
requirements in s 87 30

2 Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and nvers within the City of Franklin would mmparr the public
health, safety, convenience, general welfare, and tax base

3 This ordinance 1s intended to regulate floodplain development 1n order to

a Protect life, health and property,

b Min1m1ze expenditures of public funds for flood control projects,

c M1n1m1ze rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers,

d Mnimrze business interruptions and other economic disruptions,

e Mmnmyze damage to public faculties in the floodplan,

M1nim1ze the occurrence of future flood blight areas in the floodplain,

g DIscourage the vctimrzaton of unwary land and homebuyers,

h Prevent increases m flood heights that could increase flood damage and result m conflicts between property
owners, and

Discourage development in a floodplain tf there is any practicable alternative to locate the act1v1ty, use or structure
outside of the floodplain

4 This Section shall constitute, for statutory purposes, the Floodplain Zoning Ordinance for the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin

5 General Provisions.

a Areas to be Regulated This Section regulates all areas of special flood hazard 1dent1fied as zones A, AO, AH,
A1-30, AE, VE, V1-30, or Von the Flood Insurance Rate Map

b Official Maps and Revisions Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are designated as zones A, A1-30, AE, AH,
AO, VE, V1-30, or Von the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on flood hazard analyses summarized 1n
the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed in subd () below Additional flood hazard areas subject to regulation under
this ordinance are identified on maps based on studies approved by the DNR and listed m subd (b) below These
maps and rev1s1ons are on file in the office of the Planning Manager

C Official Maps

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 9 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel number 55079C0144E, effective on 09/26/2008, number
55079C0142E, effective on 09/26/2008, number55079C0161E, effective on09/26/2008, number
55079C0163E, effective on 09/26/2008 [NOTE CHECK WITH GIS MANAGER & SEWRPC to ensure all
are included & correct, from
https //msc fema gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=Franklin%2C%20W1scons1n#searchresultsanchor]

6 Establishment of Floodplain Zoning Districts The flood hazard areas regulated by this ordinance are d1v1ded into
districts as follows and collectively shall be known as the "Floodplan Distncts"

a The Floodway District (FW), is the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adJ01ning the
channel requrred to carry the regional floodwaters, within AE Zones as shown on the FIRM [see Secton 5(c))
above], or within A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according to Wisconsin Statues Annotated s
5 1 (5)

b The Floodfringe District (FF) Is that portion of a riverine special flood hazard area outside the floodway wthn AE
Zones on the FIRM, or, when floodway limits have been determined according to s 5 1(5), w1thIn A Zones shown
on the FIRM

c The General Floodplain District (GFP) is those nvenne areas that may be covered by floodwater during the
regional flood in which a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also includes shallow
flooding areas 1dent1fied as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

7 Locating Floodplain Boundaries

a Discrepancies between the exterior boundanes of zones A1-30, AE, AH, or A on the official floodplain zoning map
and actual field conditions may be resolved using the cntena in subsections (7)(d) or (7)(e) below If a significant
difference exists, the map shall be amended according to Section [X], Amendments

b The Zoning Administrator may rely on a boundary derived from a profile elevation to grant or deny a land use
permit, whether or not a map amendment is required The Zoning Administrator shall be responsible for
documenting actual pre- development field conditions and the basis upon which the distnct boundary was
determined Disputes between the Zonng Administrator and an applicant over the dstnct boundary line shall be
settled according to [SECTION XX] 7 3(3) and the cntena in (a) and (b) below

c Where the flood profiles are based on established base flood elevations from a FIRM, FEMA must approve any
map amendment or revIsIon pursuant to [sXX] Amendments

d If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the d1stnct boundary The regional
or base flood elevations shall govern 1f there are any d1screpanc1es

e Where flood profiles do not exist for projects, including any boundary of zone A or AO, the location of the
boundary shall be determined by the map scale

8 Removal of Lands from Floodplain.

a Compliance wth the provisions of this section shall not be grounds for removng land from the floodplain unless
the affected land 1s filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood elevation, the fill is contiguous to land
outside the floodplain, and the map Is amended pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments

b The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the City of Franklin where natural or man
made changes have occurred and/or where more detailed studies have been conducted However, pnor to any
such change, approval must be obtained from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and Federal
Emergency Management Agency A completed Letter of Map Rev1sIon Is a record of this approval The Zoning
Administrator shall not sign a community acknowledgement form unless all cnten1a set forth in the following
paragraphs are met

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 10 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood
elevation, and

11 the fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain, Applicant shall obtain floodplain development permit
before applying for a LOMR or LOMR-F

c Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of §87 30(1)(e), Wis Stat fa property owner
has obtained a letter of map amendment from the federal emergency management agency under 44 C F R 70

9 Compliance.

a No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be located, erected, constructed,
reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or altered without full compliance with the terms of these
regulations and all other applicable regulations that apply to uses within the junsdction of these regulations

b Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a volation of these regulations and shall be punishable
In accordance with s 9 0

c Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of plans and applications approved by the Zoning
Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth in such approved plans and applications, or
amendments thereto if approved by the Zoning Administrator Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that
authorized shall be deemed a volaton of these regulations and punishable in accordance with s 9 0

10 Municipalities and State Agencies Regulated.

a Unless specifically exempted by law, all cities, villages, towns, and counties are required to comply with this
ordinance and obtain all necessary permits State agencies are required to comply if s 1348(13), Stats , applies

b The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation 1s exempt when s 30 2022, Stats , apples Although exempt from a local zoning
permit and permit fees, DOT must provide sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the
community 1s in compliance with Federal, State, and local floodplain standards

c If a local transportation project 1s located w1thm a Zone A floodplain and 1s not a WisDOT project under s 30 2022,
then the road project design documents (including appropriate detailed plans and profiles) may be sufficient to
meet the requirements for issuance of a local floodplain permit 1f the following apply

The City provides documentation to the Floodplain Administrator that the proposed project Is a culvert
replacement or bridge replacement under 20' span at the same location, the project Is exempt from a DNR
permit under s 30 123(6)(d),

11 The capacity Is not decreased, the top road grade 1s not raised, and no floodway data Is available from a
federal, state, or other source

111 If floodway data Is available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source that exIstIng data
must be utilized by the City mn the analysis of the project site

11 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions

a Thus Section supersedes all the provisions of the thus UDO which relate to floodplains A more restrictive provision
shall continue in full force and effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise

b This Section is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed restnctions, covenants or easements
If this ordinance imposes greater restnctons, the provisions of this Section shall prevail

12 Interpretation In their interpretation and application, the provIsIons of this Section are the minimum requirements
liberally construed in favor of the City of Franklin, and are not a lim1tatIon on or repeal of any other powers granted by

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 11 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

the Wisconsin Statutes If a provision of thus Section, required by ch NR 116, Wis Adm Code, Is unclear, the provision
shall be interpreted m hght of the standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this Secbon or in effect on the date
of the most recent text amendment to this Section

13 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability The flood protection standards m this Section are based on engineering
experience and research Larger floods may occur, or the flood height may be increased by man-made or natural
causes This Section does not imply or guarantee that non-floodplain areas or permitted floodplain uses will be free
from flooding and flood damages This Secbon does not create hab1hty on the part of, or a cause of action against, the
City of Franklin, or any officer or employee thereof, for any flood damage that may result from reliance on this Section

14 Severability Should any portion of this Section be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remainder of this Section shall not be affected

B General Standards Applicable to All Floodplain Districts.

Applicability

a The City of Frankhn Zoning Administrator shall revew all permit applications to determine complance wth the
provisions of this Section

b If a proposed building site Is in a Floodplain District as defined in this Secbon , all new construction and
substantial improvements shall

Be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy,

Be constructed with flood-resistant materials,

111 Be constructed by methods and practices that mIrnmIze flood damages, and

Iv Be constructed in a manner wherein mechanical and ubhty equipment Is elevated to or above the flood
protection elevation

c If a subdrvson or other proposed new development Is in a Floodplain District as defined m this Section, the
Zoning Administrator shall assure that.

Such proposed subd1v1s1on or other proposed new development Is consistent with the need to m1rnm1ze flood
damage wthin the Floodplain Distnct,

Pubic utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are located and constructed to
minimize or eliminate flood damage, and

111 Adequate drainage Is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards

d All subd1v1s1on proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood elevation and floodway
data for any development that meets the subd1v1sIon definition of this ordinance and all other requirements 1n s
71(2)

2 Hydraulic and Hydrologic Analyses

a No development within a Floodplain District shall

Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters by itself or with other
development, causing any increase in the regional flood height, or

Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 12 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

b The Zoning Administrator shall deny permits 1f 1t 1s determined the proposed development will obstruct flow or
cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially adopted FIRM or other adopted map,
unless the prov1s1ons of s 8 0 Amendments are met

3 Watercourse Alterations

a No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued until the Zoning
Administrator has notified in writing all adyacent municipalities, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources,
and FEMA regional offices, and required the applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits The
standards of Subsection B 2 above must be met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated
watercourse shall be maintained

b As soon as 1s practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse altera!Jon or relocation
and pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments, the City of Franklin shall apply for a Letter of Map Revson (LOMR) from
FEMA. Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and the DNR through the LOMG process

4 Applicability of Chapter 30 and 31, Wisconsin Statutes, Development Development which requires a permit from
the Department, under Chapters 30 and 31, Stats, such as docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams and
nav1gat1onal aids, may be allowed 1f the necessary permits are obtained and amendments to this Section are made 1n
accordance with s 8 0 Amendments

5 Public or Private Campgrounds Public or private campgrounds shall have a low flood damage potential and shall
meet the followng provsons

a The campground 1s approved by the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection,

b A land use permit for the campground can properly be issued by the Zoning Administrator,

c The character of the river system and the campground elevation are such that a72- hour warning of an impending
flood can be given to all campground occupants,

d There is an adequate flood warning procedure for the campground that offers the minimum notice required under
this section to all persons in the campground This procedure shall include a written agreement between the
campground owner, officials of the City of Franklin (including but not the City's emergency government
coordinator and the chief law enforcement official) which specifies the flood elevation at which evacuation shall
occur, personnel responsible for monitoring flood elevations, types of warning systems to be used and the
procedures for notifying at-risk parties, and the methods and personnel responsible for conducllng the evacuallon,

e This agreement shall be for no more than one (1) calendar year, at which time the agreement shall be reviewed
and updated - by the officials 1dent1fied in sub (4) - to remain in compliance with all applicable regulations,
1nclud1ng those of the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection and all other
applicable regulations

f All mobile recreational vehicles placed on site must meet one of the following

Be fully licensed, 1f required, and ready for highway use, or

11 Not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 consecutive days, at which time the recreational
vehicle must be removed from the floodplain for a mnmum of 24 hours, or

111 Meet the requirements in either s 30,4 0, 5 1, or 5 3 for the floodplain district in which the structure Is
located,

g A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for hghway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, Is attached to the site
only by quick-dsconnect utilities and security devces and has no permanently attached additions

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 13 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

h All camping units that remain on site for more than 30 days shall be issued a limited authonzat1on by the
campground operator, a written copy of which shall be kept on file at the campground Such authorization shall
allow placement of a camping urnt consistent with 2 4(6) and shall ensure compliance with all the provIsIons of this
section,

The City of Franklin shall monitor the limited authorizations issued by the campground operator to assure
compliance wth the terms of this section,

The campground shall have signs clearly posted at all entrances warning of the flood hazard and the procedures
for evacuation when a flood warning Is issued, and

k All service fac1llt1es, mcludmg but not limited to refuse collection, electrical service, gas Imes, propane tanks,
sewage systems and wells shall be properly anchored and placed at or floodproofed to the flood protection
elevation

Standards for structures in a campground

All structures must comply with the applicable requirements in ss 30, 40, 51, or 5 3 for the floodplain
district in which the structure is located,

11 A portable deck or landing may be allowed for a camping urn! for each entry provided that the landing Is not
permanently attached to the ground or camping urn!, Is no more than 200 square feet in size, shall be
portable, contain no walls or roof, and can be removed from the campground by a truck and/or trailer
Sections of such portable landings may be placed together to form a sIngle deck not greater than 200 square
feet at one entry pomt Prov1s1ons for the removal of these temporary landings during flood events must be
addressed within the written agreement wth the municipality complant wth subsections (a) through (3)
above Any such deck/landing structure may be constructed at elevations lower than the flood protection
elevation but must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the
occurrence of the regional flood

m Camping equipment and appurtenant equipment in the campground may be allowed provided that the equipment
Is not permanently attached to the ground or camping urnt, Is not used as a habitable structure, and must not
obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase m flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood
Provisions for the removal of thus equipment dunng flooding events shall be addressed wthin the written
agreement with the City of Franklin pursuant to subsection 5(d) and 5(e) above

n Once a flood warning in the written agreement has been issued for the campground, the campground owner or
the designated operator shall ensure that all persons, camping units, decks, camping equipment and appurtenant
equipment m the campground shall be evacuated wthin the timelines specified wthin the written agreement with
the City pursuant to subsection 5(d) and 5(e) above

6 A land use permit shall be obtained as provided under 7 1 (2) before any development, repair, modification or add1t1on
to an existing structure, or change in the use of a building or structure, including sewer and water fac11it1es, may be
Initiated

C Floodway District (FW)

Applicability This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those 1dent1fied pursuant to
s 5 1(5)

2 Permitted Uses The following open space uses are allowed in the Floodway District and the floodway areas of the
General Floodplain D1stnct, 1f

a The uses are not proh1b1ted by any other provIs1on of these Regulations,

b The standards in this Subsection C are met, and

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 14 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c All permits or certificates have been issued m accordance with section 7 1

d Permitted Uses

Agncultural uses, such as farming, outdoor plant nursenes, horticulture, v1t1culture and wild crop harvesting

Nonstructural mdustnal and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas and airport landing
stnps

111 Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery ranges, picnic grounds, boat
ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting, trap and
skeet activities, hunting and fishing areas and hiking and horseback ndng trails, subject to the fill limitations
of s 3 3(4)

Iv Uses or structures accessory to open space uses or classified as h1stonc structures that comply with s 3 3
and 34

v Extraction of sand, gravel or other matenals that comply with s 3 3(4)

v Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers or wharves, dams, flowage areas, culverts,
navigational ads and rver crossings of transmission Ines, and pipelines that comply with Chapters 30 and
31, Wisconsin Statutes

vu Public utilities, streets and bndges that comply with s 3 3(3)

vu Portable latnnes that are removed pnor to flooding and systems associated with recreational areas and
Department-approved campgrounds that meet the applicable provIsIons of local ordinances and Chapter
SPS 383, Wisconsin Admm1strabve Code

Ix Public or private wells used to obtain potable water for recreational areas that meet the requirements of local
ordinances and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin Adm1nistrat1ve Code

x Wastewater treatment ponds or fac1lit1es permitted under Sections NR 110 15(3)(b), W1sconsm
Administrative Code

x, Sanitary sewer or water supply Imes to service exIstmg or proposed development located outside the
floodway, which development complies with the regulations for the floodplain area occupied

3 Standards for Developments in the Floodway

a Any development In the floodway shall comply with Subsection B above and have a low flood damage potential

b Applicants shall provde an analysrs calculating the effects of this proposal on the regional flood height to
determine the effects of the proposal according to Subsection B 2 and 7 1(2)(c) The analysis must be completed
by a professional engineer registered in the state of Wisconsin

c Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway Is proh1b1ted unless the data submitted for subd 3 3(1 )(b) above
demonstrates that the encroachment will cause no Increase mn flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood
at any location or removes the encroached area from the regulatory floodway as provided m Subsection A(8)
above

4 Structures Structures accessory to permanent open space uses, mcludmg utility and sanitary fac1ht1es, or functionally
dependent on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit 1f the structures comply with the following cnteria

a Not designed for human habitation

b Does not have a high flood damage potential

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 15 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c Is constructed to m1nim1ze potential flood damage,

d Shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation or shall meet all the following
standards

The lowest floor 1s elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and is dry floodproofed so that the
structure 1s watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and completely dry to
the flood protection elevaton without human Intervention during flooding,

11 Has structural components capable of meeting all provisions of Subsection 6, Certification below and,

111 Has certification by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a Federal Emergency
Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design and methods of construction are 1n
accordance wth Subsection 6, Certification, below

e Shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement

f Mechanical and utility equipment are elevated to or above the flood protection elevation, and

g Does not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase m flood levels during the occurrence of the regional
flood

5 Design for Automatic Entry of Floodwaters For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters
below the Regional Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets Subsection (4)(a) through (4)(e)
above, and meets or exceeds the following standards

a The lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood elevation,

b a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square mch for every square foot of
enclosed area subject to flooding,

c the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the lowest adjacent grade, openings may be
equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devces provded that they permit the automatic
entry and exit of floodwaters, otherwise must remain open

d The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

6 Certification Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered professional engineer or architect shall
certify that the following floodproofing measures will be utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the
flood depths, pressures, veloc1t1es, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the regional flood

a Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement caused by water pressures or
debris buildup,

b Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to prevent the entrance of flood
waters 1n such systems and must be in accordance wth provisions mn Sections 3 4(4) and 3 4(5),

c Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and basement floors,

d Cutoff valves on sewer Imes or the elimination of gravity flow basement drams, and

e Placement of ut11it1es to or above the flood protection elevation

7 Public Utilities, Streets, and Bridges Public utilities, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, 1f

a Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation, and

b Construction meets the development standards of s 2 1

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 16 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

8 Fills or Deposition of Materials Fills or depos1t1on of materials may be allowed by permit, 1f

a The requirements of s 21are met,

b No material 1s deposited m navigable waters unless a permit Is Issued by the Department pursuant to ch 30,
Stats , and a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33
U S C 1344 has been issued, 1f applicable, and all other requirements have been met,

c The fill or other materials will be protected against erosion by riprap, vegetatve cover, sheet p1lmg or bulkheadmg,
and

d The fill is not classified as a solid or hazardous material

9 Prohibited Uses. All uses not listed as permitted uses m Subsection C(2) above are proh1b1ted, 1ncludmg the following
uses

a Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, and structures not associated with permanent
open-space uses,

b Storage of matenals that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or potentally Injurious to property, water quality, or
human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic life,

c Uses not in harmony wth or detrimental to uses permitted mn the adjoining dustncts,

d Any private or public sewage systems, except portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding and systems
associated with recreational areas and Department- approved campgrounds that meet the applicable provIsIons of
City of Franklin ordinances and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin AdmInistrat1ve Code

e Any public or private wells which are used to obtain potable water, except those for recreational areas that meet
the requirements of City of Franklin ordinances and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin Administrative
Code

Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites,

g Any wastewater treatment ponds or fac11it1es, except those permitted under Sections NR 110 15(3)/b), Wisconsin
Admm1strallve Code,

h Any sanitary sewer or water supply Imes, except those to service existing or proposed development located
outside the floodway which complies wth the regulations for the floodplain area occupred

D Floodfringe District (FF)

Applicability This section applies to all floodfnnge areas shown on the floodplain zoning maps and those 1dent1fied
pursuant to s 51(5)

2 Permitted Uses Any structure, land use, or development is allowed mn the Floodfrnge DIstnct if the standards In s 4 3
are met, the use Is not proh1b1ted by the City of Franklin Land Development Regulations, or any other ordinance or
regulation of the City of Franklin, and all permits or certificates specified ins 71have been issued

3 Standards for Development in the Floodfringe District The provIsIons of Subsection (C) above shall apply In
addition to the following requirements, according to the proposed use Any existing structure in the Floodfringe Distnct
must meet the requirements of s 6 0, Nonconforming Uses

a Residential Uses Any existing structure n residential use in the Floodfringe District must meet the requirements
of s 6 0 Nonconforming Uses Any structure for res1dent1al use, mcludmg a manufactured home, which Is to be
newly constructed or moved mto the Floodfringe District, shall meet or exceed the following standards

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 17 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

All new construction, including placement of manufactured homes, and all substantial improvement of
res1dent1al structures, shall have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation on fill
The fill around the structure shall be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation for an area
extending at least 15 feet beyond the limits of the structure No area may be removed from the Floodfnnge
District unless the resulting condition can be shown to meet s 1 5(5)

11 Notwithstanding Subsection (0)(4)(a) above, a basement or crawlspace floor may be placed at the regional
flood elevation 1f the basement or crawlspace Is designed to make all portions of the structure below the flood
protection elevation watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of
buoyancy No floor of any kind Is allowed below the regional flood elevation

111 Contiguous dryland access shall be provided from a structure to land outside of the floodplain, except as
provided in subsection (d)(1) through (d)(2) below

Iv In developments where existing street or sewer line elevations make compliance with Subsection (4)(c)
above impractical, the City of Franklin may permit new development and substantial improvements where
roads are below the regional flood elevation, If"

a) The City of Franklin Zoning Administrator has secured written assurance from police, fire and
emergency services that rescue and relief will be provided to the structure(s) by wheeled vehicles during
a regional flood event, or

b) The City of Franklin has adopted and in place a DNR-approved emergency evacuation plan applicable
to the site that follows acceptable hazard mitigation planning guidelines

b Accessory Structures and Uses In addition to meeting the provsions of Secton B, General Standards, new
construction and substantial improvements of Accessory structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor
at or above the regional flood elevation

c Commercial Uses In addition to meeting the provisions of Section B, General Standards, any commercial
structure which Is erected, altered or moved into the Floodfringe District shall meet the requirements of s 4 3(1)
Subject to the requirements of s 4 3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at
lower elevations f an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property

d Manufacturing and Industrial Uses In add1t1on to meeting the provisions of Section B, General Standards, any
manufacturing or industrial structure which Is erected, altered or moved into the floodfninge shall have the lowest
floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevatmn or meet the floodproofing standards in s 7 5 Subject to
the requirements of s 4 3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at lower
elevations if an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property

e Storage of Materials Matenals that are hazardous, buoyant, flammable, explosive, or potentially mnyuntous to
property, water quality or human, ammal, plant, fish or aquatic life shall be stored at or above the flood protection
elevation or floodproofed in compliance with s 7 5 Adequate measures shall be taken to ensure that such
materials wl not enter the water body during flooding

f Public Utilities, Streets, and Bridges All public utilities, streets and bridges shall be designed to be compatible
wth comprehensive floodplain development plans In addition, the following cnitena shall apply

When failure of public ut11it1es, streets and bridges would endanger public health or safety, or where such
facilities are deemed essential, construction or repair of such facilities shall only be permitted 1f the proposed
Improvements are designed to comply wth s 75

11 Minor roads or non-essential ut1ht1es may be constructed at lower elevations 1f tRey--aFe designed to withstand
flood forces to the regional flood elevation

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 18 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

g Sewage Systems All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to minImIze or eliminate infiltration of flood
water into the system, pursuant to s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and meet the provIsIons of all City of
Franklin standards and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Adm1mstrabve Code

h Wells All wells shall be designed to mnmze or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system, pursuant to
s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and shall meet the provIsIons of Chapters NR 811 and NR 812,
Wisconsin Administrative Code

Solid Waste Disposal Sites Prohibited Disposal of solid or hazardous waste is prohibited in floodfrnge areas

Deposition of Material Any deposition of matenal must meet all the provisions of this Section

k Manufactured Homes

Owners or operators of all manufactured home parks and subd1v1sions shall provide adequate surface
drainage to minImIze flood damage, and prepare, secure approval and file an evacuation plan, indicating
vehicular access and escape routes, with local emergency management authorities

In existing manufactured home parks, all new homes, replacement homes on existing pads, and substantially
improved homes shall

a) have the lowest floor elevated to the flood protection elevation, and

b) be anchored so that the manufactured home does not float, collapse or move laterally during a flood

ml Outside of existing manufactured home parks, Including new manufactured home parks and all single units
outside of existing parks, all new, replacement and substantially improved manufactured homes shall meet
the residential development standards for the floodfringe ins 4 3(1)

Mobile Recreational Vehicles A mobile recreational vehicle Is ready for highway use 1f 111s on its wheels or
jacking system, Is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and secuntty devces and has no
permanently attached add1t1ons All mobile recreational vehicles must be on site for less than 180 consecutive
days and be either

fully licensed and ready for highway use, or

shall meet the elevation and anchonng requirements In s 43 (11)(b) and (c)

E General Floodplain District (GFP)

Applicability The provIsIons for the General Floodplain District shall apply to development in all floodplains mapped
as A, AO, AH, and in AE zones within which a floodway Is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps 1dent1fied
mn s 15(2)(a)

2 Floodway Boundaries For proposed development in zone A, or in zone AE within which a floodway Is not delineated
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map identified in s 15(2)a), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway shall be
determined pursuant to s 51(5)

a If the development is proposed to encroach upon the regulatory floodway, the development Is subject to the
standards of s 3 0

b If the development is located entirely within the floodfnnge, the development is subject to the standards of s 4 0

3 Permitted Uses Pursuant to s 5 1(5) for any application for development, the Zomng Adm1mstrator shall determine
whether proposed use Is located within the floodway or floodfnnge Those uses permitted in the Floodway (Section C)
and Floodfrnge (Section D) Districts are allowed wthin the General Floodplain Drstnct, according to the standards of s
51(4), provided that all permits or certificates required under s 7 1 have been issued

City of Frankl in
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 19 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4 Standards for Development in the General Floodplain District Any development within the floodway, as
determined pursuant to 5 1(5), shall comply with the provisions of Section C, Floodway Any development within the
floodfrnge, as determined pursuant to Section 51(5), shall comply with the provisions of Section D, Floodfrnge

a New construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated

to or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM above the highest adJacent natural grade, or

if the depth rs not specified on the FIRM, to or above two (2} feet above the highest adJacent natural grade

b New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation

c In AO/AH zones, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around structures

d All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of s 4 0 applicable to flood fringe areas

5 Determination of Floodway and Floodfringe Limits Upon receiving an application for development within zone A,
or w1th1n zone AE where a floodway has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the Zoning
Administrator shall

a Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aenal photograph or a plan which shows the proposed
development wth respect to the general floodplain distnct limits, stream channel, and existing floodplamn
developments, along wth a legal description of the property, fill limits and elevations, building floor elevations and
flood proofing measures, and the flood zone as shown on the FIRM

b Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed necessary by the Department to evaluate
the effects of the proposal upon flood height and flood flows, regional flood elevation and to determine floodway
boundaries

A Hydrologc and Hydraulic Study as specified ins 71(2}(c)

11 A plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground, pertinent structure, fill or storage
elevations, srze, location and layout of all proposed and existing structures on the site, location and
elevations of streets, water supply, and sanitary facilities, soil types and other pertinent Information, and

111 Specifications for building construction and materials, floodproofing, filling, dredging, channel improvement,
storage, water supply and sanitary fac11it1es

F Non-Conforming Uses

Applicability

a The standards In this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not conform to the provIsIons contained
wthin a floodplamn zoning ordinance or with Section 87 30, Wisconsin Statutes, Sections NR 116 12-14,
Wisconsin Administrative Code, and 44 CFR 59-72

b These standards shall apply to all mod1ficat1ons or additions to any nonconforming use or structure, and to the use
of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this Section or any amendment thereto

c A party asserting existence of a lawfully established nonconforming use or structure has the burden of proving
that the use or structure was compliant with the floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the use or
structure was created

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 20 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

As permit applications are received for additions, modifications, or substantal improvements to nonconforming
buildings in the floodplain, the City of Franklin shall develop a hst of those nonconforming buildings, their present
equalized assessed value and a list of the costs of those activ1t1es associated with changes to those buildings

2 Continuation of Use. The exIstmg lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which Is not m conformity with the
provisions of thus Section may continue subject to the following conditions

a No mod1ficat1ons or add1t1ons to a nonconforming use or structure shall be permitted unless such modifications or
additions comply wth applicable provisions of thus Section The words "modification" and "addition" Include, but
are not l1m1ted to, any alteration, addition, modification, structural repair, rebuilding or replacement of any such
existing use, structure or accessory structure or use

Maintenance is not considered a modification, maintenance shall include painting, decorating, paneling and
other nonstructural components and the maintenance, repair or replacement of existing private sewage or
water supply systems or connections to public utilities

11 Any costs associated with the repair of a damaged structure shall not be considered maintenance

b The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that Is adjacent to the exterior wall of a
principal structure shall not be considered an extension, mod1ficat1on or add1t1on The roof of the structure may
extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe ingress and egress to the principal structure

c If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure Is discontinued for twelve (12) consecutive
months, the non-conforming use or use of the non-conforming structure Is no longer permitted Any future use of
the property, and any structure or building thereon, shall conform to the applicable reqwrements of this Section

The mun1c1pality shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and nonconforming structures, their present
equalized assessed value, the cost of all modifications or additions which have been permitted, and the percentage of
the structure's total current value those modifications represent,

d No modification or add1t1on to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming use, which over
the life of the structure would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be
allowed unless the entire structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use m
compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for
res1dent1al and commercial uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a
nonconforming building or a building with a nonconforming use to the flood protection elevation are excluded from
the 50% provsions of thus paragraph,

e No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming use,
the cost of which would equal or exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the
entire structure Is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use In compliance with the
applicable requirements of this ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for res1dent1al and
commercial uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does not
exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, does not count against the cumulative
calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement calculations

If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (d) and (e) above equals or exceeds 50% of
the present equalized assessed value the work shall not be permitted unless the entire structure 1s permanently
changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable requirements of this
ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for residential and commercial uses m compliance with
s 4 3(1)

g Except as provided In subdivision (h) below, if any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use Is destroyed or is substantially damaged, It cannot be replaced, re-constructed, or rebuilt unless the use and
the structure meet the current reqwrements of this Section A structure Is considered substantially damaged 1f the

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 21 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

total cost to restore the structure to its pre-damaged cond1t1on equals or exceeds 50% of the structure's present
equalized assessed value

h For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a non-flood event , the repair or
reconstruction of any such nonconforming building shall be permitted in order to restore tt to the size and use In
effect pror to the damage event, provided that the following minimum requirements are met and all required
permits have been granted pnor to the start of construction

Residential Structures All such res1dent1al structures

a) Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation
using fill, p1hngs, columns, posts or perimeter walls Perimeter walls must meet the requirements of s
7 5(2)

b) Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy and shall be constructed with
methods and materials resistant to flood damage

c) Shall be constructed wth electncal, heating, ventlaton, plumbing and ar conditioning equipment and
other service fac1ht1es that are designed and/or elevated so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding

d) In A Zones, obtain, review and ubhze any flood data available from a federal, state or other source

e) In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, meet the
standards ins 51(4)

f) In AO Zones, have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes to guide floodwaters around
and away from the structure

Nonresidential Structures All such non-residential structures

a) Shall meet the requirements of s 6 1 (2)(h)1 a-f

b) Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the regional flood elevation,
or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facltties, shall meet the standards mn s 7 5 (1) or (2)

c) In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, meet the
standards ms 51(4)

d) A nonconforming historic structure may be altered 1f the alteration does not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a hustonc structure, the alteration wll comply with s 33(1), flood resistant
materials are used, and construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply with s 7 5 are
used Repair or rehab1htation of historic structures shall be exempt from the development standards of s
61(2)(h)1 if it us determined that the proposed repair or rehab1htat1on will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a hustonic structure and is the minimum necessary to preserve the hustor1c
character and design of the structure

3 Floodway District.

a No mod1ficat1on or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use In the Floodway Dstnct, unless such modification or addition

Has been granted a permit or variance in conformance with all ordinance requirements,

11 Meets the requirements of s 61,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 22 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

111 Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height,

v Any addition to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to s 75, by means other than the use
of fill, to the flood protection elevation, and

v If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation 1s enclosed, the following standards shall
apply

a) The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the efficient entry
and exit of flood waters without human intervention A mnmum of two openings must be provided wth
a minimum net area of at least one square inch for every one square foot of the enclosed area The
lowest part of the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adJacent grade,

b) The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be constructed of flood
resistant matenals,

c) Mechanical and utihty equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood protection
elevation, and

d) The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

v No new on-srte sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-site sewage disposal system, except
where an addition has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard to public health, shall be
allowed in the Floodway DIstnct Any replacement, reparr or maintenance of an ex.sting on-site sewage
disposal system in a floodway area shall meet the applicable requirements of all mumc1pal ordinances, s
7 5(3) and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Adm1mstrative Code

vu No new well or mod1ficat1on to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed in the Floodway
District Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing well in the Floodway Dstnct shall meet the
applicable requirements of all mumc1pal ordinances, s 7 5(3) and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, W1scons1n
Administrative Code

b No new on-site sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-site sewage disposal system, except where
an add1t1on has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard to public health, shall be allowed In the
Floodway District Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing on-site sewage disposal system In a
floodway area shall meet the applicable requirements of all City of Franklin ordinances, s 7 5(3) of this Section,
and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Administrative Code

c No new well or mod1ficat1on to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed In the Floodway
District Any replacement, repar or maintenance of an existing well in the Floodway District shall meet the
applicable requirements of all City of Frank1ln ordinances, s 7 5(3), and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin
Administrative Code

4 Floodfringe District

a No modification or add1t1on shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use unless such mod1ficat1on or add1t1on has been granted a permit or variance by the mumc1pality and meets the
requirements of s 4 3 except where s 6 3(2} 1s applicable

b Where compliance with the provisions of subd (1) would result in unnecessary hardship and only where the
structure will not be used for human hab1tat1on or be associated with a high flood damage potential, the Board of
Zoning and Building Appeals, using the procedures established in s 73, may grant a variance from those
provisions of subd (1) for modifications or additions using the cntena listed below Modifications or additions
which are protected to elevations lower than the flood protection elevation may be permitted 1f all of the following
are met

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 23 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

No floor Is allowed below the regional flood elevation for residential or commercial structures,

11 Human lives are not endangered,

111 Public fac11it1es, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed,

Iv Flood depths shall not exceed two feet,

v Flood veloc1t1es shall not exceed two feet per second, and

v The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described In s 4 3(5)

c All new private sewage disposal systems, or add1t1on to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a private sewage
disposal system shall meet all the applicable provsuons of all City of Franklin ordinances, s 7 5 (3) and Chapter
SPS 383, Wisconsin Administrative Code

d All new wells, or add1t1on to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a well shall meet the applicable provIsIons of
this Section, s 7 5 (3) and Chapter NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsmn Administrative Code

G Administration

Zoning Administrator; Land Use Permits; Certificates of Compliance

a Duties and Powers The Zoning Administrator is authonzed to administer thus Section and shall have the following
duties and powers

Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit applications and appeals, and
assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed development Is shown on all permit applications

t Issue permits and inspect properties for complance wrth provstons of thus ordinance and 1ssue certificates of
compliance where appropriate

111 Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine 1f substantial damage to the structures
has occurred

v Keep records of all official actions such as

a) All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved,

b) Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations,

c) Floodproofing certificates

d) Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming uses and structures
including changes, appeals, variances and amendments

e) All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures in floodplain districts

f) Lusts of nonconforming structures and uses

v Submit copies of the following items to the Department of Natural Resources Regional office

a) Within 10 days of the decIs1on, a copy of any dec1s1ons on variances, appeals for map or text
interpretations, and map or text amendments,

b) Copies of case-by-case analyses and other required information

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 24 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c) Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related correspondence concerning the
assessments

v Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of this ordinance to the municipal zoning agency and
attorney for prosecution Copies of the reports shall also be sent to the Department of Natural Resources
Regional office

v11 Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office

b Land Use Permit A land use permit shall be obtained before any development, repair, mod1ficat1on or add1t1on to
an exIstIng structure, or change in the use of a building or structure, including sewer and water fac1ht1es, may be
Initiated Application to the Zoning Administrator shall include

General Information

a) Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor,

b) Legal description, proposed use, and whether 1t 1s new construction or a mod1ficat1on,

11 Site Development Plan.

a) A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the permit application form and shall contain

() Location, dimensions, area and elevation of the lot,

(11) Location of the ordinary h1ghwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways,

(ui) Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and street center Imes,

(v) Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water supply systems,

(v) Location and elevation of existing or future access roads,

(v1) Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official floodplain zoning maps,

(vu) The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed buildings and any fill using the vertical datum from the
adopted study - either National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or North Amencan Vertical Datum
(NAVD),

() Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation in NGVD or NAVO at the location of the
development and to determine whether or not the requirements of s 3 0 or 4 0 are met, and

(x) Data to determine 1f the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow or an increase In
regional flood height or discharge according to s 21 This may include any of the information
noted ins 3 3(1)

111 Hydraulic and Hydrologic Studies

a) All hydraulic and hydrolog1c studies shall be completed under the direct superv1sIon of a professional
engineer registered in the State of Wisconsin The study contractor shall be responsible for the technical
adequacy of the study All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources

() In Zone A floodplains and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated

1 Hydrology The appropriate method shall be based on the standards m Chapter NR
116 07(3), Wisconsin Administrative Code, Hydrologc Analysis Determination of Regional
Flood Discharge

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Speorfic Standards
Page 25 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Hydraulic modeling The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards mn Chapter
NR 116 07(4), Wisconsin Admin1strat1ve Code, Hydraulic Analysis Determmat,on of Regional
Flood Elevation and the following

a Determination of the required hm1ts of the hydraulic model shall be based on detailed
study information for downstream structures (dam, bridge, culvert) to determine adequate
starting WSEL for the study

b Channel sections must be surveyed

c A m1mmum four-foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for the development of
cross section overbank and floodplain mapping

d A maximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections 1s allowed 1n developed areas
with additional intermediate cross sections required at transitions mn channel bottom slope
including a survey of the channel at each location

e The most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used

A survey of bridge and culvert openings and the top of road 1s required at each structure

g Additional cross sections are required at the downstream and upstream limits of the
proposed development and any necessary intermediate locations based on the length of
the reach f greater than 500 feet

h Standard accepted engineering practices shall be used when assigning parameters for
the base model such as flow, Manning's N values, expansion and contraction coefficients
or effective flow limits The base model shall be calibrated to past flooding data such as
high water marks to determine the reasonableness of the model results If no historical
data is avalable, adequate justification shall be provided for any parameters outside
standard accepted engineerng practices

The model must extend past the upstream lmt of the difference in the existing and
proposed flood profiles mn order to provide a tie-mn to existing studies The height
difference between the proposed flood profile and the existing study profiles shall be no
more than O 00 feet

() Mapping A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all cross-section locations,
floodway/floodplain hm1ts based on best available topographic data, geographic limits of the
proposed development and whether the proposed development 1s located m the floodway

If the proposed development 1s located outside of the floodway, then tt is determined to have
no impact on the regional flood elevation

2 If any part of the proposed development 1s in the floodway, 1t must be added to the base
model to show the difference between existing and proposed conditions The study must
ensure that all coefficients remain the same as in the exstng model, unless adequate
justification based on standard accepted engineenng practices Is provded

() In Zone AE Floodplains:

Hydrology If the proposed hydrology will change the ex1stmg study, the appropriate method
to be used shall be based on Chapter NR 116 07(3), Wisconsin Administrative Code,
Hydrologuc Analysis Determination of Regional Flood Discharge

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 26 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Hydraulic model The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in Chapter NR
116 07(4), Wisconsin Administrative Code, Hydrau/Jc Analysis Determmat,on of Regional
Flood Elevation and the following

a Duplicate Effective Model The effective model shall be reproduced to ensure correct
transference of the model data and to allow integration of the revised data to provide a
continuous FIS model upstream and downstream of the revised reach If data from the
effective model 1s available, models shall be generated that duplicate the FIS profiles and
the elevations shown in the Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to within O 1 foot

b Corrected Effective Model The Corrected Effective Model shall not include any man
made physical changes since the effective model date but shall import the model into the
most current version of HEC-RAS for Department review

c Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model The Existing Model shall be required to
support conclusions about the actual impacts of the project assocrated wth the Revised
(Post-Project) Model or to establish more up-to-date models on which to base the
Revised (Post-Project) Model

d Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model The Revised (Post-Project Cond1l1ons)
Model shall incorporate the Existing Model and any proposed changes to the topography
caused by the proposed development This model shall reflect proposed cond1l1ons

e All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent models must be supported
by certified topographic information, bridge plans, construction plans and survey notes

f Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream reach for which the
rev1s1on 1s being requested Cross sections upstream and downstream of the revised
reach shall be identical to those in the effective model and result in water surface
elevations and topw1dths computed by the revised models matching those in the effective
models upstream and downstream of the revised reach as required The Effective Model
shall not be truncated

3 Mapping Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the Department for
review which meet the following conditions

a Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised floodplain and floodway
delineations, the revised flood profiles, topographic work map, annotated FIRMs and/or
Flood Boundary Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction plans, bridge plans

b Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a plan1metric map
showing the applicable items If a digital version of the map rs available, It may be
submitted in order that the FIRM may be more easily revised

c Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1% and O 2% annual chance floodplains and
floodway boundaries

d If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and d1g1tal mapping data (GIS or GADD) are used
then all supporting documentation or metadata must be included with the data
submission along with the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection and State
Plane Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping spec1ficat1ons

e The revised floodplamn boundanes shall tie into the effective floodplain boundaries

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 27 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

f All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in accordance with the
effective map and a cross section lookup table shall be included to relate to the model
input numbering scheme

g Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the map

h The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream distances n the model
shall be visible on the map

Expiration All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire no more than 180 days after
issuance The permit may be extended for a maximum of 180 days for good and sufficient cause If the
permitted work has not started w1th1n 180 days of the permit date, the development must comply with any
regulation, including any revston to the FIRM or FIS, that took effect after the permit date

c Certificate of Compliance No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which Is hereafter constructed,
altered, added to, modified, repaired, rebuilt or replaced shall be occupied until a certificate of compliance Is
Issued by the zoning administrator, except where no permit is required, subject to the following provisions

The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof, and the proposed use,
conform to the provsons of thus Section,

11 Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a land use permit,

111 If all ordinance provIsIons are met, the certificate of compliance shall be issued wthin 10 days after written
notification that the permitted work 1s completed,

Iv The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional engineer, architect or land
surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and floodproofing elevations are in compliance with the permit issued
Floodproofing measures also require certification by a Wisconsin registered professional engineer or
architect that the requirements of s 7 5 are met

v Where applicable pursuant to s 51(4), the applicant must submit a certification by a registered Wisconsin
professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member
supporting the lowest floor (excluding pilings or columns), and an indication of whether the structure contains
a basement

v Where applicable pursuant to s 5 1 (4), the applicant must submit certifications by a Wisconsin registered
professional engineer or architect that the structural design and methods of construction meet accepted
standards of practice as required bys 5 1 (4)

d Other Permits Prior to obtaining a floodplain development permit the applicant must secure all necessary
permits from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those required by the U S Army Corps
of Engineers under Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U S C 1344

2 Plan Commission; Role and Responsibilities.

a The Plan Commission of the City of Franklin shall, wth respect to thus Section

Oversee the functions of the office of the zoning administrator, and

11 Review and advise the Common Council body on all proposed amendments to this ordinance, maps and
text, and

111 Publish adequate notice pursuant to Chapter 985, Wisconsin Statutes, specifying the date, time, place and
subject of any public hearng

b The Plan Comm1ss1on of the City of Franklin shall not, with respect to this Section

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 28 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals,
or

Amend the text or zoning maps in place of official action by the governing body

3 Board of Zoning and Building Appeals; Role and Responsibilities. The Board of Zoning and Bu1ld1ng Appeals
established pursuant to Secbon 62 23(7)(e) Wisconsin Statues 1s hereby authorized or shall be appointed to act for the
purposes of thus Section The Board shall exercise the powers conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the
conduct of business The Zoning Administrator shall not be the secretary of the Board

a Powers and Duties The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall

Appeals - Hear and decide appeals where it Is alleged there rs an error in any order, requirement, dec1s1on
or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement or administration of this Section,

11 Boundary Disputes - Hear and decide disputes concerning the district boundaries shown on the official
floodplain zoning map, and

111 Variances - Hear and decide, upon appeal, variances from the ordinance standards

b Appeals to the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals

Standing to Appeal Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any officer or
department of the municipality affected by any decision of the Zoning Administrator or other administrative
officer Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days unless otherwise provided by the rules of the Board, by
filing wtth the offical whose decston is In question, and wth the board, a notice of appeal specifying the
reasons for the appeal The official whose dec1s1on 1s in question shall transmit to the Board all records
regarding the matter appealed

11 Notice and Hearing for Appeals and Variances.

a) Notice The Board shall

() Fx a reasonable time for the heanng,

(11) Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specfyng the date, time, place and
subject of the heanng, and

(111) Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources Regional office at least 10 days m advance of the hearing

b} Hearing Any party may appear n person or by agent The Board shall

() Resolve boundary disputes according to s 7 3(3),

(u) Decide vanance applications according to s 73(4), and

(u) Decide appeals of permit denals according to s 74

c) Decision The final dec1s1on regarding the appeal or variance application shall

() Be made within a reasonable time,

(11) Be sent to the Department of Natural Resources Regional office w1th1n ten (10) days of the
decrs1on,

(u) Be issued in the form of a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the Board,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 29 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

(v) State the specific facts which are the basis for the Board's decision,

(v) Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, dec1s1on or determination appealed, In
whole or in part, dismiss the appeal for lack of unsdcton or grant or deny the van1ance application,
and

(v1) Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship demonstrated by the applicant
in the case of a variance, clearly stated in the recorded minutes of the Board proceedings

c Boundary Disputes The following procedure shall be used by the Board in hearing disputes concerning
flood,plan district boundanes

If a floodplain district boundary 1s established by approximate or detailed floodplain studies, the flood
elevations or profiles shall prevail m locating the boundary

11 The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present arguments
and technical evidence to the Board, and

111 If the boundary 1s incorrectly mapped, the Board should inform the zoning committee or the person
contesting the boundary location to petition the governing body for a map amendment according to s 8 0
Amendments

d Variance

The Board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance 1f an applicant
convincingly demonstrates that.

a) Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship,

b) The hardship 1s due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique property cond1t1ons, not common
to adJacent lots or premises (in which case the ordinance or map must be amended to grant a permit),

c) Issuance of the vanance willnot result in an outcome or precedent contrary to the public interest, and

d) The variance 1s consistent with the purpose of this ordinance as set forth 1n Subsection A

11 In add1t1on to the criteria m Subsection (1) above, to qualify for a variance under FEMA regulations, the Board
must find that the following criteria have been met

a) The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation,

b) The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the variance,

c) Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship,

d) Granting the variance will not result 1n additional threats to public safety, extraordinary expense, create
a nuisance, cause fraud on or vctimrzaton of the publc, or conflict with exastng local laws or
ordinances, and

e) The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief

111 A variance shall not

a) Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited mn the zoning district,

b) Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss,

c) Be granted for a hardship which 1s self-created,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 30 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

d) Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area,

e) Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) required ins 8 0, Amendments, or

f) Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which would preclude its continued
designation as an historic structure

Iv When a floodplain variance is granted the Board shall notify the applicant an writing that the authorized
action may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance premiums could increase up to $25 00 per
$100 00 of coverage A copy of this notice shall be mamtained with the variance record

4 Review of Appeals and Permit Denials.

a The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall review all data related to the appeal including, but not limited to

Permit application data listed in s 71(2).

11 Floodway/floodfringe determination data ins 51(5),

111 Data listed in s 3 3(1)(b) in cases where the applicant has not submitted this information to the Zoning
Administrator, and

Iv Other data submitted with the application or submitted to the Board with the appeal

b For appeals of all denied permits, the Board shall

Follow the procedures of s 73,

Consider recommendations of the Plan Comm1ss1on, and

111 Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal

c For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the Board shall

Uphold the denial where the Board agrees with the data showing an increase in flood elevation Increases
may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and map and all appropriate legal arrangements are
made with all adversely affected property owners as per the requirements of s 8 0 Amendments, QI

Grant the appeal where the Board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that the proJect does not
cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist.

5 Floodproofing Standards.

a No permit or variance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be watertight below the regional
flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that
the fioodproofing measures will protect the structure or development to or above the flood protection elevation and
submits a FEMA Floodproofing Certificate Floodproofing is not an alternative to the development standards set
forth in ss 20,30,40, 5 1, or 5 3

b For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be issued until the applicant
submits a plan erther

Certified by a registered Wisconsin professional engneer or architect, or

n Meeting or exceedng the followng standards

a) A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square
foot of enclosed area subject to flooding, and

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specfic Standards
Page 31 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

b} The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one-foot above grade, and

c) Openings may-be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices provided that
these permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters

111 Floodproofing measures shall be designed, as appropriate, to

a) Withstand flood pressures, depths, veloc1t1es, uplift and impact forces and other regional flood factors,

b} Protect structures to the flood protection elevation,

c) Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement,

d) Mnimrze or elmnate infiltration of flood waters,

e) Mnimrze or eliminate discharges Into flood waters,

f) Placement of Locate essential ut1lit1es to or above the flood protection elevation, and

g) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation 1s enclosed, the following standards
shall apply

() The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the efficient
entry and ext of flood waters without human Intervention A minimum of two openings must be
provided with a minimum net area of at least one square mch for every one square foot of the
enclosed area The lowest part of the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adJacent
grade,

(u) The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be constructed of
flood-resistant materials,

(111) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood protection
elevation, and

(Iv) The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

H Amendments.

General Provisions Obstructions or increases may only be permitted 1f amendments are made to this ordinance, the
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface profiles, m accordance with Section H 2 below

a In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted unless the applicant
receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revsion from FEMA and amendments are made to this ordinance, the
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface profiles, m accordance with s 8 1 Any such
alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and the W1sconsm Department of Natural Resources

b In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 1 0 foot may only be permitted 1f the applicant receives a
Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are made to this Section, the offic1al floodplain
maps, floodway Imes, and water surface profiles, m accordance with s 8 1

2 Action by Common Council The Common Council shall change or supplement the floodplain zoning d1stnct
boundaries and this ordinance m the manner outlined ms 8 2 below Actions which require an amendment to the
ordinance and/ or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) include, but are not limited to, the following

a Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any Increase in the regional flood height,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 32 of 33



I
DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

b Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM,

c Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed m s 1 5 (2)(b),

d Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the flood protection elevation
and rs contiguous to land lying outside the floodplain,

e Correction of d1screpanc1es between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps,

Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning text required by Section NR 116 05, Wisconsin Administrative Code, or
otherwise required by law, or for changes by the City of Franklin, and

g All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway Imes or to remove an area from the floodway or
the floodfnnge that is based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM requires prior approval by FEMA

3 Procedures

a Amendments may be made upon petton of any party according to the provisions of Section 62 23, Wisconsin
Stautes The petitions shall include all data required bys 51(5) and 71(2) The Land Use Permit shall not be
issued until a Letter of Map Rev1s1on Is issued by FEMA for the proposed changes

b The proposed amendment shall be referred to the Plan Comm1ss1on for a public hearing and recommendation to
the Common Council The amendment and notice of Common Council public hearing shall be submitted to the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Regional office for review prior to the hearing The amendment
procedure shall comply with the provisions of Section 62 23, Wisconsin Statutes

c No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources

d All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase m the regional flood height,
shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal arrangements from all adversely affected property
owners and notify local units of government before the amendment can be approved by the govern mg body

Enforcement and Penalties Any violation of the provIsIons of this Section by any person shall be unlawful and shall be
referred to the City of Franklin attorney who shall exped1t1ously prosecute all such violators A violator shall, upon convIctIon,
forfeit to the municipality a penalty of not more than $50 00 (fifty dollars), together with a taxable cost of such action Each
day of continued violation shall constitute a separate offense Every volat1on of thus ordinance rs a public nuisance and the
creation may be enjoined and the maintenance may be abated by action at suit of the City of Franklin, the State of
Wisconsin, or any citizen thereof pursuant to Section 87 30, Wisconsin Statutes

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 33 of 33



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 4. Use-Specific Standards

15-4-01 Residential Use-Specific Standards

15-4-02 Institutional Use-Specific Standards

15-4-03 Place of Assembly Use-Specific Standards

15-4-04 Recreation Use-Specific Standards

15-4-05 Lodging Use-Speafic Standards

15-4-06 Retail Use-Specific Standards

15-4-07 Service Use-Specific Standards

15-4-08 Eating and Dnnkung Use-Specific Standards

15-4-09 Vehicle-Related Use-Specific Standards

15-4-10 Agricultural Use-Specific Standards

15-4-11 Industrial Use-Specific Standards

15-4-12 Utility and Transportation Use-Specific Standards

15-4-13 Accessory Use-Spec1fic Standards

15-4-14 Temporary Use-Specific Standards

3

3
3

4

4
5

5

6

8

8

9

14

20

15-4-01. Residential Use-Specific Standards

A Community Living, All Capacities.

No community hving arrangement shall be established within two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet of any other such
facility regardless of its capacity

2 Foster homes housing four (4) or fewer children and licensed under Sec 48 62, Wis Stats , shall not be subject to
these prov1sons

B Duplex.

Duplexes primary entrances shall be oriented toward the designated front lot hne

2 A minimum of one (1) of the parking spaces, as specified in Section 16-6-1(E) of thIs UDO, shall be provded In an
attached or detached garage

3 Attached garages are encouraged to be located on rear far;ades If attached garages are located on the primary facade
they shall

a Not exceed forty-five (45) percent of the facade's total width,

b Be setback a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet from the property hne, and

c Be recessed from the pnmary front far;ade (excluding porches) of the duplex a minimum of five (5) feet

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 1 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4 Exterior building cladding matenals shall be time- and weather- tested materials and techniques such as but not limited
to masonry, stone veneer systems, stucco, precast panels with inlaid or stamped brick texture

C Townhome.

Townhomes shall be oriented with their primary entrances either

a Toward the designated front lot lme The primary entrance of end unit townhomes on corner lots may be oriented
toward the designated front or extenor side lot line

b Toward an internal courtyard space The primary entrance of end unit townhomes closest to the designated front
lot line shall be oriented toward the designated front lot line

2 Indvdual townhome units should be articulated through the exterior design of the townhome cluster This can be
accomplished through dormers, porches, vertical design elements, varying roof forms, or other architectural devices

3 The maximum length of a townhome cluster shall be two hundred (200) lineal feet

4 The sItIng of the townhome units in a cluster shall be staggered in order to define street edges, entry points, and public
gathering spaces

5 A minimum of one (1) of the parking spaces, as detailed in Section##-#-## of this UDO shall be provided in an
attached or detached garage

6 Attached or detached garages shall be located on rear or side fa9ades, unless otherwise approved

7 Exterior building cladding matenals shall be time- and weather-tested materials and techniques such as but not limited
to masonry, stone veneer systems, stucco, precast panels with inlaid or stamped brick texture

D Multifamily Building.

The building's primary fac;ade and principal entrance shall be oriented toward a public street

2 A maximum of one (1) curb cut allowing vehicular access to the site shall be permitted per street frontage unless
otherwise approved by the Zonmg Admm1strator

3 All off-street parking, as specified in Section 16-6-1(E) of this UDO, shall be located in the rear and/or interior side of
the primary building Off-street parking located in the interior side yard setback shall be set back a minimum of one (1)
foot from the front elevation of the primary building

4 ADA compliant pedestrian walkways shall be provided to all building entries and parking areas and shall connect to the
sidewalk at the street frontage

5 Service areas, dumpsters, utilities and the required nonvegetabve screening of these features shall not be v1s1ble from
rights-of-way

6 Multifamily uses shall operate in accordance with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws and, 1f add1t1onal
permits are required, such permits were obtained pnor to beginning operation

7 AII multifamily buildings shall meet the design standards of Section 11-6##

E Multifamily Complex

Primary Facade.

a The primary entrance and front facade of buildings within a multifamily complex shall be oriented towards the
following, lusted in pronty order

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 2 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Perimeter streets,

II Primary internal streets,

Ill Parks or other common open space,

IV Secondary internal streets, or

V Parking areas only if approved by the Zoning Administrator

2 Parking shall be integrated into the overall site design to mnmmrze visual impact, reduce the loss of trees, and be
visually concealed from public rights-of-way

3 ADA compliant pedestrian walkways shall be provided to all building entries and parking areas and shall connect to the
sidewalk at the street frontage

15-4-02. Institutional Use-Specific Standards

A Cemetery.

The minimum lot size for a cemetery shall be three (3) acres

2 Adequate space shall be provided within the site for the parking and maneuvering of funeral corteges

3 All interment shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any adJoining lot line

4 All structures shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any boundary line of the cemetery property plus two (2) feet
for each one (1) foot of structure heght over 25 feet to the maximum heght permitted by the distnct in which it Is
located

5 All requirements of the Wisconsin State Statutes regarding the interment of human dead shall be met

15-4-03. Place of Assembly Use-Specific Standards
RESERVE

15-4-04. Recreation Use-Specific Standards

A Campgrounds.

All campgrounds shall have direct access to an arterial street, however no direct access to an ind1v1dual site shall be
permitted from a public street

2 All campgrounds shall have a minimum site area of thirty (30) contiguous acres

3 All trailer and vehicle parking spaces are to be paved with asphaltlc concrete

4 No more than fifteen (15) percent of a travel trailer park site shall be used for campground purposes

5 The following accessory uses may be allowed

a Recreational facilities

b Laundry buildings

c One (1) service retail store not to exceed 2,000 square feet in total floor area

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 3 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

d A manager's office and storage buildings, sanitary fac1ht1es, and fences, constructed in accordance with all the
provisions of this Ordinance and all other applicable City of Franklin regulations

e No accessory buildings or structures shall be used for human occupancy, except as explicitly approved

6 A maximum density of 15 campsites per acre shall be allowed

7 One hundred (100) square feet of recreation area shall be provided per campsite

8 All public ut11it1es shall be placed underground

9 Campground areas of any travel trailer park shall provide a minimum of 500 square for each tent site A ten foot
separation shall be maintained between tents

10 Every campground there shall be provided at least one (1) sanitary garbage pickup area on the site

11 All campgrounds shall comply with all State and local regulations

15.4-05. Lodging Use-Specific Standards

A Lodging House.

The property must be developed, maintained, and operated so that the pnnc1pal building, accessory buildings, yard,
drive, and street frontage complement the appearance and character of its adJacent neighborhood and do not detract
from abutting properties

2 Cooking fac11it1es shall not be permitted In any of the guest rooms

3 The Zoning Administrator may require a lodging house to be screened from abutting residential properties by the
erection and maintenance of a Transition Area per Section 11-60#4 , the type of which shall be determined by the Zoning
Administrator

4 The principal use Is for lodging with accessory uses such as catering or events venue requmng temporary use permit

B Short-Term Rental.

A maximum of two (2) adult guests per bedroom shall be allowed

2 The duration of guest stay shall be a minimum of five (5) days and a maximum of thirty (30) days

3 A residence may be utilized as a short-term rental for a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days per calendar year

4 The res1dent1al dwelling in which short term rental operates shall be the primary residence of the property owner

5 Short-term rentals shall be sub1ect to the hotel tax provisions established in Chapter 138-25 of the City of Franklin
Code of Ordinances

15-4-06. Retail Use-Specific Standards

A Adult Establishment.

Adult establishments shall locate at least one-thousand (1,000) feet from any parcel in a res1dent1al district or with an
existing use classified in the following categories

a Residential

b Institutional

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 4 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c Place of Assembly

d Lodging

e Eating and drmkmg

2 Adult establishments shall locate at least one thousand (1,000) feet from another adult establishment

3 A Type D Bufferyard shall be provided along all property Imes shared with an existing use categonzed mn subsection
(A)(1) or when adjoining a resident1al distnct

4 The hours of operation shall be limited to between 11 30 am and 1 00 am, except for cleaning and maintenance
actIvItIes necessary for the property's operation, which may occur or after the hours specified m this subsection

5 No amplified sound equipment audible outside the principal building shall be allowed

6 Adult uses shall comply with all federal, state, county, and local laws, rules, and regulations, as amended

15-4-07. Service Use-Specific Standards

A Animal Boarding Facility/Kennel and/or Veterinary Services.

No livestock or large animals shall be boarded, treated, or kept on the premises

2 Buildings shall be located no closer than seventy-five (75) feet from any adjacent residential property

3 Enclosed exercise areas shall be at least one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any residential property All exercise areas
shall be enclosed by a fence and adjacent to the principal building

4 All hitter and waste shall be contained and controlled on site by havng appropnate flushing dramns and other physical
elements to properly dispose of cleaning waste from the boarding area Solid waste shall be removed from outdoor
areas after each use of the area

5 All activities, except animal exercise areas, shall be conducted wthin an enclosed building designed wth nose
resistant materials and which allows for adequate ventilation

6 Drainage from outdoor areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas m a manner that prevents
direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

7 Solid waste will be removed from the outdoor area after each use of the area

8 All outdoor areas shall be screened with a solid opaque fence or wall at least six (6) feet m height Slatted chain link
fences shall not meet this requirement

9 Use of outdoor exercise areas between the hours of 10 00 pm and 7 00 am Is proh1b1ted

15.4-08. Eating and Drinking Use-Specific Standards

A Food Truck Court.

The maximum number of food trucks allowed on site shall depend on the size of the lot and site's ability to provide
required electncal access and parking Site plans shall be provided to the City for revew before permitting

2 A mInImum of ten (10) feet of clearance shall be provided between food truck stalls

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 5 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

3 Food truck stalls shall be clearly defined and separated from all patron parking with an enclosure Any use of fencing or
planters to separate the food truck park from parking shall provide v1s1b1lity mto the site and shall not exceed four (4)
feet mn height.

4 Food truck courts are encouraged to create an mv1ting and attractive aesthetic environment and shall include seating
and shade elements

5 A minimum of (2) permanent restrooms that meet ADA standards shall be made accessible to patrons within two
hundred (200) feet of the food truck court dunng hours of operation

6 Electrical service shall be provided to each food truck

7 A mm1mum of one (1) trash receptacle and one (1) recycling receptacle shall be provided per food truck The food truck
park shall also provide a commercial dumpster outside of the designated patron area for waste disposal The dumpster
shall be screened m accordance with Secton 11-60#

15.4-09. Vehicle-Related Use-Specific Standards

A Auto Sales/Rental and Service.

All outdoor display areas for sales, rental, and service shall be improved with all-weather surfaces

2 Parking lots used for the outdoor display of motor vehicles for sale and/or rent shall be exempt from the landscape
spacing requirements for the parking area perimeter zone, as detailed In Section 11-60## , and instead may cluster
required landscape elements to preserve views to motor vehicles offered for sale and/or rent

3 No vehicles shall be parked wthin the publc nght-of-way

4 Repair bays shall not front adjacent publc nghts-of-way or face a parcel with a residential use or 1n a res1dent1al
district

5 No more than one (1) elevated display shall be used, ra1smg the vehicle no more than three (3) feet off the ground

6 Accessory uses and structures, such as car wash facilities and their 1nc1dental functions (vacuums and arr
compressors) shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from public rights-of-way or a res1dent1al use or district

7 No existing buildings shall be occupied or re-used for vehicle sales, rental and servce unless all requirements of th1s
UDO are met The use shall operate in accordance with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws If add1t1onal
permits are required, such permits shall be obtained pnor to the operation's approval

8 Drainage from outdoor storage and/or act1v1ty areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas in a
manner that prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

9 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related activities shall be incorporated into
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

10 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg gradmg and where necessary oil/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been Incorporated into the site plan to comply wth Section (13)

B Carwash.

Hours of operation shall be restricted to between 7am and 10pm

2 All car wash fac1hties and accessory equipment such as vacuums, dryers, and accessory buildings and structures shall
be set back a minimum of two hundred (200) feet from any parcel wth an existing residential use or in a residential
district Such facilities and equipment shall be enclosed within a building, except for self-servce vacuum units

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 6 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

3 If self-service vacuum fac1ht1es are provided, a minimum of one (1) parking space for each vehicle capable of being
serviced at any one time at such vacuum facility shall be provided Such parking spaces for accessory vacuum
facilities shall not interfere wth crculaton or entrance or exit drives

4 Accessory equipment such as vacuum facilities shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet from all property lines

5 All full-service or conveyor-based carwash fac1hbes shall be equipped with a water recycling system that shall recycle a
minimum of fifty (50) percent of the water being used by the facility

6 Drainage from outdoor storage and/or activity areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas m a
manner that prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

7 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related act1vItIes shall be incorporated mto
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

8 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 01I/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section ( 13)

C Major Automotive Repair.

A Type C trans1t1on area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adjacent to any parcel in a
nonresidential distnct

2 A Type D transItIon area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot lines adjacent to any parcel m a
res1dental distnct

3 AII vehicle repair actrvttes shall be within a completely enclosed building

4 All storage of vehicles awaiting needed parts shall be w1thm the building or m an enclosed or screened-in yard

5 All damaged or nonoperable parts shall be stored indoors until removed from the premises

6 AII vehicle parts within a completely enclosed building

7 Service bay entrances shall not front a public nght-of-way unless specifically approved

8 The maximum allowable number of tow trucks which can be parked at the site shall be determined by the Plan
Commission as a condition of approval of the Conditional Use Permit

9 Drainage from major automotive repair areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas In a manner
that prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

10 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related actIvItIes shall be incorporated mto
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

11 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 01I/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section (10)

D Vehicle Fuel Sales.

All fuel sales stations shall have direct access to an arterial or collector street

2 Any fuel pumps, underground fuel storage tanks, and islands, shall be at least fifty (50) feet from any street or abutting
lot line

3 All fuel pumps shall be set back a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet from the street nght-of-way and side or rear lot
Imes

c,ty of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 7 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4 All fuel pump canopies shall be located a minimum of twenty (20) feet from the street right-of-way and side or rear lot
Imes

5 All fuel pumps and fuel pump canopies shall be located a minimum of fifty (50) feet from any res1dent1al d1stnct
boundary line

6 Fuel pump canopies shall have a maximum height of twenty-five (25) feet

7 Fuel pump canopy columns shall be clad in masonry, stucco, fiber cement, or stone veneer systems with a minimum
thickness of three (3) inches, for a minimum of four (4) feet from the base of the column

8 Fuel pump canopies shall be ht with only fully recessed lighting

9 A Type B transItIon area, as detailed m Secbon 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adjacent to any parcel m a
nonresidential distnct

10 A Type D trans1bon area, as detailed in Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adjacent to any parcel ma
residential distnct

11 No signs shall be permitted on fuel pump canopy roofs or fascia

12 Drainage from vehicle fuel sales areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas In a manner that
prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

13 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related act1v1ties shall be incorporated mto
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

14 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 01I/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section (13)

15-4-10. Agricultural Use-Specific Standards

A Nursery, Retail.

The overall area of any outdoor sales accessory use shall not exceed the area of the pnnc1pal enclosed building

2 All retail nurseries shall comply with Chapter 183 Orderly Conduct of the City of Franklin Municipal Code

15-4-11. Industrial Use-Specific Standards

A Artisan Manufacturing.

Gross floor area shall not exceed five thousand (5,000) square feet

2 Outdoor storage shall be proh1b1ted

3 Outdoor operatons or activities may be approved wth a temporary use permit

4 Artisan manufacturing shall not create or cause any perceptible noise, odor, smoke, electrical interference, or
vibrations that constitute a public or private nuisance to neighbonng properties

5 Retail sales of goods manufactured on-site shall be required and shall comprise a minimum of ten (10) percent of the
total area of the building Retail sales areas shall be located on the ground floor and shall be directly adJacent to
storefront windows

6 Manufacturing areas are encouraged to be v1s1ble from retail areas

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 8 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

7 A maximum of one (1) res1dent1al umt shall be permitted within the same umUleasable area as the artisan
manufacturing use but shall be limited to twenty-five (25) percent of the total area of the bu1ld1ng

B Landfill.

Performance Criteria and Standards.

a All City of Franklin or County roads to be used to service the site shall be constructed to meet the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, and Wisconsin Department of Transportation standards appropriate for the weight of the
trucks using the facility pnor to the operation of the facility

b A bond written by a licensed surety company, a certified check, letter of credit, or other financial guarantee in an
amount sufficient to cover the costs associated with the repair of the affected road(s) to standard upon closure or
1f the road deteriorates due to the traffic to the facility shall be provided

c An add1t1onal three (3) feet of final cover shall be required in addition to the amount required in the Wisconsin
Adm1n1strat1ve Code, and the facility shall be landscaped in approved ground cover of prame plantings as
determined appropriate by the City of Franklin

d The disposal operation shall be conditioned on approval by those state agencies having authority for such
approval, and the use shall meet all applicable federal, Milwaukee County, and City of Franklin requirements

2 The City of Franklin shall enter into negotiation and arb1trat1on procedures as set forth In Chapter 144 445 of the
Wisconsin Statutes as amended for the approval of a solid waste disposal facility or expansion thereof

C Self-Service Storage Facility.

Outdoor storage, with the exception of recreational vehicles, boats, and other recreational equipment as regulated in
subsection 2 below, shall be proh1b1ted

2 Outdoor storage of recreational vehicles, boats, and other recreational equipment shall be allowed 1f screened with a
solid wall or opaque fence constructed from materials approved by the Zoning Admm1strator and not less than six (6)
feet or more than eight (8) feet in height in areas visible from an existing or proposed artenal roadway or from a
property in any dstnct other than the LI Dstnct

3 The stoning of hazardous or toxic matenals is prohibited

4 No storage space shall be used for resdental occupancy, business sales or operation, the storage of commercial or
mdustnal inventory or raw materials, or the operation of machinery

15-4-12. Utility and Transportation Use-Specific Standards

A Airport/Heliports.

The site shall be at least fifteen (15) contiguous acres in area

2 The site shall be sufficient in size to meet the standards for the type of facility proposed of the Federal Av1at1on
Adm1n1strat1on and the Department of Transportation m accordance with their published rules and regulations

3 Any proposed landing area shall be situated so that any structures, high voltage power Imes, towers, chimneys, and
natural obstructions within the approach zones, shall comply with regulations for height restnctIons In airport approach
zones of the Federal Aviation Administration, Wisconsmn DIvson of Aeronautics, or other airport authority qualified to
establish zoning regulations

4 No planned approach areas shall be permitted over parcels with existing residential uses or planned resdental uses,
according to the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Plan

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 9 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

5 Landing and take-off areas shall be at least one hundred fifty (150) feet from any lot boundary and at least five hundred
(500) feet from any dwelling unit or resdental zoning drstnct.

6 Hangers, repair facities, or other arport/heliport buildings shall be at least one hundred (100) feet from any street
nght-of-way line and least one hundred fifty (150) feet from any lot boundary

7 All repair of airplanes and mechanical equipment shall take place ms1de enclosed hangars

8 Res1dent1al uses shall not be located w1thm the approach path unless measures to achieve a noise level reduction of
25 dBA (outdoor to indoor) are incorporated into the design and construction of the residential structures

9 Hehports shall meet all applicable Federal, state and local regulations

B Helistops. Hehstops shall meet the following requirements

The site shall be sufficient m size and the site shall otherwise be adequate to meet the rules and regulations
established by the Federal Av1at1on Admm1strallon and the Department of Transportation

2 Landing and take-off areas shall be located a minimum of one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any parcel boundary and a
minimum of five hundred (500) feet from any res1dent1al parcel boundary

3 Landing areas shall be situated so that any structures, high voltage power Imes, towers, chimneys, and natural
obstructions w1thm the approach zones, shall comply with regulations for height restncbons m airport approach zones
of the Federal Avat1on Administration, Wisconsin Division of Aeronautics, or other airport authority qualified by law to
establish hazard zoning regulations

4 No planned approach areas shall be permitted over parcels with existing resdental uses or planned residential uses,
according to the City of Frankhn's Comprehensive Plan

5 Heliports shall meet all applicable Federal, state and local regulations

C Solar Farm.

Properties on which a public ullhty owns or leases the land shall be exempt from the standards for solar farms

2 No solar farm shall be erected on any lot less than four (4) acres m size

3 A certified professional engineer shall certify that the foundation and design on the solar panels are within accepted
professional standards, given local sol and climate conditions

4 Power and communication Imes running between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or 1nterconnect1ons
wth buildings shall be buned underground

5 Systems, equipment, and structures shall not exceed thirty feet (30) m height when ground mounted

6 Ground mounted solar energy collection systems as part of a solar farm shall have a minimum setback for all
equipment, excluding fences, of·

a Front and Corner Yards one hundred (100) feet,

b Side and Rear Yards fifty (50) feet from nonresidential property Imes and one hundred (100) feet from res1dent1al
property Imes

7 Systems equipment and structures shall be fully enclosed and secured by a fence or wall with a height of eight (8) feet
Knox boxes and keys shall be provided at locked entrances for emergency personnel access

a Warnings.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 10 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Warning signs shall be provided at the entrance to the facility and along the perimeter of the solar farm in
locations determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator

11 The signs shall be made with letters and numbers at least three (3) inches in height and shall include the 911
address and an emergency phone number of the operator which shall be answered twenty-four (24) hours a
day by a live operator A nonemergency phone number for the operator shall also be displayed These phone
numbers shall remain active with all calls being voice recorded for verification purposes and with comments
and complaints logged and reported to the City monthly The recorded calls shall be maintained for at least
twelve (12) months

8 Outdoor Storage. Only the outdoor storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment that directly support the operation
and maintenance of the solar farm shall be allowed except for outdoor storage that is expressly allowed in the zoning
district specified elsewhere in this title

9 Materials Handling, Storage, and Disposal.

a All solid wastes related to the construction, operation, and maintenance of the solar farm shall be removed from
the site promptly and disposed of in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws

b A list of hazardous fluids that may be used on site shall be provided All hazardous materials related to the
construction, operation, and maintenance of the solar farm shall be handled, stored, transported, and disposed of
In accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws

10 Decommissioning Plan. Prior to receiving approval, the applicant shall submit a decomm1ss1omng plan to ensure that
the solar farm project is properly decommissioned, which shall include

a Provisions descnbng the tnggenng events for decommissioning the solar farm project Any nonfunctioning solar
panel/array of the project shall be decomm1ss1oned within thirty (30) days unless the operator has shown to the
Zoning Administrator that it is diligently repainng such solar panel/array or component

b Procedures for the removal of structures, debris, and cabling, including those below the soil surface,

c Prov1s1ons for the restoration of the natural soil and vegetation,

d An estimate of the decomm1ss1oning costs certified by a professional engineer, to be updated every three (3)
years or as determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator The Zoning Administrator may request an
Independent third-party venfication of the decommissioning costs at any time The costs for this verification shall
be reimbursed by the applicant and/or operator

e Financial assurance, secured by the owner or operator, for the purpose of performing the decomm1ss1oning, In an
amount equal to the professional engineer's certified estimate of the decomm1ss1omng cost

11 A provision that the terms of the decommissioning plan shall be binding upon the owner or operator and any of hIs
successors, assigns, or hers

D Wind Farm.

Public ut1lit1es shall be exempt from the standards for wind farms

2 No wind farm shall be erected on any lot less than four (4) acres in size

3 Design and Installation.

a Safety Certification.

Wind farm systems shall conform to applicable industry standards, including those of the American National
Standards Institute (ANSI) Applicants shall submit certificates of design compliance that equipment

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 11 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

manufacturers have obtained from Underwriters Laboratones (UL), Det Norske Ventas (DNV), Germanischer
Lloyd Wmd Energ1c (GL), or an equivalent third party pnor to plan approval

11 Following plan approval, a professional engineer shall certify, as part of the building permit application, that
the foundation and tower design of the wind farm system is within accepted professional standards, gven
local soil and climate cond1t1ons

b Controls and Brakes. All wmd farm systems shall be equipped with a redundant braking system This includes
both aerodynamic overspeed controls (including vanable pitch, tip, and other similar systems) and mechanical
brakes Mechanical brakes shall be operated in a fall-safe mode Stall regulation shall not be considered a
sufficient braking system for overspeed protection

c Electrical Components. All electrical components of the wind farm systems shall conform to applicable local,
state, and national codes, and relevant national and international standards (e g,ANSI and international electrical
comm1ss1on) Utility Imes connecting the towers, substations, etc, shall be placed underground where practical

d Turbine Consistency To the extent feasible, the project shall consist of turbines of smmlar design and sIze,
1ncludmg tower height Further, all turbines shall rotate in the same d1rect1on

e Warnings.

A reasonable v1s1ble warning sign concerning voltage must be placed at the base of all pad-mounted
transformers and substations

11 Visible, reflective, colored objects, such as flags, reflectors, or tape shall be placed on the anchor pomnts of
guy wires and along the guy wires up to a height of fifteen (15) feet from the ground

111 Warning signs shall be provided at the entrance to the facility and along the perimeter of the solar farm In
locations determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator

Iv The signs shall be made with letters and numbers at least three (3) inches In height and shall include the 911
address and an emergency phone number of the operator which shall be answered twenty-four (24) hours a
day by a live operator A nonemergency phone number for the operator shall also be displayed These phone
numbers shall remain active with all calls bemg voice recorded for verification purposes and with comments
and complaints logged and reported to the Zoning Administrator monthly The recorded calls shall be
ma1ntamed for at least twelve (12) months

f Climb Prevention. All wnd farm towers must be unclimbable by design or protected by ant1-climb1ng devices
such as

Fences with locking portals at least sx (6) feet high, or

11 Ant1-climbmg devices twelve (12) feet vertically from the base of the wnd farm tower

g Setbacks. Wind farm towers and appurtenant structures shall meet the following minimum setbacks

Wind farm towers shall be six (6) times the height of the wnd farm tower or at least three thousand, two
hundred fifty (3,250) feet, whchever is greater, from any pnnc1pal structure or use on the subject or
neighboring property

Wind farm towers shall be one and one-tenth (1 10) times the wmd farm tower height from public roads, third
party transmission lines, and communication towers

111 Wind farm towers shall be one thousand six hundred forty (1,640) feet from adjacent property Imes, as
measured from the center of the wind farm tower foundation

City of Frankl m
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 12 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

v No part of a wind farm tower or foundation shall encroach on a public or private sewage disposal (septic)
system

v Above ground transmIssIon facilities and poles shall be set back one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any portion
any principal structure or use on the subjector neighboring property

h Use of Public Roads. An applicant, owner, or operator proposing to use any City or County Road for the purpose
of transporting and installation of wind farm or substation parts and/or equipment for construction, operation, or
maintenance of the wind farm or substations, shall

Identify all such public roads, and

Obtain applicable weight and size permits from relevant government agencies prior to construclion

111 To the extent an applicant, owner, or operator must obtain a weight or size permit from the City, County, or
State, the applicant shall provide

a) Financial assurance, in a reasonable amount agreed to by the relevant parties, for the purpose of
repamng any damage to public roads caused by constructing, operating, or maintaining the wind farm
prior to the issuance of building permits

b) A signed copy of any agreements pertaining to the use of public roads prior to the issuance of building
permits

Outdoor Storage. Only the outdoor storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment that directly support the
operation and maintenance of the wind farm shall be allowed except for outdoor storage that Is expressly allowed
In the zoning district specified elsewhere mn thus title

4 Operation.

a Maintenance.

The owner or operator of the wind farm must submit, upon request a summary of the operation and
maintenance reports to the county In add1t1on to the annual summary mentioned in this subsection, the
owner or operator must furnish such operation and maintenance reports as the City reasonably requests

11 Any replacement of equipment that is not a like-kind replacement using the same equipment in plan as
approved shall require that an amendment to the Cond11ional Use

b Materials Handling, Storage, and Disposal.

All solid wastes related to the construction, operalion, and maintenance of the wind farm shall be removed
from the site promptly and disposed of in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws

11 A list of hazardous fluids that may be used on site shall be provided All hazardous materials related to the
construction, operation, and maintenance of the wind farm shall be handled, stored, transported and
disposed of in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws

c Decommissioning Plan. Pnor to receiving approval, the applicant shall submit a decomm1ss1ornng plan to ensure
that the wind farm project Is properly decomm1ss1oned, which shall include

Provisions descnbng the triggering events for decommissioning the wind farm project Any nonfunctionng
wnd turbine of the project shall be decommissioned wthin thirty (30) days unless the operator has shown to
the Zoning Administrator that tt is diligently repairing such wind turbine or component

Procedures for the removal of structures, debris, and cabhng, including those below the soil surface,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 13 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

111 Prov1s1ons for the restoration of the natural srnl and vegetation,

1v An estimate of the decomm1ss1oning costs certified by a professional engineer, to be updated every three (3)
years or as determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator The Zoning Administrator may request an
Independent thrd-party verification of the decommissioning costs at any time The costs for this verification
shall be reimbursed by the applicant and/or operator

v Financial assurance, secured by the owner or operator, for the purpose of performing the decomm1ss1oning,
In an amount equal to the professional engineer's certified estimate of the decommissioning cost

v A provision that the terms of the decommissioning plan shall be binding upon the owner or operator and any
of his successors, assigns, or hers

15-4-13. Accessory Use-Specific Standards

A Accessory Dwelling, Detached/ Attached

One (1) detached, attached, or internal accessory dwelling unit shall be allowed per lot

2 No lot may have both a detached garage and a detached accessory structure On any lot with a detached garage, a
detached accessory dwelling umt may be located above the detached garage

3 The detached / attached accessory dwelling shall be located to the interior side or rear of the principal dwelling

4 The maximum size of a detached accessory dwelling shall be thirty (30) percent of the gross floor area of the principal
dwelling or one thousand two-hundred (1,200) square feet, whichever 1s less

5 The maximum height of a standalone detached accessory dwelling shall be seventeen (17) feet or the height of the
principal dwelling, whichever Is less

6 The maximum, combined height of a detached accessory dwelling located above a detached garage and the detached
garage shall be twenty-seven (27) feet or the height of the principal dwelling, whichever 1s less

7 Detached accessory dwellings shall be setback a m1mmum of five (5) feet from the rear and interior side lot lines

8 Attached accessory dwellings shall be located fully within the bu1ldable area of the lot

9 The principal dwelling and detached I attached accessory dwelling shall be served by a common driveway

10 The detached I attached accessory dwelling shall have s1m1lar architectural features including roof pitch, window type,
size, and placement, and extenor building cladding matenals and similar exterior colors as the principal dwelling

11 The principal dwelling or detached I attached accessory dwelling shall be the primary residence of the owner of the
property

B Accessory Dwelling, Internal

One (1) detached, attached, or internal accessory dwelling umt shall be allowed per lot

2 The maximum size of the internal accessory dwelling shall be thirty (30) percent of the gross floor area of the principal
dwelling

3 The principal dwelling and internal accessory dwelling shall be served by a common driveway

4 The principal dwelling or internal accessory dwelling shall be the primary residence of the owner of the property

C Accessory Retail.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 14 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

The total area devoted to retail activity shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the total area of the bu1ld1ng 1n
which the accessory retail actvty shall be located

2 Restroom fac1ht1es, rf provided, shall be directly accessible from the accessory retail/restaurant sales area

3 Accessory retail sales areas shall be physically separated from other activity areas by a wall

D Accessory Structures.

No accessory building shall be constructed on a site without a principal building and a principal use

2 Accessory structures shall have a maximum height of seventeen (17) feet, or the height of the principal building,
whichever Is less

3 No accessory structure shall be constructed w1thm or on an easement.

4 Location. An accessory structure shall be located as follows

a Completely w1thm the required rear yard setback and five (5) feet from rear yard lot Imes

b Completely wthin the buildable area of the lot and to thetenor sIde or rear of the principal building

c At least ten (10) feet from the principal building unless constructed with a one (1) hour fire rating, m which case
the accessory structure shall be set back at least six (6) feet from the principal burldmg

d Wetland setbacks and buffers as specified m Article 6 may further lmt the location of accessory structures

5 Maximum Area.

a Accessory structures shall not exceed one thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet in area

b Accessory structures may exceed one-thousand two-hundred (1,200) square feet on parcels In the RC 
Conservation Residence or R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence District use subject to the following regulations

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres

11 The maximum accessory structure size shall be five hundred (500) square feet per acre No accessory
structure shall exceed five thousand (5,000) square feet.

111 No accessory over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet structure shall exceed forty (40) feet in height

1v An accessory structure over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet shall not be located closer to a side or rear
lot lme than a distance equal to its heght

v An accessory structure over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet shall not be used for commercial or
res1dental use

E Artisan Workshop.

The artisan workshop shall be wholly wthin the principal building and any accessory building

2 The principal building shall be the primary residence of the property owner

3 No alterations shall be made to the principal burldmg or accessory building that changes ,ts res1dent1al character or
appearance or otherwise gives evidence of the artisan workshop

4 The sale of goods or materials on site shall be proh1b1ted

5 No persons, other than the residents of the dwelling urnt, shall be employed on site

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 15 of20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

6 Mechanical or electrical equipment supporting the artisan workshop shall be self-contained w1thm the structure and
normally used for office, domestic, or household purposes

7 The outdoor display or storage of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment related to the artisan workshop shall be
prohibited

8 The artisan workshop shall not require the dehvery or shipment of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment
beyond what is typical for a residental use

9 The artisan workshop shall not create or cause any perceptible noise, odor, smoke, electrical interference, or vibrations
that constitute a public or prvate nuisance to neighboring properties

10 The artisan workshop shall not discharge any matenal which is radioactive, poisonous, or detrimental to either
wastewater or storm water systems

F Drive Through.

Drive throughs shall be permitted a maximum of four (4) total menu boards with a combined maximum area of 100
square feet

a Each menu board or pre-order board shall not exceed sixty (60) square feet m area and ten (10) feet in heght
Menu boards and pre-order boards may ubhze electrically activated changeable copy message centers for one
hundred (100) percent of the permitted menu board or pre-order board area and must follow all regulations of
Section 11-825 04 C 2

2 Any speaker or intercom associated with a drive through shall not be audible beyond the boundaries of the property

3 Drve through canopies shall mamtam a uniform and consistent roofhne with the building to which the drive-through 1s
associated

4 Stacking spaces and lanes for drive through stations shall not impede on- and off-street traffic movement, shall not
cross off-street parking areas or drive aisles and shall not impede pedestrian access to a pubhc building entrance

5 Drive through lanes shall be separated from off-street parking areas lnd1v1dual lanes shall be striped, marked, or
otherwise dehneated

6 Dnve through fac1htles shall be provided with a bypass lane with a minimum width of ten (10) feet unless an alternative
means of exit 1s approved

7 Stacking lanes shall have a minimum depth of twenty (20) feet per stacking space and the following minimum lane
widths

a One (1) lane twelve (12) feet,

b Two (2) or more lanes ten (10) feet per lane

8 Dnve through fac1htles shall be required to provide a minimum number of stacking spaces as detailed mn Table 11
511(E)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 16 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Table 15-4-13(FtDrive Through Stacking Requirements

AutomatedTellerMachine
[Bank TellerLaner•-•,-c~-~--- - ----- ----------
[Restaurant
[canvasnStal, Automatic
~---··· ------------· ----- -- ····-------------

[Canash Stall,Manual
ioirchargesno
'Pharmacyioies.

Minimum Stack
3 per machine

2 per lane
6 per order box

5 per stall
3 per stall

3 per service bay
4 per lane

Measure From
teller machine

teller or window
order box (1)
stall entrance
stall entrance

service bay entrance
machin

(1) 4 of the required stacking spaces are to be located between the order-box and pick-up window, 1nclud1ng the
stacking space at the order box.

G Donation Drop Box.

Donation drop boxes shall be on properties that contain a legally existing and operating use

2 No more than two (2) donation drop boxes shall be permitted on a lot

3 Each donation drop box shall not exceed seven (7) feet in height and twenty-five (25) square feet in ground area

4 Donation drop boxes shall only be located in side or rear yard setbacks

5 Donation drop boxes shall be located on an asphalt or concrete paved surface

6 Donation drop boxes shall not locate in a driveway or drive aisle and shall not reduce the width of paved clear space
for the passage of pedestrians to less than five (5) feet Boxes shall not locate in such a way as to disrupt the flow of
vehicular or pedestrian traffic

7 Donation drop boxes shall not be located nearer than forty (40) feet from an adJrnrnng lot in a res1dent1al district

8 Donation drop boxes shall be located to the side or rear of the primary facade of the building

9 A nolice must be permanently affixed to each donation drop box mn a highly visible location prohibiting the placement of
items outside of the box The name and twenty-four (24) hour telephone number of the owner/operator must be
permanently affixed to each donation drop box

H Home-Based Business.

The home-based business shall be conducted wholly within the principal building and any accessory bu1ld1ng

2 The home-based business shall only employ ind1v1duals that reside on-site

3 The home-based business shall encompass no more than twenty five (25) percent of the floor area of the dwelling urnt
shall

4 The home based business shall not alter the outside appearance of the building, accessory structure, or premises that
changes in a way that changes its res1dent1al character or appearance

5 The outdoor display, storage, sale of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment related to the home-based business
shall be proh1b1ted

6 No mechanical equipment shall be used except such that is normally used for purely domestic or household purposes,
and shall be contained within the principal or accessory building or structure

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 17 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

7 No commodity or good produced off-site shall be sold on the premises, displayed on the exterior or interior of the
premises or warehoused on the premises for sale elsewhere

8 No vehicular or pedestrian traffic shall be generated by such home occupation or home office in greater volume than
would normally be expected from the pnncIpal use

9 No noise, em1ssIons, rad1at1on, v1brat1on, heat, glare, smoke, dust, fumes, odors, or electncal interference created
which 1s detectable to the normal senses outside the dwelling umt in excess of that normally associated with a
res1dent1al household use shall be allowed

10 The home-based business shall not generate refuse exceeding the amount allowable for regular res1dent1al pick-up
shall be generated by any home occupation

11 The home-based business shall not generate or store toxic, explosive, flammable, combustible, corrosive, et1olog1c,
radioactive, or other restricted materials on the site except those which are ordmarily used for household

12 Nuisance Causing Activities. No home occupation shall cause or create any nuisance, cause or create any
substantial or undue adverse impact on any adjacent property or the character of the area, or threaten the public
health, safety, or general welfare, or be noxious, offensive, or hazardous

13 Materials Which Decompose by Detonation Prohibited. No materials which decompose by detonation shall be
allowed m conjuncbon with a home occupation

14 No home-based business shall be permitted which generates wastewater or water use m excess of the quantity
typically required for a residential dwelling umt.

Outdoor Activity/Operation/Storage, Accessory.

Any property with permanent outdoor acbv1ty/operat1on/storage shall have a minimum lot size of five (5) acres

2 Outdoor act1v1ty/operat1on/storage shall be conducted between the hours of 7 00 am and 9 00 pm

3 Outdoor activity/operation/storage shall be located to the rear or intenor side of the pnnc1pal building on the lot

4 Outdoor actvtty/operation/storage shall be prohibited mn front or street side yards

5 Outdoor act1vItIes and operations shall be setback a minimum of fifty (50) feet from all property Imes when adjacent
properties are zoned B-G and B-R DIstncts

6 Outdoor actvties and operations shall be setback a mmImum of one hundred (100) feet from all property Imes when
adjacent properties m the R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R-M, R-V, B-N, B-MU, and B-SM DIstncts

7 The following minimum screening requirements shall apply to permanent outdoor actvties and operations visible from
the right-of-way of an existing or proposed arterial or collector roadway or a property zoned R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R-M, R
V, B-N, B-MU, B-V DIstncts

a A solid wall constructed from materials, not including metal, identical to those used on the exterior of the principal
building, unless otherwse approved by the Planning Commission, and not less than srx (6) feet and not more than
eight (8) feet m height shall be erected to screen the portions of permanent outdoor actIvIty and operations areas
v1s1ble from an existing or proposed arterial or collector roadway or a property zoned in the R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R
M, R-V, B-N, or B-SM DIstncts

b A landscape strip, not less than five (5) feet wide shall be located m front of the wall The landscape strip shall be
Improved wth a Type A Transition Area per Section 11-60#

J Outdoor Dining.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 18 of 20



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

The outdoor dining area shall be located on an approved hard paved surface or a deck or other feature appurtenant to
the principal building as approved by the Zoning Administrator

2 Outdoor dining areas may utilize a maximum of twenty (20) percent of the parking spaces required for the operation of
the principal use or two thousand (2,000) square feet, whichever 1s less

3 Outdoor dining areas shall not block a pedestrian walkway or public sidewalk in a manner which reduces the width of
that walkway or sidewalk to less than five (5) feet.

4 A fence, landscape hedge, or wall with a height of four (4) feet shall be utilized to segregate the outdoor d1nmg area

5 Use of outdoor dining areas shall be limited to the posted operational hours of the associated eating and drinkmg use

6 Review by the City Engineer and other City staff shall be required in addition to the revew requirements of Secton ##
###

K Outdoor Display/Sale of Merchandise.

Only those goods and materials associated with the existing on-stte use may be displayed or sold

2 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall not be located wthin any required yard setback or parking area

3 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall be surfaced with an approved hard surface material Unpaved outdoor
display or sales areas shall be prohibited

4 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the gross floor area of the primary
building on the property unless approved as a Conditional Use

L Solar Energy Collection System, Canopy.

The height of canopy solar energy collection systems shall not exceed the height of the primary building that the
parking area serves

2 The m1n1mum height of solar energy collection systems shall allow clearance for emergency and service vehicles

M Solar Energy Collection System, Ground-Mounted.

Ground mounted solar energy collection systems shall be permitted in the rear yard only

2 The maximum height of ground mounted solar energy collection systems shall be five (5) feet m height, measured from
the grade at the base of the pole to the highest edge of the system

3 Minimum clearance between the lowest pomt of the system and the surface on which the system 1s mounted 1s twelve
(12) inches

4 All parts of the freestanding system shall be set back ten (10) feet from the side and rear lot Imes and shall not be
located mn a public utility easement

5 No part of the freestanding system shall be v1s1ble from any public right of way

N Solar Energy Collection System, Roof Mounted.

Roof mounted solar energy collection systems may be located on any roof face of principal or accessory buildings
Systems should be flush mounted when possible

2 Systems on res1dent1al structures shall not extend beyond twelve (12) inches parallel to the roof surface of a pitched
roof or flat roof

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 19 of 20



I

DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

3 Systems on nonres1dent1al structures shall not extend beyond thirty-six (36) inches parallel to the roof surface of a
pitched roof or flat roof

4 Systems on all structures shall not extend above the highest peak of a pitched roof Height Is measured from the roof
surface on which the system Is mounted to the highest edge of the system

5 All materials used for racking, mounts, mounting clamps, and flashings shall be of a color consistent with the color of
the roof surface to minimize visibility

15-4-14. Temporary Use-Specific Standards

A Food Truck.

The location of a food truck on landscape areas, in required setbacks, an ADA parking stall, or a pedestrian path 1s
prohibited

2 Food trucks shall obtain written permIssIon from the property owner(s) and shall submit such documentation as part of
the temporary use approval process specified in Section ##-###

3 A food truck, including all vending activity, tables, chairs, and trash receptacles may occupy no more than four (4)
parking stalls or six hundred and fifty (650) square feet of parking area, whichever Is less

4 Tables and chairs shall be permitted and located on improved or paved surfaces and shall not locate in parking stalls,
landscape areas, or drive aisles, aside from the four (4) parking stalls designated for vending

5 A minimum of one (1) trash receptacle and one (1) recycling receptacle shall be provided per food truck

6 Required tables, chairs, and trash and recycling receptables shall not be retained on-site overnight.

7 Dnve aisles, sidewalks, access to trash enclosures, and similar areas may not be blocked by any vending act1v1ty

8 Food trucks shall be located a minimum of five hundred (500) feet from any brick-and-mortar restaurant as measured
from the property line

B Seasonal Sales.

Seasonal sales shall be permitted for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days per calendar year, unless otherwise
approved

2 Seasonal sales areas shall not block pedestrian walkways in a manner which reduces the width of that walkway to less
than five (5) feet

3 All tents, canopies, or other temporary structures shall require review and approval by the Building Inspector

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 20 of 20



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Council update and Staff direction to hold a
neighborhood meeting on the 35th Street Root River,

East Branch Project related to properties at
approximately the 7300 Block of S. 35th Street

MTG. DATE
November 15 2022

ITEM NO.

Background

On February 1, 2022 staff requested assistance to authorize Root-Pike WIN to apply for grants to
secure the funds necessary to complete the design and implementation related to the stabilization
of the creek in the 7300 Block of S. 35th Street (TKN 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, & 761
9997-003).

Applications were submitted in April and a status update to the neighbors is being requested.

RECOMMENDATION

A motion to direct staff to hold a neighborhood meeting related to the 35th Street Grant Project
and to notice residents.

Aldw. Wilhelm



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

2028 Professional Services AgreementBetween the
City ofFranklin and Racine County for Services to

Verify a Certified Soil Tester's Soil & Site Evaluation

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

Attached is a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Franklin and Racine
County to cover the authorization and payment of fees for Racine County to provide
services to the City for the year 2023 to verify a certified soil tester's soil and site
evaluation at designated properties when needed. This agreement mirrors the last
agreement in place for 2022. In fact, the form of the contract has not changed
significantly since 2010. Racine County will once again provide this service at a cost of
$200 for up to the first 3 soil borings reviewed, plus $50 for each subsequent soil boring
review done, per property. The minimum site visit charge will be $50 per occurrence,
to cover the cost of staff time and travel to a property. For example, if weather or
lighting conditions or equipment breakdown of the contractor does not allow staff to
conduct a soil morphological evaluation, and if staff has traveled to the site, a minimum
$50 fee will be charged.

These soil services produce a nominal expenditure throughout the year. For example, 5
soil verification services were provided in 2019 ($1,000 expenditure), 10 in 2020 ($2,000),
13 in 2021 ($2,600), and 5 in 2022 ($1,000).

Racine County has informed us that they concur with the attached contract for 2023
services. It is the recommendation of the Director of Inspection Services and the
Director of Administration to continue to use Racine County for these soil testing
serv1ces.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the 2023 Professional Services Agreement between the City of
Franklin and Racine County for services to verify a certified soil tester's soil and site
evaluation at designated properties when needed and to authorize the Director of
Administration to execute such agreement.

DOA-PS



CITY OF FRANKLIN - RACINE COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract made this __ day of,2022, by and between the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as "CITY") and Racine
County, a Wisconsin quasi-municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"). This
contract is to be effective from the period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. This
agreement is renewable upon acceptance by all parties

W I T N E S S E T H:

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the parties agree that this contract shall
cover the authorization and payment of fees to provide to the CITY services to verify a Certified
Soil Tester's (hereinafter referred to as "CST" soil and site evaluation. The parties agree to the
following:

1 AII CST's soil and site evaluations for Private Onsrte Wastewater Treatment Systems
(hereinafter referred to as "POWTS" must be scheduled with a minimum 24 hours notice
to the County, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, to ensure proper staffing.

2. All CST appointments must be scheduled by calling the COUNTY Development Services
Department at 262-886-8440 between the hours of 8am -- 12:00 noon and 12:30pm -
4:30pm Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

3. COUNTY will provide one properly licensed and credentialed staff to verify the required
soil and site evaluation conducted by a CST.

4. The COUNTY reserves the right to require that CST's provide soil backhoe dug pits of
adequate size, depth, and construction to enable COUNTY staff to safely enter and exit
the soil pit for verification of soil profile evaluation data.

5. Soil color evaluations shall be performed on days when light conditions permit accurate
color determination.

6. Frozen soil mater1al shall be thawed prior to conducting evaluations for soil color,
texture, structure, and consistence

7. The cost of this service will be $200 for up to the first three soil borings reviewed, plus
$50 for each subsequent soil boring review done, per property. The minimum site visit
charge will be $50 per occurrence, to cover the cost of staff time and travel to a property
For example, if weather or lighting conditions or equipment breakdown of the contractors
does not allow staff to conduct a soil morphological evaluation, and if staff has traveled
to the site, a minimum of $50 fee will be charged.

8. If staff Is required to contact a State ofWisconsin Onsrte Wastewater Specialist to make
a soil determination, a minimum of $50 will be charged for this service, in addition to
other soil and site evaluation fees referenced herein.



9. The CITY will be invoiced directly for these services.

10 COUNTY will review the applicable Soil and Site Evaluation form (SBD-8330), which
must be forwarded to the COUNTY, and will convey all reports back to the CITY for theIr
files and permit issuance. A copy of the test will be kept on file in this office, but the
original tests will be sent to the CITY.

11. The CITY will issue all permits for POWTS, and the CITY will oversee the construction
and follow-up on all POWTS, as outlined in Chapter SPS 383 (Private Onsite
Wastewater Treatment Systems) and Chapter SPS 385 (Soil and Site Evaluations).

12. Any other work not anticipated in this contract, but relative to soil and site evaluations,
will be charged at a rate of $50 per hour.

13 Each party ts responsible for their own acts and omissions under this agreement.
COUNTY agrees that it will at all times during the existence of this contract indemnify
CITY against any and all loss, damages and cost or expenses which CITY may sustain,
incur or be required to pay as a result of any of the services provided by COUNTY under
this contract. CITY agrees that it will at all times during the existence of this contract
indemnify COUNTY against any and all loss, damages and cost or expenses which
COUNTY may sustain, incur or be required to pay as a result of any of the services
provided by the CITY under this contract.

14. CITY OR COUNTY may, without preJudice to any other rights it may have, terminate this
contract for convenience and without cause by giving thirty (30) days written notice.
COUNTY shall be paid for services rendered up to the time of termination.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

BY:-------------

TITLE: _

RACINE COUNTY

BY: _

TITLE: _



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement
with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC for general

planning services

MEETING DATE
11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

M.2.

BACKGROUND

The City Development Department is seeking Council approval to transfer $10,000 from the Salaries
FT (full time) fund to the Other Professional Services account in the 2022 fiscal year.

City Development staff is requesting this reallocation of funds for a planning services agreement with
a budget of $10,000, specifically for development and plan review services, including but not limited
to items such as site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans, architectural plans, certified survey maps
Planning services include is the review of site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans, architectural
plans, certified survey maps, and other such plans that are part of or related to applications submitted
to the City Development Department.

A previous agreement with Wrayburn Consulting with a not-to-exceed amount of $5,000 was
authorized by the Common Council on October 18. The City Development Department is seeking to
increase this agreement's budget to $10,000 due to the extended vacancy of the Planning Manager
position.

Note: in section VI Insurance, the rrummum limits of $1,000,000/$2,000,000 for General/Commercial Liability
and $1,000,000 for Excess Liability, as this is an agreement for professional services, not for contractor services
that normally requires a minimum limit of $2,000,000/$4,000,000 and $10,000,000.

FISCAL IMPACT

General Fund budget, planning division, transferring $10,000 of Salaries-FT funds from account
number 01-0621-5111 to the Other Professional Services budget account number 01-0621-5219.

City Development staff is requesting council approval to use budgeted personnel appropriations for
these consulting services due to the vacancy of the Planning Manager position. The purpose of the
funding is not changing, so no formal budget amendment is required.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC for general
planning services; utilizing 2022 budgeted personnel finds in the planning division budget; and
authorize the Mayor to execute and administer the appropriate, related contract.

City Development-RMM



AGREEMENT

TlllS AGREEMENT, made and entered mnto thus day of, between the City of
Frankl1n, 9229 West Looms Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
Wrayburn Consultmg, LLC (heremafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose pnncipal place of business 1s
2000 Fairhaven Boulevard, Elm Grove, WI 53122.

WITNESS ETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR Is duly qualified and experienced as a mun1c1pal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified m thus AGREEMENT, and

WHEREAS, 111 the Judgment ofCLIENT, it ts necessary and advisable to obtam the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide planning and zonmg related services;

NOW, THEREFORE, m cons1deratton of these premises and the followmg mutual
covenants, terms, and cond1llons, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows·

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for development and plan
review services, mcludmg but not limited to items such as site plan<;, landscapmg
plans, lghtmng plans, architectural plans, certified survey maps, and other such
plans that are part of or related to apphcattons submitted to the City of Franklm
Planning Department Add1tonally, services also mclude all general planning
services such as, but not lmmtted to, s1te vs1ts, presentation at meetings of boards
and comm1ssons and the Common Council, customer support, and ass1sting
md1viduals 111 understandmg and followmg the Umfied Development Ordmance,
apphcat10ns, and code and apphcation processes and reqmrements, as clcscnbccl
in CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated September 13, 2022, annexed
hereto and mcorporated herem as Attachment A.

B CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative 111 matters
to which this AGREEMENT apphes. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under tlus AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT

C CONTRACTOR is an mdependent contractor and all persons fum1shmg services
hereunder arc employees of, or m<lcpcn<lent ::.ubcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not ofCLIENT. All obhgat10ns under the Federal Insurance Contnbut1on Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and mcome tax
withholding are the respons1blrty of CONTRACTOR as employer CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure

D Dunng the term of tlus AGREEMtNT and throughout the penod ot pertormancc
of any resultant AGREEMENT, mcludmng extensions, modifications, or add1tons
thereto, and for a penod of one ( l) year from the conclusion of such activity, the

Page-1



parties hereto agree that neither shall sohc1t for employment any techrncal or
professtonal employees of the other without the pnor written approval of the
other party.

IL FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and mn consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further dcscnbed m Attachment A, [at our standard b1lhng rates] [with a not-to-exceed
budget of$10,000], subject to the tenns detailed below:

A CONTRACTOR may bdl CLIENT and be paid for all work sat1sfactonly
completed hereunder on a monthly basis CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's 1vo1cc withmn 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total pnce will not exceed budget of $10,000 For serv1cec;; rendered, monthly
mnvotccs will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned dunng the month being 111vo1ced.

C ln cons1derat1011 of the faithful perfonnance of thus AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
wntten authonzat10n from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
descnbed m the ongmal AGREEMENT

D Should CLIENT find deficiencies m work performed or reported, 1t will notify
CONTRACTOR m writing withm thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of recevmng CLIENT's review. Thus subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation ofany nights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT

Ill. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, m wntmg, request changes 111 the Basic Services requtred to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a spec1ficahon of mcremental or
decremental costs pror to change order agreement under tlus AGREEMENT
Upon acceptance of the request of such change::., CONTRACTOR shall submtt a
"Change Order Request Foml'' to CLIENT for authonzat1on and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equutablc adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed pnce, for any mcremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claun by CONTRACTOR for ac!Justments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT m wntmg no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Regula Marlincz-Monhlva, Pnnupal Planner, will coordmate the work of the
CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for commumcat1on withm the
CLJENT's orgamzahon as related to all issues ongmatmg under this
AGREEMENT

Page-2



B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available mformat10n
concemmg PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C CONTRACTOR will appomt, subJect to the approval of CLIENT, Nicholas
Fuchs CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Baste
Services Substitut1011 ofother staff may occur only with the consent ofCLIENT

V. TERMINATION

A. Thts AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convemence, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR Thts
AGREEMENT may be tenninated by CONTRACTOR upon thnty (30) days
written notice. Upon such tenmnahon by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termmatlon, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope ofth1s AGREEMENT, mcludmg but not lnrntcd to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties

B ln the event that thus AGREEMENT Is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR ~hall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, surnma11es,
correspondence, and other wntten, prmted, or tabulated matenal pertammg 111

any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated Such
matcnal 1s to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or 111

process CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR hannless for any work that 1s
mncomplete due to early termmation

C The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under thu, ~ect1011
are not exclusive and are m addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appcanng many other mt1cle ofth1s AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, durmg the hfe of the AGREEMENT, mamtam msurance coverage with
an authorized msurance earner at least equal to the mmnmmum lmmrts set forth below.

$1,000,000/$2,000 000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$500,000
$2,000,000

Lmmrt ofGeneral/Commercial Lab1ltty
Automobile L1abluty: Bodily Injury/Property Damage
Excess L1ablty for General Commercial or Automobile Lab1lty
Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability
Professional Labl1ty

A
B
C.
D.
E

The CLIENT shall be named as an add1tonal msured on a primary, non-contributory bas1s for
General/Commercial L1ability, Auto L1ability, and Excess Lab1l1ty

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a waiver of subrogation and/or any nghts of recovery allowed
under and worker's compensalton law

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certtfymng sa1d protect1on and definmng the terms of the policy 1ssued, which shall specify

Page-3



that such protection shall not be cancelled without tlmty (30) calendar days pnor notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional 1sured for General L1abl1ty

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A To the fullest extent pern11tted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
hannless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
agamst costl>, losses, and damages (mcludmg but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engmeers, architects, attorneys, and other profess1onals, and reasonable
com1 or arb1trat10n or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negltgent
acts or om1ss10ns of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, chrectors,
partners, employees, and consultants 111 the perfonnance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under thus AGREEMENT

B. Nothing contained wthin thus AGREEMENT is mntendcd to bc a waver or estoppel
of the contractmg munic1pahty CLIENT or its msurer to rely upon the lumtatlons,
defenses, and mmmunitres contained within Wisconsin law, including those contamed
wathm Wisconsm Statutes $$ 893 80, 895 52, and 345 OS. To the extent that
111demmficat1on 1s available and enforceable, the mumcipahty CLIENT or its msurer
shall not be hable m mdcmmty or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of h1ability for mumcipal claims established by Wisconsm Law

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work nnmedmtely havmg received a Memorandum from the
Department ofCity Development

IX. DISPUTES

Tl11S AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wrsconsm
The venue for any actions ansmg under tlus AGREEMENT shall be the Ctrclllt Comt for Milwaukee
County The prevailing party shall be awardcd 1ts actual costs of any such litigation, includmng
reasonable attorney fees

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall mamtam all records pe1tammg to this AGREEMENT durmg the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a penod of 3 years following its complct10n Such records shall be made
dvatlable by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for m'>pcctton and copymg upon request

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised m the
performance of the service1. as 1s possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profess1on, currently practcmg, under smmlar circumstances, and all persons
provdmng such services under th1s AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permusstons as may be requred by law

B Pursuant to Law Notw1thstandmg anythmg to the contrary anywhere else set forth
wthmn this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all matenals and/or produclc;

provided by CONTRACTOR under tlus AGREEMENT shall bc m compliance with
all appltcable governmental laws, statutes, dec1s1ons, codes, rules, orders, and

Page-4



ordmances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C Conflict oflntercst CONTRACTOR warrants that neither 1t nor any of 1ts affiliates
has any financial or other personal mterest that would conflict 111 any manner with the
perfonnance of the services under this Agreement and that neither 1t nor any of its
affihates will acqmre dtrectly or mdirectly any such mterest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that 1t wll immediately notify the CLIENT +f any actual or potent1al conflict
of mterest arises or becomes known lo the CONTRACTOR Upon receipt of such
nottficatton, a CLIENT review and written approval JS reqmred for the CLIENT to
contmue to perform work under this Agreement

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by wntten mstmment signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid term~ and prov1s1ons shall control over any conflicting term o1 prov1ston of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhtb1t, and standard terms and prov1stons annexed hereto

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above wntten.

TITLE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME Stephen R OIson

TITLE Mayor

Wrayburn Consultmg, LLC

v <->
PRINT NAME 1Uc»k< 1.2s

u /fa--z«1 #a.•
7

I I
to /a8ozDATI:DATC _

13Y ----------------

PRINT NAME Demise D Gilbert

TITLE Director ofFmance and Treasurer

DATE

BY ----------------

PRINT NAME Sandra L Wesolowski

TITLE Cly Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wcsolowsk1, C11y Attorney

Page 5



f}}[,

Page 6



Attachment A

WC
Wrayburn Consulting

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE PLANNING & ZONING
RELATED SERVICES TO:

The City ofFranklin
September 13, 2022



General Services to be Provided
Wrayburn Consulting, LLC, shall provide a variety of planning and zoning related services as
requested by the City of Franklin Planning Department. These services may include but not
limited to review of site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans, architectural plans, certified
survey maps, and other such plans as necessary.

At the request of the City of Franklin, site visits, attendance at board and commission meetings
will also be provided.

Additional services may include customer support and assisting individuals in understanding and
following the Unified Development Ordinance and other applicable code and process
requirements.

The point of contact shall be:

Nick Fuchs
Principal Planner, Owner
Wrayburn Consulting
262-442-4327
nfuchs@wrayburnconsulting.com
www.wrayburnconsulting com

2000 Fairhaven Boulevard
Elm Grove, WI53122

Cost Summary
The hourly rate for the scope of work to be provided by Nicholas Fuchs of Wrayburn Consulting,
LLC is $125.00 per hour. This rate will not change throughout the duration of the contract.

Materials and Supplies: No charges are anticipated for materials and supplies.

Equipment: No charges will occur for eqmpment purchases.

Transportation Costs: As a local consultant, no charges will occur related to mileage and
transportation

Meals: No charges will occur related to meals

Lodging: No charges will occur related to lodging.

Computer Software: No charges will occur related to computer software.

Page \1



Insurance
Prior to the commencement of any work under the proposed contract, Wrayburn Consulting,
LLC will provide documentation of insurance compliant with the requirements outlined within
the subject contract.

Page I 2



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Approval ofa Professional Services Agreement with
Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. for Night Time

Cleaning ofCity Hall

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
With an existing vacancy in the second shift Custodian position at Franklin City Hall, staff
completed an analysis of needs and options with regard to moving forward. In order to address the
issue of more comprehensive cleaning of areas on a regular basis, and having back-up help in case
the regular person is unable to complete the work, staff obtained quotes from three (3) cleaning
service companies to see it this would be a viable alternative to the existing staffing.

ANALYSIS
The following three quotes were received based on a 5-time per week schedule (Monday-Friday
excluding holidays as designated):

• Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc.: $2,842/month or $34,104/year
• GIBB Building Maintenance Company, Inc.: $2,999.69 or $35,996/year
• City Wide Facility Solutions: $3,987/month or $47,844/year

There is currently $36,200 in budgeted funds for this purpose. This includes approximately $30,700
in pay and benefits for the former employee in this position, and approximately $5,500 that the City
spends on cleaning supplies and towel service for the cleaning of City Hall that it would not have to
pay if a cleaning service is secured as the cleaning service would provide those items. With the
cleaning service, all labor, supervision, cleaning supplies/materials, and equipment necessary in the
performance of the work is provided.

Restroom supplies such as paper towels, toilet tissue, hand soap, sanitizer, and trash liners will
continue to be supplied by the City, and are included in budgeted funds other than those discussed
above.

Some of the benefits of using a cleaning service rather than a City employee include the following:

• Back-up personnel is available if/when the main person is unable to work a scheduled shift;
• The cleaning service company is insured and bonded;
• Cleaning service employees are trained in: restroom and office cleaning, cleaning chemicals

and their proper use, hazards and emergency procedures, understanding material and safety
data sheets, safety for themselves and others, etc.;

• A cleaning service company will provide a more comprehensive cleaning on a regular
schedule with clearly identified duties to be performed per each service for certain areas such
as the lobby, office areas/conference rooms and corridors, and restrooms;



• The City is able to end the agreement with a thirty-day notice if it is dissatisfied with the
cleaning services being performed; and

• The cleaning service company furnishes all labor, supervision, cleaning supplies/materials,
and equipment necessary in performing the work.

FISCAL IMPACT
The cost of the cleaning service, $34,104 annually, will be funded with already budgeted funds for
this purpose and the service will be charged to the correct functional account, Account Number 01
0181-5219, Municipal Buildings, Other Professional Services.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Dust-Free
Cleaning Service, Inc., with a start date of December 1, 2022, at a monthly cost of $2,842 for a 5-time
per week service.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve a Professional Services Agreement with Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. for a 5
tirne per week service, starting December 1, 2022, at a monthly cost of $2,842; and to authorize the
Director of Administration to execute the agreement.

DOA-PS



DUSTJin·
,.. 1 l II ~ I ~ , 4 r I 1" I

·C

CLEANING SPECIFICATIONS

FOR

FRANKLIN CITY HALL



DUSTn
¢ LI i bl , 4f t4 1r·--:

Dear Bob,

Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. 1s pleased to present you with a cleaning bid for your facility

We are a highly organized, very personable company that we are sure you will find easy to
communicate and work with.

Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. Is very interested in quality control. We ensure this control
with walk-through on-the-job training, on-site supervisors, periodic check-ins with upper
management, and open line communication systems to both the employee and the account
contact. This enables our evening employees to contact us with questions or concerns at any
tmme.

We are a fairly small business m which our employees are scheduled at the same location the
same evening every week This eliminates scheduling confusions, and enables our employees
to thoroughly famlarze themselves to your needs Also, you will always recognize your
cleaning crew This 1s helpful for security reasons, and to make them available to any specific
needs or suggestions you may have

Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc 1s insured and bonded Copies of these documents are
available upon request. References are also furnished upon your request.

Thank you for your time and cons1derat1on We look forward to domg business with you 1n the
near future.

Sincerely,

James M Gammon
President



DUSTn
¢ Lt ih l r At t 1 t·.-.:

Pursuant to our recent conversatmn concerning the contract for the maintenance of your facility,
we submit the following proposal for your approval and acceptance on the listed terms and
conditions

LOCATION This contract shall cover the building located at Franklin City Hall.

DUTIES We will furnish at our expense all labor, superv1s1on, materials, equipment, etc

necessary in the performance of this work mn accordance with our bid Restroom

supplies including trash liners will be supplied by Franklin City Hall

or billed separately.

Should performance of this contract or any part thereof be prevented or delayed by reason of
any cause beyond the control of the parties including but not limited to strikes, nots, c1v1I
disorder etc , the party so affected shall be excused from performance to the extent that 1t 1s
prevented or delayed.



DUST
I1 h l t, 4 t I f·'--

THINGS WE DO TO BETTER SERVE YOU. OUR CUSTOMER

• We personally interview each applicant

• Train new employees on the company manual, the use of the material and data sheets,

and blood borne pathogens

• Train new employees on the thinking of safety for themselves and others

• Train on what the customer 1s to them and the company

• Tram on restroom and office cleaning.

• On the Job training

• Company newsletter to keep everyone informed about things happening here, new

chemicals, chemical usage, info on other employees, employee of the month, etc

• Sic paid holidays to try to maintain employee morale and consistency for our customer

• Low employee turnover after 60-day training penod.

• Regular employee meetings for continued education, exchange of ideas and getting to

know each other

• Regular supervisory meeting to facilitate communication.



DUSTfin
¢ 1 1 ih li . rt t tzt'-..

COMMUNICATION

We have a soph1st1cated communication system in place to ensure your building 1s cleaned and
maintained to the specrficatons as stated within this agreement.

Our main office is staffed from 8 00 am to 5 00 pm Monday through Friday to personally handle
your 1nqu1ry or concern Our Quality Control Manager serves as a backup to ensure your
bu1ld1ng 1s cleaned correctly on a daily basis.

On-site, we keep a communication log book which serves both you and Dust-Free Cleaning
Service, Inc in relaying information back and forth on a daily basis. This 1s especially important
for noting special areas of concern or a special meeting in the future that requires detailed
cleaning

EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION

For security purposes, all employees are required to wear a Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc
Identification card wth his/her picture, signature, current photograph, employee ID number and
description Also, Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc employees are given a logo t-sh1rt as a
uniform so they may clearly be noticed on your premises



DUSTp
If al t , tr t» 1 i

·'-n

QUALITY CONTROL

Quality control is based upon three different levels of Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc.
management staff.

1) On-Site Crew Supervisor

2) Quality Control Supervisor

3) President

Our On-Site crew supervisor Is responsible for the nightly inspection of all cleaning procedures.
He/She will 1nit1al a daily checklist to ensure quality standards are being met and each task has
been completed. In multiple cleaner buildings, the supervisor will work directly with the cleaners
to 1mmed1ately correct any problems

Our Quality Control Supervisor oversees the accounts, which they have been assigned. They
perform weekly written inspections of their buildings They review the inspections wrth the
on-site crew supervisor making sure each cleaning task Is completed correctly

Our President will perform periodic day and night inspections, at which time he will meet with the
contact person, or department heads when available to assess the cleaning program. He will
also perform a written inspection of all areas serviced In most instances, cleaning concerns will
be followed-up within twenty-four hours



DUSTp
LI Ah1 wt, 4t 1 l

·'-n

MANAGEMENT SET-UP

A) QUALITY CONTROL MANAGER- The Quality Control Manager will do penod1c written
Inspections of your building, In addition to meeting with you WEEKLY (uf desired) at a
predetermined day and time

B) PRESIDENT- above the Quahty Control Manager, the President will also do penod1c
UNANNOUNCED inspections, as a follow-up on the performances of the Crew Manager and
the Quality Control Managers. At no time will the Crew Manager know when the President will
be 1nspect1ng the building. In this way, every effort 1s taken to keep the building looking its best
The President 1s the back-up for the Crew Manager in the event of illness or vacation.

*You should note that Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. rewards its employees' efforts with
bonus gifts for excellent on-site unannounced inspections, and also uses a "good attendance"
monetary bonus for perfect attendance

HIRING PRACTICES

When they have completed the apphcat1on, they are given an oral interview to further assess
their ab1l1t1es. With their passing the oral interview, two add1t1onal checks are done before they
are officially hired. Reference checks with past employers are conducted as well as police
background checks. Anyone having a record for theft, robbery, etc. 1s not ehg1ble to be hired

STAFFING

Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. will staff your building with knowledgeable, fully trained, and
capable cleaners Through normal attnt1on, we man, at times, hire a new person to clean your
facility Rest assured this person will go through all necessary training BEFORE they start work
at your location.



DUST#
¢ I I Ah l , t tr l·'

TRAINING PROGRAM

Below you will find a bnef descnpt1on of our Training Program, which all new employees are
required to attend. It Is approximately a two hour session taught by a quality control manager
from the operations department All the aspects of cleaning (with the exception of specialty
work) are gone over in great detail In add1t1on, basic equipment maintenance and repair are
also taught. This training Is further supplemented by on-site trainers at the building the person
wIll be servicing for Dust-Free Cleaning Service, Inc. In thus way, we can tie together the
traInIng they received at our office with actual on-site, hands-on training We feel this best
reinforces what they already learned.

TRAINING CURRICULUM

EMPLOYEES WILL COMPLETE AND BE TRAINED ON THE FOLLOWING:

• Viewing of training tapes.
• lntroductmn to cleaning chemicals and their proper use.
• The potential for hazards and emergency procedures
• Understanding material & safety data sheets
• Review of equ1pment-operat1on and maintenance.
• Blood borne Pathogen Standards
• Dusting High/Low
• Use of furniture cleaning products.
• Dust mopping procedure
• Damp mopping procedure
• Trashing procedure
• Window cleaning procedure
• Vacuuming procedure
• Restroom cleaning procedure



DUSTp
Lt ibl , rs I, l

'n.7

SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT

DUST-FREE CLEANING SERVICE, INC will furnish all the Janitorial supplies and equipment

necessary to perform the aforementioned services This does not include restroom supplies

such as paper towels, toilet tissue, hand soap, deodorants, and trash liner (These items will be

supplied by Franklin City Hall or billed separately)



DUSTn
,;: t I l 1-i I s, tr ft

':

CLEANING SPECIFICATIONS

LOBBY:
DUTIES PERFORMED PER SERVICE:

• Vacuum carpet areas.

1 Dust all horizontal surfaces, mcludmg picture frames, furniture (weekly).

1 Spot clean door glass.



DUSTfree
If wh ist. At f··'---.,

CLEANING SPECIFICATIONS:
OFFICE AREA, CONFERENCE ROOM AND CORRIDORS:
DUTIES TO BE PERFORMED PER SERVICE:

• Empty all wastepaper baskets and trash receptacles, replacing liners as necessary

• Empty recycling baskets.

• Dust all furniture, cleared surfaces, pictures, etc (per schedule)

• Vacuum all carpeted traffic areas

• Vacuum all carpeted areas complete once weekly

• Sweep hard surface floors

• Mop hard surface floors (using City of Franklin floor machine).



DUST
,;: L t hl t, 4f th f I·-=.5

RESTROOMS:

DUTIES TO BE PERFORMED PER SERVICE:

• Restock paper products.

• Remove trash and rehne baskets.

• Clean and samt1ze sinks and counters

• Clean mirrors and dispensers.

• Clean and samt1ze toilets and urinals.

• Sweep and damp mop floors.



DUST
Lt ii+, 13 1? t·--.

CONSIDERATION:

For the services listed in the cleaning spec1ficat1ons for the currently occupied bu1ld1ng at
Franklin City Hall you agree to pay us a monthly sum of $2842 00 per month for a five time per
week service

CONTRACT COVERAGE:

This contract contains the entire agreement between the parties All pnor negotIat1ons between
the parties are merged in this contract and there are no understandings or agreements other
than those incorporated or referred to herein. This contract may not be modified except by an
Instrument in writing signed by both parties

Thus contract is binding upon the herrs, administrators, and assigns of both parties

TERMINATION:

Ghent or contractor may terminate this agreement by a thirty-day written notice for any reason

THIS CONTRACT IS APPROVED AND ACCEPTED IN ITS ENTIRETY.

DUST-FREE CLEANING SERVICE, INC.

James M Gammon

STARTING DATE:

Franklin City Hall

Bob Tesch



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Tax Incremental District No. 8 Potential
Development Agreement Between the City of

Franklin and Saputo Cheese USA Inc.,
Commercial/Manufacturing Buildings Mixed Use

Development (Public and Private Property
Improvements) at 2895 W. Oakwood Road bearing
Tax Key No. 951-9994-003. 'The Common Council
may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§

19.85(l)(e), for competitive and bargaining reasons,
to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax
Incremental District No. 8 Potential Development

Agreement Between the City ofFranklin and
Saputo Cheese USA Inc., Commercial/

Manufacturing Buildings Mixed Use Development
(Public and Private Property Improvements), and
the investing ofpublic funds and governmental
actions in relation thereto and to effect such

development, including the terms and provisions of
the potential development agreement for the
development ofproperty located at 2895 W.

Oakwood Road, consisting ofapproximately 34.388
acres, and to re-enter open session at the same

place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

).10.

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for competitive and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8
Potential Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Saputo Cheese USA Inc.,
Commercial/Manufacturing Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public and Private Property
Improvements), and the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto
and to effect such development, including the terms and provisions of the potential
development agreement for the development of property located at 2895 W. Oakwood Road,
consisting of approximately 34.388 acres, and to re-enter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA-PS



BLANK PAGE



PPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Common Council Consideration ofCode of Conduct
Complaints. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant toWis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)(f) considering

financial, medical, social, or personal histories or
disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary
consideration of specific personnel problems or the
investigation ofcharges against specific persons

except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in
public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse
effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in
such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and to reenter open session at the same

place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(f) considering financial, medical,
social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of
specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par.
(b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA- PS



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE

11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached minutes from Special License Committee meeting of November 10 and agenda
from meeting of November 15, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



Franklin,,
w I S CO N S I N

414-425-7500
Special License Committee

Minutes
Franklin City Hall Hearing Room

9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI

November 10, 2022 - 4:00 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time: 4:01 p.m.
2. I Annlicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve [ Hold I Deny

Fireworks Display Fireworks Display Process for License Committee
Process Consideration and Discussion for Recommendation to The City Clerk provided a

the Common Council (Referred from 9/20/2022, copy of a citizen letter to the
10/4/2022, 10/18/2022, 8 11/01/2022 Common Committee regarding the
Council Meetina) Fireworks Display Process.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved
to schedule a Specal License
Committee meeting on
November 28, 2022, at
4:00 p.m. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

3. Adiournment
Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:31
p.m. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



y

Franklin
a w I S CO N S 1 N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda
Franklin City Hall Hearing Room

9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI

November 15, 2022 - 5:45 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I APPiicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Reserve Class B DBA Andy's On Ryan Rd
Combination Ryan Fuel LLC2022-2023

5:50 p.m. Kavita Khullar, Agent
5120 W Ryan Rd

Operator Beaudot, Lauren T
2022-2023 Pick'n Save #6431New

Operator Drahonovsky, Cruz
2022-2023 Walgreens #05459New

Operator Jaime, Castiven
2022-2023 No LocationNew

Operator Tengel, Lindsay
2022-2023 Hideaway Pub & EateryNew

People Uniting for the Xaverian Missionaries - Annual Mission Festival
Betterment of Life and Fee waivers: Extraordinary Event License, Temporary Class "B"Investment in the
Community (PUBLIC) Beer and Wine License, Operator Licenses, Temporary Food

Grant Licenses, and Sign Permits
Dates of Event: 6/24/2023 - 6/25/2023
Location: Xaverian Missionaries, 4500 W. Xavier Dr.

People Uniting for the Fleet Reserve Association Branch 14-- St Martin's Fair
Betterment of Life and Fee Waivers: St. Martin's Fair PermitInvestment in the
Community (PUBLIC) Dates of the Event: Sept 3-4, 2023

Grant Location: St. Martin's Labor Day Fair

An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Update the

3. Specified Duties of the License Committee as set forth m §19-
4A.(3) License Committee.



License ommuttee Agenda
Hearing Room
November 15, 2022

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve / Hold I Deny

License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures
4. Amendments.

5. Adjournment. Time:

Notice Is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather mnformation about an agenda item over which they have
dec1s10n-makmg respons1b11Ity This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale V1llage Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting

Page 2 of2



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Update
the Specified Duties of the License Committee as set

forth in &19-4A.(3) License Committee

MEETING
DATE

November 15, 2022

ITEM NUMBER+. 3
Attached is a copy of the above, as referred by the License Committee and which has been reviewed by the
Legal Services Department. The current Municipal Code § 19-4A.(3) provision is: "License Committee. The
Committee shall review applications for business applications and submit its recommendations to the Council."

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Update the Specified Duties of the
License Committee as set forth in § 19-4A.(3) License Committee.

Legal Services Dept.: jw



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft I I/8/22

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE SPECIFIED
DUTIES OF THE LICENSE COMMITTEE AS SET FORTH IN

§19-4A.(3) LICENSE COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, § 19-4A.(3) of the Municipal Code currently provides: "License
Committee. The Committee shall review applications for business applications and submit
its recommendations to the Council."; and

WHEREAS, the License Committee having reviewed §19-4A.(3) and having
recommended an update thereof to the Common Council to provide further specificity of the
actual duties of the Committee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

§19-4A.(3) License Committee, of the Municipal Code of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows:
License Committee. The Committee shall review items as directed by the
Common Council, items as may be required by the Wisconsin Statutes,
applications for alcohol beverage licenses and permits and authorizations,
special event permits, coin-operated amusement devices licenses and
permits as may be required and/or permitted by the Wisconsin Statutes,
and review licensed establishment concerns as may be presented by the
Health Department, the Fire Department and/or the Police Department,
and then submit its recommendations to the Council.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2022, by Alderman



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-
Page 2

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures
Amendments

MEETING
DATE

November 15, 2022

ITEM NUMBER
+,£,

Attached is a copy of the current License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures, and a copy of a
draft with amendments thereto. The Administrative Rules and Procedures Amendments have been reviewed by
the License Committee.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve the License Committee Administrative Rules and Procedures Amendments, in the form
and content as presented to the Common Council at this meeting.

Legal Services Dept.: jw



P,g,d:.
License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article I. Name of Committee

The name of this Com1mttee shall be the "License Committee" of the City of Franklm,
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the "Committee"

Article II. Authorization

The authonzat10n for the estabhshment of the Committee 1s set forth in § l0-22 of the
Mumcipal Code of Franklm, Wisconsm, as amended, heremafter referred to as "$10
22", whuch is mcorporated herem by this reference and is presented m Exhibit A

Article III. Membership

Sect1on 1

Sect1on 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5.

Sect10n 6

The composition of the Committee shall be as established m §I 0-22 and as may
otherwise be specified by the Common Council

The terms of the members shall be as estabhshed in § l0-22 and as may otherwise be
specified by the Common Council

Each member shall have one (1) vote The Chairman votes accordmg to Common
Council pohcy, which follows Roberts Rules of Order. Votmg by proxy s not
permitted On a tie vote, the motion is lost In the event the Committee 1s compnsed of
co-chau status for each member, each member shall have a vote on all matters, absent
any conflict ofmterest or any other reason for abstention

All members shall serve without compensat10n

A quorum shall be two (2) members

Actions, commumcat1ons, etc of Committee members shall be subject to the prov1s10ns
of the Wisconsin Statutes, includmg but not hm1ted to the Open Meetmgs Act, and the
Municipal Code and policies of the City of Franklm, mcludmg but not hm1ted to the
Code ofEthics

Article IV. Duties

Section I

Section 2

The duties of the Committee shall be as estabhshed m §10-22 of the Mumc1pal Code of
the City of Franklm, and as may otherwise be specified by the Common Councli

The City of Franklm's City Clerk or des1gnee shall provide administrative staff support
to the Committee



City ofFranklm License Comnuttee Adm1mstrat1ve Rules and Procedures

Article V. Officers

Page 2

Section I

Sect1on 2

Sect1on 3

Sect1on 4

Section 5

The officers of the Committee shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary In the
event the Committee 1s compnsed of Co-Chair status for each member, one member
shall additionally be elected Secretary and no Vic-Chair shall be elected durmg such
status

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by and from the Committee members

The term of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be from election to the next election Elect10ns
to fill these offices shall be held at the first Committee meeting and the first Committee
meetmg on or after May 1 of each subsequent year. Elect10ns to fill vacancies will be
held at the first Committee meeting after the vacancy occurs

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearmgs of the Committee and shall have
the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such office The Chair, with
the assistance of the City Clerk, shall·

a) Call meetings of the Committee as needed to fulfill the duties of the Committee
and determme the time and place of such meetings

b) Prepare agendas for meetmgs
c) Prepare reports ofCommittee act10ns
d) Provide notice to all Committee members
e) Attend to correspondence of the Committee as approved by the Committee
f) Determme that the Secretary keeps the official records of the Committee
g) Determme that all Committee members have these Admimstrat1ve Rules and

Procedures and such other records as may be necessary for the satisfactory
conduct of the duties of Committee members

h) Have other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Committee

When the Char 1s unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Chair, the Vice-Chair (or
Co-Chau) shall preside and assume the duties of the Chair until the Char 1s able to
pres1de

Article VI. Committees, Subcommittees

Sect1on I

Section 2

The Committee may establish committees and subcommittees as deemed appropnate or
necessary to fulfill the duties of the Committee.

The Chair shall appomt committee and subcommittee members and officers



City of Franklm License Committee Achmmstratlve Rules and Procedures

Article VII. Meetings

Page 3

Section I

Sect1on 2

Sect1on 3

Sect1on 4

Section 5

Sect1on 6

Sect1on 7

Section 8

Sect1on 9

The Committee, its committees and subcommittees shall meet as needed to fulfill the
duties of the Committee

The Committee shall meet at the call of the Chamnan as needed to fulfill the duties of
the Committee

All meetmgs of the Committee shall be open to the general public, subJect to the
provisions of the Wisconsm Statutes (Open Meetings Act).

Except as otherwise provided herem or specified by the Common Council, the
parliamentary procedure of the Committee shall be as provided m Robert's Rules of
Order Newly Revised, as approved by the Common Council

A record of all Committee actions shall be kept as part of its mmutes

Any member of the Committee may place on a Committee agenda for consideration,
discussion, action, etc any matter that is properly within or related to the duties, rules,
procedures, activities, etc of the Committee, by notice to the Chair and the Secretary

All materials and mformation related to matters to be considered by the Committee
shall be delivered to the City Clerk not later than seven (7) workmg days precedmg the
meetmg at which the matter is to be considered Matters submitted for consideration by
the Committee may be rescheduled to a subsequent Committee meetmg when the
Committee has determmed that any required materials and information have not been
received by the specified time.

Agendas and other materials for each meeting shall, whenever possible, be mailed to the
members of the Committee not later than three (3) workmg days precedmg the meetmg

Revisions or amenchnents to these Admimstrative Rules and Procedures (except items
established m the statutes and regulations of the State of Wisconsin or the Mumc1pal
Code of the City of Franklm, Wisconsin, which shall be as adopted by the applicable
authontative body), shall require approval of a maJority of all the members of the
Committee and approval by the Common Council. All other actions shall require
approval of a majonty of all the members of the Committee.



City of Franklm License Comrmttee Adrmmstratlve Rules and Procedures

Article VIII. Order of Business

Page 4

Section 1

Section 2

Each Committee agenda shall provide for the followmg order ofbusmess

I Call to order and roll call
II Approval ofmmutes of previous meeting(s)
III Old busmess (listed)
IV New busmess (listed)
V Other business (e g, items for future agendas, Committee rules and procedures,

etc)
VI Schedule next meeting
VII. Adjournment

In general, the order of busmess shall follow the prmted agenda. The order of busmess
may vary from the pnnted agenda by consensus of the Committee members present

Article IX. Non-member Participation

Section 1

Sect1on 2

Sectton 3

Letters, documents and other records relevant to matters before the Committee or withm
Committee duties are welcome at any tmme by submuss1on to the Secretary, subject to
taming requirements established elsewhere herem. Submissions related to a specific
matter before the Commuttee wll be considered when the specific matter is considered.
Submussons related to other matters wthin the Committee duties will be considered 1n
the Other Busmess section of the agenda or as otherwise deemed applicable by the
Committee.

Except for properly noticed and scheduled public heanngs, non-member testimony
durmg Committee meetings shall be limited to a) applicants with matters before the
Committee, b) persons with knowledge or expertise relevant to matters before the
Committee or withm Committee duties and c) the Mayor and Aldermen of the City of
Franklm Such non-member testimony shall be permitted at the d1scret10n of and upon
recogmtlon by the Chair or on consensus of the Committee members present, and upon
statement of name, address and basis for testimony

At a properly noticed and scheduled pubhc hearing of the Committee, any person may
speak on the specified subject of the hearmg upon recogmt1on by the Chair and
statement of name and pnmary residence address

Article X. Reconsideration

Section 1 The Committee may reconsider any action taken by it dunng the same meeting at which
the action was taken and at the next succeedmg meetmg



License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Table ofContents

Page Article Title

l I Name ofCommittee
l II Authorization
1 III Membership
1 IV Duties
2 V Officers
2 VI Committees, Subcommittees
3 VII Meetings
4 VIII Order ofBusiness
4 IX Non-members Participation
4 X Reconsideration

Exhibit

A. §10-22. Of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin.

EXHIBIT A.

§10-22. License Committee. [Added 3-6-2001 by Ordinance No. 2001-1639]

The License Committee shall consist ofthree Alderpersons appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Common Council, each to serve a one-year term commencing May 1.
(See §19-4. ofthis Code.)



License Committee
redraft 11/8/22

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Table of Contents and Exhibit A:

Page Article Title

2 I Name of Committee
2 II Authorization and Duties
2 III Membership
3 IV Officers and Staff Assistance
3 V Committees, Subcommittees
3 VI Meetings
4 VII Order of Business
5 VIII Non-members Participation
5 IX Reconsideration

EXHIBIT A: Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin

$10-22 License Committee.
[Added 3-6-2001 by Ord. No. 2001-1639]

The License Committee shall consist of three Alderpersons appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by
the Common Council, each to serve a one-year term commencing May 1. (See $19-4 of this Code.)

§ 19-4 Committees.
A._Committee appointments. At the first regular Council meeting in May, the Mayor shall appoint the
following committees, subject to Council confirmation: ***

(3) License Committee. [Amended/Added x by Ordinance x] The Committee shall review items as
directed by the Common Council, items as may be required by the Wisconsin Statutes, applications for
alcohol beverage licenses and permits and authorizations, special event permits, coin-operated
amusement devices licenses and permits as may be required and/or permitted by the Wisconsin
Statutes, and review licensed establishment concerns as may be presented by the Health Department,
the Fire Department and/or the Police Department, and then submit its recommendations to the
Council.



License Committee

Administrative Rules and Procedures

Article I. Name of Committee

The name of this Committee shall be the "License Committee" of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the "Committee".

Article II. Authorization and Duties

Section 1. The authorization for the establishment of the Committee is set forth in § 10-22 of the
Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as amended, hereinafter referred to as "§ 10-22",
which is incorporated herein by this reference and is presented in Exhibit A.

The duties of the Committee shall be as set forth in §19-4A.(3) of the Municipal Code of
the City of Franklin, as amended, and as may otherwise be specified by the Common
Council, hereinafter referred to as "§19-4A.(3)" which is incorporated herein by this
reference and is presented in Exhibit A.

Section 2. The City of Franklin City Clerk or designee shall provide record retention services,
administrative staff support to the Committee and shall produce the agenda working
with the then presiding Co-Chair. Committee members may individually submit
proposed agenda items to the City Clerk or the Clerk's designee. Minute transcription
shall be recorded as the action taken by the Committee upon its consent to such action.
Upon a change to the Committee's recommended action by the Common Council, the
Committee meeting minutes shall note the action change therein. The presiding Co
Chair shall deliver a copy of the Committee's recommended actions sheet to the City
Clerk or the Clerk's designee upon adjournment of the subject meeting, which
recommended actions sheet shall be the minutes.

Article III. Membership

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

The composition of the Committee shall be as established in $10-22 and as may
otherwise be specified by the Common Council by way of amendment thereto.

The terms of the members shall be as established in §10-22 and as may otherwise be
specified by the Common Council by way of amendment thereto.

Each member shall have one (1) vote. Voting by proxy is not permitted. On a tie vote,
the motion is lost. In the Committee as comprised of Co-Chair member status, each
member shall have a vote on all matters, absent any conflict of interest or any other
reason for abstention.

All members shall serve without compensation.

A quorum shall be two (2) members.



Section 6. Actions, communications, etc. of Committee members shall be subject to the provisions
of the Wisconsin Statutes, including but not limited to the Wisconsin Open Meetings
Law, and the Municipal Code and policies of the City of Franklin, including but not
limited to the Code ofEthics.

Article IV. Officers and Staff Assistance

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

The officers of the Committee shall be Co-Chair on a 3-month rotation, who shall
preside to call the meeting to order and perform meeting recording duties. Under the
Co-Chair status, for each member, one member shall serve as Chair on a 3-month
rotational status presiding as Chair during said period. No Vice-Chair or secretary shall
be elected during such status. In the event the present Chair cannot fulfill the duty or
term, the office of the Chair will rotate to the following Co-Chair in the order under
Section 2. below.

Using the rotating Co-Chair status, the rotation shall begin in sequence of the numerical
order of the respective Districts Nos. of the Alderpersons appointed to the Committee,
with the highest numbered (ie., Districts Nos. 6 through 1) Aldermanic District to
preside at the first Committee meeting on or after May 1 of each year, then following
that 3-month rotation term or upon an absence or inability of the presiding Co-Chair
during that rotation term, the next highest numbered Aldermanic District No. member
on the first meeting date, and then the third member Co-Chair thereafter, accordingly,
with the process to continue thereafter from the start for every 3 months, with the
rotation ending on May 1 of each subsequent year.

The Co-Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Committee and shall
have the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such office. However, the
City Clerk, acting as staff assistance or the Clerk's designee, with the input of the Co
Chair, shall:

a) Call meetings of the Committee as needed to fulfill the duties of the Committee
and determine the time and place of such meetings.

b) Prepare agendas for meetings.
c) Prepare reports of Committee actions.
d) Provide notice to all Committee members.
e) Attend to correspondence of the Committee as approved by the Committee.
f) Keep the official records of the Committee.
g) Provide all Committee members a copy of these Administrative Rules and

Procedures, and such other records as may be necessary for the satisfactory
conduct of the duties of Committee members.

h) Perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the
Committee or the Common Council.

When the current presiding Co-Chair is unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Co
Chair, the next in line Co-Chair shall preside and assume the duties until the Co-Chair is
able to preside or the rotation term has completed.

Article V. Committees, Subcommittees



Section 1.

Section 2.

The Committee may establish committees and subcommittees as deemed appropriate or
necessary to fulfill the duties of the Committee.

The member appointments thereto and formation of a committee or subcommittee shall
be made by the Co-Chair in rotation at the time of such formation.

Article VI. Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

The Committee, its committees and subcommittees shall meet as needed to fulfill the
duties of the Committee.

The Committee shall on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month prior to the meeting of
the Common Council or as needed, upon the notification of the Office of the City Clerk
in consultation with the Co-Chair, to fulfill the duties of the Committee.

All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the public, subject to the provisions of
the Wisconsin Statutes (Open Meetings Law).

Except as otherwise provided herein or specified by the Common Council, the
parliamentary procedure of the Committee shall be as provided in Robert's Rules of
Order Newly Revised, as approved by the Common Council.

A record of all Committee actions shall be kept as part of its minutes.

Any member of the Committee may place on a Committee agenda for consideration,
discussion, action, etc. any matter that is properly within or related to the duties, rules,
procedures, activities, etc. of the Committee, by notice to the City Clerk or the Clerk's
designee.

All materials and information related to matters to be considered by the Committee
shall be delivered to the City Clerk not later than seven (T) working days preceding the
meeting at which the matter is to be considered. Matters submitted for consideration by
the Committee may be rescheduled to a subsequent Committee meeting when the
Committee has determined that any required materials and information have not been
received by the specified time.

Agendas and other materials for each meeting shall, whenever possible, be mailed or
otherwise delivered to the members of the Committee not later than three (3) days
preceding the meeting.

Revisions or amendments to these Administrative Rules and Procedures (except items
established in the statutes and regulations of the State of Wisconsin or the Municipal
Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, which shall be as adopted by the applicable
authoritative body), shall require approval of a majority of all the members of the
Committee and approval by the Common Council. All other actions shall require
approval of a majority of all the members of the Committee.

Article VII. Order of Business

Section 1. The Committee agenda shall provide for the following order ofbusiness as applicable:



Section 2.

I. Call to order and roll call
II. Approval of minutes (including note(s) re: Council action(s) differ(s))
III. Business (listed)
IV. Other business as applicable (e.g., items for future agendas, Committee rules

and procedures, etc.)
V. Next meeting date
VI. Adjournment

In general, the order of business shall follow the printed agenda. The order of business
may vary from the printed agenda by consensus of the Committee members present.

Article VIII. Non-member Participation

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Letters, documents and other records relevant to matters before the Committee or within
Committee duties are welcome at any time by submission to the presiding Co-Chair or
the City Clerk, subject to timing requirements established elsewhere herein.
Submissions related to a specific matter before the Committee will be considered when
the specific matter is considered. Submissions related to other matters within the
Committee duties will be considered in the Other Business section of the agenda when
such subject matter is stated thereunder or as otherwise deemed applicable in relation
thereto by the Committee and pursuant to the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.

Except for required and properly noticed and scheduled public hearings, non-member
testimony during Committee meetings shall be limited to: a) applicants with matters
before the Committee; b) persons with knowledge or expertise relevant to matters
before the Committee or within Committee duties; and c) the Mayor and Alderpersons
of the City of Franklin. Such non-member testimony shall be permitted at the discretion
of and upon recognition by the Co-Chair or on consensus of the Committee members
present, and upon statement of name, address and basis for testimony.

At a required and properly noticed and scheduled public hearing of the Committee, any
person may speak on the specified subject of the hearing upon recognition by the Co
Chair and statement of name and primary residence address.

Article IX. Reconsideration

Section 1. The Committee may reconsider any action taken by it during the same meeting at which
the action was taken and at the next succeeding meeting.



APPROVAL

MG
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
11/15/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated October 28and November 2, 2022 through November 10, 2022, Nos 190011 through
Nos 190174 m the amount of$ 2,210,518 81 Also included in this ltsting are EFT's Nos 5140 through EFT
Nos 5151, EFT Nos 322{S), Library vouchers totaling $1,792 97 and Water Ut11tty vouchers totaling$ 965,710 35
Voided checks mn the amount of {$ 1, 157 13) are separately ltsted

Early release disbursements dated October 28th and November 2, 2022 through November 9, 2022 in the amount of
$410,421 84 are provided on a separate ltstmg and are also included in the complete disbursement listing These
payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

There were no property tax distributions

The net payroll dated November 4, 2022 1s $ 429,311 73, previously estimated at$ 435,000 Payroll deductions
dated November 4, 2022 are$ 232,301 19, previously estimated at$ 238,000

The estimated payroll for November 18, 2022 1s $ 433,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$466,000

The estimated payroll for December 2, 2022 1s $ 431,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$237,000

The Library Board has not approved November 2022 vouchers for payment as of this wntmg Approval of
the Library vouchers will be considered at the November 28, 2022 meeting Upon their approval, request 1s
made to authorize the release of these payments not to exceed $ 25,000 00

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of November 10, 2022 1n the amount of$ 2,210,518 81 and

• Payroll dated November 4, 2022 in the amount of$ 429,311 73 and payments of the various payroll deductions
mn the amount of$ 232,301 19, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated November 18, 2022 in the amount of$ 433,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions m the amount of$ 466,000, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated December 2, 2022 in the amount of$ 431,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 237,000, plus City matching payments and

• Approval to release Library vouchers not to exceed $25,000 00

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept -- KM


